
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Integrated Commissioning Sub Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 14 MAY 2020 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: VIRTUALLY 

 
Members: Randall Anderson 

Marianne Fredericks 
Ruby Sayed 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: alex.harris2@nhs.net  

 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting.  
 

Members of the public can view the virtual public meeting via the link on the 
agenda.  

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. CITY & HACKNEY ICB AGENDA - 14 MAY 2020 
 

For Information 
(Pages 1 - 22840) 

 



 

   
 

City Integrated Commissioning 
Board  

Meeting in-common of the  
City and Hackney Clinical 

Commissioning Group and the City of 
London Corporation 

 

Hackney Integrated Commissioning 
Board 

Meeting in-common of the  
City and Hackney Clinical 

Commissioning Group and the London 
Borough of Hackney  

 
 

Joint Meeting of the two Integrated Commissioning Boards on Thursday 14 
May 2020, 10.00 – 12.00  

Microsoft Teams 
 

Please follow this link to join the meeting: 

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting 

Item 
no. 

Item Lead and 
purpose 

Documentation 
type 

Page No. Time 
 

1. Welcome, introductions and 
apologies  
 

Chair Verbal  
- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
10.00 
 

2. Declarations of Interests 
 

Chair 
 
For noting 

Paper 
 

2-8 
 

3. Questions from the Public  Chair 
 

Verbal / Teams - 

4. Minutes of the Previous 
Meeting  

Chair 
 
For approval  

Paper 9-16 

5. ICB Terms of Reference – 
Covid-19 Arrangements 

Carolyn Kus 
 
For endorsement 

Paper 17-29 

Covid-19 response 

6. Covid-19 Response – Phase 2 
Guidance (paper to follow) 

David Maher 
 
For discussion 

Paper  
(to follow) 

- 10.05 

7. COVID-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service: Variation to Section 
75 Agreements 

David Maher 
 
For noting 

Paper 30-38 10.20 

8. City & Hackney Service 
Changes 

Carolyn Kus 
 
For noting 

Paper 39-44 10.40 

9.  CCG Contracting Position 
 
 
 

Sunil Thakker 
 
 
For noting 

Paper 45-50 10.50 

1

Page 1

Agenda Item 1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NTZjMGU4NWUtNWY5Ny00OTY5LWJlMjctOThkOWEzNzVkNGI3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2237c354b2-85b0-47f5-b222-07b48d774ee3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2218c6b054-e426-4b0e-89f5-3ef48b8d646e%22%7d


 

   
 

10. Provider Alliance Update Jonathan 
McShane 
 
Update 

Verbal - 11.10 

11.  Neighbourhoods Year 3 
Business Case 

Nina Griffith 
 
For approval 

Paper 51-102 11.15 

12. Homelessness Update David Maher / 
Siobhan Harper 
 
Update 

Verbal  - 11.45 

13. AOB & Reflections Chair 
 
For discussion 

Verbal - 11.55 

For information items 

- Integrated Commissioning 
Glossary  
 

For information IC Glossary 103-107 - 

Date of next meeting: 

11 June 2020, Microsoft Teams 

 

 

2

Page 2



Forename Surname Date of Declaration Position / Role Nature of Business / Organisation Nature of Interest / Comments Type of interest

12/08/2019

City ICB advisor/ regular attendee

City of London Corporation Assistant Director - Commissioning & Partnerships, Community 

& Children's Services

Pecuniary Interest

Accountable Officers Group member City of London Corporation Attendee at meetings Pecuniary Interest

Providence Row Trustee Non-Pecuniary Interest

Sunil Thakker 11/12/2018 City and Hackney ICB advisor/ regular attendee City & Hackney CCG Chief Financial Officer Non-Pecuniary Interest

Ian Williams 20/03/2020 Hackney ICB advisor/ regular attendee London Borough of Hackney Group Director, Finance and Corporate Resources Pecuniary Interest

n/a Homeowner in Hackney Pecuniary Interest

Hackney Schools for the Future Ltd Director Pecuniary Interest

NWLA Partnership Board Joint Chair Pecuniary Interest

London Treasury Ltd SLT Rep

London CIV Board Observer / SLT Rep

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy

Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Society of London Treasurers Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

London Finance Advisory Committee Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Schools and Academy Funding Group London Representative Non-Pecuniary Interest

Society of Municipal Treasurers SMT Executive

London CIV Shareholders Committee SLT Rep

London Pensions Investments Advisory 

Committee

Chair Non-Pecuniary Interest

City of London Corporate Member Pecuniary Interest

Gaia Re Ltd Member Pecuniary Interest

Thincats (Poland) Ltd Director Pecuniary Interest

Bar of England and Wales Member Pecuniary Interest

Transition Finance (Lavenham) Ltd Member Pecuniary Interest

Nirvana Capital Ltd Member Pecuniary Interest

Honourable Society of the Inner Temple Member Non-pecuniary interest

Independent / Temple & Farringdon Together Member Non-pecuniary interest

Guild of Entrepreneurs Founder Member Non-pecuniary interest

Bury St. Edmund's Woman's Aid Trustee Non-pecuniary interest

Housing the Homeless Central Fund Trustee Non-Pecuniary Interest

Asian Women's Resource Centre Trustee & Chairperson Non-pecuniary interest

Mark Jarvis 02/03/2020 City ICB advisor / regular attendee City of London Corporation Head of Finance Pecuniary Interest

27/06/2019 Hackney ICB advisor / regular attendee

Accountable Officers Group member

London Borough of Hackney Group Director - Children, Adults & Community Health Pecuniary Interest

Partner works at Our Lady's Convent School, N16 Indirect interest

Honor Rhodes 01/03/2019 Member - City / Hackney Integrated Commissioning 

Boards

City & Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group Lay Member for Governance Pecuniary Interest

Tavistock Centre for Couple Relationships Director Non-Pecuniary Interest

Southwark Giving Chair Non-Pecuniary Interest

The School and Family Works, Social Enterprise Special Advisor Pecuniary Interest

HUHFT Daughter is employed as Assistant Psychologist Indirect interest

Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust Spouse is Tri-Borough Consultant Family Therapist Indirect interest

Early Intervention Foundation Trustee Non-Pecuniary Interest

n/a Registered with Barton House NHS Practice, N16 Non-Pecuniary Interest

Gary Marlowe 25/06/2019 GP Member of the City & Hackney CCG Governing Body

ICB advisor / regular attendee

City & Hackney CCG Governing Body GP Member Pecuniary Interest

Canning

City ICB member07/11/2019Sayed

Integrated Commissioning
2020 Register of Interests

Simon 

Anne 

Ruby

Cribbens

3

P
age 3



Forename Surname Date of Declaration Position / Role Nature of Business / Organisation Nature of Interest / Comments Type of interest

De Beauvoir Surgery GP Partner Pecuniary Interest

City & Hackney CCG Planned Care Lead Pecuniary Interest

Hackney GP Confederation Member Pecuniary Interest

British Medical Association London Regional Chair Non-Pecuniary Interest

n/a Homeowner - Casimir Road, E5 Non-Pecuniary Interest

City of London Health & Wellbeing Board Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Local Medical Committee Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Unison Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

CHUHSE Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

4

P
age 4



Forename Surname Date of Declaration Position / Role Nature of Business / Organisation Nature of Interest / Comments Type of interest

Anntoinette Bramble 05/06/2019 Member - Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board Hackney Council Deputy Mayor Pecuniary Interest

Local Government Association Member of the Children and Young Board Pecuniary Interest

Schools Forum Member Pecuniary Interest

SACRE Member Pecuniary Interest

Admission Forum Member Pecuniary Interest

HSFL (Ltd) Non-Pecuniary Interest

GMB Union Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Labour Party Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Urstwick School Governor Non-Pecuniary Interest

City Academy Governor Non-Pecuniary Interest

Hackney Play Bus (Charity) Board Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Local Government Association Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Lower Clapton Group Practice Registered Patient Non-pecuniary interest

Marianne Fredericks 26/02/2020 Member - City Integrated Commissioning Board City of London Member Pecuniary Interest

Farringdon Ward Club Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

The Worshipful Company of Firefighters Liveryman Non-Pecuniary Interest

Christ's Hospital School Council Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Aldgate and All Hallows Foundation Charity Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

The Worshipful Company of Bakers Liveryman Non-Pecuniary Interest

Tower Ward Club Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Christopher Kennedy 25/06/2019 Deputy Member - Hackney Integrated Commissioning 

Board

Hackney Council Cabinet Member for Families, Early Years and Play Pecuniary Interest

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Hackney Empire Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Hackney Parochial Charity Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Labour party Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Local GP practice Registered patient Non-Pecuniary Interest

Patel 12/08/2019 Member - City Integrated Commissioning Board City of London Corporation Deputy Chairman, City of London Corporation Integrated 

Commissioning Sub-Committee

Pecuniary Interest

Clockwork Pharmacy Group SSAS, Amersham Trustee; Member Pecuniary Interest

Clockwork Underwriting LLP, Lincolnshire Partner Pecuniary Interest

Clockwork Retail Ltd, London Company Secretary & Shareholder Pecuniary Interest

Clockwork Pharmacy Ltd Company Secretary Pecuniary Interest

DP Facility Management Ltd Director; Shareholder Pecuniary Interest

Clockwork Farms Ltd Director; Shareholder Pecuniary Interest

P&A Developments Company Secretary Pecuniary Interest

Clockwork Hotels LLP Partner Pecuniary Interest

Capital International Ltd Employee Pecuniary Interest

Land Interests - 

8/9 Ludgate Square

215-217 Victoria Park Road

236-238 Well Street

394-400 Mare Street

1-11 Dispensary Lane

Pecuniary Interest

Securities - 

Fundsmith LLP Equity Fund Class Accumulation GBP

J P Morgan American Investment Trust PLC Ord

Pecuniary Interest

City of London Academies Trust Director Non-Pecuniary Interest

The Lord Mayor's 800th Anniversary Awards 

Trust

Trustee Non-Pecuniary Interest

City Hindus Network Director; Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Aldgate Ward Club Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

City & Guilds College Association Life-Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

The Society of Young Freemen Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

City Livery Club Member and Treasurer of u40s section Non-Pecuniary Interest

The Clothworkers' Company Liveryman; Member of the Property Committee Non-Pecuniary Interest

Dhruv 

5

P
age 5



Forename Surname Date of Declaration Position / Role Nature of Business / Organisation Nature of Interest / Comments Type of interest

Diversity (UK) Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Chartered Association of Buidling Engineers Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Institution of Engineering and Technology Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

City & Guilds of London Institute Associate Non-Pecuniary Interest

Association of Lloyd's members Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

High Premium Group Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Avanti Court Primary School Chairman of Governors Non-Pecuniary Interest

6

P
age 6



Forename Surname Date of Declaration Position / Role Nature of Business / Organisation Nature of Interest / Comments Type of interest

Randall Anderson 15/07/2019 Member - City Integrated Commissioning Board City of London Corporation Chair, Community and Children’s Services Committee Pecuniary Interest

n/a Self-employed Lawyer Pecuniary Interest

n/a Renter of a flat from the City of London (Breton House, London) Non-Pecuniary Interest

Member American Bar Association Non-Pecuniary Interest

Masonic Lodge 1745 Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Worshipful Company of Information 

Technologists

Freeman Non-Pecuniary Interest 

City of London School for Girls Member - Board of Governors Non-Pecuniary Interest

Neaman Practice Registered Patient Non-Pecuniary Interest

Andrew Carter 12/08/2019 City ICB advisor / regular attendee City of London Corporation Director of Community & Children’s Services Pecuniary Interest

Petchey Academy & Hackney / Tower Hamlets 

College

Governing Body Member Non-pecuniary interest

n/a Spouse works for FCA (fostering agency) Indirect interest

David Maher 19/06/2019 Accountable Officers Group Member

ICB regular attendee/ AO deputy

City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group Managing Director Pecuniary Interest

World Health Organisation Member of Expert Group to the Health System Footprint on 

Sustainable Development

Non-Pecuniary Interest

NHS England, Sustainable Development Unit Social Value and Commissioning Ambassador Non-Pecuniary Interest

Rebecca Rennison 31/05/2019 Member - Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board Target Ovarian Cancer Director of Public Affairs and Services Pecuniary Interest

Hackney Council Cabinet Member for Finance and Housing Needs Pecuniary Interest

Cancer52Board Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Clapton Park Tenant Management Organisation Board Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

North London Waste Authority Board Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Land Interests - Residential property, Angel Wharf Non-Pecuniary Interest

Residential Property, Shepherdess Walk, N1 Non-Pecuniary Interest

GMB Union Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Labour Party Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Fabian Society Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

English Heritage Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Chats Palace Board Member Non-Pecuniary Interest

Carol Beckford 09/07/2019 Transition Director Hunter Health Group Agency Worker Non-Pecuniary Interest

Henry Black 27/06/2019 NEL Commissioning Alliance - CFO Barking, Havering & Redbridge University 

Hospitals NHS Trust

Wife is Assistant Director of Finance Indirect interest

East London Lift Accommodation Services Ltd Director Non-financial professional 

interest

East London Lift Accommodation Services No2 

Ltd

Director Non-financial professional 

interest

East London Lift Holdco No2 Ltd Director Non-financial professional 

interest

East London Lift Holdco No3 Ltd Director Non-financial professional 

interest

East London Lift Holdco No4 Ltd Director Non-financial professional 

interest

ELLAS No3 Ltd Director Non-financial professional 

interest

ELLAS No4 Ltd Director Non-financial professional 

interest

Infracare East London Ltd Director Non-financial professional 

interest

Jane Milligan 26/06/2019 Member - Integrated Commissioning Board NHS North East London Commissioning Alliance 

(City & Hackney, Newham, Tower Hamlets, 

Waltham Forest, Barking and Dagenham, 

Havering and Redbridge CCGs)

Accountable Officer Pecuniary Interest

North East London Sustainability and 

Transformation Partnership

Senior Responsible Officer Pecuniary Interest

n/a Partner is employed substantively by NELCSU as Director of 

Business Development from 2 January 2018 on secondment to 

Central London Community Services Trust.

Indirect Interest

7

P
age 7



Forename Surname Date of Declaration Position / Role Nature of Business / Organisation Nature of Interest / Comments Type of interest

Stonewall Ambassador Non-Pecuniary Interest

Peabody Housing Association Board Non-Executive Director Non-pecuniary interest

Mark Rickets 24/10/2019 Member - City and Hackney Integrated Commissioning 

Boards

City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group Chair Pecuniary Interest

Primary Care Quality Programme Board Chair (GP Lead) Health Systems Innovation Lab, School Health 

and Social Care, London South Bank University

Wife is a Visiting Fellow Non-financial professional 

interest 

Primary Care Quality Programme Board Chair (GP Lead) GP Confederation Nightingale Practice is a Member Professional financial interest

CCG Chair

Primary Care Quality Programme Board Chair (GP Lead)

HENCEL I work as a GP appraiser in City and Hackney and Tower 

Hamlets for HENCEL

Professional financial interest

CCG Chair

Primary Care Quality Programme Board Chair (GP Lead)

Nightingale Practice (CCG Member Practice) Salaried GP Professional financial interest

Jake Ferguson 30/09/2019 Chief Executive Officer Hackney Council for Voluntary Service Organisation holds various grants from the CCG and Council. 

Full details available on request. 

Professional financial interest

Member Voluntary Sector Transformation Leadership 

Group which represents the sector across the 

Transformation / ICS structures. 

Non-financial personal interest

02/03/2020 Attendee - Hackney Integrated Commisioning Board Healthwatch Hackney Director Pecuniary Interest

- CHCCG Neighbourhood Involvement Contract

- CHCCG NHS Community Voice Contract

- CHCCG Involvement Alliance Contract

- CHCCG Coproduction and Engagement Grant

- Hackney Council Core and Signposting Grant

Based in St. Leonard's Hospital

Jon Williams

8

P
age 8



1 
 

Meeting-in-common of the Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board  
(Comprising the City & Hackney CCG Integrated Commissioning Committee and the  

London Borough of Hackney Integrated Commissioning Committee) 
 

and  
 

Meeting-in-common of the City Integrated Commissioning Board 
(Comprising the City & Hackney CCG Integrated Commissioning Committee and the  

City of London Corporation Integrated Commissioning Committee) 
 
 

Minutes of meeting held in public on 12 March 2020 
Committee Room 4, Guildhall 

 
 Present: 

Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board 

Hackney Integrated Commissioning Committee 

Cllr Christopher 
Kennedy 

Cabinet Member for Family, Early 
Years and Play 

London Borough of Hackney 

   

Cllr Rebecca 
Rennison 

Deputy Mayor and Cabinet 
Member for Finance, Housing 
Needs and Supply 

London Borough of Hackney 

City & Hackney CCG Integrated Commissioning Committee 

Dr. Mark Rickets CCG Chair  City & Hackney CCG 

David Maher Managing Director City & Hackney CCG 

Honor Rhodes Governing Body Lay member City & Hackney CCG  

City Integrated Commissioning Board 
City Integrated Commissioning Committee 
Randall Anderson 
QC 

Chairman, Community and 
Children’s Services Committee 
(ICB Chair)  

City of London Corporation 
 

Helen Fentiman Member, Community & Children’s 
Services Committee 

City of London Corporation 

Marianne 
Fredericks 

Member, Community and 
Children’s Services Committee 

 

City of London Corporation 

In attendance   

Anne Canning Group Director – Children, Adults 
& Community Health 

London Borough of Hackney 

Carolyn Kus Director of Programme Delivery London Borough of Hackney  

Dan Burningham Mental Health Director City & Hackney CCG 

Gary Marlowe Governing Body GP member City & Hackney CCG 

Jake Ferguson Chief Executive Officer Hackney Council for Voluntary 
Services 

Jonathan McShane Integrated Commissioning 
Programme Convenor 

City & Hackney CCG 

9

Page 9



2 
 

Ian Williams Group Director, Finance and 
Corporate Services 

London Borough of Hackney 

Mark Jarvis Head of Finance City of London Corporation 

Dr. Sandra 
Husbands 

Director of Public Health London Borough of Hackney 

Sunil Thakker Director of Finance  City & Hackney CCG 

Stella Okonkwo Integrated Commissioning 
Programme Manager 

City & Hackney CCG 

Jon Williams Chair Healthwatch Hackney 

   

Apologies – ICB 
members 

  

Jane Milligan Accountable Officer City & Hackney CCG 

Cllr Anntoinette 
Bramble 

Cabinet Member for Education, 
Young People and Children’s 
Social Care 

London Borough of Hackney 

Other Apologies   

Andrew Carter Director, Community & Children’s 
Services  

City of London Corporation 

Henry Black 

 

CFO NE London Commissioning 
Alliance  

Mark Jarvis Director of Finance City of London Corporation 

Simon Cribbens Assistant Director Commissioning 
& Partnerships, Community & 
Children’s Services 

City of London Corporation 

 

 
 
ITEM 1 – Welcome, Introduction & Apologies         
 
The Chair welcomed Members and observers to the meeting, and noted apologies received 
as listed above. 
 
The Chair noted that in light of the ongoing efforts by colleagues to manage COVID-19, the 
away day scheduled for the following week should be postponed. 
 
ITEM 2 – Declaration of Interests 
 
The Chair asked all members and attendees present to declare any conflicts of interest they 
may have in relation to items on the agenda. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

 The City ICB NOTED its register of interests (i.e. City and CCG members). 

 The Hackney ICB NOTED its register of interests (Hackney and CCG members). 
 
 
ITEM 3 – Questions from the Public 
 

10

Page 10



3 
 

There were no questions raised by members of the public. 
 
 
ITEM 4 – Minutes of the Previous Meeting and Action Log 
 
The City ICB APPROVED the public minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 February 
2020 and NOTED the Action Log.  
 
The Hackney ICB APPROVED the public minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 
February 2020 and NOTED the Action Log.  
 
ITEM 5 – Mental Health Detailed Review    
Dan Burningham introduced the report, which outlined the mental health key progress and 
achievements from July 2019, and noted the challenges facing the system.  These were 
summarised as long waiting lists for treatments for complex psychological problems; rising 
acute mental health admissions (and the need to strengthen community-based pathways); 
and issues in schools (exclusions, gangs, etc.). 
 
Discussion 

 IAPT quality ratings are extraordinary and to be commended.  Members asked for 

detail on pilot work being carried out.  Dan Burningham reported that there are two 

pioneer sites (Clissold Park and Hackney Marshes) with blended teams of MH experts 

reaching into and representing all parts of community and forming a single point of 

access for community care.  There are two primary points of focus – trauma and the 

adult eating disorder community service. 

 Jake Ferguson noted that the commitment to co-production in the Mental Health 

workstream is commendable.  He expressed concern that there might not be capacity 

in the BME access stream to deal with increasing numbers of people coming into the 

service.  John Williams also noted that there is a lot of pressure on the psychological 

therapies service at Viv Cohen. DB responded that early intervention is important, and 

we need to be mindful of capacity within the voluntary and community sector.  

Referrals from IAPT are expanding, and we need to look at expanding referrals into 

primary care services.  A large scale review of psychological therapies in ELFT is 

being carried out, which will help to address capacity issues.  City & Hackney spend 

more than other areas in NEL, but we need to ensure it is spent in the right place. 

 Gary Marlowe noted there is an increasing tendency to change diagnosis away from 

schitzophrenia to personality disorder and we do not have commensurate shift in 

capacity, so patients frequently end up back in general practice.  The Tavistock & 

Portman service has been an invaluable in taking on these patients and does an 

incredible job though with a very small proportion of funding.  

 Honor Rhodes asked about links with the Adverse Childhood Experiences work being 

carried out in CYPMF and with the Prevention workstream.  Mental health exists in a 

context of relationships, and our approach should recognise that. Dan Burningham 

noted that we are committed to an approach that recognises the importance of 

relationships. 

 Members raised the issue of increased SIs in acute MH wards.  The cause has been a 

spike in admissions and some management issues which have now been addressed.  

There are still some cultural and built environment issues to be addresses, but we 

have invested money to support changes in acute ward culture and changes to the 

built environment (as well as encouraging ELFT to invest in that). 

11

Page 11



4 
 

 It was noted that we need to ensure a focus on quality of services and patient 

experience as measures of success.  It was noted that patients are regularly surveyed 

to ensure their perspective is included.  Across NEL, work is ongoing to put in place a 

model of patient leadership. 

 Members questioned whether IAPT is the best model of service to meet the needs of 

patients; suggesting that it is more triage than treatment and onward referrals lead to 

extended waiting times before patients receive the help they need.  There is also a 

need to consider the strategy for Children’s Access to Mental Health Services 

(CAMHS). 

 There is a psychiatric social worker working with rough sleepers in City and the 

Shoreditch area (the majority of whom have mental health issues) but the situation in 

terms of outcomes from onward referrals is not very good. 

 There are grounds to question the case for IAPT, but we are currently obliged to 

accept that it is mandated, and focus on making it work in the best way possible. 

 Health Services and Local Authorities need to work together on homelessness/rough 

sleeping.  We are looking at extending the Greenhouse model (which includes mental 

health and substance misuse services) into the City of London.  A conference in 

Hackney in 2019 looked at intersectionality in homelessness pathways and shifting to 

a trauma-informed approach.  It was noted that in addition to recognised rough 

sleepers, there are a lot of people in housing crisis (long-term temporary 

accommodation; couch-surfing, etc.) and a future deep-dive into homelessness would 

be merited. 

 Randall Anderson endorsed the notion of expanding Greenhouse into the City and 

offered to help with finding a suitable location. 

 It is important to recognise the role of the courts and probation services in this.  There 

will be a lot of cases where people are being set up to fail over and over, and statutory 

services need to find solutions to this. 

 
The City Integrated Commissioning Board: 

 NOTED the report.  

The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board:  

 NOTED the report.  

ITEM 6 – Primary Care Detailed Review                                             

Richard Bull and Mark Rickets introduced the scheduled detailed review from the 
Primary Care Enabler Group, which focused on primary care as a system enabler, 
and set out the strategic priorities including enhancing co-production and patient 
choice. 

The National GP LMCs have rejected the new contract decision in support of 

Primary Care Networks (PCNs), but locally we are minded to continue with it.  Their 

main criticism was they wanted resources going into mainstream primary care 

rather than transformation stuff.  But the local view is that you cannot have one 

without the other. 

Discussion 

12

Page 12



5 
 

 Gary Marlowe noted that one element of PCNs is transformation, but the 

other is about supporting GPs.  We are in a good position in City & Hackney 

as we are not under the same level of pressure as other areas of the 

country.  There is a lot of emphasis on transformation and not on supporting 

the core GP offer, which is under massive stress elsewhere.  It is likely that 

the BMA will go back to government and negotiate to reduce the level of 

funding that comes out of the GPs pockets.   

 Members queried the governance model linking PCNs and 

Neighbourhoods. Honor Rhodes (Primary Care Quality Committee Chair) 

responded that the Venn diagram which could represent the relationship 

between the two is quite neat.  The GP Confederation is well aware of the 

need to have clear governance, and are working up a model which will be 

brought to the ICBs in due course. 

 There are challenges facing primary care related to estates.  The CCG is 

working with LBH to try to resolve these issues and we can potentially work 

with the City of London regarding expanding the Neaman Practice, but it 

should be noted that the model of provision is changing and moving away 

from face to face consultations, which will affect the requirements for 

physical premises.  The transition to digital is also accelerating due to 

coronavirus. 

 Gary Marlowe noted that a lot of young patients in C&H are moving to video 

consultations, but via GP At Hand (who are also employing a lot of newly 

qualified GPs, compounding the difficulties we already face with primary 

care workforce). 

The City Integrated Commissioning Board: 

 NOTED the report.  

The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board:  

 NOTED the report.  

ITEM 7 – Integrated Care Programme Plan        
 

Carolyn Kus introduced the Integrated Care Programme Plan, the purpose of which is to 
ensure that there is a single document summarising the primary activities and milestones 
within the IC Programme, to enable management of the programme at a strategic level.  
 
The plan uses as a foundation the work undertaken by workstreams in the development of 
their system intentions, and the City & Hackney Long Term Plan, to establish an 
integrated care programme of work which is focused on delivering the priorities in the 
agreed Outcomes Framework.  
 
The paper also reaffirmed who is responsible and accountable for delivering each area of 
work. SROs/Chairs and Accountable Officers should use the relevant pages from the plan 
to support them in managing and monitoring progress for their projects/programmes.  
 
Discussion 

 John Williams noted that resource issues within the Communications & Engagement 

Enabler workstream have been addressed, and systems are now being put in place.  It 

13

Page 13



6 
 

is important that partners see communications & engagement as central to the wider 

programme and commit time and resources accordingly. 

 It was noted that the plan does not explicitly set out next steps in integrating with the 

wider system from a CCG point of view. 

 Regarding the comms plan, it was noted that we are not looking for a new brand (since 

there is significant value in maintaining the identity and legacy created by existing 

organisations) but to develop a clear sense of identity, shaped by our values and 

ambitions. The ICBs agreed that there is no need to develop a new logo. 

ACTION – To circulate information, plans, etc. on the next steps and plans for wider 

integration under the North East London Commissioning Alliance. (DM/CK) 

 
The City Integrated Commissioning Board:  

 
1. Signed-off this first version of the plan, with the exception of where a 

project/programme clearly states (in red text on the document) that their plan is still 
under construction/refinement.  

2. Confirmed that the Board will review the full Programme plan, covering 14 
projects/programmes on a quarterly basis.  

3. Confirmed that the Board would like to review, on a monthly basis, the:  
a. Achievements of the previous month; and  
b. Exception report – showing late or problematic milestones  
c. Look Ahead – showing the tasks to be completed and milestones to be 

achieved next month  
 
The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board:  
 

1. Signed-off this first version of the plan, with the exception of where a 
project/programme clearly states (in red text on the document) that their plan is still 
under construction/refinement.  

2. Confirmed that the Board will review the full Programme plan, covering 14 
projects/programmes on a quarterly basis.  

3. Confirmed that the Board would like to review, on a monthly basis, the:  
a. Achievements of the previous month; and  
b. Exception report – showing late or problematic milestones  
c. Look Ahead – showing the tasks to be completed and milestones to be 

achieved next month  
 
 
ITEM 8 – Social Prescribing and Community Navigation Service 
 
Jayne Taylor introduced the report, which asked ICB to approve the pooling of the existing 
City and Hackney Social Prescribing budget (£208k per year) and LB Hackney 
Community Connections budget (£79k per year) to commission, via a competitive 
procurement process led by City and Hackney CCG, an Integrated Social Prescribing and 
Community Navigation service. 

 
Nationally, there is growing recognition of the importance of social prescribing, and 

navigation support in general. It is central to the personalisation agenda detailed in the NHS 

Long Term Plan and a core focus of the Neighbourhoods health and care delivery model 

14

Page 14



7 
 

being developed through City and Hackney’s Integrated Care programme. Navigation also 

supports the objectives of the Neighbourhood Health and Care Alliance. 

 
The proposals set out in this paper represent a notable achievement of the ambitions of the 

City and Hackney Integrated Commissioning programme. Pooling the existing budgets will 

support our joint commissioning intentions for an integrated Social Prescribing and 

Community Navigation service and facilitate further budget pooling by providing evidence of 

the positive impact this approach can have. 

 

Discussion 

 Jake Ferguson noted that social prescribing as described in the paper is a great 

concept.  It needs to be supported by a system where money follows referrals into 

services, so that end-providers are properly resourced.  He asked, in light of the 

experience of having run the service for some years now, whether the services being 

referred to are the right ones.  Jayne Taylor noted that VCS input is very important.  

We are requiring providers to demonstrate full partnership with the system at a 

neighbourhood level, where there is capacity to manage social prescribing within the 

community navigation model.   

 We need to understand how to make social prescribing financially sustainable in the 

long term.  It is challenging to use non-recurrent funding to drive change in how we 

commission and do business in the future. 

 It was noted that there is no agreed plan to work with City Connections yet, but this 

will be factored into discussions, and the social prescribing specification is well 

aligned with City Connections. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The City Integrated Commissioning Board: 

 ENDORSED these proposals to pool the CCG Social Prescribing and LB Hackney 
Community Connections service budgets; and  

 APPROVE the joined integrated Social Prescribing and Community Navigation service. 
 
The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 APPROVED these proposals to pool the CCG Social Prescribing and LB Hackney 
Community Connections service budgets and commission an integrated Social 
Prescribing and Community Navigation service. 

 

ITEM 9 – Integrated Commissioning Finance Report               
            
Sunil Thakker introduced the Month 10 finance report.  The Integrated Commissioning Fund 
has an adverse year end forecast variance of £1.9m, an improvement of £1.9m on the Month 
9 position. The position is being driven by the London Borough of Hackney and the CCG. 
 
At month 10 the CCG declared a surplus of £2.0m against the planned break even position 
which is in line with the deployment of the 2019/20 Risk Share Framework where funds 
were agreed to be transferred to Waltham Forest CCG in support of the NEL STP financial 
balance. City & Hackney CCG in total, as system partner, contributed £4.0m in support of 
Waltham Forrest CCG and delivery of the NELCA system control. The reported position has 
been fully risk assessed with all known acute, non-acute and primary care risks and 
mitigations forming part of the forecast outturn for 2019/20. 

15

Page 15



8 
 

 
The London Borough of Hackney is reporting a year-end adverse position of £4m. The 
position is driven by cost pressures on Learning Disabilities budgets and challenges around 
Housing Related Support (HRS) service redesign. 
 
The City of London is reporting a year-end favourable position of £0.2m mainly driven 
from older people residential care under-spends. 
 
Sunil Thakker also gave a brief update on the early indicaitons from the Government 
Budget, which had been published. 
 

 The Government is proposing to provide up to £12bn to address the impact of COVID-

19, including £5bn for NHS and Local Authorities.  It is not yet clear how this will be 

allocated.  It is hoped that the Comprehensive Spending Review will give better 

visibility on the financial circumstances for the next 3-4 years. 

 The terms of reference for a fundamental review of business rates have been 

published and local government expects to be included. 

 The budget does not make reference to social care or SEND. 

The City Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE the report. 
 
The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE the report.            
  

 
ITEM 10 – Integrated Commissioning Risk and Issue Registers                                  

Carolyn Kus introduced the report, which presentsed the complete risks and issues registers 
for the Integrated Commissioning Workstreams. At the ICB meeting on 9 May 2019, it was 
agreed that as well as receiving the register of escalated risks at each of its meetings, the ICB 
would also receive on a quarterly basis the full risk registers for the workstreams and IC 
programme as a whole.  
 
There are no issues for the CYPMF and Unplanned Care Workstreams.  
 
The City Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE the report. 

The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE the report.                          
 
 
AOB & REFLECTIONS         
 
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING                  
 

 14 May 2020 
 
FOR INFORMATION – INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING GLOSSARY 
Circulated for reference. 

16

Page 16



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Title of report: City & Hackney ICB Terms of Reference – Covid-19  

Date of meeting: 14 May 2020 

Lead Officer: Carolyn Kus, Director of Programme Delivery / Randall Anderson, 
ICB Chair 

Author: Alex Harris, Integrated Commissioning Governance Manager 

Committee(s): Integrated Commissioning Board 14 May 2020       

Public / Non-public Public 
 

 

Executive Summary: 

The Coronavirus Act 2020 was given Royal Assent on 25 March 2020. On 4 April 2020, 
the government published secondary legislation – The Local Authorities and Police and 
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel 
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020.  
 
This secondary legislation enables local authority decision-making committees – 
previously required to be held in public – to be done so virtually. The terms of reference of 
the ICB have therefore been adjusted to include a paragraph making reference to these 
legislative changes. The paragraph reads as follows: 
 
“In light of the novel coronavirus Sars-Cov-2 pandemic, the government has published 
secondary legislation to the Coronavirus Act 2020. For reasons of public safety and in order 
to comply with governmental guidelines on social distancing, the ICB will, until further notice 
and subject to amendment of these terms of reference, meet virtually. As the regulations 
prescribe, committee members will be audible and visible as far as is practically possible. 
Members of the public will also be provided with a link to the virtual meeting on the front of 
the agenda so that they may observe and participate in the proceedings. Regular publication 
rules in respect to agendas and minutes, as well as standing orders regarding quorum and 
voting, remain in place.” 
 
There have also been minor adjustments to portfolio titles as these have changed since the 
ICB last approved its terms of reference in June 2019.  

 

 

Recommendations: 

The City Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To ENDORSE the proposed changes to the ICB Terms of Reference.  
 
The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To ENDORSE the proposed changes to the ICB Terms of Reference.  
 

 

Strategic Objectives this paper supports: 

Deliver a shift in resource and focus to 

prevention to improve the long term 

health and wellbeing of local people and 

address health inequalities  

☒  

17

Page 17



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Deliver proactive community based care 

closer to home and outside of 

institutional settings where appropriate 

☒  

Ensure we maintain financial balance as 
a system and achieve our financial plans 

☒  

Deliver integrated care which meets the 

physical, mental health and social needs 

of our diverse communities  

☒  

Empower patients and residents ☒  

 

Specific implications for City  

N/A 
 

 

Specific implications for Hackney 

N/A 
 

 

Patient and Public Involvement and Impact: 

These terms of reference are intended to reflect legislative changes and prioritisation of 
public safety. There will be an impact on public ability to access meetings in-person 
however this is to some degree offset by the ability of the public to observe ICB 
proceedings and ask questions via virtual meeting software.  
 

 

Clinical/practitioner input and engagement: 

N/A 
 

 

Communications and engagement: 

None required.  
 

 

Equalities implications and impact on priority groups: 

There are potential equalities implications for those unable to access virtual meeting 
software, however as the move to virtual meetings is to comply with social distancing 
requirements to suppress the spread of Sars-Cov-2, this is a measure which is necessary 
for overriding public health reasons.  
 

 

Safeguarding implications: 

None.  
 

 

Impact on / Overlap with Existing Services: 

18

Page 18



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

N/A 

 

19

Page 19



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 City of London Corporation Integrated Commissioning Sub-Committee,  
London Borough of Hackney Integrated Commissioning Committee, and  

NHS City & Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group Integrated Commissioning 
Committee  

(known collectively as the "Integrated Commissioning Board”) 
 

Terms of Reference 
 

 
Background and Authority 
 
The City of London Corporation (“COLC”) has established an Integrated Commissioning Sub-
Committee (“the COLC Committee”) under its Community and Children’s Services Committee.  
The London Borough of Hackney ("LBH") has established an Integrated Commissioning Sub-
Committee reporting to its Cabinet ("the LBH Committee") and NHS City & Hackney Clinical 
Commissioning Group (“the CCG”) has also established an Integrated Commissioning 
Committee (“the CCG Committee”).  These committees are the principal fora through which 
the CCG, LBH and COLC will integrate their commissioning of certain services. 
 
This document is the terms of reference for the CCG Committee, the COLC Committee, and 
the LBH Committee. 
 
The COLC Committee, the LBH Committee and the CCG Committee will meet in common and 
shall when doing so be known together as the Integrated Commissioning Board (“the ICB”).   
 
The COLC Committee has authority to make decisions on behalf of COLC, which shall be 
binding on COLC, in accordance with these terms of reference and the scheme of delegation 
and reservation for the integrated commissioning arrangements.   
 
The LBH Committee has authority to make decisions on behalf of LBH, which shall be binding 
on LBH, in accordance with these terms of reference and the scheme of delegation and 
reservation for the integrated commissioning arrangements.   
 
The CCG Committee has authority to make decisions on behalf of the CCG, which shall be 
binding on the CCG, in accordance with these terms of reference and the scheme of 
delegation and reservation for the integrated commissioning arrangements.   
 
Except where stated otherwise (in which case the terms "the COLC Committee" and/or "the 
LBH Committee" and/or "the CCG Committee" or "the committees" are/is used), all references 
in this document to the “ICB” refer collectively to the three committees described above.  The 
objectives of the ICB, as described below, are the objectives of the individual committees 
insofar as they relate to the individual committee’s authority.  
 
The members of the COLC Committee and the CCG Committee will manage the Pooled 
Funds for which they have been assigned authority in accordance with a section 75 agreement 
in place between COLC and the CCG (“City Pooled Funds”).  
 
The members of the LBH Committee and the CCG Committee will manage the Pooled Funds 
for which they have been assigned authority in accordance with a section 75 agreement in 
place between LBH and the CCG (“Hackney Pooled Funds”).  
 

20

Page 20



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

The LBH Committee shall have no authority in respect of City Pooled Funds.  The 
management of City Pooled Funds is assigned to the CCG Committee and the COLC 
Committee.  The COLC Committee shall have no authority in respect of Hackney Pooled 
Funds.  The management of Hackney Pooled Funds is assigned to the CCG Committee and 
the LBH Committee. 
 
For Aligned Fund services the ICB acts as an advisory group making recommendations to the 
CCG Governing Body, or the COLC Community and Children's Services Committee, or the 
LBH Cabinet as appropriate, in accordance with the relevant s75 agreement. 
 
Purpose 
 
The ICB is the principal forum to ensure that commissioning improves local services and 
outcomes and achieves integration of service provision and of commissioning and delivers the 
North East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan (NEL STP). It is the forum for 
decision making and monitoring of activity to integrate the commissioning activities of the 
CCG, COLC and LBH (to the extent defined in the s75 agreement). 
 
The ICB's remit is in respect of services that are commissioned using Pooled Funds (including 
the Better Care Fund budgets) within the Integrated Commissioning Fund (ICF). The ICB also 
has a remit with regard to Aligned Funds, whereby it is an advisory group making 
recommendations to the CCG Governing Body or the LBH Cabinet or the COLC Community 
and Children's Services Committee as appropriate. 
 
The CCG and COLC, and the CCG and LBH, shall determine the funds, and therefore the 
services, that are to be the City Pooled Funds and the Hackney Pooled Funds respectively (to 
include requirements in respect of Better Care Fund budgets) subject to the s75 agreements 
between the CCG and COLC and the CCG and LBH.  The CCG and the COLC, and the CCG 
and LBH, shall determine their respective Aligned Funds.  Once defined, the remit will be 
stated in these Terms of Reference or in another appropriate document that is provided to the 
ICB. 
 
In performing its role the ICB will exercise its functions in accordance with, and to support the 
delivery of, the City and Hackney Locality Plan and the City of London supplement and the 
North East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan (NEL STP).  
 
The responsibilities for the ICB will cover the geographical area of the LBH and COLC. It is 

noted that there will need to be decisions made about how to address the issues of resident 

and registered populations across the CCG and COLC and LBH and workers who travel into 

the City of London.  

21

Page 21



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

In carrying out its role the ICB will be supported by the Accountable Officers Group. 
 
The objectives of the ICB defined below are subject to the Scheme of Delegation, and subject 
to the financial framework (a schedule in each of the two s75 agreements). The s75 
agreements define the budgets that are City Pooled Funds, Hackney Pooled Funds, and 
Aligned Funds.  
 
 
Objectives 
 
Specifically, the ICB will: 
 

Commissioning strategies and plans 

 Lead the commissioning agenda of the locality, including inputs from, and relationships 

with, all partners 

 Ensure that co-production is embedded  across  all areas of commissioning in line with 

the city and Hackney co-production charter 

 Ensure financial sustainability and drive local transformation programmes and 

initiatives 

 Determine and advise on the local impacts of commissioning recommendations and 

decisions taken at a NEL level 

 Ensure that the Locality plan is delivering the local contribution to the ambitions of the 

NEL STP 

 Lead the development and scrutiny of annual commissioning intentions as set out in 

the Integrated Commissioning Strategy, including the monitoring, review, 

commissioning and decommissioning of activities 

 Provide advice to the CCG about core primary care and make recommendation to the 

CCG's Local GP Provider Contracts Committee 

 Ensure that the locality plan delivers constitutional requirements, financial balance, 

and supports the improvement in performance and outcomes established by the 

Health and Wellbeing Boards 

 Promote health and wellbeing,  reduce health inequalities, and  address the public 

health and health improvement agendas in making commissioning recommendations 

 Ensure commissioning decisions are made by the ICB in a timely manner that address 

financial challenges of both the in-year and longer term plans. 

 Ensure that local plans can demonstrate their impact on City residents and City 

workers where appropriate.  

 

Service re-design 

 Approve all clinical and social care guidelines, pathways, service specifications, and 

new models of care 

 Ensure all local guidelines and service specifications and pathways are developed in 

line with NICE and other national evidence, best practice and benchmarked 

performance 

 Drive continuous improvement in all areas of commissioning, pathway and service 

redesign delivering increased quality performance and improved outcomes 

22

Page 22



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 Ensure that services are. co-designed by residents and practitioners working together 

and adhere to the principles set out in  the City and Hackney Co-production charter. 

 

Contracting and performance  

 Oversee the annual contracting and planning processes and ensure that contractual 

arrangements are supporting the ambitions of the CCG, LBH and COLC to transform 

services, ensure integrated delivery and improve outcomes 

 Oversee local financial and operational performance and decisions in respect of 

investment and disinvestment plans 

 

Stakeholder engagement 

 Ensure adequate structures are in place to support patient, public, service user, and 

carer involvement at all levels and that the equalities agenda is delivered 

 Ensure that arrangements are in place to support collaboration with other localities 

when it has been identified that such collaborative arrangements would be in the best 

interests of local patients, public, service users, and carers  

 Ensure and monitor on-going discussion between the ICB and provider organisations 

about long-term strategy and plans 

 

Programme management 

 Oversee the work of the Accountable Officers Group including their work on the 

workstreams and enabler groups ensuring system wide implications are considered 

 Ensure that risks associated with integrated commissioning are identified and 

managed, including to the extent necessary through risk management arrangements 

established by the CCG, LBH and COLC. 

 

Safeguarding 

 In discharging its duties, act such that it supports the CCG, LBH and COLC to comply 

with the statutory duties that apply to them in respect of safeguarding patients and 

service users. 

 

Accountability and reporting 
 
The ICB will report to the relevant forum as determined by the CCG, LBH and COLC. The 

matters on which, and the arrangements through which, the ICB is required to report shall be 

determined by the CCG, LBH and COLC (and shall include requirements in respect of Better 

Care Fund budgets).  The ICB will present for approval by the CCG, LBH and COLC as 

appropriate proposals on matters in respect of which authority is reserved to the CCG and/or 

COLC and/or LBH (including in respect of aligned fund services).  The ICB will also provide 

advice to the CCG about core primary care and make recommendation to the appropriate 

CCG Committee. 

23

Page 23



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
The ICB will receive reports from the CCG, LBH and COLC on decisions made by those bodies 
where authority for those decisions is retained by them but the matters are relevant to the work 
of the ICB. 
 
The ICB will provide reports to the Health and Wellbeing Boards and other committees as 
required. 
 

 

Membership and attendance 

  

The membership of the COLC Committee shall be as follows: 

 

 The Chairman of the Community and Children’s Services Committee (Chair of the 

COLC Committee) 

 The Deputy Chairman of the Community and Children’s Services Committee 

 1 other Member from the Community and Children’s Services Committee who is a 

Member of the Court of Common Council 

 

The membership of the LBH Committee shall be as follows: 
 

 LBH Lead Member for Health, Adult Social Care and Leisure (Chair of the LBH 
Committee) 

 LBH Lead Member for Education, Young People and Children’s Social Care 

 LBH Lead Member of Finance, Housing Needs and Supply 
 

The membership of the CCG Committee shall be as follows: 

 

 Chair of the CCG (Chair of the CCG Committee) 

 CCG Governing Body Lay Member  

 CCG Accountable Officer 

  

As the three committees shall meet in common, the members of each committee shall be in 
attendance at the meetings of the other two committees. 
 
The membership will be kept under review and through approval from the CCG's Governing 

Body, COLC's Community and Children's Services Committee and LBH's elected Mayor as 

appropriate. Other parties may be invited to send representatives to attend the ICB's 

meetings in a non-decision making capacity. 

 

The ICB may also call additional experts to attend meetings on an ad hoc basis to inform 

discussions.  

24

Page 24



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

The following shall be expected to attend the meetings of the ICB, contribute to all discussion 
and debate, but will not participate in decision-making:  

 CCG Managing Director 

 CCG Chief Financial Officer 

 The Director of Community and Children’s services (Authorised Officer for COLC) 

 The City of London Corporation Chamberlain 

 LBH Group Director – Finance and Corporate Services 

 LBH Group Director – Children, Adults and Community Services 
 

The following will have a standing invitation to attend the meetings of the ICB, contribute to all 

discussion and debate, but will not participate in decision-making:  

 LBH and COLC Director of Public Health (which is a joint post) 

 A person nominated by the Chief Financial Officers of the CCG and COLC 

 Representative of City of London Healthwatch 

 A person nominated by the Chief Financial Officers of the CCG and LBH 

 Representative of London Borough of Hackney Healthwatch 

 Representative from Hackney voluntary and community services. 

 

Deputies 

 

Any member of the CCG Committee who is unable to attend a meeting of the ICB may 

appoint a deputy, who shall be a member of the CCG's Governing Body, provided that the 

deputy has authority equivalent to the member that he/she represents. 

 

Any member of the LBH Committee may appoint a deputy who is a Cabinet Member or the 

Mayor. 

 

The COLC Community and Children's Services Committee may appoint up to three of its 

members who are members of the Court of Common Council to deputise for any member of 

the COLC Committee. 

 

Any member appointing a deputy for a particular meeting of the ICB must give prior 

notification of this to the Chair. 

Leading and facilitating the discussion 
 
When the three committees are meeting in common as the ICB, the Chair of the LBH 

Committee shall lead and facilitate the discussions of the ICB for the first six months after its 

formation; the Chair of the CCG Committee shall perform the same role for the following six 

months; and the Chair of the COLC Committee shall perform the same role for the six 

months after that.   Thereafter the role shall swap between three Chairs, with each 

performing it for six months at a time.  

 

If the Chair nominated to lead and facilitate discussions in a particular meeting or on a 

particular matter is absent for any reason – for example, due to a conflict of interests – 

another of the committees' Chairs shall perform that role.  If all three Chairs are absent for 

25

Page 25



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

any reason, the members of the COLC Committee, the LBH Committee and the CCG 

Committee shall together select a person to lead and facilitate for the whole or part of the 

meeting concerned.   

 

Quorum and voting 
  
For the CCG committee the quorum will be two of the three members (or deputies duly 
authorised in accordance with these terms of reference).   
 
For the COLC committee the quorum will be all three members (or deputies duly authorised 
in accordance with these terms of reference).  
 
For the LBH committee the quorum will be two of the three Council members (or deputies duly 
authorised in accordance with these terms of reference). 
 
Each of the COLC, LBH and CCG committees must reach its own decision on any matter 
under consideration, and will do so by consensus of its members where possible.  If 
consensus within a committee is impossible, that committee may take its decision by simple 
majority, and the Chair’s casting vote if necessary.  
 
The COLC Committee, the LBH Committee and CCG Committee will each aim to reach 

compatible decisions. 

Matters for consideration by the three committees meeting in common as the ICB may be 

identified in meeting papers as requiring positive approval from all three committees in order 

to proceed.  Any matter identified as such may not proceed without positive approval from all 

of the COLC Committee, the LBH Committee and the CCG Committee.  

These decision-making arrangements shall be included in the review of these terms of 
reference as set out below. 
 

Meetings and administration 

 

The ICB's members will be given no less than five clear working days’ notice of its meetings. 

This will be accompanied by an agenda and supporting papers and sent to each member no 

later than five clear days before the date of the meeting. In urgent circumstances the 

requirement for five clear days’ notice may be truncated. 

 

The ICB shall meet whenever COLC, LBH and the CCG consider it appropriate that it should 

do so but the 3 committees meeting as the ICB would usually meet every month.  When the 

Chairs of the CCG, LBH and COLC Committees deem it necessary in light of urgent 

circumstances to call a meeting at short notice this notice period shall be such as they shall 

specify.  

26

Page 26



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Meetings of the ICB shall be held in accordance with Access to Information procedures for 
COLC, LBH and the CCG, rules and other relevant constitutional requirements. The dates of 
the meetings will be published by the CCG, LBH and COLC.  The meetings of the ICB will be 
held in public, subject to any exemption provided by law or any matters that are confidential 
or commercially sensitive. This should only occur in exceptional circumstances and is in 
accordance with the open and accountable local government guidance (June 2014). 
 
In light of the novel coronavirus Sars-Cov-2 pandemic, the government has published 
secondary legislation to the Coronavirus Act 2020. For reasons of public safety and in order 
to comply with governmental guidelines on social distancing, the ICB will, until further notice 
and subject to amendment of these terms of reference, meet virtually. As the regulations 
prescribe, committee members will be audible and visible as far as is practically possible. 
Members of the public will also be provided with a link to the virtual meeting on the front of the 
agenda so that they may observe and participate in the proceedings. Regular publication rules 
in respect to agendas and minutes, as well as standing orders regarding quorum and voting, 
remain in place.  
 
Secretarial support will be provided to the ICB and minutes shall be taken of all of its meetings; 
the CCG, COLC and LBH shall agree between them the format of the joint minutes of the ICB 
which will separately record the membership and the decisions taken by the CCG Committee, 
the COLC Committee and the LBH Committee.  Agenda, decisions and minutes shall be 
published in accordance with partners’ Access to Information procedures rules. 
 
Decisions made by the CoLC Committee may be subject to referral to the Court of Common 
Council in accordance with COLC’s constitution.  Executive decisions made by the LBH 
committee may be subject to call-in by members of the Council in accordance with LBH’s 
constitution. Executive decisions made by the CCG committee may be subject to review by 
the CCG's Governing Body and/or Members Forum in accordance with CCG's constitution.  
However, the CCG, LBH and COLC will manage the business of the ICB, including 
consultation with relevant fora and/or officers within those organisations, such that the 
incidence of decisions being reviewed or referred is minimised. 
 
Conflicts of interests 

 

The partner organisations represented in the ICB are committed to conducting business and 

delivering services in a fair, transparent, accountable and impartial manner.  ICB members 

will comply with the Conflicts of Interest policy statement developed for the ICB, as well as the 

arrangements established by the organisations that they represent.   

 

A register of interests will be completed by all members and attendees of the ICB and will be 

kept up to date in line with the policy.  Before each meeting each member or attendee will 

examine the agenda to identify any matters in which he/she has (or may be perceived to have) 

an interest.  Such interests may be in addition to those declared previously.  Any such conflicts 

should be raised with the Chair and the secretariat at the earliest possible time.   

 

The Chair will acknowledge the register of interests at the start of the meeting as an item of 

business. There will be the opportunity for any potential conflicts of interest to be debated and 

the Chair (on the basis of advice where necessary) may give guidance on whether any 

conflicts of interest exist and, if so, the arrangements through which they may be addressed.  

27

Page 27



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

In respect of the CCG Committee, the members will have regard to any such guidance from 

the Chair and should adopt it upon request to do so.  Where a member declines to adopt such 

guidance it is for the Chair to determine whether a conflict of interests exists and, if so, the 

arrangements through which it will be managed. 

 

In respect of the COLC Committee and the LBH Committee, it is for the members to declare 

any conflicts of interests which exist (taking into account any guidance from the Chair) and, if 

so, to adopt any arrangements which they consider to be appropriate. 

 

In some cases it may be possible for a person with a conflict of interest to participate in a 

discussion but not the decision that results from it.  In other cases, it may be necessary for a 

person to withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the discussion and decision. Where 

the nominated Chair (or another person selected to lead and facilitate a meeting) has a conflict 

of interests, the arrangements set out above (under Leading and facilitating the discussion) 

shall apply.    

When considering any proposals relating to actual or potential contractual arrangements with 
local GP providers the ICB will seek independent advice from the CCG Local GP Provider 
Contracts Committee who provide a scrutiny function for all such matters, particularly that the 
contract is in the best interests of local people, represents value for money and is being 
recommended without any conflict of interest from GPs. 
 
All declarations and discussions relating to them will be minuted. 
 
Additional requirements  
 
The members of the ICB have a collective responsibility for the operation of it. They will 
participate in discussion, review evidence, and provide objective expert input to the best of 
their knowledge and ability, and endeavour to reach a collective view. They will take advice 
from the Accountable Officers Group and from other advisors where relevant. 
 
The ICB functions through the scheme of delegation and financial framework agreed by the 
CCG, COLC and LBH respectively, who remain responsible for their statutory functions and 
for ensuring that these are met and that the ICB is operating within all relevant requirements. 
 
The ICB may assign tasks to such individuals or committees as it shall see fit, provided that 
any such assignments are consistent with each party’s relevant governance arrangements, 
are recorded in a scheme of delegation for the relevant committee, are governed by terms of 
reference as appropriate, and reflect appropriate arrangements for the management of any 
actual or perceived conflicts of interest.  

28

Page 28



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
Review 
The terms of reference will be reviewed not later than six months after the date of their 
approval and then at least annually thereafter, such annual reviews to coincide with reviews 
of the s75 agreements. 
 
 
 
 

29

Page 29



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Title of report: COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service: Variation to Section 75 
Agreements 

Date of meeting: 14-May-2020 

Lead Officer: Sunil Thakker 

Author: Lee Walker and Dilani Russell 

Committee(s): CCG Audit Committee, for update – 7-April-2020 
CCG Governing Body, for update – end May date tbc       

Public / Non-public Public 
 

 

Executive Summary: 

On 19th March, the Government announced a £2.9 billion package of additional funding to 
support local authorities and the NHS, as part of a much larger overall economic package. 
 
At the same time, a requirement to setup an accelerated discharge and admission 
avoidance service, the “COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service”, was created and for local 
authorities and the NHS to execute Section 75 variations that allowed local authorities to 
recharge COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service costs to the NHS though a pooled budget 
arrangement.   
 
This paper summarises the principles of the funding arrangements that are already in 
place and the detail of the Section 75 variation that are being executed to comply with the 
new requirements.  
 
Whilst there is no clear planned end date for this Covid-19 hospital discharge service it is 
important that the ICBs are aware of the arrangement because i) speedy discharge from 
Hospital will play a key role in the Coronavirus recovery, and ii) when the national 
escalation level reduces and/or when the Care Act Easements are lifted the ICBs will need 
to play a new role in restoring normal funding arrangements.  
 

 

 

Recommendations: 

 
The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE that the London Borough of Hackney S75 variation was signed and 
sealed on 30th April 2020; 

 To NOTE the report; 

 To CONSIDER the potential risks that creating a COVID-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service creates. 

 
The City Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE that the City of London S75 variation is due to be signed and sealed on 
7th May 2020; 

 To NOTE the report; 

 To CONSIDER the potential risks that creating a COVID-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service creates. 

 

 

30

Page 30



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Objectives this paper supports: 

Deliver a shift in resource and focus to 

prevention to improve the long term 

health and wellbeing of local people and 

address health inequalities  

☐  

Deliver proactive community based care 

closer to home and outside of 

institutional settings where appropriate 

☐  

Ensure we maintain financial balance as 
a system and achieve our financial plans 

☒ The scope of the S75 variation is 
primarily financial.  It creates a 
mechanism for covering local authority 
costs related to this part of the Covid-19 
response and an agreed system for CCG 
and local authority finance teams. 

Deliver integrated care which meets the 

physical, mental health and social needs 

of our diverse communities  

☒ This is a change made by HM 
Government to health and social care 
supports Hospitals by making discharges 
as quick as possible. 

Empower patients and residents ☐  

 

Specific implications for City  

There are no borough specific implications for the City of London. 
 

 

Specific implications for Hackney 

There are no borough specific implications for the London Borough Hackney. 
 

 

Patient and Public Involvement and Impact: 

No patient and public involvement has been undertaken before this change was 
implemented. 
 
Under the various guidance patients are to be issued with leaflets informing them of 
reduced choice around the discharge decision and that the care will be free of charge. 
See Appendix 1. 
 

 

Clinical/practitioner input and engagement: 

The C&H Strategic Operational Command is aware of the creation of the COVID-19 
Hospital Discharge Service however the ICBs should note that the usual clinical 
engagement activities were not undertaken before this change was made. 
 

 

Communications and engagement: 

31

Page 31



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Does this report, or the work described in the document, require communications 
and/or stakeholder engagement with patient groups, the public or integrated care 
partners?  
 
Yes future engagement activities should be planned once more is known about how this 
service will be wound up.  The Care Act Easements guidance makes clear that the 
suspension of eligibility assessments and patients needing to contribute to their own care 
is a temporary arrangement.  It should therefore be anticipated that the full requirements 
of the Care Act will be resumed at some point and that this may lead to a change in the 
level or cost of care being provided to patients. 
 
Comms Sign-off 
Not applicable at this point. 
 

 

Equalities implications and impact on priority groups: 

This has not been formally assessed. 
 
The creation of a COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service will see out of Hospital care being 
provided more quickly than before and to a wider range of patients. 
 

 

Safeguarding implications: 

There are no additional safeguarding issues or implications. 
 

 

Impact on / Overlap with Existing Services: 

The COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service is a different way of funding existing service 
provision.  The ICBs should note that the service has purchased some additional capacity 
on a temporary basis that may be considered an overlap with existing provision i.e. hotel 
rooms being used for intermediate care etc. 
 

 

  

32

Page 32



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Main Report 

Background and Current Position 

On 19th March the Government announced a £2.9 billion package of additional funding to 

support local authorities and the NHS, as part of a much larger overall economic package. 

 

£1.3 billion will be going towards the NHS, helping them discharge patients more efficiently, 

freeing up beds for people who need urgent care and allowing patients who no longer need 

urgent treatment to go home. This enhancement will help free up to 15,000 hospital beds 

across England and ensure the hospitals have the capacity they need to continue treating 

those in need. 

 

£1.6 billion will go to local authorities to help them respond to other coronavirus (COVID-19) 

pressures across all the services they deliver. This includes increasing support for the adult 

social care workforce and for services helping the most vulnerable, including homeless 

people.  

 

These funds are not ring-fenced and therefore can be utilised to relieve pressure 

experienced as a result, in all areas managed by the local authorities.  High levels plans 

have been sought, but the usage of this funding is considered separate to the £1.3Bn fund. 

See table below: 

 

Allocations from the £1.6Bn LA fund: 

NEL Borough: £m 

B&D 6.3 

C&H 10.7 

Havering 6.4 

Newham 10.5 

Redbridge 7.4 

Tower Hamlets 10.4 

Waltham Forest 7.5 
 

The £1.3 billion for Enhanced Hospital Discharge 

• Amongst other things this funding will cover the costs of additional residential, 

domiciliary, reablement and intermediate care capacity to reduce hospital 

admissions. 

• Local authorities should, at their discretion, pool existing funding for discharge 

support with this additional money. The additional funding should be identifiable 

separately and support and spending from this new funding should be recorded for 

each person discharged and supported under these arrangements. Once pooled, 

funding should be treated as a single pooled fund and used to deliver the appropriate 

care for individuals to be discharged under these new arrangements. 

• The Government has agreed to fully fund the cost of new or extended out-of-hospital 

health and social care support packages, referred to in the guidance, for people 

being discharged from acute hospital (including temporary hospital facilities such as 

33

Page 33



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

the Nightingale Hospitals) or who would otherwise be admitted into it for a limited 

time, to enable quick and safe discharge and more generally reduce pressure on 

acute services. 

 

The £1.3Bn fund is being operated on a cost recovery basis, with CCG’s required to submit 

monthly returns showing additional Covid-19 expenditure.  Detailed guidance is provided at  

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/covid-19-hospital-discharge-service-

requirements/.  

 

Funding should cover 

a) New packages of care entirely covered by Covid-19 funding for: 
• Individuals who are discharged with a new package of care. 
• Individuals at home with no care package who deteriorate and require a home 

care package to prevent admission to hospital. 
• Individuals who are self-funding or local authority funded in a care home 

placement but deteriorate and require a new nursing home placement to prevent 
admission to hospital. 

 
b) Extended packages of care partly covered by Covid-19 funding for: 

• Individuals who are discharged and retain an existing package of care but now 
have an additional package of care to prevent admission.  

• Individuals who are in the community with an existing social care package and 
require additional support to prevent admission. 

• Individuals who are in a CHC funded (including fast track) that deteriorate and 
require an additional package of care to prevent admission. 

 

Funding does not cover 

• Existing funded packages of care (prior to 19th March 2020) that will remain funded 

on the normal basis, but that if there are material changes to the package, they will 

then fall within scope of these new arrangements 

• Additional administrative burden on commissioners such as staffing and non-pay 

related costs incurred by CCGs and local authorities. CCG funding for this should be 

covered under the “workforce” element of the COVID 19 response work. 

• Any extra costs associated with COVID 19 virus testing. 

 

Funding will then flow from NHS England: 

• direct to each relevant CCG and then on to the relevant providers, where appropriate 

via a pooled budget / lead commissioning arrangement where the CCG has been 

identified locally as the lead commissioner; and 

• direct to the host CCG for the relevant local authority, to be passed on to that local 

authority under a pooled budget / lead commissioning arrangement where the local 

authority has been identified locally as the lead commissioner, and thus on to the 

relevant providers. 

 

 

 

34

Page 34

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/covid-19-hospital-discharge-service-requirements/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/covid-19-hospital-discharge-service-requirements/


 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Key Principles of the Service 

 The Local Authorities commission the ongoing package of support as a single lead 
commissioner arrangement for hospital discharges so there is no duplication. 

 Patients discharged from hospital will not go through the decision support tool to 
determine health and social care needs. Instead, they will be given an all-
encompassing: 

o A care at home package where their needs can be managed at home or  
o A nursing/residential package. 

 The cost of the package is to be determined by the discharge team  

 The package costs will be met by the COVID-19 pooled budget under a Section 
75 variation.  

 The CCG will reclaim package costs via the COVID-19 Cost template submission to 
NHSE as well as the monthly Non-ISFE submission to NHSE. 

 Existing systems, e.g. Broadcare, Mosaic will capture COVID-19 related actual costs 
separately for monitoring and reporting purposes.  

 The CCG and LA via the Task & Finish Group will review and reconcile the package 
details and funding on a monthly basis ensuring BAU packages are recorded 
separately to COVID-19 related packages. 

 Local systems should record locally how this funding has been used for each person 
discharged with support under these arrangements. Block purchase of capacity 
can be undertaken to expedite hospital discharges, and needs to be agreed by 
both the local authority and CGG. 

 
The Service should be operated in compliance with the Care Act Easements guidance for 
Local Authorities: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-
changes-to-the-care-act-2014/care-act-easements-guidance-for-local-authorities.  
 

Recovery and Restoration 

On 29th April 2020 a further letter was issues by Simon Stevens and Amada Pritchard 

indicating that the NHS is now in phase 2 of the Coronavirus response.  The letter confirmed 

that some services, that had previously been suspended, are now being resumed and that 

other temporary measure like the Covid-19 Hospital Discharge Service will continue. 

 

Other guidance make clear that there is no planned end date for the Covid-19 Hospital 

Discharge Service however the arrangement is intended to be temporary and the ICB should 

expect further guidance on how to effect a ‘post-cessation phase’ where funding will 

continue for individuals for a short period while there is a smooth transition back to pre-

COVID-19 health and living standards with agreed funding arrangements.  This will require 

care needs and financial assessment to be undertaken for all COVID-19 related individuals 

at the cessation although individuals provided with care packages under these arrangements 

must not face any requirement to refund commissioners retrospectively.  

 

Some potential risks that the ICB may want to consider during the operation of this service 

and during recovery are: 

 

35

Page 35

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-changes-to-the-care-act-2014/care-act-easements-guidance-for-local-authorities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-changes-to-the-care-act-2014/care-act-easements-guidance-for-local-authorities


 

 

 

 
 

 

 

RISK DESCRIPTION MITIGATION 

Risk of lack of 
probity 

During the Covid-19 response patients are being 
discharged quickly without assessment, using a 
discharge to assess model, that may result in the 
packages of care being more than patients would 
usually require.  
 
Under the normal D2A model this would be picked 
up during the assessment within a few days of 
discharge, however during this period 
assessments are being deferred and this may 
result in extended packages of care being agreed 
for longer than normal.  
 
There is also the possibility of a patient being 
discharged with a lower than required package 
but, due to hospital risk assessments 
understanding risk post discharge this is unlikely. 

Assessments should be 
completed as quickly as 
possible in the post-
cessation phase. 
 
The guidance says that if a 
more expensive package 
of care, than would 
normally be allocated, has 
been given there would be 
an ongoing commitment to 
pay this until a transition 
has been agreed. 
 
 

Risk of Delayed 
Transfer Of 
Care (DTOC) 

Rapid discharges from Hospital may result in 
community capacity (social care, home care or 
nursing homes) becoming full and when elective 
surgery resumes it may result in additional 
patients being discharged from Hospital at the 
same time as there being a lack of care places 
and this will cause Hospital DTOC and may result 
in slower pace of elective care in Hospitals. 
 

Systems for monitoring 
community care capacity 
need to be effective with 
additional capacity brought 
on line if required.  There 
needs to be effective and 
rapid information sharing 
about community care 
capacity. 

Risk of lack of 
capacity in the 
Assessment 
Team 

All assessments are currently suspended but 
when these resume when the Covid recovery 
begins the social care assessment team will need 
to begin assessing patients again at the same 
time as re-assessing all patients who have 
received a package of care under the Covid-19 
Discharge Service.  

This may result in assessments for new packages 
or the Covid discharges not being done in a timely 
way. 

It is important to put in 
additional capacity for 
assessments if and when 
the requirement for the 
backlog needs to be 
cleared. 

Risk of central 
funding 
withdrawal or 
change in 
arrangement 

1. There is a risk that the central funding 
underpinning this discharge service will end 
sooner than expected or without notice.  This 
may result in a cost pressures for the CCG and 
the local authorities if patients have not been 
assessed promptly and packages of care 
reduced if patients are not eligible. 

 
2. There is a risk that national guidance requires 

funding to be redirected to other Covid-19 
priorities and the CCG and Local Authorities 
will need to deal with the ongoing cost of 
packages of care where the patients are not 
eligible. 

 

Complete assessment 
promptly post-cessation. 
 
Transition patients and 
start restoring regular 
funding arrangements as 
soon as this becomes a 
national priority. 

 

36

Page 36



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Costs incurred in 2019/20 – from 19th March 2020 

 

Type of COVID-

19 Cost 
Scheme description 

Spend 

Category/Type 
Spend type - short Description 

Total COVID-

19 Cost  

£ 

NHSE 

Reimbursement  

£ 

REVENUE - 

HOSPITAL 

DISCHARGE 

COSTS 

Care packages - LBH 

Hospital 

discharge 

programme 

(£1.3bn) 

Domiciliary/Home care Other (Typically, equipment and 

adaptations) 
88,018 88,018 

REVENUE - 

HOSPITAL 

DISCHARGE 

COSTS 

Care packages - LBH 

Hospital discharge 

programme 

(£1.3bn) 

Domiciliary/Home care Other (Typically, equipment and 

adaptations) 
286,016 286,016 

REVENUE - 

HOSPITAL 

DISCHARGE 

COSTS 

Care packages – CoL 

Hospital discharge 

programme 

(£1.3bn) 

Domiciliary/Home care Other (Typically, equipment and 

adaptations) 
tbc tbc 

REVENUE - 

HOSPITAL 

DISCHARGE 

COSTS 

Care packages – Col 

Hospital discharge 

programme 

(£1.3bn) 

Domiciliary/Home care Other (Typically, equipment and 

adaptations) 
tbc tbc 

 

 

37

P
age 37



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Conclusion 

This Covid-19 Hospital Discharge Service is going to play a key part of the national 

Coronavirus response and has been setup at pace however the operation of the service and 

post-cessation recovery will require local oversight from the ICBs. 

 

Supporting Papers and Evidence: 

 
The Hospital Discharge Patient Leaflet is at Appendix 1. 
The Local Authority spend reimbursement template is at Appendix 2. 
The City of London Section 75 Variation is at Appendix 3. 
The London Borough of Hackney Section 75 Variation is at Appendix 4. 
 

 

Sign-off: 

 
Workstream SRO: Sunil Thakker, CCG Director of Finance 
 
City & Hackney CCG: David Maher, CCG Managing Director 
 
London Borough of Hackney:  
Section 75 Variation signed by Christine Stephenson, Acting Senior Lawyer 
 
City of London Corporation:  
Section 75 Variation to be signed by Comptroller and City Solicitor 
 

 

38

Page 38



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Title of report: City & Hackney Service Changes  

Date of meeting: 14 May 2020 

Lead Officer: Carolyn Kus, Director of Programme Delivery 

Author: Stella Okonkwo, Integrated Commissioning Programme Manager 

Committee(s): City & Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board 
       

Public / Non-public Public 
 

 

Executive Summary: 

Following national guidance on the provision of health and social care services during the 
COVID-19 pandemic City and Hackney along with other organisations across NEL have 
been collecting data on service changes across the system. This action is being taken to 
have a clear understanding of the potential impact and support the management of any 
resultant risks of such changes and to be able to communicate the changes widely. 
 
The changes happening reflect that fewer face to face consultations are happening 
between patients and health staff as a precaution against COVID-19 (coronavirus). As a 
result of this, a range of virtual resources and live interactive sessions have been 
developed to support every sector to work through how to achieve this new way of 
operating. City and Hackney are also looking at the quality impact on patients of these 
changes. 
 
Service Providers have classified these changes as temporary, will be regularly reviewed 
and local people will be kept informed of any developments as events progress. 
 
A more detailed breakdown of the service changes is attached Appendix 5 to this 
agenda.  
 

 

 

Recommendations: 

The City Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE the report. 
 

The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE the report. 
 

 

Strategic Objectives this paper supports: 

Deliver a shift in resource and focus to 

prevention to improve the long term 

health and wellbeing of local people and 

address health inequalities  

☒  

Deliver proactive community based care 

closer to home and outside of 

institutional settings where appropriate 

☒  

39

Page 39



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Ensure we maintain financial balance as 
a system and achieve our financial plans 

☒  

Deliver integrated care which meets the 

physical, mental health and social needs 

of our diverse communities  

☒  

Empower patients and residents ☒  

 

Specific implications for City  

None. 
 

 

Specific implications for Hackney 

None. 
 

 

Patient and Public Involvement and Impact: 

This is an overview document – there will be patient and public involvement on all services 
to which it refers but such engagement is not necessary for the document itself.  
 

 

Clinical/practitioner input and engagement: 

This is an overview document – there will be clinical and practitioner involvement on all 
services to which it refers but such engagement is not necessary for the document itself.  
 

 

Communications and engagement: 

No comms sign-off required.  
 

 

Equalities implications and impact on priority groups: 

As above, each aspect of the service will have equalities implications but the document 
itself is an overview.  
 

 

Safeguarding implications: 

As above, each aspect of the service will have safeguarding implications but the 
document itself is an overview.  
 

 

Impact on / Overlap with Existing Services: 

N/A 

 

40

Page 40



Summary of service changes due to COVID-19 in City and Hackney as at 01 May 2020 
 
 

Following national guidance on the provision of health and social care services during the COVID-19 pandemic 
City and Hackney along with other organisations across NEL have been collecting data on service changes across 
the system. This action is being taken to have a clear understanding of the potential impact and support the 
management of any resultant risks of such changes and to be able to communicate the changes widely. 
 

The changes happening reflect that fewer face to face consultations are happening between patients and health 

staff as a precaution against COVID-19 (coronavirus). As a result of this, a range of virtual resources and live 

interactive sessions have been developed to support every sector to work through how to achieve this new way 

of operating. City and Hackney are also looking at the quality impact on patients of these changes. 

Service Providers have classified these changes as temporary, will be regularly reviewed and local people will be 

kept informed of any developments as events progress. 

As with all major incidents, NEL has set up a command team – The strategic Operational Command (SOC) - that 
is dedicated to preparing, planning and taking actions on behalf of the community in relation to COVID-19.  
 
Active discussions are happening across City and Hackney on developing a recovery pathway for our services as 
the situation continues to improve. Discussions include reviewing current plans; Phase 2 of the Covid response 
and preparedness; identifying the new challenges/ changes that Covid-19 brings to each population segment 
and how it might shape the future of service delivery. 
 

Below is a summary of the service changes that have been implemented due to the pandemic. The information 
has been sorted by areas of service provision and changes with a high level of risk are highlighted in this report. 
 
 

Mental Health  
 
CAMHS 

A contingency plan on the provision of services is being activated with a focus to continue to provide essential 
and critical services to young people and their families and gradual reduction and management of non-urgent 
work.  
 
Presently, the services are running a combination of face to face contact as well as use of other mobile 
technologies and anticipates having all essential areas covered such as reception, triage, and crisis. Consultant 
support and staffing capacity is also being reviewed in line with government guidance 
 
The Adolescent mental health service is carrying out assessments of young people and prioritising the discharge 
pathway and sends a weekly update to each borough's ACDs, Consultants and Care coordinators as well as 
keeping families informed  
 
The CAMHS Disability Service is only currently open to Tier 3 new referrals with duty system and NICU. Urgent 
or risk related referrals are still being seen by the team. For existing Clients, majority of patient contacts will be 
over the phone. 
 
The CAMHS Tier 2 Community Services - First Steps service is currently open to referrals however they have 
requested to cease seeing CYP between 16yrs – 18yrs who are referred to the service. As this could potentially 
leave a gap in service provision for CYP, this issue including the impact is currently being looked into by the CCG 
Mental Health team 
 
Adult Mental Health 

The community mental health are rag rating Service users, with the most vulnerable receiving home visits with 
the provision of telephone assessments where possible.  
 

41

Page 41



Other adult mental health services are either continuing, promoting virtual pathways/virtual ward or reducing 
face to face contact where possible. This is with the exception of the Adult crisis café and the Memory Health 
clinics which are currently closed. However, these services are phoning service users and at the memory clinic 
two duty Lines remain open for urgent referrals for existing patients. 
 
Patient discharge process are continuing as normal within the older adult functional and dementia wards 
 
 
Planned Care  
 

Presently, there is a reduction of all routine appointments. Outpatients’ clinics at the Homerton are currently 
postponed whilst focus is on treating Covid-19 patients. However, Homerton is working with local GPs to support 
patients who require urgent consultations. 
 

The TB Service (Acute based) Nurse/Consultant time has been switched to COVID-19 response and the team 
are prioritising urgent work and managing patients by carrying out increased home visiting and giving more 
medication to minimise face to face contact. 
 
Community Health Services 
The Community Heart Failure Nursing team are continuing to carry out home visits that are urgent. New 
referrals are still being accepted and triaged by telephone.   
 
The Adult Cardiorespiratory Enhanced and Responsive service (ACERs) – The Respiratory team are triaging 
patients and are continuing to provide in-person care to patients with the most urgent clinical need. ACERS will 
continue to review patients prior to discharge as per the normal pathway as this is best practice. The team are 
also monitoring and advising patients over the phone.   
 
The Diabetes Community Service has stopped as nurses have been redeployed to wards to support secondary 
care. The service is developing ways to support General Practices in the management of patients.  
 
The Specialist Diabetes Service has also largely stopped. However, dietitians continue to offer support to 
patients and GPs virtually and urgent patients are being asked to attend the hospital centre with a prescription 
from GP. 
 
Dermatology, Dietetics, and Foot Health services have implemented virtual pathways and are not seeing 
patients face-to-face during the pandemic. The Community Gynaecology, Continence, and Dermatology 
services are triaging and prioritising urgent patients for a limited number of face-to-face appointments. It has 
been recognised that indefinitely delaying face-to-face routine appointments may mean that patients become 
more urgent over time. Other services (such as the locomotor – MSK & pain, etc) are also implementing virtual 
pathways.  
 
For these services, a limited number of face-to-face appointments is still being reserved for patients with the 
most urgent clinical needs. 
 
Planned Care / Primary Care 
On the LTC contract (Provided by the GP Confederation), there is ongoing work with reviewing the most at risk 
patients. Clinical pathways and searches have been created.  The first groups to be included are people with 
uncontrolled diabetes, severe Asthma and severe COPD as well as Learning Disabilities. 
 
Practice-based Phlebotomy and Post-Operative Wound Care services are operating as necessary to ensure that 
patients are receiving appropriate ongoing care. Minor Surgery Services at the Lawson Practice, Nightingale 
Practice, and Well Street Surgery are implementing virtual pathways  
 
Planned Care / Voluntary Services 
Telephone support will be provided by the Hear to Help Service, Stroke Project, Healthier Together Hackney 
(cardio-respiratory phase IV rehabilitation), Social Prescribing, and Stroke / Neurology Specialist Disability Gym. 

42

Page 42



 
Following previous suspension of the HUH Phase 3 PR groups, the service is now assessing all new referrals over 
the phone. Anyone assessed is being provided with a remote option or Home exercise programme (HEP). Uptake 
is variable and the service is encouraging ‘expert patients’ testing of the remote options. The Service will also be 
moving to video assessments from next month using ‘attend anywhere’ (for those who have access to a smart 
device and give consent). 
 
Bereavement Counselling is available over the phone. Services are still accepting new referrals and will continue 
to provide advice and support to patients virtually. The service is also exploring opportunity to develop other 
forms of support during the COVID period. 
 
 
Children, Young People, Maternity and Families (CYPMF) 
 

CYPMF / Children’s Safeguarding 
The Designated Nurse for Looked After Children (LAC) is overseeing any gaps in Initial Health Assessments for 
LAC and providing a virtual service where possible.  
 

Children’s Safeguarding continues to be prioritised. Virtual child protection arrangements have been 
implemented, including virtual case conferencing and MDTs with Children’s Social Care to risk stratify and ensure 
that appropriate ongoing support is in place.  
 
CYPMF / Maternity 
Antenatal and post-natal clinics are moving to virtual appointments where possible. Face-to-face appointments 
will continue for 12 and 20 week scans, new birth visits for all babies, and patients with urgent clinical needs.   
 
The Home Birth Service has now been re-instated after being suspended. Due to its increased demand, the 
London Ambulance Service (LAS) had earlier on suspended this service for safety reasons. Women have been 
contacted with information regarding the resumption of service. 
 
CYPMF / Community CYP Services 
Services continue to provide essential care and support to children with urgent circumstances and needs. In line 
with the national guidance, there is a reduction of all non-emergency provision of face-to-face services within 
these community services (e.g. Community Paediatrics, Speech and Language Therapy, Health Visiting, etc).   
 
CYPMF / CYP Paediatric Acute and Outpatients 
The Children's Emergency Area in the A&E remains open at The Homerton 24 hours a day to care for children. 
The Paediatric inpatient ward at HUFT is now re-opened after being temporarily closed to children during this 
emergency period. 
Telephone appointments are being arranged for acute services where appropriate following the cancellation 
Paediatric outpatient appointments. This is until further notice 
 
CYPMF / CAMHS 
The CAMHS specialist services have now resumed accepting new referrals.  
 
The Community Eating Disorder Service is contacting young people and their families by phone to offer 
continuing support and advice on how to use digital resources and self-help in order to continue their treatment. 
If young people or their families feel that their child’s difficulties are becoming more urgent, the service will 
offer a more urgent telephone response service where they can discuss their concerns with a duty clinician. 
 
The First steps service are also prioritising cases where there is risk but for existing clients, majority of patient 
contact is over the phone. 
 
 
 
 

43

Page 43



Social Care  

 
People receiving care are some of the most vulnerable people in our society and the challenges of COVID-19 go 
far beyond anything we have previously experienced. Our social care service provision is focused on trying to 
protect and preserve life for those individuals who need it.  
 
The CCG Quality Lead is having weekly catch up calls with LBH, and others (CoL, CQC and CSU) to discuss quality 
and adult safeguarding risks for our local providers especially in Care homes, Domiciliary care. 
 
London Borough of Hackney 
The Day Care service for People with Learning Disabilities and Older People with Dementia has stopped. 
However, the plan to implement temporary changes on standing orders to enable front line managers’ sign off 
support packages is being put in place, this is to reduce time of agreeing to care packages whether new or 
increased. 
 
City of London 
The Discharge to Access (D2A) provision is to become 7 days a week, 12 hours a day to support weekend 
discharges, In-house staff roles have also been realigned so reablement staff are taking on a more trusted 
assessor role. In addition, there is Increased OT capacity (interim) which will reduce the single point of failure as 
previously only had one OT 
 
The City of London has also procured additional hotel beds in Tower Hamlet to support the discharge planning. 

44

Page 44



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Title of report: CCG Contracting Position 

Date of meeting: 14-May-2020 

Lead Officer: Sunil Thakker 

Author: Lee Walker & David Spells 

Committee(s): Not applicable 
       

Public / Non-public Public 
 

 

Executive Summary: 

This paper is to supplement the verbal update on the CCG Contracting Position that will 
be provided to the ICB meetings on 14-May-202. 
 
The paper provides a summary of the contracting situation by provider type as at 5-May-
2020.  Changes to guidance and adjustments to the Covid-19 response means that this 
position changes frequently. 
 

 

Recommendations: 

The City Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE the report; 
 
The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To NOTE the report; 
 

 

Strategic Objectives this paper supports: 

Deliver a shift in resource and focus to 

prevention to improve the long term 

health and wellbeing of local people and 

address health inequalities  

☐  

Deliver proactive community based care 

closer to home and outside of 

institutional settings where appropriate 

☐  

Ensure we maintain financial balance as 
a system and achieve our financial plans 

☒ The contracting position update provides 
information that supplements 
understanding of increases in provider 
costs relating to Covid-19 

Deliver integrated care which meets the 

physical, mental health and social needs 

of our diverse communities  

☐  

Empower patients and residents ☒ Provides transparency around contracts 
that have been awarded and NHS 
provider arrangements where there are 
no formal contracts  

 

  

45

Page 45



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Specific implications for City  

There are no area specific implications for the City of London. 
 

 

Specific implications for Hackney 

There are no area specific implications for the London Borough of Hackney. 
 

 

Patient and Public Involvement and Impact: 

Patients and Public have not been consulted prior to this update. 
 

 

Clinical/practitioner input and engagement: 

Clinicians have not been involved in the writing of this paper. 
 

 

Communications and engagement: 

Does this report, or the work described in the document, require communications and/or 
stakeholder engagement with patient groups, the public or integrated care partners?  
 
No, contract award notices and the contract register are published by the CCG in other 
places.  Annual accounts are also published with the annual report. 

 
 

Equalities implications and impact on priority groups: 

This update has no implications for priority groups. 
 

 

Safeguarding implications: 

This update has no safeguarding implications. 
 

 

Impact on / Overlap with Existing Services: 

The nature and speed of the changes to contracting that are happening with the Covid-19 
response mean the services that are still operating are working in a much more 
coordinated way, however, many other service have been stopped, or partially stopped so 
that resources can be redeployed. 
 
This paper is only intended to be a brief supplement to a verbal update so the detail of all 
of the implications and overlaps is not included here. 
 

 

  

46

Page 46



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Main Report 

Background and Current Position 

This paper is an update on the NHS City & Hackney CCG contracting position as at 5th Mary 

2020 and outlines the way that contractual management and payment have been modified 

for existing service providers.  

 

Contractual management process outlined here follow directions given by NHS England 

(NHSE) and the Cabinet Office and it is now considered likely level 4 national escalation 

arrangements will be in place for at least the next twelve months.  

 

It should be noted in respect of service providers that City & Hackney CCG’s responsibility is 

limited to ensuring that services are maintained during this period and the wider implications 

of sustainability of independent sector providers can only be considered in so far as they 

directly relate to the continuation of a service.  The sustainability of NHS providers is the 

responsibility of the regulator. 

 

Various guidance have been issued by HM Government and the NHS on the basis of the 

provider type and so the way we are managing provider contracts and the level of support 

being offered differs according to type of provider and the directions we are under in relation 

to that provider type. 

 

NHS Providers 

All NHS Provider are currently under the direction of a Strategic Operational Command and 

are being funded by a Block Allocation determined centrally by NHSE and NHS 

Improvement (NHSI) and based on the Month 9 Agreement of Balance with each 

commissioner.  

 

In addition to the Block, NHSE/I have made provision for what is termed a “top up payment” 

based on income position in relation to expenditure. NHSE/I have also set up a fund against 

which providers can reclaim COVID – 19 related expenditure and there is separate provision 

for Mental Health funding.  

 

There is no contract in place between Commissioner and Provider presently and NHSE/I 

have formally suspended the use of contract performance notices, CQUIN and invoicing 

between CCGs and Trusts that do not relate to the block amount.  Formal contract and 

quality monitoring activities have been stood down to reduce burden on NHS providers. 

 

The key point to note is that commissioners cannot provide additional funding above or 

below the Block allocation. City & Hackney CCG can request additional services from 

Homerton but funding for those services must come from within the overall funding envelope 

confirmed by the Homerton. This includes Community and Mental Health services provided 

by the Homerton. 

 

Section 75 Agreements including the Better Care Fund 

47

Page 47



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Section 75 Agreements and established pooled funding arrangements remain in place 

during the pandemic.  The Section 75 agreement between the CCG and the City of London, 

and the CCG and the London Borough of Hackney, have both been varied to allow the 

reclaiming of all costs related to the Covid-19 Hospital Discharge Service.  

 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-hospital-discharge-

service-requirements  

 

It should be noted that the Integrated Independence Team (IIT) continues to be funded 

through a CCG BCF payment to LBH who commission this service from the Homerton 

Hospital using a pooled fund.  Payment for IIT therefore remains outside the Block 

allocation. 

 

The 20/21 iteration of the BCF plan and associated amounts will be agreed later in the year 

as usual. 

 

Third Sector Providers 

The CCG has rolled over all Grant Agreements with Voluntary Sector Organisations (VSO) 

where the funding is recurrent.  The Grant Agreement issued included a Covid-19 clause 

which required the VSOs to comply with national guidance, if it applied to the service being 

commissioned, but continue to deliver services as best they can to the patient groups 

intended to benefit from the service. 

 

The CCG also commissions several VSOs using NHS Standard Contracts which include 

End of Life Care/Hospices, Rehabilitation and Discharge Support.  These VSO contract have 

also been rolled over although these agreements have not been modified – these services 

are key to the Covid-19 response. 

 

Hospices UK special arrangement 

HM Treasury has also made an additional £200m available to Hospices through a fund that 

is held and allocated by Hospices UK.  The CCG is not directly involved in the allocation of 

this money and it is designed to supplement Hospice income on top of commissioner 

funding. 

 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/C0309-letter-

to-system-about-HMT-funding-for-the-hospice-sector-to-support-COVID-19-16-April-

2020.pdf 

 

Independent Sector – Acute providers 

NHSE/I have nationally contracted with a number of Independent Hospitals under an 

agreement to source their services for the exclusive use of the NHS. The agreement extends 

from 23rd March for 14 weeks.  The way that the Independent Sector Acute capacity is used 

is to be determined by a lead NHS Trust is each ICS area and although there is no national 

48

Page 48

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-hospital-discharge-service-requirements
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-hospital-discharge-service-requirements
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/C0309-letter-to-system-about-HMT-funding-for-the-hospice-sector-to-support-COVID-19-16-April-2020.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/C0309-letter-to-system-about-HMT-funding-for-the-hospice-sector-to-support-COVID-19-16-April-2020.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/04/C0309-letter-to-system-about-HMT-funding-for-the-hospice-sector-to-support-COVID-19-16-April-2020.pdf


 

 

 

 
 

 

 

model the general approach has been to us Independent Sector Acute providers for non-

Covid elective work, including Cancer surgery. 

 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/partnership-working-with-the-

independent-sector-providers-and-the-ihpn/ 

 

Independent Sector – Community providers 

At the start of the pandemic NHSE issued guidance that most community services should be 

stopped, or partially stopped, to allow for prioritisation of the resources to either be 

redirected to discharge support (NHS providers) or to reduce social contact.  This included 

community diagnostics, audiology and dentistry amongst other services. 

 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/covid-19-prioritisation-within-community-

health-services-with-annex_19-march-2020/  

 

CCG contracts with Independent Sector Community providers continue unchanged and at a 

reduced level if activity levels have dropped – it is a requirement of NHS Standard Contract 

to comply with national guidance. 

 

Additional Cabinet Office guidance allows the CCG to make advance payments to 

Independent Sector providers where a fixed value contract exists and where the provider 

shares open book information to demonstrate they are at risk financially.  To date, the CCG 

has not made advance payments to any providers that are at risk. 

 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_da

ta/file/874178/PPN_02_20_Supplier_Relief_due_to_Covid19.pdf  

 

CHC - Nursing Homes 

Nursing Home contracts have been rolled over for 20/21 and the CCG is in the process of 

agreeing an uplift in line with inflation for this year.  Where Nursing Home providers are 

requesting support with the additional costs of PPE this is being agreed on a case by case 

basis and reclaimed by the CCG from central funding when appropriate. 

 

CHC - Domiciliary Care Providers 

Home care provider contracts have also been rolled forward for 20/21 with requests for PPE 

funding being reviewed on a case by case basis. 

 

Core Primary Care 

Funding arrangements for Core Primary Care had already been confirmed in February 2020 

in the ‘Investment and Evolution: Update to the GP contract agreement 2020/21 – 2023/24’ 

documentation and GMS, PMS and APMS contracts agreed on that basis. 

 

Since the start of the pandemic the core primary care service has seen a radical 

transformation from a face to face to a virtual service with extended opening over weekends 

49

Page 49

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/partnership-working-with-the-independent-sector-providers-and-the-ihpn/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/partnership-working-with-the-independent-sector-providers-and-the-ihpn/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/covid-19-prioritisation-within-community-health-services-with-annex_19-march-2020/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/publication/covid-19-prioritisation-within-community-health-services-with-annex_19-march-2020/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/874178/PPN_02_20_Supplier_Relief_due_to_Covid19.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/874178/PPN_02_20_Supplier_Relief_due_to_Covid19.pdf


 

 

 

 
 

 

 

and bank holidays.  The changes have been extensive and defined by the national guidance 

rather than through formal changes to the national core primary care contracts. 

 

Locally Enhanced Primary Care 

2020/21 marked the start of year 3 of the seven year contract that the CCG has in place with 

the City and Hackney GP Confederation and this contract remains in place.   

 

In line with NEL ICS guidance the CCG suspended all activity and performance-based 

payments from Q4 of 2019/20 and is now paying for all LES services on a forecast of 

activity.  The objective here is that NEL would like to ensure provider cash flow and 

sustainability during the pandemic and to allow practices flexibility in how the resources are 

used but this clearly creates a situation where activity is not required for payment. 

 

The CCG has begun a process to direct primary care LES resources towards services that 

are the priority during Covid-19 recovery; that has started with the resource allocated to the 

Long Term Conditions service and the CCG confirming that this should be directed to 

reviews of the Vulnerable Patient cohort identified by NHSE.   

 

The CCG also has 2 Nursing Homes support contracts that sit outside of the GP 

Confederation contract, and these have been rolled forward with the practices that deliver 

those services.  A new contract is being set up to cover the 1 remaining Nursing Home in the 

borough with Allerton Road practice. 

 

Primary Care Networks 

The Simon Stevens/Amanda Pritchard letter of 29th April 2020, which amongst other things 

signalled the commencement of the recovery phase, has made clear that work to roll out a 

Primary Care Network run service for enhanced provision in Care Homes should 

recommence on 1st May.  Work to issue Care Home service contracts to PCNs is now 

underway. 

 

Conclusion 

Whilst ‘independent sector’ and primary care providers continue to have NHS service 

contracts, the NHS providers have effectively been de-contractualised by the national 

Coronavirus response and it is not expected that previous contracting round/national tariff 

arrangements will be resumed for at least 12 months. 

 

Supporting Papers and Evidence: 

Not applicable 

 

 

Sign-off: 

Workstream SRO: Sunil Thakker, CCG Director of Finance  
 

 

50

Page 50



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Title of report: Neighbourhoods Programme Business Case – Year 3 2020/21 

Date of meeting: 14 May 2020 

Lead Officer: Mark Golledge, Neighbourhoods Programme Lead and 
Nina Griffith, Unplanned Care Workstream Director 

Author: Mark Golledge, Neighbourhoods Programme Lead 

Committee(s): Neighbourhoods Steering Group – Feb 2020 
CCG Governing Body – March 2020 (email) 
Community Services Development Board (various) 
CCG Finance and Performance Committee – 18 March 2020       

Public / Non-public Public.  
 

 

Executive Summary: 

The Neighbourhoods programme is helping to transform the way care is provided – 

delivering it closer to home and more integrated.  

In year 3 (2020/21) the focus will be on rolling out service transformation in key 

areas and starting to bring together multi-agency teams in each of our eight 

Neighbourhoods. It will help to deliver the ambitions in the NHS Long Term Plan 

The purpose of the business case is to request £1.04m to support delivery of our 
vision for Neighbourhoods as agreed by the Integrated Commissioning Board in 
February 2020. 
 

 

Recommendations: 

The City Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To APPROVE the requested funding of £1,040,000 in order to support delivery of our 
vision for Year 3 of Neighbourhoods. 

The Hackney Integrated Commissioning Board is asked: 

 To APPROVE the requested funding of £1,040,000 in order to support delivery of our 
vision for Year 3 of Neighbourhoods. 

 

 

Strategic Objectives this paper supports  

Deliver a shift in resource and focus to 

prevention to improve the long term 

health and wellbeing of local people and 

address health inequalities  

☒ One key aim for Neighbourhoods is 
enhancing the focus on prevention and 
opportunities for early intervention. This 
will need to be central to all 
Neighbourhood teams.  
 

Deliver proactive community based care 

closer to home and outside of 

institutional settings where appropriate 

☒ There is a strong focus on care being 
delivered closer to home through 
Neighbourhoods. Anticipatory care (one 
of the Neighbourhoods projects) is 
considering how best to support 
residents in this way.  
 

51

Page 51



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Ensure we maintain financial balance as 
a system and achieve our financial plans 

☒ The Neighbourhoods model should 
support system sustainability by 
improving the health of individuals and 
communities.  
 

Deliver integrated care which meets the 

physical, mental health and social needs 

of our diverse communities  

☒ The focus for Neighbourhoods is bringing 
teams together from across the statutory 
and voluntary organisations to work in an 
integrated way with and for City and 
Hackney residents.  
 

Empower patients and residents ☒ As outlined below there is a strong ethos 
within Neighbourhoods for patient and 
resident engagement. Healthwatch are 
currently leading on work to consider 
how resident engagement can be 
strengthened within Neighbourhoods.  
 

 

Specific implications for City  

As we transition to a Neighbourhood based way of working, it is important that there remains 
a strong City of London (CoL) voice and identity. City of London will develop a bespoke 
operational neighbourhood model based on its specific needs. There will be opportunities for 
CoL to input and shape operational developments within the wider Shoreditch Park and City 
Neighbourhood programme.  
 
We envisage that this will be achieved through three areas:  
 

 The opportunity for City of London to shape how services they deliver will work 
operationally within the Shoreditch Park and the City Neighbourhood. With the 
Anticipatory Care work programme City of London will contribute to enhance the 
development of multi-disciplinary working across teams and services, both locally 
and within the wider Shoreditch Park and City neighbourhood.  

 The opportunity for City of London to distinguish local resident needs and then 
identify other services within the Shoreditch Park and City neighbourhood that could 
best respond to these local resident needs.  

 The neighbourhoods model will deliver more equitable and localised service 
provision across City and Hackney, which will ensure that City residents have 
improved access to a number of community based services.  

 

 

Specific implications for Hackney 

The purpose of Neighbourhoods is to better understand and respond to the needs of local 
populations. Geographies around 30-50,000 people present an opportunity for approaches 
to be more localised to respond to identified needs whilst being large enough to make best 
use of collaborative working.  
 
Similar to City of London this presents an opportunity to better understand the needs of local 
populations and support more a more joined up response between local organisations.  

 

Patient and Public Involvement and Impact: 

52

Page 52



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

The Neighbourhoods programme has established a Neighbourhoods Resident Engagement 
Panel (coordinated by Healthwatch Hackney). This panel made up of residents across both 
City of London and Hackney are helping to ensure that resident engagement is embedded in 
the Neighbourhoods programme. The Panel have fed in views and comments on the 
Neighbourhood Business Case. In addition, the Panel are working with providers across City 
and Hackney to ensure that resident engagement is at the heart of the re-design of health 
and care services.  
 

 

Clinical/practitioner input and engagement: 

The Neighbourhoods programme is clinically led, recognising the importance of clinical 
and practitioner engagement.  
Clinical input including from Primary Care Network Clinical Directors as well as others 
across health and social care has formed part of the engagement on the Business Case.  
 

Communications and engagement: 

It is not envisaged that the Neighbourhood Business Case in the way it is currently 
presented will be shared with residents. However, both resident and staff engagement is 
going to be essential for successful delivery of Neighbourhoods.  
 
Work is underway with the communications enabler to explore enhancing communications 
support as Neighbourhood based working is strengthened.  
 
Comms Sign-off  
Alice Beard continues to be involved in work with the Neighbourhoods Programme.  

 

Equalities implications and impact on priority groups: 

No specific implications identified. However, Neighbourhood working should enable a 
better understanding of local populations and their needs – including those of particular 
individuals and groups.  
 

 

Safeguarding implications: 

The approach to Neighbourhoods should support enhanced safeguarding and multi-
disciplinary working between teams and organisations. One of the key drivers for 
Neighbourhoods was a recognised opportunity to strengthen cross-agency working in 
supporting individuals who are or who could be vulnerable.  
 

 

Impact on / Overlap with Existing Services: 

Neighbourhoods gives City and Hackney an opportunity to review and improve how existing 
services are delivered.  
 
The Operating Model makes proposals for how services could enhance working through a 
Neighbourhoods-based approach.  
 
Services (particularly those within the core team) are already exploring ways of improving 
service delivery and exploring alignment with a Neighbourhoods way of working.  

 

53

Page 53



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

City and Hackney CCG – Finance and Performance Committee 

Neighbourhoods Programme Business Case 

Year 3 – 2020/21 

 

1. Background 

1.1 Following the recent Coronavirus outbreak, the Neighbourhoods Programme is 

focusing its efforts on responding to this area. Themes around our humanitarian 

response for non-medical needs, support to those people in the community who are 

vulnerable and at risk are very much core to the Neighbourhoods programme. 

Utilising the strong relationships across the local system that have been developed 

through Neighbourhoods gives us an opportunity to play an important role in 

supporting the system response to COVID-19 across City and Hackney. 

 

1.2 The City and Hackney Neighbourhoods Programme is requesting to draw down 

funding of £1,040,000 for Year 3 (2020/21) in order to support delivery of our vision 

for Neighbourhoods. Across City and Hackney we are transforming the way care is 

provided – delivered closer to home, more integrated around individuals and families 

and based on an understanding of the population health needs across each of our 8 

Neighbourhoods. 

 

1.3 In year 3 our focus will be on rolling out this service transformation in key areas as 

well as starting to bring together multi-agency teams across each of our eight 

Neighbourhoods. This will support our local communities in particular those with 

complex needs and long-term conditions. In year 3 the programme will also be 

exploring opportunities to improve support to children and young people. This will 

enable us to better respond to local needs as well as continue to deliver the 

ambitions set out in the NHS Long-Term Plan. 

 

1.4 City and Hackney partners are committed to delivering more integrated out of 

hospital services. We outlined our vision in the Neighbourhoods Operating Model that 

was approved at the Integrated Commissioning Board in February 2020. The 

Neighbourhoods Programme and this investment specifically will provide the 

resources across partner organisations to help deliver this vision and create the 

conditions for wider transformation. It will form the core priorities for what is taken 

forward by Neighbourhood Health and Care Services as well as wider system 

partners. 

 

 

 

54

Page 54



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

2. Neighbourhood Health and Care Services 

 

2.1 In 2019/20 the City and Hackney Provider Alliance (Homerton University Hospital 

NHS Foundation Trust, East London NHS Foundation Trust and the City and 

Hackney GP Confederation) have been exploring opportunities to work more closely 

together. Both the City of London Corporation and the London Borough of Hackney 

have indicated their commitment to support this collaboration. These providers have 

submitted an application to provide health and care services under a new Alliance 

contract – a Neighbourhood Health and Care Services Alliance Agreement. These 

arrangements will more closely align existing contracts and facilitate integrated 

working at a Neighbourhood level. 

 

2.2 Delivering on the ambitions of Neighbourhoods (including those outlined in this 

business case) will be a core focus under the Alliance contract. The transformation 

that will commence from year 3 will be funded through this Neighbourhoods 

programme (alongside additional Transformation Funding) and will build on the work 

that has already been delivered by these partner organisations in the first two years 

of the programme.  

 

2.3 The scope of our Neighbourhoods programme is broader than just these Alliance 

partners. However, the Alliance will support integrated working across these three 

Providers and support culture change across our staff and teams. An Organisation 

Development Plan has been developed amongst these providers which sets out the 

support required to facilitate this culture shift and provide staff working in 

Neighbourhoods with the expertise and approaches to strengthen relationships both 

between teams and with local people. 

 

 

3. What has been delivered in Year 2? 

 

3.1 We are approaching the end of the second year of the Neighbourhoods Programme. 

The first year focused on gaining commitment to Neighbourhoods from partners 

across City and Hackney. In year 2 the focus of the programme has been on piloting 

and delivering new service models that will begin to be implemented from year 3 

(2020/21).  

 

3.2 We have put co-production and resident engagement at the heart of the 

Neighbourhoods programme. Healthwatch Hackney have been leading work (across 

Hackney and City of London) to strengthen co-production in this Neighbourhoods 

work. This has included leading the Neighbourhoods Resident Involvement Group 

alongside supporting service areas in engagement with patients and the public in the 

re-design of services. This continues to be a critical part of the programme and the 

work in Year 3 will further enhance resident engagement. 

 

55

Page 55



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

3.3 In year 2 the achievements have included: 

 

● Developing a Neighbourhoods Operating Model which sets out our 

collective vision for Neighbourhoods across Hackney and City of 

London and direction of travel. A supporting delivery plan sets out how this 

will be delivered over the next 3, 5 and 7 years. 

 

● Assisting in the establishment of Primary Care Networks through the 

funding of leadership development as well as providing administrative support 

for the new Primary Care Clinical Directors. In addition, the programme has 

arranged facilitative sessions for these new roles. Specific project work led by 

the GP Confederation has been supporting primary care resilience in year 2. 

Year 3 will further strengthen collaborative working with Primary Care 

Networks. 

 

● Beginning to develop new service models that will allow us to bring 

together eight multi-disciplinary teams in each Neighbourhood. This 

covers out of hospital services described below such as Adult Community 

Nursing, Adult Community Therapies, Mental Health, Adult Social Care and 

Voluntary Sector alongside Primary Care who are already working within 

these localities. 

 

● Piloting work in Clissold Park Neighbourhood to improve multi-agency 

approaches to support people with complex needs. The learning from this 

pilot (anticipatory care) will continue and in year 3 expand across all 

Neighbourhoods. 

 

● Developed a new Adult Community Nursing model made up of eight 

Neighbourhood nursing teams and new improved pathways into and 

within the service. This follows pilot work undertaken in Shoreditch Park and 

the City. The new arrangements for the service are in the final stages of 

approval. 

 

● Developing a new service model for Adult Community Therapies that 

will improve pathways into and within the service. This will support the 

triaging of patient needs and where needed ensure effective rapid response, 

provide support for adults with neurological conditions or link to staff members 

within Neighbourhoods to support people with physical conditions. 

 

● Developing a Neighbourhood mental health approach for people with 

serious mental illness and personality disorder. East London Foundation 

Trust has since secured community mental health transformation funding 

from NHS England to test this model as part of a national initiative. This is 

56

Page 56



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

exploring how to deliver integrated care through multi-disciplinary working 

across different teams and organisations. 

 

● Testing and developing improved ways of working in Adult Social Care 

(London Borough of Hackney) based on strengths based practice and 

which is likely to mean the formation of Neighbourhood-based social care 

teams (working across two Neighbourhoods each).  

 

● Strengthening voluntary sector networks through pilot work in Well 

Street Common Neighbourhood. This work led by Hackney CVS comprises 

of three elements – improving connectivity (between CVS organisations, 

statutory organisations and residents working in Well Street), improving 

sustainability for the voluntary sector (through training and support) and 

governance (strengthening partnership working).  

 

● Developing a borough wide approach to community navigation across 

City and Hackney. This includes developing an improved understanding of 

services commissioned and in year 3 this area will look at improving 

coordination and quality of these services whilst strengthening the links into 

Neighbourhoods.  

 

● Establishing arrangements for Community Pharmacy to provide 

pharmacy leadership through eight Pharmacy Neighbourhood leads. 

These leads have been taking forward the national community pharmacy 

commitments (within the new contract) whilst leading on specific pharmacy 

led projects. 

 

● Working with partners at City of London Corporation to ensure that our 

vision for Neighbourhoods is reflective of the ambitions within the City 

and will meet the needs of residents. 

 

4. What is the focus for Year 3 (2020/21)? 

 

4.1 In order to deliver Year Three of the Neighbourhoods Programme we have worked 

with partners to develop a programme of work that builds on the work undertaken in 

Year 2 and that will enable these new service models to be implemented across our 

eight Neighbourhoods. This is based on the approved Neighbourhoods Operating 

Model as well as Neighbourhoods Delivery Plan.  

 

4.2 The total sum requested is £1,040,000 from the Better Care Fund for 2020/21. 

This is in line with the approval in 2019/20 of £1,034,370. The investment requested 

is largely focused on funding staff to lead on the transformation within these services 

alongside funding for activities and events. 

57

Page 57



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

4.3 Our priorities for Year 3 (based on our Neighbourhoods Operating Model and 

Delivery Plan for Neighbourhoods) have been agreed as follows: 

 

● To establish new models of care in services that will make up the core 

Neighbourhood team including adult community nursing, adult social care, 

adult community therapies, mental health, primary care (PCNs) and links to 

the voluntary sector. 

 

● To commence work to bring operational teams together in each 

Neighbourhood forming the core Neighbourhood team. This will assist 

with multi-agency working and be enabled through training and support for 

those working within these core teams.  

 

● To establish new models of care (based around population health 

needs) which support people through multi-agency working. This will 

include work to support people with complex needs as well as long-term 

conditions (extending the work on anticipatory care). This will also support our 

approach to safeguarding which is a key priority for the programme. 

 

● To establish and deliver service models which meet the needs of 

children, young people and families. This will particularly focus on 

opportunities to strengthen multi-agency working and links with primary care. 

 

● To embed a population health approach within Neighbourhoods and a 

response to those identified needs – supported by a strong QI 

methodology and enabling prevention activities (such as through the 

Prevention Investment Standard) and specific pathway improvements (such 

as in the area of planned care). 

 

● Develop, test and begin to establish an approach to local leadership and 

partnerships across Neighbourhoods that brings together representation 

from residents, statutory organisations, voluntary and community sector as 

well locally elected members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58

Page 58



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

4.4 In summary, the total requested funds by each provider is as follows: 

 
Provider 

Provider 
Request 

for 2020/21 

 Funded by 
underspend 

from 
2019/20 

Funded by 
BCF 2020/21 

Total 
Funding 

a. Homerton 
University Hospital 

£154,617 
 

£0 £154,617 £154,617 

b. East London 
Foundation Trust 

£152,000 
 

£0 £152,000 £152,000 

c. London Borough of 
Hackney 

£170,717 
 

£15,000 £155,717 £170,717 

d. GP   
Confederation 

£105,527 
 

£62,253 £43,274 £105,527 

e. City of London 
Corporation 

£20,000 
 

£0 £20,000 £20,000 

f. Healthwatch  
Hackney  

£61,651 
 

£11,224 £50,427 £61,651 

g. Hackney CVS 
(Voluntary Sector) (1) 

£231,831 
 

£77,288 £154,543 £231,831 

h. Community 
Pharmacy (LPC) 

£56,300 
 

£15,700 £40,600 £56,300 

i. Planned Care work-
stream 

£34,250 
 

£0 £34,250 £34,250 

j. Children and Young 
People work-stream  

£20,000 
 

£0 £20,000 £20,000 

k. Neighbourhoods 
central team 

£183,187 
 

£85,360 £97,827 £183,187 

l. PCN Clinical 
Director Development 

£76,138 
 

£76,138 £0 £76,138 

 
Total Funding 
 

£1,266,218 
 

£342,963 
 

£923,256 
 

£1,266,218 

Contingency    £116,744  

 
Total BCF Budget 

 
   

£1,040,000 
 

 

(1) Please note that for Hackney CVS further work remains underway with them to review the 2020/21 

budget (for other providers this has been undertaken). This will be completed over the next week. 

 

4.5 Please note that there are areas where the contingency are expected to be used in 

2020/21 and they will be explored during the early part of 2020/21. This will include 

City and Hackney wide work on population health, assistance on evaluation for the 

Neighbourhoods programme and Neighbourhood communications. Alongside this the 

contingency is held to reduce the impact of any staffing pressures that arise in year. 

 

4.6 As outlined above, the work that will be carried out by these providers will largely 

focus on implementing new models of care and for some services will see the 

59

Page 59



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

alignment of teams to each of the eight Neighbourhoods. This will lay the foundations 

for integrated care. 

 

4.7 Work with each of the enablers (estates, workforce, IT and communications and 

engagement) will also be critical in 2020/21 as we take forward integrated working.  

 

4.8 In summary, the work that will be carried out by each provider is as follows: 

Provider Summary 
 

a. Homerton 
University 
Hospital 
 

Providing oversight and delivering a new service model for Adult 
Community Nursing 
 
Completing the scoping of a new service model for Adult 
Community Therapies (Adult Community Rehabilitation Team and 
Integrated Independence team) and commencing delivery of new 
service model 
 

b. East London 
Foundation 
Trust (Mental 
Health) 

Implementing a Mental Health in the Neighbourhoods model for 
population groups including CAMHS, older adults / dementia and 
common disorders. This will align with the NHS England 
transformation work to support people with personality disorder and 
serious mental illness.  
 
Integrating new mental health blended teams with the wider 
Neighbourhoods team. 
 

c. London 
Borough of 
Hackney 
(Adult Social 
Care) 
 

Implementing transformation and a new service model in Adult 
Social Care that will see the phased rollout of locality 
Neighbourhood teams and continued practice changes including 
enhanced MDT working across teams working in social care.  
 

d. GP 
Confederation 

Enhancing the link and support to Primary Care Networks with 
work being undertaken across the Neighbourhoods Programme. The 
work will continue to support specific projects in primary care 
including new Wellbeing Practitioners and group consultations. 
 
Facilitating regular Neighbourhood sessions that bring together 
staff across health and social care working within each 
Neighbourhood. 
 

e. City of 
London 

Undertaking work to improve the understanding of City of 
London resident and registered population needs and 
determining Neighbourhood priorities. 
 
Establishing practices across City of London services that 
support integrated working within the Neighbourhood. 
 

60

Page 60



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

f. Healthwatch 
Hackney (on 
behalf of City 
of London and 
Hackney) 

Leading on resident engagement across the programme to 
ensure this remains at the centre of the work.  This work will also 
link closely with Hackney CVS to build an approach to resident 
engagement across Neighbourhoods whilst leading on work to 
understand what is important to residents about health and wellbeing 
within each Neighbourhood. 
 

g. Hackney 
CVS 

Building on work in Well Street Common Neighbourhood, start 
to extend this support to two further Neighbourhoods. The work 
will improve connectivity, establish partnership arrangements and 
support the sustainability of the voluntary sector within the 
Neighbourhoods. 
 

h. Community 
Pharmacy 

Integrate Community Pharmacy into Neighbourhood working by 
continuing to support pharmacy Neighbourhood leadership, 
supporting a pharmacy contribution to re-design of pathways and 
undertaking specific pharmacy led projects including flu vaccination 
and a Community Pharmacy consultation service. 
 

i. Planned 
Care 

Work across all 8 Neighbourhoods to identify specific Long 
Term Conditions opportunities and working with clinical teams 
(including from the Neighbourhood core team) to begin to make 
improvements to identified pathways. 
 

j. Children, 
Young People, 
Maternity and 
Families  

Work to take forward improved multi-agency working to support 
both children and adolescents and in particular strengthening the 
links with primary care.  
 

k. Homerton 
Central Team 

Providing overall programme leadership to support the delivery 
of Year 3 of the programme and leading on specific projects that 
support multi-agency collaboration including MDT working 
(anticipatory care). 
 

 

4.9 Alongside this, two projects focused on anticipatory care (MDT working to support 

people with complex needs) and work on community navigation will remain a core 

part of Neighbourhoods but will be funded through Community Education Provider 

Networks (CEPN). These projects are both funded until October 2020. 

 

5. Year 3 Milestones 

 

5.1 A delivery plan has been developed across the Neighbourhoods programme which 

sets out our ambitions across in Year 3, 5, 7 and 10. This provides further detail in 

Year 3 (2020/21) with milestones established for each of the projects identified 

above.  

 

61

Page 61



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

5.2 In summary, the headline milestones for the programme for Year 3 will be as follows: 

 

● Year 3 Business Case Approval by CCG Finance and Performance 

Committee and Integrated Commissioning Board: April 2020 

 

● Evaluation approach established across core services and 

Neighbourhoods programme – baseline and approach determined by 

March 2021 

 

● Introduce new models of care into service areas: 

 

o Adult Community Nursing – full rollout by March 2021 

o Adult Community Therapies – rollout to March 2021 

o Adult Social Care – phased alignment to Neighbourhoods from 

March 2020 to August 2021 

o Mental Health – blended teams for PD/SMI from April 2020 and 

across other population cohorts in 2020/21 

o Voluntary Sector – extended working in an additional two 

Neighbourhoods (from June 2020 and January 2021) 

 

● Identifying population health priorities for Neighbourhoods – from June 

2020 with further engagement by March 2021 

 

● Enhance MDT working across all Neighbourhoods for people with 

complex needs – Phased rollout from June 2020 to June 2021 

 

● Determine a framework for Community Navigation across City and 

Hackney – November 2020 

 

● Develop and test models for Neighbourhood partnerships including 

learning from other areas – March 2021 

 

 

6. Evaluation and Outcomes 

 

6.1 In 2019/20 work was undertaken across the programme to establish an initial 

outcomes approach for Neighbourhoods. We have established six domains that will 

provide the foundation for how we will measure the effectiveness of Neighbourhoods. 

This was outlined in the Neighbourhoods Operating Model.  

 

6.2 These six domains are as follows (outcomes in domains 1 and 3 will vary from 

Neighbourhood to Neighbourhood depending on local need): 

 

62

Page 62



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

● Domain 1: Individual outcomes: People have an overall improved quality of 

life 

● Domain 2: Staff experience: Professionals have an improved experience 

● Domain 3: Community wellbeing and population health: Reduction in 

inequalities for people 

● Domain 4: Patient, user and carer experience: Care is safe, effective and 

people have a good experience 

● Domain 5: Organisational processes, systems and resource utilisation: 

Care is financially sustainable and we reduce waste 

● Domain 6: Integrated working: Teams work effectively together with 

improved communication 

 

6.3 Our approach to measuring outcomes will be two-fold. Firstly, outcomes will be 

evaluated within individual services / by individual providers (e.g. for adult community 

nursing, in mental health, for the voluntary sector). This will help to better understand 

the impact of new service models. Work will be undertaken with Providers (and align 

with the Provider Alliance) to identify arrangements for evaluation. 

 

6.4 Secondly, we intend to consider evaluation for the programme overall and the 

effectiveness of integrated working both for staff and residents. It is however worth 

highlighting that developing an approach and understanding the impact on improving 

outcomes through Neighbourhoods will take time. Evidence from the Nuffield Trust 

(“The Challenges of Evaluating Integrated Care, 2019”) highlights that evaluation of 

integrated care can often be beset with complexity. This complexity is not a reason 

not to evaluate but requires well designed approaches and a recognition that change 

will only start to become evident from around two years after implementation.   

 

7. Conclusion and Recommendation 

7.1 The Board is asked to approve the release of £1,040,000 to support the delivery of 

the Neighbourhoods programme for Year 3 (2020/21). This will provide the resource 

needed to help to continue to work towards our vision for Neighbourhoods outlined 

within the Operating Model. 

 

 

Attached 

 

● Neighbourhoods Operating Model  

● Neighbourhoods Delivery Plan 

 

 

63

Page 63



Neighbourhoods Operating Model –
City and Hackney ICB
13th February 2020

64

P
age 64



2

Neighbourhoods – Margaret, Vinnie and the case for change…

What happened to Margaret…

• Margaret lives in Hackney Downs. She is in her 

70s and Cared for her husband who died 3 years 

ago.

• She has family although they don’t live locally and 

few local friends.

• Her health getting steadily worse with increasing 

frailty (multiple LTCs)

• Rapid deterioration of health when she had a fall 

and is admitted to hospital.

What happened to Vinnie and his family…

• Born in Hackney – lives alone in a housing 

association property.

• Divorced with 2 children – unemployed for 10 

years with few friends. Visits children regularly.

• History of paranoid schizophrenia – used to 

attend support groups but no longer engages. He 

is known to mental health services.

• Uncontrolled hypertension & diabetes. Served 

with an eviction notice due to not paying rent 

causing him to become depressed.

What could have been different…

• Earlier identification of Margaret’s needs 

triggered by her husband’s death

• Coordinated and personalised care plan put in 

place – included a frailty review and falls risk 

assessment

• Margaret is connected to local lunch club and 

falls prevention exercise class

• Teams going into Margaret’s home recognised 

the deterioration of her living environment and 

drew in housing support and Occupational 

Therapies

• Margaret’s health and wellbeing are optimised, 

and she does not fall.

What could have been different…

• Vinnie is identified as someone who may need 

proactive support

• The neighbourhoods team review his notes 

across all agencies

• They organise a strengths based discussion 

with Vinnie based on what is important to him 

and what he wants to achieve

• Plan put in place with Vinnie & team co-ordinate 

this across all agencies

• There is a joined up response between teams 

working with both Vinnie and his children

• Vinnie is supported to get into work and 

manage debt.

Why take a Neighbourhoods approach?

• Demographics and needs of people 

differ between  Neighbourhoods - this 

offers a local response to local needs and 

addresses inequalities

• Tackling wider determinants of health 

and care requires a joined up response

• Care is delivered in the community 

where possible, with A&E and crisis 

support used more appropriately –

Neighbourhoods offers an opportunity to 

deliver more localised services 

• People want care more joined up and 

personalised based on what is 

important to them – Neighbourhoods 

gives us an way of taking a more person-

focused approach across organisations

• Neighbourhoods offers opportunities for 

our staff to benefit from working 

together in a joined up way
65

P
age 65



3

What Neighbourhoods will mean for Margaret, Vinnie as well as our staff…

Our City & Hackney shared principles:

Across the city and Hackney system by working together we will…

• Adopt an asset based approach across all our teams within Neighbourhoods so that we start with recognising the things 

that people and places have and gain an understanding of what a good life means for them. 

• Work together to build strong and cohesive local Neighbourhoods where there is a focus on people and communities 

supporting each other alongside a vibrant and diverse set of services that people can access.

• Empower our staff to support people in ways that work them with clear responsibility. Staff are not constrained by 

professional and organisational boundaries and work together to respond to resident needs. Person, family and 

Neighbourhood first not organisation first.

• Start by listening to what is important to residents within each Neighbourhood as well as using local intelligence to help 

identify the outcomes and priorities that we want to change.

• Support each Neighbourhood to determine its own priorities which will influence where we all focus our efforts.

• Recognise and value the important contribution of the voluntary and community sector in improving health and 

wellbeing and they will play an important leadership role in Neighbourhoods.

Our City & Hackney vision:
Working together across City and Hackney to support people and their families to live the healthiest lives possible and receive the right care where and when 

they need it.

• Neighbourhoods where people and communities are actively supported to help themselves and each other

• More support for residents and their families to get healthy, stay well, keep safe and be as independent as possible

• A life course approach which encourages multi-agency working across for children, families and adults

• Addressing the wider social and economic determinants of health for all of the population reducing inequalities in outcomes

• Joined up and personalised care that meets the physical, mental, social and related needs of residents and their families

• High quality GP practices, pharmacies & community services offering people more support closer to home

• Thriving local hospitals for people when they need them

66

P
age 66



4

About City & Hackney Neighbourhoods

City & Hackney Neighbourhoods

- 8 Neighbourhoods across City & 

Hackney

- Based on populations of between 

30,000 – 50,000

- Small enough to provide personal care, 

but big enough to make sure residents 

can use the range of services they need

- Each Neighbourhood recognised as 

unique and individual with variety of 

assets (people, organisations and 

buildings and physical places)

67

P
age 67



5

Who will be in the Core Integrated Neighbourhood Team

Core Neighbourhood team

• The Core Neighbourhood Team will be consistent across all Neighbourhoods
• They are a multi-disciplinary, multi-agency team working closely together whilst maintaining links to employer / profession. Potentially matrix line  

management model.
• The Core Team may include VCSOs if they are delivering a service e.g. social prescribing / community navigation.
• Anticipated that voluntary sector would play an important role in multi-agency working including MDT involvement in Neighbourhoods;
• Not all staff in these services will be in the core team e.g. some aspects of these services will still remain City and Hackney wide
• The team will be co-located in the Neighbourhood. This will predominantly to support Multi-Disciplinary Meetings and co-working space. It is not 

expected (at least initially) that there would be a need for clinical space.
• The team will adopt a strengths / asset based approach focusing on prevention and recognising the importance of the social determinants of health
• There will be a strong commitment to safeguarding throughout the team.

Darker shading – in Neighbourhood Health and Care Services Alliance

Lighter shading – being explored for links / incorporation within Alliance 

*Denotes work underway to develop Neighbourhood service model

1. Primary Care Network

Core 

Neighbourhood 

Team

Consistent team across 

all Neighbourhoods within 

single leadership 

structure

2. Primary Care Mental Health 

Liaison*

3. Adult Community Therapy*

5. Community Navigator / Social 

Prescribing / MH Community 

Connector / Other Care Navigators*

6. Dementia Services

4. Adult Community Nursing*

7. Adult Social Care* 

Nb. Services in the Core Neighbourhood team may also have aspects which are

delivered City & Hackney wide & retain professional links

8. Voluntary Sector Organisations*

Children’s & Families – Work underway to define how services for children and families will connect into 

Neighbourhoods. Proposal to ICB underway and planned in due course.

68

P
age 68



6

Who will be in the Extended Neighbourhood Team
Darker shading denotes currently in Neighbourhood Health and Care Services Alliance

* Denotes work underway to develop Neighbourhood service model

Supported by the 

following who work  in 

the Neighbourhood

But not part of single team

1. Voluntary Sector Organisations* 2. Community Pharmacy*

3. Home Care & Residential Care 

Providers
4. Housing Associations

Extended 

Neighbourhood 

Team 

Different resource 

depending on 

Neighbourhood priorities 

not part of leadership 

structure

1. Housing Services (LBH)

2. Substance Misuse Team and other 

public health services

4. Benefits / housing need advisors 

6. CAMHS and school nursing

7. Community Mental Health Team*

8. Children’s centres & schools 

(education)
3. Children’s social care

9. Health visitor

5. Community midwifery 10. Community Policing

Extended Neighbourhood team

• The extended team would link with the Core Neighbourhood Team but not part of the single leadership / management structure. 
• The make-up of the extended Neighbourhood team (e.g. resource) would depend on the priorities from within each Neighbourhood i.e. if there 

is a greater need for substance misuse support in some Neighbourhoods then the size of resource would be greater. 
• The extended Neighbourhood team would likely have a link worker for the relevant Neighbourhood.
• Both the core Neighbourhood team and extended Neighbourhood team would work closely with other organisations (such as VCSOs).

Children’s & Families – Work underway to define 

how services for children and families will connect 

into Neighbourhoods. Proposal to ICB underway 

and planned in due course.

69

P
age 69



7

Services that will work closely with a Neighbourhood 

but not necessarily be Neighbourhood based (In-reach)

In-reach Services

• Services that are often provided at a City and Hackney wide level. This includes VCSOs who provide support beyond Neighbourhoods (often larger).
• They may often be specialist services which don’t have resources which make it practical to deliver services within each Neighbourhood e.g. Integrated 

Learning Disability Services
• They will not therefore have staff physically located within a Neighbourhood or in the Neighbourhood team 
• However, they will assist Neighbourhood teams to be able to provide effective care and support to individuals  e.g. where a Neighbourhood team may be 

in touch with someone with learning disabilities they will receive support from in-reach services
• They will also provide support to individuals where this is required

Darker shading denotes currently in Neighbourhood Health and Care Services Alliance

6. Voluntary and Community Sector 

organisations (City & Hackney wide)

In-reach services 

which are City & 

Hackney wide

Services that are borough 

wide and not organised 

around Neighbourhoods 

but will provide in-reach 

support to 

Neighbourhoods

2. Specialist Paediatric services e.g. 

asthma, dermatology 

3.Specialist services - MSK, 

respiratory, diabetes

7. Specialist community nursing 

services 

8. Public health areas – weight 

management, sexual health

4. Children’s community nursing

9. Fire and Rescue services

5. Specialist services – gynaecology, 

dermatology and chronic pain

10. Youth services and early help

11. Integrated Learning Disability 

services

1. Specialist Psychiatry services

70

P
age 70



8

Services that will not be Neighbourhood based but will 

have strong links to them (Specialist)

Specialist Services

• Specialist services are those which are either delivered on a City and Hackney wide basis (or beyond City and Hackney). They are particularly specialist in 
nature providing support for specific groups of people / at specific points of need.

• They will not have staff physically located within a Neighbourhood
• These teams will continue to be physically based within organisations but recognise the need to work across the system as a whole

Darker shading denotes currently in Neighbourhood Health and Care Services Alliance

Specialist Services

Not provided in the 

Neighbourhood but links 

to them

1. A&E, GP OOH, ambulatory care 

3. Acute inpatient services 

2. Consultant led maternity

4. Hospice services 

5. Inpatient substance misuse services 

6. Mental health inpatient services 

4. Discharge, reablement and 

community rapid response services

71

P
age 71



9

Neighbourhoods will take a population health management approach 

1. Understanding the needs of Neighbourhoods as a 

whole (people and place)

Neighbourhood teams supported by evidence based 

information to understand the current and future needs & 

priorities within individual Neighbourhoods

2. Understanding the needs of specific groups or cohorts 

of the Neighbourhood

It will be important to identify specific groups of the population 

where support  will have the greatest impact, informing service 

delivery. This includes whole population prevention.

3. Identification of individuals and families that would 

benefit from multi-disciplinary support

Information (data alongside professional and other local 

knowledge) used to identify specific individuals for discussion 

at Neighbourhood MDTs (anticipatory care)

4. Personalised and coordinated care and support which 

puts the person at the centre

Coordinated response from Neighbourhood MDT team. 

Trusted assessment & integrated care processes supporting.

This approach supports people during their life course and 

according to level of complexity and need

What is important to make this approach work:

- Engagement of residents within the Neighbourhood to help 

determine priorities for the Neighbourhood.

- Staff empowered to work together with people using  a 

strengths based approach – recognising the importance of 

loneliness and social isolation. A comprehensive community 

navigation offer to support prevention and early intervention.

- Strong analytical skills and expertise in population health 

management underpinned by linked data / dashboards which 

help to understand the needs of local populations and places. 

This includes understanding the role of the wider determinants 

of health, outcomes for individuals and families and how 

Neighbourhoods will change over time e.g. housing and public 

realm developments.

- Enhanced and aligned MDT working across City and Hackney 

that is better supported, has a clearer structure and purpose, 

is effective at identifying the right people and determining the 

right interventions for individuals.

- Embedding a pathway approach which identifies what is 

important for the patient, what their needs are and how 

support can be better accessed (with trusted assessment)

- Residents who are involved from the outset – they are 

involved in making decisions about their own care and support 

so that care is personalised and coordinated.

72

P
age 72



10

How people will be supported: By the life course

1. Birth, neonatal period 

and infancy (0-5)*

2. Early and later 

childhood and 

adolescence (5-19/25)*

3. Youth and adulthood

4. Older adulthood

Measures of success: 

● Lower infant mortality rate & 

neonatal mortality and stillbirths

● More childhood immunisation 

coverage

● Fewer maternal smoking at 

pregnancy

Measures of success:

● Fewer amount of children who are 

overweight or obese

● Better physical health and 

improved accessibility of services

● Improved mental health and 

wellbeing amongst young people

Measures of success:

● Fewer preventable causes of ill 

health – smoking, obesity, alcohol

● Improved health related quality of 

life for people with LTCs

● More people in work and with 

stable housing positions

Measures of success:

● Lower premature/preventable 

mortality rate

● Inequalities in health life 

expectancy are reduced

● Fewer injuries from falls in               

people in older people

• Growing evidence that intervening in the 

first 1,000 days can have a significant 

impact on outcomes across the lifetime.

• Preparing children to be ready to learn,  

ready for school and to have good life 

chances.

• Children and young people who are 

exposed to adverse childhood experiences 

have an increased risk to poor health 

outcomes.

• This is a period of time where habits 

developed can be taken into adulthood.

• ½ of mental health problems take root in 

childhood life.

• Adulthood is important for reducing risks 

and intervening early. Important to build 

resilience for later life.

• Important to reduce stress at work and 

reduce unemployment. 

• Primary trigger points include starting work, 

becoming a parent or becoming a carer.

• Older people more likely to experience 

chronic diseases and disabilities.

• Housing and the built environment is 

important and supporting people to use 

them regularly e.g. reduce falls.

• Aim to maintain functional ability (physical 

& mental) & environmental factors (e.g. 

housing, relationships).

• Community midwifery and health 

visitors working together with Core 

Neighbourhood teams to support families 

and pre-school children.

• Link into wider Core Neighbourhood 

team where other needs might be 

identified for the family or individual.

• Support for children and young people 

(e.g. school nurse, CAMHs) not 

necessarily on same Neighbourhood 

footprint but linked into Neighbourhood.

• Team Around the Family / Team 

Around the Child meetings provide 

opportunities for multi-disciplinary working 

and contextual safeguarding approach

• Core Neighbourhood team linking with 

extended Neighbourhood team e.g. 

housing needs, benefits advice where 

needed.

• Making Every Contact Count training for 

all Core Neighbourhood teams making an 

important contribution.

• Core Neighbourhood team working 

together (e.g. primary care, social care) 

to support people depending on 

population needs.

• Neighbourhood MDT providing support 

to help people maintain functional ability.

• Community navigation is critical.

What we know about this stage of life How Neighbourhoods would support

*Work underway to identify options for how children, young people, 

maternity & family services will connect with Neighbourhood & links 

into core / extended Neighbourhood team 

City & Hackney Outcomes Framework

73

P
age 73



11

How people will be supported: According to complexity of need

Whole Populations

Urgent care needs

Ongoing care 

needs

Highest 

needs

Living with long-term conditions in the 

community

Example: Individual living at home with multiple 

long-term conditions (e.g.heart disease, COPD & 

diabetes). Some family support but also lonely.

Identifying people at risk of an increasing 

care need 

Example: Individual living independently with 

moderate frailty needs (falls, requirement for 

care) & instable housing position

Supporting people with 

lower level needs & prevention

Example: Individual with mild levels of 

mental health problems. Weight and 

smoking concerns. Wider family 

challenges with risk of child exclusion.

We will take a population health approach to supporting people within the 

Neighbourhood and those populations that will benefit from it.

Specialist services which are not provided within a Neighbourhood have a role in a). 

assisting Neighbourhood teams in how best to support an individual and b). may also 

provide support for the individual where required.

Who might support 

from within the 

Neighbourhood i.e. 

integrated team?

Who might work 

outside the 

Neighbourhood but 

support?

People with complex comorbidities (incl. end of life)

Example: Individual towards the end of life who currently 

receives hospice care in the community and for whom an 

end of life care plan has been developed.

• GP

• Community nurse

• Community 

pharmacy

• Hospice based 

services

• VCSE 

organisations e.g. 

Carers support

• GP

• Community 

navigator

• VCSE (for carer)

• Social care

• Diabetes services

• ACERS (therapies)

• Cardiac / 

Pulmonary rehab

• VCSE(befriending)

• GP

• Social worker

• Community nurse

• VCSE organisation

• Housing services

• Benefit / debt 

advice services

• VCSE 

organisations

• GP

• Community 

navigator

• Community MH

• School 

• VCS organisation

• IAPT services

• Weight 

management & 

stop smoking

• Youth service 

• Befriending

• Intensive case 

management

• Multi-agency case 

conference

• MDT based care & 

support planning (e.g. 

anticipatory care)

• Care plan accessible 

to all

• MDT based care & 

support planning (e.g. 

anticipatory care)

• Care plan accessible 

to all

• Supported self-

management

• MECC, health 

promotion, screening, 

immunisations.

Care processes for 

populations

E
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 n

a
v
ig

a
ti
o
n

 a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
p

e
o

p
le

Core and Extended

Neighbourhood team such as…

In-reach and specialist services 

such as…

74

P
age 74



12

How we will measure Neighbourhood outcomes

1. Making sure 
all children 
and young 

people have a 
good start in life

2. Achieving a 
reduction in the 

present 
inequity in 
health and 
wellbeing

3. Increasing the 
length of a 

healthy life, so 
that local people 
have both longer 
lives and more 

years spent free 
of ill-health and 

disability

4. Tackling the 
causes of poor 

health and 
wellbeing at an 
earlier stage and 
putting in place 

measures to 
ensure better 

prevention

5. Creating 
‘services that 

work for me’, or 
services that are 
more joined up 

and person 
centred

6. Improving the 
mental health 

and wellbeing of 
the local 

population, 
including ensuring 
better access to 

mental health care

7. Helping local 
people to 

become resilient 
and empowered, 

increasing 
people’s sense of 
control, autonomy 
and self-efficacy

8. Tackling the 

wider 

determinants

of health and 

wellbeing

Neighbour-

hood 

Framework 

(Six 

Domains)

Domain 5: 

Organisational 

processes, systems 

& resource 

utilisation
Care is financially 

sustainable and we 

reduce waste

Domain 4: Patient, 

user & carer 

experience
Care is safe, effective and 

people have a good 

experience

Domain 6: 

Integrated Working

Teams work effectively 

together with improved 

communication

Domain 1: Individual 

outcomes*
People have an overall 

improved quality of life

Domain 2: Staff 

Experience
Professionals have an 

improved experience

Domain 3: 

Community 

wellbeing & pop 

health*
Reduction in inequalities 

for people

City and 

Hackney 

Outcomes 

Framework 

(Eight 

Priorities)

Measuring outcomes

The effectiveness of Neighbourhoods will be measured across six domains. 

These cover outcomes, quality of service and staff and resident experience. 

The Neighbourhood domains connects through to the eight priorities within the 

City and Hackney outcomes framework.

The Neighbourhood leadership team will play an important role in monitoring 

Neighbourhood outcomes with regular dashboard reporting and analytics to 

support effective functioning.

There will be both cross-borough outcomes alongside outcomes 

personalised to each Neighbourhood: We would expect the outcomes from 

domains 1 (individual outcomes) and domain 3 (population health) to be unique 

to each Neighbourhood. Some population outcomes will however remain City 

and Hackney wide with associated activity being cross-borough. 

Some domains and outcomes will apply to all Neighbourhoods

We would expect the outcomes from domains 2, 4, 5 and 6 to be the same for 

each Neighbourhood with a common set of outcomes and measures

75

P
age 75



13

How Neighbourhoods would work in partnership to respond to local needs 

How Neighbourhood Partnerships would work:

 Local Neighbourhood partnerships which bring together residents, voluntary and 

community and statutory organisations to help coordinate and respond to identified 

local needs.

 Underpinned by a co-produced Neighbourhood charter which outlines 

commitments from partners to work together and which informs the core values 

across staff working within Neighbourhoods.

• Resource light in terms of administration to support functioning of partnership 

within each Neighbourhood.

• Some responsibility in directing funding to priorities based on identified 

Neighbourhood need – but not all services would be commissioned or budgets 

devolved at a Neighbourhood level.

• Local Partnership leadership from residents (“school governor type model”), 

statutory / voluntary providers and/or PCN Clinical Directors.

Local direct 
response through 

improved 
collaboration 
between local 
organisations 

working within that 
Neighbourhood

Neighbourhoods identifying local population health needs 
drawing on both data and intelligence as well as local 

knowledge and expertise

Three potential responses to identified Neighbourhood need…

Devolved monies
to fund specific 

local responses to 
identified 

Neighbourhood 
need

System wide 
response where 
need is beyond 

that which can be 
tackled within a 
Neighbourhood

Partnership with representation from voluntary and community 
sector, statutory organisations and residents within each 

Neighbourhood

1 2 3

Partnership with representation from voluntary and community 
sector, statutory organisations and residents within each 

Neighbourhood

Benefits of Neighbourhood Partnerships:

● Enables local leaders to determine local Neighbourhood priorities across the whole 

system

● Allows for a population health approach based on the needs of local residents

● Moves decision making closer to local people and local needs

● Gives opportunities to bring in social and economic determinants of health

For example: 
Improved awareness 

raising of MDTs of 
specific pathways to 
increase signposting 

to services 

For example: 
Prevention 

Investment Standard 
used to fund 

voluntary sector work 
with areas of need

For example: 
Identified need to 

improve support for 
people with LD but 
needs a City and 

Hackney wide 
response

76

P
age 76



14

What needs to be in place to support those teams

Estates

Workforce & 

Organisational 

Development*

IT

and Data

Communications and 

Engagement

- A system wide mechanism to understand what we have got (by way of assets) and how to access them

- Space for Multi-Disciplinary Meetings and co-working for Integrated Teams in each Neighbourhood 

- A community hub in each Neighbourhood where people can access advice, support and navigation support and 

services

- Work underway to establish the need for community, clinical bases at a borough and neighbourhood level

- Significant cultural change to facilitate cross-organisational working within a Neighbourhood

- A workforce approach where training and skills requirements are considered across the whole integrated team 

rather than from individual service areas

- An asset based / strengths based approach should be adopted by all individuals within the Neighbourhood with 

single high quality training programme alongside a commitment to taking a population health based approach

- Technology should enable teams within the integrated care team to work as one team 

- There will be interoperability between the systems that staff use i.e. shared record and shared care plan for 

individuals they are supporting. It should be clear which staff are supporting which individuals.

- There is a client level (anonymised) linked system wide dataset accessible for Neighbourhood analysis

- There is a directory of services which includes statutory and VCS services

- A communications and engagement plan which helps staff and residents understand Neighbourhoods and what 

it means for them. 

- This will include a Neighbourhood platform for each of the 8 Neighbourhoods to support resident engagement

- Rather than communication by organisation, there are communications by / for people working within each 

Neighbourhood. This helps to create a Neighbourhood team (rather than organisational) identity.

Enabler What needs to be in place for Neighbourhood teams

*Learning from elsewhere suggests this should be a significant area of focus.

Significant work will be needed with the enablers to ensure there is a focus on meeting Neighbourhood requirements including what is outlined here.

All underpinned by tools that support change and transformation e.g. Quality Improvement (QI), ethnographic approaches 77

P
age 77



15

The system structures needed to support this change within City & Hackney

Neighbourhoods Health and Care Services Alliance 

- City & Hackney existing 

system structure to 

support transformation –

currently under review

- The way we’ve already 

organised the system is 

enabling this change to 

take place

- Workstreams are setup to 

support this change

- Key transformation areas 

which will facilitate change 

across the system

- Enabler workstreams will 

help the move towards 

Neighbourhood based 

working

- Opportunity to bring 

others into the alliance at 

a later date. Work being 

undertaken by community 

and voluntary sector is 

exploring new models

City & Hackney 

System

Neighbourhoods

Shoreditch 

Park and 

the City

Clissold 

Park

Hackney 

Downs

Well 

Street 

Common

Woodberry 

Wetlands

Hackney 

Marshes

London 

Fields
Springfiel

d Park

PCN PCN PCN PCN PCN PCN PCN PCN

Social care
Community and voluntary 

sector

CAMHS and 

mental health 

alliances

Outpatients 

Transformation 

Programme

Mental health 

transformation 

programmes

Neighbourhood 

pilots

Social 

prescribing /

care 

navigation

Prevention 

Investment 

Standard

Planned 

Care

Unplanned 

Care

Children, Young 

People, Maternity 

and Families

Mental HealthPrevention

Programmes of work 

driven by care 

workstreams…

Partners who will 

join the alliance…

Will need to deliver 

health and care 

services through 

neighbourhoods….

Care workstreams

and Mental Health…

Commissioned public 

health services

Partners who 

will  join 

Alliance…..

Primary Care Workforce Estates
Communications & 

Engagement
ITEnabler Groups…

78

P
age 78



16

Where we are now and phasing of delivery

Phase 2 - Put the 

foundations in 

place across City & 

Hackney

Phase 3 – 1st

transformation in 

priority areas 

(Alliance)

Phase 4 – Further 

transformation & 

extend core 

Neighb’hood team

Phase 5 -

Integrate extended 

team in line with 

priorities

Phase 1 - Develop 

Neighbourhood 

models - test & 

learn

- Complete service 

re-design through 

Neighbourhoods 

Programme so we 

understand for each 

service what new 

model will look like

- Understand cost 

implications and 

future funding 

arrangements both 

for implementation 

and ongoing 

delivery of new 

service

- Commence 

contractual 

arrangements 

through Alliance 

model to encourage 

collaboration

- Develop estates so 

that there is 

physical space in 

Neighbourhoods for 

staff co-location

- Ensure technology 

& data 

requirements are in 

place to support 

integrated working / 

population health

- Bring together 

Neighbourhood 

leadership team 

and engage with 

residents over 

priorities

- Develop skills and 

workforce approach 

for integrated teams

- Transformation (via 

alliance) in adult 

community nursing, 

therapies, 

dementia, serious 

mental illness & 

disorder

- Start to bring 

together core 

Neighbourhood 

team in structures 

and develop 

Neighbourhood 

identities

- Enhanced MDTs 

for priority groups 

(anticipatory care & 

case conferences)

- Develop community 

navigation

- Extended 

transformation into 

other areas

- Complete co-

location of 

Neighbourhood 

core team

- Build on MDT 

working to enhance 

integrated 

processes and 

improvements to 

joined up care

- Neighbourhood 

monitoring 

outcomes for each 

Neighbourhood

- Enhanced MECC 

approaches

- Begin to co-locate 

/ link in extended 

Neighbourhood 

team depending 

on priorities for 

each 

Neighbourhood

- This involves 

teams beyond 

just health and 

social care

- Neighbourhood 

leadership team 

identifying and 

commissioning 

(where possible) 

local interventions 

for 

Neighbourhood 

groups

Phase 0 – Develop 

vision, gain 

commitment and 

secure funding

- Develop the vision 

for Neighbourhoods 

across City & 

Hackney and gain 

buy-in from partners

- Early engagement 

with residents about 

Neighbourhood 

approach and 

wellbeing priorities

- Secure funding to 

support service 

transformation in 

line with vision

- Develop approach 

to Neighbourhood 

Health and Care 

Services

Yr 1 
(18/

19)

Yr 2

(19/

20)

Yr 3

(20/

21)

Yrs

4-6

Yrs

7-10

Where we have been Where we are now Where we are going

79

P
age 79



17

Appendix

Case Study – How this would work

80

P
age 80



18

Who lives there?

- Similar age profile to the rest of City & Hackney but slightly 

lower proportion of younger adults 

- High percentage of people born outside of the UK & high 

proportion of people with different ethnicities

- Relatively high of people providing unpaid care (8%)

- Deprivation levels are some of the highest across City & 

Hackney (and London)

- High levels of renting – both private and socially rented

What do we know about local outcomes?

- Relatively high levels of young people not in education, 

employment or training comparted to the rest of City & 

Hackney

- High levels of A&E utilisation amongst both adults and 

children – in part linked by proximity to Homerton Hospital

- Adult obesity – Higher than average rate of being obese or 

overweight amongst amongst adults

- Levels of diabetes and hypertension (high blood pressure) 

are above both the national and City and Hackney average

- Levels of people who are housebound are the highest 

across City and Hackney and there is high long-term use of 

adults and children’s social care within the Neighbourhood 

What might this mean for Neighbourhood based working?

The following may therefore be included in the Neighbourhood team:

• Neighbourhood Core Team: Primary Care, Mental Health, Social Care, 

Community Navigation / Social Prescribing, Therapies, Community Nursing

• Working with Neighbourhood based partners: VCS orgs. & community pharm.

• Extended Neighbourhood Team: Input from Health visiting and school nursing as 

well as Housing Advisors

• Specialist Teams: Input from Diabetes services & public health services (e.g. 

weight management).

Population health approach (and MDTs) could therefore focus on people and 

families with more complex needs

Work across partnership to help address long-standing health outcomes – Kings 

Park Moving Together, MECC and Wellbeing Practitioners.

Hackney Marshes Neighbourhood

81

P
age 81



Neighbourhoods Delivery Plan
2020/21 – 2030/31
Version 2.9 27.02.2020

82

P
age 82



2

1. Purpose of this document                                                                                                  DRAFT

2

• Our vision for Neighbourhoods is described in the 
Operating Model developed and agreed in 2019 / 2020.

• The Operating Model describes the purpose of 
Neighbourhoods – supporting people and their families to 
live the healthiest lives possible and receive the right care 
where and when they need it.

• This document outlines our plan for how we want to 
deliver the vision. It will evolve over time but places 
emphasis on the culture change needed across teams to 
achieve integrated Neighbourhood working.

• The document outlines the plan with a more detailed near 
term plan of foundational activity in the next 12-18 
months. 

• We will approach this in an agile way – with learning taken 
along the way and our approach amended in light of this

Section Page

1. Purpose of this document 2

2. A reminder of where we are going –

Neighbourhoods Operating Model

3

3. What we need to do to get there –

headlines

4-6

4. The next 12-18 months – what we 

need to do and what will be different

6-12

5. 18 months and beyond – what we 

need to do and what will be different

13-18

6. Appendix 19-20

83

P
age 83



3

2. Neighbourhoods Operating Model – A Reminder                                                                                DRAFT

• We set out our vision for Neighbourhoods in the 
Neighbourhoods Operating Model that was 
shared in November 2019 and discussed at 
Accountable Officers Group. The Operating Model 
will go to ICB in February 2020.

• The Operating Model sets out our vision for 
Neighbourhoods and how we envisage 
Neighbourhood working will work in practice
including which teams we expect to work together 
within a Neighbourhood and how those teams 
would work.

• This Programme Plan sets out the intended steps 
to get there including what we imagine 
Neighbourhoods will feel and look like in years 3 
(2020/21), 5, 7 and 10.

84

P
age 84



4

3. What we need to get there – the building blocks DRAFT

Leadership and 

partnerships in 

Neighbourhoods*

Population health 

management in 

Neighbourhoods*

Integrated care 

within 

Neighbourhoods*

b. Putting in 

place the core 

foundations

c. Enabled 

with the right 

support

Technology Estates

OD & 

Improvement Comms & 

Engagement 

(staff and 

resident)
Workforce

a. Delivering 

new models 

of care

Partnerships with 

people and 

communities*

Our Neighbourhoods delivery plan is 
based on three areas:

1. Delivering new models of care 
through integrated teams working 
within each Neighbourhood

2. Putting in place the core foundations 
in place to help deliver these new 
care models such as effective 
Neighbourhood partnerships and 
engagement with people and 
communities

3. A strong commitment to 
Neighbourhoods from enabling 
functions that help to support these 
new models of care and integrated 
teams.

*We have purposefully aligned elements of the Neighbourhoods programme 
plan to the relevant sections of the PCN Maturity Matrix.

85

P
age 85



5

3. What we need to do to get there – the headlines                                                                              DRAFT

Programme 

Areas

Year 3 (2020/21) Year 5 (2022/23) Year 7 (2024/25) Year 10 (2029/30)

1. Delivering New 

Models of Care

• Implement new service 

models for out of hospital 

care

• Foster relationships and 

trust between core 

Neighbourhood team

• Roll out Neighbourhood 

anticipatory care model for 

people with complex needs

• Implement PINS for 

prevention (incl. vol. sector)

• Embed new models of care 

within Neighbourhood core 

teams

• Implement regular team 

huddles to discuss common 

patients

• Strengthen MDT 

approaches for children & 

families

• Co-locate core 

Neighbourhood team & 

implement matrix 

management

• Foster collaboration 

between teams working with 

children/families & adults

• Commence engagement of 

extended team into 

Neighbourhoods

• Fully functional teams in 

place within the 

Neighbourhood (core 

and extended team)

• Staff co-located in the 

Neighbourhood –

services being delivered 

closer to residents

2. Putting in 

place the core 

foundations

• Identify Neighbourhood 

population health priorities

• Begin to develop 

partnerships & leadership 

across Neighbourhoods

• Improve our understanding 

of local community assets

• Develop population health 

tools and data linkage, 

enhance analytical support

• Support Neighbourhoods to 

identify priorities and 

evidence-based

interventions

• Enhance population health 

tools & datasets

• Strong Neighbourhood 

partnerships & funding 

responses to pop. needs

• Comprehensive knowledge  

of community assets

• Pop. health embedded –

regularly identification of 

priorities & tracking 

outcomes

• Flourishing local assets 

demonstrate thriving 

Neighbourhoods

3. Enabled with 

the right support

• OD and improvement plans

to support integrated teams 

& leadership

• Utilise estates space and 

technology for MDTs as well 

as & outpatient pathways

• OD and workforce plans to 

exploring matrix 

management

• Develop plans for co-

location of Neighbourhood 

teams

• Enhance population health 

tools – dashboard 

development for 

Neighbourhoods

• Estates supporting co-

location of teams

• Tech bringing data from 

multiple systems to build 

a single view of the client

• Community facilities 

acting as a hub within 

Neighbourhoods
86

P
age 86



6

4. Neighbourhoods: 

The next 12 – 18 months…

87

P
age 87



7

4. Priorities for the next 12-18 months… DRAFT

1. Establish new models of care in services that make up the 
core Neighbourhood team including - adult community 
nursing, adult social care, adult community therapies, mental 
health and supporting development of PCNs.

2. Begin to bring together individuals and teams in each 
Neighbourhood to begin to form the core integrated 
Neighbourhood team

3. Through anticipatory care establish new models of care
which support people with complex needs through MDTs in 
Neighbourhoods

4. Pilot Neighbourhood activity for children, young people 
and families to give further clarity on how this will work

5. Support each Neighbourhood in identifying key priorities
through an approach to population health management –
supported by a strong QI methodology and & Prevention 
Investment Standard

6. Begin to establish partnerships in each Neighbourhood
between residents, voluntary organisations and statutory 
organisations

See next slides for key milestones….

88

P
age 88



8

Core Programmes of Work for 2020/21

a. Delivering 

new models 

of care

3. Adult 

Community 

Nursing

Implementing new 

service model for 

Adult Community 

Nursing

4. Adult 

Community 

Therapies

Finalising, engaging 

and implementing 

service model for 

Therapies

5. Adult Social 

Care

Implementing new 

service model for 

adult social care & 

new social care 

practice

6. Mental Health

Transformation for 

population groups 

including SMI/PD and 

other groups such as 

substance misuse, 

common disorders

7. Community 

Pharmacy

Embed community 

pharmacy 

Neighbourhood leads 

& progress 

Neighbourh’d projects

8. Community 

Navigation

Align community 

navigation services 

through single City & 

Hackney Framework

9. Primary Care

Strengthen link 

between PCNs and 

Neighbourhoods & 

progress 

Neighbourhood 

primary care projects

10. City of 

London

Understand CoL

resident needs and 

integrate CoL services 

(ASC) into 

Neighbourhood MDTs

b. Putting in 

place the core 

foundations

13. Partnerships 

in 

Neighbourhoods

Expand support to 

voluntary sector to 2 

additional 

Neighbourhoods

15. Population 

health in 

Neighbourhoods

Work with 

Neighbourhoods to 

identify population 

health priorities 

14. Partnerships 

with people and 

communities

Enhance resident 

engagement within 

Neighbourhoods

c. Enabled 

with the right 

support

Technology

Estates

OD & 

Improvement

*

Workforce

1. Forming 

Neighbourhood 

Teams*

Bringing together 

teams from core team 

in Neighbourhoods

2. Anticipatory 

Care

Implementing MDT 

approach for people 

with complex needs in 

Neighbourhoods

11. Planned Care

Take forward 

opportunities in 

Neighbourhoods to 

support people with 

LTCs

12. Children, 

Young People & 

Families

Take forward projects 

in Neighbourhoods to 

support children & 

families

Comms & 

Engagement

Boxes with *: Anticipated that OD related work would be funded via Transformation Fund

Boxes in bold: Transformation anticipated to be funded by Better Care Fund. Nb: Anticipatory Care and Community Navigation CEPN funded for 2020.

89

P
age 89



4. (a) Delivering New Models of Care – The next 12-18 months

Programmes Lead March 2020 June 2020 September 2020 December 2020 March 2021 June 2021 September 2021 December 2021

A
ll

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

1. Forming 

the core 

Neighbr’

hood team

TBC

(see 

OD 

plan)

2. 

Anticipatory

Care MDT 

approaches

Central 

team

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s

e
rv

ic
e
s

 (
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l)

3. Adult

Community 

Nursing

HUH

4. Adult 

Community 

Therapies

HUH

5. Adult 

Social Care
LBH

6. Mental 

Health
ELFT

7. Community

Pharmacy
LPC

8. Community 

Navigation

Central

team & 

LBH

9. Primary 

Care

GP 

Confed

10. City of 

London
CoL

11. Planned 

Care
CCG

12. Children,

young people 

& families

CYPF

See appendix for 
detailed rollout 
plan by 
Neighbourhood

c. Phased rollout of anticipatory care (supporting patients with complex needs) in each 

Neighbourhood – aligned to bringing together of Neighbourhood team

b. Phased rollout of integrated teams in each Neighbourhood

c. Anticipatory Care Pilot in 

Clissold Park

Facilitated activity for staff who 
will be within each 
Neighbourhood (where staff are in 
post)

National PCN DES 
specification for 
anticipatory care 
expected

Continued team 
development – see OD 
plan

Neigh’d 1&2 Neigh’d 3&4 Neigh’d 5&6 Neigh’d 7&8

Complete approvals and funding
Restructure 

service & 

mobilise

Embed new model into 
Adult Nursing

Rollout Neigh’d 

1&2
Rollout to Neigh’d 5&6

Rollout to 

Neigh’d 7&8

Neigh’d 
1&2

Neigh’d 
3&4

Neigh’d 
5&6

Neigh’d 
7&8

Shifting from dispensing to health 
promotion

8 Neighbourhood Community 
Pharmacy roles already in post

Leads involvement in projects: Flu, Pharmacy Consultation, Anticipatory Care, Community Navigation 

PD / SMI: Pilot Hackney Marshes followed 

by Clissold Park
Expanding Primary Care MH service with 
vol. sector

Complete proposal for new service model
Implement new model / improved 

pathways in Therapies

Embed Wellbeing Practitioner arrangements & explore sustainable funding

Health profiling for residents 

registered at Neaman Practice & 

engagement plan

CoL staff (social care) part of core 
Neighbourhood team

Health profiling for CoL residents not 

at Neaman & engagement with 

residents on priorities

Develop outcomes framework for nav.

Improve awareness of comm. nav. Training for comm. nav. providers

Implement new model for comm. nav.
Op. Model for 
Comm. Nav. Improved coordination of com. nav. & 

identified gaps in service

Staff consultation

Implement wound 
hub & nurse triage 
team (Aug)

ACN move from 4 clusters 
to 8 Neighb’hoods (Q4)

PD / SMI: To other Neighbourhoods (blended team – GP / MH / 

voluntary sector MH community connectors)
Dementia Neigh’d 
live (Oct 19)

Phase 2 
Dementia Model

MH 
Transformation 
programme

Rollout to Neigh’d 3&4
Strengths-based practice & 
align to Neighbourhoods

Additional Neighb’d cohorts – older adults, substance misuse, CAMHS

To be 
developed

Staff consultation

New service model / 
improved pathways 
implemented

Embed new model into 
Community Therapies

Collation of 

outcomes & report

To be developed

90

P
age 90



4. (b) Putting in place core foundations – The next 12-18 months

Programmes Lead March 2020 June 2020 September 2020 December 2020 March 2021 June 2021 September 2021 December 2021

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s

e
rv

ic
e
s

 (
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l)

13. 

Leadership

and 

partnerships 

in 

Neighb’hoods

HCVS

14. 

Partnerships 

with people 

and 

communities

Health

watch

15. 

Population 

health 

management 

in 

Neighb’hoods

??

Complete pilot partnership 

work in Well Street 

Common (HCVS) Phased rollout of partnership arrangements within Neighbourhoods

Developing options for resident 

engagement

Piloting new approaches for resident engagement in one 

Neighbourhood

Agree model for 

Neighbourhood 

partnerships

Rolling out engagement approaches across other 

Neighbourhoods
See also comms and engagement 
enabler

Support early identification of Neighbourhood 

priorities
b). Community response through Prevention Investment Standard

Further development of population health approach for City and Hackney including development of 

linked dataset

May 
Neighbourhood 
workshops

a). Early improvements for cohorts within each Neighbourhood
Priorities used to 

inform…

Neighbourhood / PCN dashboard & profile development 

(Co-Plug)

Risk stratification activity to support anticipatory care 

91

P
age 91



4. (c) Enabled with the right support – The next 12-18 months 

Enablers Lead March 2020 June 2020 September 2020 December 2020 March 2021 June 2021 September 2021 December 2021

A
ll

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

Technology
Tech

work-

stream

Estates
Estate 

work-

stream

OD & 

Improvement
Provider

Alliance

Workforce
Work-

force 

Communi-

cations and 

Engagement

Comms

Work-

stream

Proposed workshops for enablers to further 
develop plans & requirements for 
Neighbourhood working

Phased rollout: Finding Local Support 

Services by Neighbourhood

Video & audio conferencing for MDTs, Rio templates for anticipatory care MDT & collaboration tools for 

integrated Neighbourhood teams

1. Comm. nav. & 

asset approaches 

2. MDTs & tech for 

Neighb’hood team

3. Shared information 

for care planning

4. Pop. health incl. 

risk stratification

Develop  Coordinate My Care (MDT), ELPR & EMIS Community Hub for Neighbourhood Core Team

See pop health programme – initial development of Co-Plug tool and 

increasing use of linked datasets

1. Comms approach with 

staff

2. Resident comms & 

engagement

Support Neighbourhood 

May sessions

Develop comms approach for staff forming part of core Neighbourhood teams i.e. consistent messages across system

Develop framework and approach to resident comms i.e. what will happen and when

Identify and mapping 

existing provision

Identify and make use of MDT meeting space for anticpiatory care MDTs in each 

Neighbourhood (aligned to rollout of teams)
1. MDT meeting space

2. Administrative space for 

Neighbourhood teams

3. Administrative space for 

Neighbourhood teams

Explore options of touch-down space for teams within Neighbourhoods

1. Bring people together to 

build trust & relationships

2. Provide tools / structure 

for collaborative learning

3. Establish leadership 

culture across teams

Staff engagement events in neighbourhoods / partner organisations & wider community engagement in Neighbourhoods

Neighbourhood administrative support, confirm early start-up requirements, provide coaching & continuous OD improvement

Emerging leaders development programme & senior leadership programme for Neighbourhoods teamsSee OD & Improvement 
proposed packages 
(Provider Alliance)

Well St DoS live 
including website

Elemental live 
in GP Practices

Elemental available for other 
Comm. Nav.

Social care data in 
ELPR

Longer-term development of Discovery as a platform for information 

sharing across City and Hackney

92

P
age 92



12

4. What will be different in 12-18 months…

The Neighbourhood team will feel…

• That they are part of a Neighbourhood team which is working together to 

support patients

• That they know other people working within their Neighbourhood team

– and have informal arrangements to support patients in collaborative ways

• That they understand the Neighbourhood and local populations – what 

population health priorities are for the Neighbourhood

• There are improved ways of being able to link patients into out of 

hospital services – pathways are clearer 

The Neighbourhood team will share…

• Some patients that are commonly held by the team and a 

Neighbourhood MDT approach which involves all of the core team (through 

anticipatory care) – for patients with complex needs

• Protected time together to develop trust and collaborative working 

arrangements between teams

• A set of agreed culture and behaviours for those working within the 

Neighbourhood team

Residents and patients will see…

• More proactive support for patients with complex needs – through 

anticipatory care and associated roles (e.g. Wellbeing Practitioners)

• More discussions that understand what is important to patients with 

some connectivity to local community and voluntary sector organisations

• Areas where care is less fragmented e.g. in mental health, for people with 

complex needs

• Opportunities to help shape Neighbourhood priorities

The Neighbourhood team will be supported by…

• System wide administrative support – assisting Neighbourhood MDTs 

and also support relevant Neighbourhood activity

• Project resource within each Neighbourhood (with skills in QI related 

methodologies) to support response to Neighbourhood priorities

• OD and improvement support which will support staff in establishing trust 

and support functioning leadership within Neighbourhoods

• Emerging partnerships within each Neighbourhood

93

P
age 93



13

4. What we need to make this happen…..

1. Agreement to the overall delivery plan and commitment to take this forward from all system partners 
including Provider Alliance as well as enablers – following feedback from partners

2. Clarity on who will be leading programmes of work – existing gaps identified in ‘forming the 
Neighbourhood team’, ‘population health’ and ‘OD & improvement’

3. Partner resource that supports system-wide activity (as well as activity within their own organisations) 
e.g. practicalities of forming the Neighbourhood team and anticipatory care

4. Confirmed governance and accountability for the programme for 20/21 – across Provider Alliance and 
wider stakeholders

5. Confirmation of the rollout plan for Neighbourhoods – see appendix and how this aligns with voluntary 
sector partnerships work

6. Resolution on areas where there are existing gaps e.g. what will partnerships look like and who is being 
invited to Neighbourhood core team development sessions

94

P
age 94



14

5. Neighbourhoods: 

Beyond 18 months…

95

P
age 95



15

5. Our priorities 18 months and beyond…

1. Embed core Neighbourhood team working – so 
there are common processes for the team, matrix 
arrangements and staff are co-located in the 
Neighbourhood  

2. Strengthen population health arrangements so that 
there is a richer understanding of resident / family 
need beyond a pure medical need

3. Integrate the extended team into the 
Neighbourhood – improving pathways for patients 
where needs are beyond those that can be supported 
by the core Neighbourhood team

4. Strengthen pathways / care models with specialist 
services – services that aren’t configured to 
Neighbourhoods but support Neighbourhood teams

5. Enhance an assets / strengths based approach 
across all teams – forms part of training for all 
organisations in City and Hackney

See next slides for key milestones….
96

P
age 96



Project Lead Year 3 (2020/21) Year 5 Year 7 Year 10
Where we want

to get to

P
u

tt
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 f
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

Establishing

core 

integrated 

team & 

associated 

care models

TBC

Fully functioning core 

Neighbourhood 

teams with 

strengthened 

pathways for 

residents / patients

Establishing

extended 

Neighb’hood 

team & 

associated 

care models

TBC

Seamless working 

between core 

Neighbourhood team 

and extended 

Neighbourhood team 

– common processes 

and clearer pathways 

for patients / 

residents

Strength

pathways 

with 

services 

outside of 

core 

Neighb’hood 

team

TBC

Strong relationship 

with services that are

not based within a 

Neighbourhood but 

provide support to the 

Neighbourhood

5. (a) Putting in place the core foundations – Beyond 18 months

Develop new models of care associated with extended

Neighbourhood team e.g. home care, housing

Explore and embed co-location and matrix management of core

Neighbourhood team across Neighbourhoods

Embed core Neighbourhood 

team working within each 

Neighbourhood & learning 

between teams

Each Neighbourhood determining its own priority cohorts 

and identifying opportunities for new care models

Strengthen MDT working at Neighbourhood 

level incl. personalised care

Implement new service models 

in key areas & bring together 

Neighbourhood core team

Explore and embed co-location and matrix management of core

Neighbourhood team across Neighbourhoods

Embed core Neighbourhood 

team working within each 

Neighbourhood & learning 

between teams
Rollout anticipatory care for 

people with complex needs
Each Neighbourhood determining its own priority cohorts 

and identifying opportunities for new care models

Strengthen MDT working at Neighbourhood 

level incl. personalised care

Establishing & Embedded Integrated (Core) Neighbourhood Teams 

Establishing & Embedded Integrated (Extended) Neighbourhood Teams 

Establishing & Embedded working with specialist 

services (outside of the Neighbourhood)

Develop new models of care 

associated with specialist services 

e.g. those not within the 

Neighbourhood but who provide 

support to the Neighbourhood

Strengthen Neighbourhood working across children, 

young people, family and maternity

Embed new models of care and 

population health approaches where 

extended team play an active role in 

supporting patients in a coordinated 

way

Embed new 

models of care 

with specialist 

services across 

City and Hackney

Process of 

continuous learning 

and improvement

Process of 

continuous learning 

and improvement

Pilot Neighbourhood working 

with children, yp & families

97

P
age 97



Project Lead Year 3 Year 5 Year 7 Year 10
Where we want

to get to

P
u

tt
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 f
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

Leadership 

and 

partnerships 

in Neighb’

hoods

HCVS

Fully functioning 

leadership / 

partnerships who

take responsibility for 

improving outcomes.

Population 

health 

management 

in Neighb’

hoods

??

Accessible data to 

Neighbourhoods and 

skilled system 

analytical resource to 

help understand 

wider determinants of 

health and care.

Partnerships 

with people 

and 

communities

Health-

watch

Strong community 

engagement with 

residents and local 

communities. 

Flourishing local 

assets in 

communities.

Develop population health capabilities 

and skills

Develop pop health tools including vol. sector data

Enhance local analytical expertise

Enhancing the understanding of 

wider determinants of health

Increasing use of linked datasets beyond 
health & care i.e. wider determinants

Develop  Population Health 
Framework, link core data and 
identify early Neighbourhood 

priorities

Develop approach & 

identify priority 

cohorts

Establish effective Neighbourhood partnerships (leadership)

Finalising model for 

Neighbourhood partnerships and 

governance and establishment

Embedding Neighbourhood 

partnerships across all areas and 

increased financial decision 

making powers

Enhancement of Neighbourhood partnerships – learning from across each 

Neighbourhood with a wide range of representatives including from 

residents and local communities

Enhance an understanding of local community assets and adopting a 

strengths based approach across teams

Improving local 

understanding of community 

assets

Developing approaches to 

resident engagement

Development and training of Neighbourhood core team 

in taking an asset based / strengths based approach

Full rollout of tools that improve knowledge of local 

community assets (Finding Local Support Services)

Strengths / asset based approaches developed 

across both Neighbourhood core and extended 

teams

5. (b) Putting in place the core foundations – Beyond 18 months

98

P
age 98



Enablers / 

Resources
Lead Year 3 Year 5 Year 7 Year 10

Where we want

to get to

E
n

a
b

le
d

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h

t 
s

u
p

p
o

rt

Technology
Technology 

enabler

Tech enables teams to 

work as one, 

interoperable systems 

and linked data for 

analysis.

Estates
Estates

enabler

Space for MDMs, co-

working for integrated 

teams and community 

hub for services.

OD & 

Improvement
Provider

Alliance

Culture change 

programme for integrated 

care teams, 

Neighbourhood leaders 

and QI improvement 

support for projects

Workforce
Workforce 

Enabler 

Clear view of current and 

future workforce needs 

(aligned to priorities) & 

comprehensive 

recruitment.

Comms and 

Engagement
Commss

enabler

Comprehensive

engagement with 

residents and staff on 

services with 

Neighbourhood identity.

5. (c) Enabled with the right support – Beyond 18 months

Building the technology infrastructure needed for Neighbourhood working

Putting in place technology to 

support Neighbourhood teams 

including MDT working & community 

navigation

Enhancing population health tools 

making use of linked data across 

health and social care. Tech to 

support co-location of teams

Advanced use of technology – improved information sharing 

between systems, comprehensive linked dataset which tracks 

the patient journey across all organisations and helps 

understand wider determinants of health and care

Making use of estates within Neighbourhoods for teams and communities

Determining available space and 

requirements, supporting MDT 

working within core team

Identifying co-working space for 

Neighbourhood MDTs and 

moving towards co-location

Co-locating integrated Neighbourhood teams, making use of available 

community assets (e.g. community halls) for community-led and 

service-led activities

Providing OD and improvement support for operational and leadership teams in Neighbourhoods

Provider Alliance OD programme 

of support for front-line operational 

teams and leadership

Embed QI (or similar) approaches within 

Neighbourhood projects

Extend and embed OD / QI approach across to all 

Neighbourhood core and extended teams. A 

continuous process of reflective learning from 

activities within teams. 

A comms and engagement approach for staff and for residents

Consistent comms messages for 

staff joining core Neighb’hood 

team and early resident 

engagement

Strengthen comms & 

engagement approaches with 

residents through 

Neighbourhoods

Comprehensive package of comms and engagement as part of 

Neighbourhoods – led by Neighbourhoods themselves (where relevant) 

and engaging with staff and residents

To be determined in light 
of OD & Improvement 
Plans

99

P
age 99



19

5. What will be different in 7 years time (end of Year 10)…

The Neighbourhood team will feel…

• There is a common purpose and identity for each Neighbourhood

• There are the right skills mix in the Neighbourhood team – providing 

support beyond just medical needs

• That the patient, Neighbourhood and team are more important than 

individual organisations

• An assessment carried out by one person can be trusted by another

• That there are opportunities for continuous learning and improvement

The Neighbourhood team will share…

• A single process for access, triage and prioritisation

• A common caseload and approach to case finding (e.g. regular huddles, 

formal MDTs and trusted assessments)

• A common way of working day-to-day with common procedures

• A team leader for the Neighbourhood core team (but also matrix working)

• A physical space to co-locate the team

Residents and patients will see…

• More inclusivity in care and support planning for individuals and families

• That care is more coordinated – not having to tell different professionals 

the same information

• Discussions with staff focus on what matters to them rather than what 

is wrong with them

• Proactive arrangements between different professions reducing 

concerns over safeguarding

The Neighbourhood team will be supported by…

• Whole system workforce planning, education and training

• Leadership (clinical and non-clinical) within each Neighbourhood

• Information on local community assets – supporting a strengths-based 

approach

• A strong and collaborative partnership that puts the needs of the 

Neighbourhood first

• Access to specialists from outside of the Neighbourhood
100

P
age 100



20

6. APPENDIX

101

P
age 101



6. Detailed rollout plan for Neighbourhood operational teams (next 12-18 months) DRAFT

2020/21 March 2020 June 2020 September 2020 December 2020 March 2021 June 2021 September 2021 December 2021

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

Clissold Park

Evaluation & Metrics

Woodberry Wetlands

Hackney Marshes

Well Street Common

Springfield Park

Hackney Downs

Shoreditch Park & City

London Fields
Identified 
Neighbourhood core 

Anticipatory Care Pilot

Somerford Grove 
Practice

Pilot extends to 
Clissold Park

Culture, OD & Workforce Development with 
Neighbourhood team (6 months)

Rollout Anticipatory Care with Neighbourhood team
End 
pilot

Identified 
Neighbourhood team

Identified 
Neighbourhood core 
team

Anticipatory Care with Neighbourhood Team

Culture, OD & Workforce Development with 
Neighbourhood team (6 months)

Anticipatory Care with Neighbourhood Team

Culture, OD & Workforce Development with 
Neighbourhood team (6 months)

Identified 
Neighbourhood core 
team

Identified 
Neighbourhood core 
team

Anticipatory Care with Neighbourhood Team

Culture, OD & Workforce Development with 
Neighbourhood team (6 months)

Anticipatory Care with Neighbourhood Team

Culture, OD & Workforce Development with 
Neighbourhood team (6 months)

Culture, OD & Workforce Development with 
Neighbourhood team (6 months)

Rollout Anticipatory Care with Neighbourhood team

Identified Neighbourhood 
core team

Pilot evaluation

Identified 
Neighbourhood core 
team

Anticipatory Care with Neighbourhood Team

Culture, OD & Workforce Development with 
Neighbourhood team (6 months)

Anticipatory Care with Neighbourhood Team

Culture, OD & Workforce Development with 
Neighbourhood team (6 months)

Designing / prototyping 
and developing 
approach based on 
learning from previous 
Neighbourhoods

Designing / prototyping 
and developing 
approach based on 
learning from previous 
Neighbourhoods

Identified 
Neighbourhood 
core team

Designing / prototyping 
and developing 
approach based on 
learning from previous 
Neighbourhoods

Baseline 3 months evaluation 9 months evaluation 12 months evaluation 15 months evaluation 18 months evaluation

Our intention is to bring together individuals and teams within Neighbourhoods who can work together for their local populations first (rather than organisations first) and can themselves determine the 
culture they want for their teams. In the next 18-24 months this will be ‘link members of staff’ from organisations. Initially, this will start with core members getting to know one another but as services are 
restructured it will increasingly be the core team. Anticipatory care will provide a basis to test new models that enable these teams to work collectively together. 

Initial Neighbourhood 
team being bought 
together to get to 
know one another, 
build connections and 
build trust between 
the teams. 

Across all eight 
Neighbourhoods.

Neighb’hood team identified

Pilot activity

Gathering core team

Evaluation activity

Key

102

P
age 102



 

 

                                 

Integrated Commissioning Glossary 
 
ACERS Adult Cardiorespiratory 

Enhanced and 
Responsive Service 

 

AOG Accountable Officers 
Group 

A meeting of system leaders from City & Hackney 
CCG, London Borough of Hackney, City of London 
Corporation and provider colleagues.  

CPA Care Programme 
Approach 

A package of care for people with mental health 
problems. 

CYP Children and Young 
People’s Service 

 

 City, The City of London geographical area. 

CoLC City of London 
Corporation 

City of London municipal governing body (formerly 
Corporation of London). 

 City and Hackney 
System  

City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group, 
London Borough of Hackney, City of London 
Corporation, Homerton University Hospital NHS 
FT, East London NHS FT, City & Hackney GP 
Confederation. 
 

CCG Clinical Commissioning 
Group 

Clinical Commissioning Groups are groups of GPs 
that are responsible for buying health and care 
services. All GP practices are part of a CCG. 
 

 Commissioners City and Hackney Clinical Commissioning Group, 
London Borough of Hackney, City of London 
Corporation   

CHS Community Health 
Services 

Community health services provide care for people 
with a wide range of conditions, often delivering 
health care in people’s homes. This care can be 
multidisciplinary, involving teams of nurses and 
therapists working together with GPs and social 
care. Community health services also focus on 
prevention and health improvement, working in 
partnership with local government and voluntary 
and community sector enterprises. 
 

CS2020 Community Services 
2020 

The programme of work to deliver a new 
community services contract from 2020. 
 

DToC Delayed Transfer of 
Care 

A delayed transfer of care is when a person is 
ready to be discharged from hospital to a home or 
care setting, but this must be delayed. This can be 
for a number of reasons, for example, because 
there is not a bed available in an intermediate care 
home.  
 

ELHCP East London Health and 
Care Partnership 

The East London Health & care Partnership brings 
together the area’s eight Councils (Barking, 

103

Page 103



 

 

                                 

Havering & Redbridge, City of London, Hackney, 
Newham, Tower Hamlets and Waltham Forest), 7 
Clinical Commissioning Groups and 12 NHS 
organisations. While East London as a whole faces 
some common problems, the local make up of and 
characteristics of the area vary considerably. Work 
is therefore shaped around three localized areas, 
bringing the Councils and NHS organisations 
within them together as local care partnerships to 
ensure the people living there get the right services 
for their specific needs. 
    

FYFV NHS Five Year Forward 
View 

The NHS Five Year Forward View strategy was 
published in October 2014 in response to financial 
challenges, health inequalities and poor quality of 
care. It sets out a shared vision for the future of the 
NHS based around more integrated, person 
centred care. 
 

IAPT Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapy 

Programme to improve access to mental health, 
particularly around the treatment of adult anxiety 
disorders and depression.  

IC Integrated 
Commissioning 

Integrated contracting and commissioning takes 
place across a system (for example, City & 
Hackney) and is population based. A population 
based approach refers to the high, macro, level 
programmes and interventions across a range of 
different services and sectors. Key features 
include: population-level data (to understand need 
across populations and track health outcomes) and 
population-based budgets (either real or virtual) to 
align financial incentives with improving population 
health.  

ICB Integrated 
Commissioning Board 

The Integrated Care Board has delegated decision 
making for the pooled budget. Each local authority 
agrees an annual budget and delegation scheme 
for its respective ICB (Hackney ICB and City ICB). 
Each ICB makes recommendations to its 
respective local authority on aligned fund services. 
Each ICB will receive financial reports from its local 
authority. The ICB’s meet in common to ensure 
alignment.  
 

ICS Integrated Care System An Integrated Care System is the name now given 
to Accountable Care Systems (ACSs). It is an 
‘evolved’ version of a Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership that is working as a 
locally integrated health system. They are systems 
in which NHS organisations (both commissioners 
and providers), often in partnership with local 

104

Page 104



 

 

                                 

authorities, choose to take on clear collective 
responsibility for resources and population health. 
They provide joined up, better coordinated care. In 
return they get far more control and freedom over 
the total operations of the health system in their 
area; and work closely with local government and 
other partners.  
 

ISAP Integrated Support and 
Assurance Process 

The ISAP refers to a set of activities that begin 
when a CCG or a commissioning function of NHS 
England (collectively referred to as commissioners) 
starts to develop a strategy involving the 
procurement of a complex contract. It also covers 
the subsequent contract award and mobilisation of 
services under the contract. The intention is that 
NHS England and NHS Improvement provide a 
‘system view’ of the proposals, focusing on what is 
required to support the successful delivery of 
complex contracts. Applying the ISAP will help 
mitigate but not eliminate the risk that is inevitable 
if a complex contract is to be utilised. It is not about 
creating barriers to implementation. 

LBH London Borough of 
Hackney 

Local authority for the Hackney region 

LAC Looked After Children Term used to refer to a child that has been in the 
care of a local authority for more than 24 hours.  

LARC Long Acting Reversible 
Contraception 

 

MDT Multidisciplinary team Multidisciplinary teams bring together staff from 
different professional backgrounds (e.g. social 
worker, community nurse, occupational therapist, 
GP and any specialist staff) to support the needs 
of a person who requires more than one type of 
support or service. Multidisciplinary teams are 
often discussed in the same context as joint 
working, interagency work and partnership 
working. 
 

MECC Making Every Contact 
Count  

A programme across City & Hackney to improve 
peoples’ experience of the service by ensuring all 
contacts with staff are geared towards their needs.  

 Neighbourhood 
Programme (across City 
and Hackney) 
 

The neighbourhood model will build localised 
integrated care services across a population of 
30,000-50,000 residents. This will include focusing 
on prevention, as well as the wider social and 
economic determinants of health. The 
neighbourhood model will organise City and 
Hackney health and care services around the 
patient.   
 

105

Page 105



 

 

                                 

NEL North East London 
(NEL) Commissioning 
Alliance  

This is the commissioning arm of the East London 
Health and Care Partnership comprising 7 clinical 
commissioning groups in North East London. The 
7 CCGs are City and Hackney, Havering, 
Redbridge, Waltham Forest, Barking and 
Dagenham, Newham and Tower Hamlets.  
 

NHSE NHS England Executive body of the Department of Health and 
Social Care. Responsible for the budget, planning, 
delivery and operational sides of NHS 
Commissioning.  

NHSI NHS Improvement Oversight body responsible for quality and safety 
standards. 

 Primary Care Primary care services are the first step to ensure 
that people are seen by the professional best 
suited to deliver the right care and in the most 
appropriate setting. Primary care includes general 
practice, community pharmacy, dental, and 
optometry (eye health) services. 

PIN Prior Information Notice A method for providing the market place with early 
notification of intent to award a contract/framework 
and can lead to early supplier discussions which 
may help inform the development of the 
specification. 
 

QIPP Quality, Innovation, 
Productivity and 
Prevention 

QIPP is a programme designed to deliver savings 
within the NHS, predominately through driving up 
efficiency while also improving the quality of care. 
 

QOF Quality Outcomes 
Framework 

 

 Risk Sharing Risk sharing is a management method of sharing 
risks and rewards between health and social care 
organisations by distributing gains and losses on 
an agreed basis. Financial gains are calculated as 
the difference between the expected cost of 
delivering care to a defined population and the 
actual cost. 
 

 Secondary care  Secondary care services are usually based in a 
hospital or clinic and are a referral from primary 
care. rather than the community. Sometimes 
‘secondary care’ is used to mean ‘hospital care’.  
 

 Step Down Step down services are the provision of health and 
social care outside the acute (hospital) care setting 
for people who need an intensive period of care or 
further support to make them well enough to return 
home. 

106

Page 106



 

 

                                 

STP Sustainability and 
Transformation 
Partnership 

Sustainability and transformation plans were 
announced in NHS planning guidance published in 
December 2015. Forty-four areas have been 
identified as the geographical ‘footprints’ on which 
the plans are based, with an average population 
size of 1.2 million people (the smallest covers a 
population of 300,000 and the largest 2.8 million). 
A named individual has led the development of 
each Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership. Most Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership leaders come from 
clinical commissioning groups and NHS trusts or 
foundation trusts, but a small number come from 
local government. Each partnership developed a 
‘place-based plans’ for the future of health and 
care services in their area. Draft plans were 
produced by June 2016 and 'final' plans were 
submitted in October 2016. 
 

 Tertiary care Care for people needing specialist treatments. 
People may be referred for tertiary care (for 
example, a specialist stroke unit) from either 
primary care or secondary care. 
 

 Vanguard A vanguard is the term for an innovative 
programme of care based on one of the new care 
models described in the NHS Five Year Forward 
View. There are five types of vanguard, and each 
address a different way of joining up or providing 
more coordinated services for people. Fifty 
vanguard sites were established and allocated 
funding to improve care for people in their areas. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

107

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



To find out more about coronavirus (COVID-19) and find out how to avoid 

catching or spreading it, visit www.nhs.uk/coronavirus

Your hospital 

discharge: 

going home
This leaflet explains why you are being discharged from 

hospital and what you might expect after your discharge.

Why am I being discharged 

from hospital?

You are being discharged from hospital as 

your health team have agreed that you 

are now able to return home.

Why can’t I stay in hospital?

What can I expect?

It is our priority to ensure that you are 

discharged safely from hospital and to the 

most appropriate available place. 

Your health team will discuss discharge 

and transport arrangements with you      

(and a family member, friend or carer if 

you wish). If you require care and support 

when you get home, this will be arranged. 

Any care provided will be free of charge 

for a period of time to support your 

recovery. After this time you may be 

required to contribute to the cost of your 

care.

Who can I contact?

After you have been discharged, if you 

have any concerns or need to speak to 

someone about your care, you can 

contact <Insert locally agreed details e.g. 

team name and contact number>

The health system is busy helping 

patients affected by coronavirus               

(COVID-19). This is a new illness that 

can affect the lungs and airways and 

some people who contract the illness will 

need to be admitted to hospital. It is 

important that our hospitals are ready to 

look after those people who need this 

hospital care. 

Because of this, you will not have a 

choice over your discharge. You will not 

be able to remain in hospital if you 

choose not to accept the care that is 

being offered to you. 

Page 109

http://www.nhs.uk/coronavirus


To find out more about coronavirus (COVID-19) and find out how to avoid 

catching or spreading it, visit www.nhs.uk/coronavirus

Your hospital discharge: 

another place of care

What can I expect?

Your discharge and transport 

arrangements will be discussed with you 

(and a family member or carer if you wish) 

and you will be discharged with the care 

and support you need to a bed in the 

community. The care provided will be free 

of charge for a period of time to support 

your recovery. After this time you may be 

required to contribute to the cost of your 

care.

It is possible that you may be moved more 

than once after your discharge. This is 

because we will be trying to find the best 

place for your long term care. Your health 

team are here to answer any questions 

you might have.

Why am I being discharged 

from hospital?

Who can I contact?
After you have been discharged, if you 

have any concerns or need to speak to 

someone about your care, you can get in 

touch with <Insert locally agreed details 

e.g. team name and contact number>

This leaflet explains why you are being discharged from 

hospital and what you might expect after your discharge.

Why can’t I stay in hospital?

You are being discharged as your health 

team have agreed that you are now able 

to continue your recovery in another care 

setting, outside of hospital.

The health system is busy helping 

patients affected by coronavirus               

(COVID-19). This is a new illness that 

can affect the lungs and airways and 

some people who contract the illness will 

need to be admitted to hospital. It is 

important that our hospitals are ready to 

look after those people who need this 

hospital care. Because of this, you will 

not have a choice over your discharge. 

You will not be able to remain in hospital 

if you choose not to accept the care that 

is being offered to you. 

It is our priority to ensure that you are 

discharged safely from hospital and to 

the most appropriate available place. 

Page 110

http://www.nhs.uk/coronavirus


NHS England - Hospital Discharge Programme

Name of Local Authority

Lead CCG

1) Local Authority Commissioned  - pool 1

Cost in the month
Cumulative cost to 

date

Number of people 

supported by a  

package this month

Cumulative number of 

people supported by a 

package to date

£'000 £'000 # #

Care Home

Other care accommodation

Domiciliary/Home care

Reablement/intermediate care

Day-care

Respite Care

Transport

Other (please specify)

Total Local Authority Commissioned (pool 1) 0 0 0 0

Less Local Authority Contribution to the pooled fund 0 0 0

Net Local Authority charge to £1.3bn (Pool 1) 0 0 0 0

Care Home

Other care accommodation

Domiciliary/home care

Reablement / intermediate care

Day Care

Respite care

Transport

Other

No and type of care package provided

A registered residential or nursing home

Other bed based accommodation (excluding hospice)

Services provided in a person’s home

This is a monthly reporting process to record spend on Covid 19 Hospital Discharges and Out of Hospital packages of care and support.

Local Authorities should include the details of their gross spend on the Hospital Discharge programme within the pooled budget with the CCG. Local Authorities should 

include their whole spend with their lead CCG. The table includes the value of the pool that the Local Authority is contributing on a monthly basis to give the net value 

that is reported to the CCG. The financial amount submitted to the CCG will be reimbursed to the local authority via the Better Care Fund framework.

LAs should use the drop down menu to select the CCG for their pool.

Further details of costs to include within the expenditure categories are as follows;

Services are generally provided in the person’s own home or care home, is intervention that involves 

Day Care Facilities may be called Day Hospitals, Centres, Facilities or Units.

term used for services designed to give home carers a break from caring.

Any separate transport costs such as patient transport (PTS), volunteer drivers, taxis, local authority 

Typically, equipment and adaptations

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



 

Dated                                                     2020 

 

 

 

 

 

   

(1)    THE MAYOR AND COMMONALTY AND CITIZENS 

OF THE CITY OF LONDON 

 

   

  - and -   

   

(2)    NHS CITY AND HACKNEY CLINICAL 

COMMISSIONING GROUP 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEED OF VARIATION 
TO THE 

FRAMEWORK SECTION 75 AGREEMENT FOR  
THE DEVOLUTION OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SERVICES  

IN THE CITY OF LONDON (INCLUDING THE BETTER CARE FUND) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



1 
 

THIS DEED is made on        2020 

PARTIES 

(1) THE MAYOR AND COMMONALTY AND CITIZENS OF THE CITY OF LONDON a 
corporation by prescription of Guildhall, PO Box 270, London EC2P 2EJ (the “City”) 

(2) NHS CITY AND HACKNEY CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP of 3rd Floor, Block A, St 
Leonard’s Hospital, London, N1 5LZ (the "CCG") 

each a "party" and together the "parties". 

BACKGROUND 

A This Deed is supplemental to the framework Section 75 Agreement for the devolution of health 
and social care services in City of London (Including the Better Care Fund) entered into by the 
parties on 5 July 2019 and as subsequently varied by the parties on 13 December 2019 to 
incorporate the new Better Care Fund Plan for 2019 and 2020 (the "Agreement"). 

B The Initial Term of the Agreement was extended for a further year until 31st March 2021 (the 
Extended Term) pursuant to Clause 2.1 of the Agreement by way of a letter (the Extension 
Letter) signed on behalf of the parties.  A copy of the Extension Letter is appended to this Deed 
as Schedule 2. 

C In accordance with the Agreement, each of the parties has agreed to amend the Agreement as 
set out in this Deed. 

AGREEMENT: 

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

Unless otherwise provided the words and expressions defined in, and the rules of interpretation 
of, the Agreement shall have the same meaning in this Deed. 

2. AMENDMENTS TO THE AGREEMENT 

The parties agree that the Agreement is amended as set out in Schedule 1. 

3. VARIATION DATE 

The parties agree that the amendments set out in this Deed shall have effect from 19th March 
2020. 

4. AGREEMENT IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT 

This Deed is supplemental to the Agreement and, subject to the amendments described in this 
Deed, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

5. CONFIRMATION AND INCORPORATION 

The parties further agree and declare that the terms of the Agreement except as varied by this 
Deed are confirmed as if the same were set out in this Deed in full and that such terms as so 
varied shall for all purposes (including but without limitation for the purposes of s2 of the Law of 
Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989) be deemed to be incorporated in this Deed. 

6. COUNTERPARTS 

This Deed may be executed in one or more counterparts. Any single counterpart or a set of 
counterparts executed, in either case, by all parties shall constitute a full original of this Deed 
for all purposes. 

Page 114



 

 
 

 2 
 

7. GOVERNING LAW 

This Deed and any dispute or claim arising out of, or in connection with, it, its subject matter or 
formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of England and Wales. 

8. JURISDICTION 

The parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive 
jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim arising out of, or in connection with, this Deed, its 
subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims). 

Page 115



3 
 

EXECUTED as a deed by the parties and delivered on the date set out at the start of this Deed. 

 

Executed as a Deed by affixing the 
common seal of THE MAYOR AND 
CITIZENS OF THE CITY OF LONDON 
 
in the presence of: 

 
 
 
 
 
……………………… 
Authorised Signatory 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executed as a Deed by the CCG acting by 
DAVID MAHER under delegated authority 
from the Accountable Officer 

 

 
 
 
 

……………………………… 
 

David Maher 
Managing Director 

NHS City and Hackney  
Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
in the presence of: 

 
 
 
………………….. 
 
Name: 
 
Address: 
 
 
Occupation: 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 116



 

 
 

 4 
 

SCHEDULE 1 
VARIATION 

 

The parties agree to amend the Agreement in accordance with this Schedule 1. 

1. The parties acknowledge that since the Deed of Variation dated the 13th December 2019 was 
entered into, the provisions of clause 35 “Change in Law” of the Agreement have come into 
effect following the introduction of the “2020 Act”. In accordance with the provisions of sub-
clause 35.2 of the Agreement, the parties are therefore agreeing the following amendments to 
the Agreement as a result of a Change of Law.     

The definitions are added to the Agreement at clause 1 (Defined Terms and Interpretation) of 
the Agreement as the following: 

2020 Act means the Coronavirus Act 2020 granting the UK Government emergency 
powers to handle the 2020 coronavirus pandemic and which received Royal assent on 
the 25th March 2020 and came into effect on that date.  

COVID-19 shall have the meaning set out in the 2020 Act, and shall also mean the 
COVID emergency referred to in the COVID -19 Hospital Discharge Service.  

2. The definition of COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service is added to the Agreement at Clause 1 
(Defined Terms and Interpretation) of the Agreement as the following:  

COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service means the discharge flow arrangements put 
in place as part of the COVID-19 response as defined at Part Five of Schedule 1 of this 
Agreement and the HM Government document ‘COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service 
Requirements’.  

3. Schedule 1 (Integrated Commissioning Strategies and Budget Contributions) is amended to 
include the additional COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service specification set out in Annex 1 of 
this Deed at Part Five or Schedule 1 of this Agreement. 

 

  

Page 117



5 
 

ANNEX  1 

 
PART FIVE – COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service 

 
A. Introduction 
 
The Government has agreed to fully fund the cost of new or extended out-of-hospital health and social 
care support packages from 19th March 2020, for people being discharged from or who would 
otherwise be admitted into it, for a limited time, to enable quick and safe discharge and more generally 
reduce pressure on acute services.   
 
The funding will also cover the costs of additional short term residential, domiciliary, reablement and 
intermediate care capacity to reduce hospital admissions.  
 
During the period of operation of the Covid-19 Hospital Discharge Service there is a temporary 
suspension of the obligation of the need to carry out Continuing Healthcare assessments for patients on 
the acute hospital discharge pathway and in community settings as well as a suspension of the usual 
patient eligibility criteria. 
 
The packages which are covered by this Covid-19 Hospital Discharge Service funding are defined as: 
 

a) New packages of care entirely covered by Covid-19 funding for: 
• Individuals who are discharged with a new package of care. 
• Individuals at home with no care package who deteriorate and require a social care package 

to prevent admission to hospital. 
• Individuals who are self-funding or local authority funded in a care home placement but 

deteriorate and require a new nursing home placement to prevent admission to hospital. 
 

b) Extended packages of care partly covered by Covid-19 funding for: 
• Individuals who are discharged and retain an existing package of care but now have an 

additional package of care to prevent admission.  
• Individuals who are in the community with an existing social care package and require 

additional support to prevent admission. 
• Individuals who are in a CHC funded (including fast track) that deteriorate and require an 

additional package of care to prevent admission. 
 
Individuals on existing health and social care support packages that are not modified, or that are 
modified but not to prevent admission to Hospital, are not funded by the Covid-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service funding. 
 
Local authorities have been instructed to pool existing funding for discharge support with this additional 
money. The additional funding should be identifiable separately and support and spending from this new 
funding should be recorded for each person discharged and supported under these arrangements.  
 
Once pooled, funding should be treated as a single pooled fund and used to deliver the appropriate care 
for individuals to be discharged under these new arrangements. 
 
The use of the term ‘pool’ in the Government guidance refers to a pool created within a council, rather 
than a pooled fund that would usually be created between an NHS body and a council through a section 
75 Agreement.  In that respect the City adding or not adding additional funds to the amount it will 
receive from the CCG will be a matter for the City to decide. The City’s current intention is not to pool 
any additional funds and simply to record on the template the Covid-19 costs associated with hospital 
discharge (and avoiding hospital admittance) and claim via CCG pursuant to the arrangements 
hereunder. 
 
The City will provide financial reporting information to CCG on the correct template and will only record 
the Covid-19 costs relating to the specific headings set out on the reporting template. The CCG will then 

Page 118



 

 
 

 6 
 

reclaim those costs and pass them back to the City.  This arrangement is set out in more detail at 
sections F, G and H. 
 
 
B. Requirements of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service 
 
The requirement of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service is included at Appendix 1 of Part Five of 
Schedule 1. 
 
The COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service funding arrangement is being established specifically for the 
purpose of accelerating discharge and increasing admission avoidance. 
 
The City, the CCG, University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Whittington Health 
NHS Trust have agreed a system for patient discharge that is to operate locally.   
 
 
C. Duration of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service  
 
The COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service arrangement defined by this Part Five will commence on 19th 
March 2020 and will continue in force until such time as the CCG and the City is notified by NHS 
England or the Department of Health and Social Care that the additional funding allocated to CCGs 
ceases and therefore this arrangement is no longer applied to new patients discharged from hospital. 
 
 
D. Extent of Funding  
 
The aim of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service is to ensure that the Government fully fund 
additional costs associated with the COVID 19 impacted packages of support.  
 
Funding should cover the following: 
 

• The full or enhanced cost of care packages agreed at the point of discharge and delivered in 
the community, both domiciliary and non-domiciliary, and from a range of providers (including 
hospices). 
 

• The additional cost of care for those who would ordinarily be deemed ‘self-funding’ during the 
period of the process if they were a hospital discharge during the emergency period or if their 
needs increased and required a new care setting.  
 

• Enhancements to existing packages of care.  
 

• It will also cover the cost of any loss of ‘means tested’ income from this cohort by the local 
authority.  

 
• The costs of providing community health services to the homeless and rough-sleepers, 

wherever this accommodation may be situated.  
 

• It also includes the cost of onward care both stepping up and stepping down packages of care 
intensity throughout the period covered by these arrangements  

 
Funding is not intended to cover:  
 

• Existing funded packages of care (prior to 19th March 2020) that will remain funded on the 
normal basis, but that if there are material changes to the package, they will then fall within 
scope of these new arrangements. 
  

• Additional administrative burden on commissioners such as staffing and non-pay related costs 
incurred by CCGs and local authorities. CCG funding for this should be covered under the 

Page 119



 

 
 

 7 
 

“workforce” element of the COVID 19 response work.  
 

• Any extra costs associated with COVID 19 virus testing. 
 
The extent of the funding should be read together with the definition at paragraph A. 
 
 
E. The CCG role in providing Funding and the Funding flow from NHS England 
 
To enable funding flows to be as simple as possible, aspects of the current NHS ‘Who Pays?’ guidance 
are being set aside for the duration of the Covid-19 emergency.  
  
New rules will apply on NHS responsibility for paying for services to support hospital discharge and 
prevent avoidable admissions, as described in this document and in COVID-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service Requirements. NHS England is mandating these new rules using its powers under section 14Z7 
of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended in 2012).  
  
The new rules on NHS payment responsibility are as follows.  
  

a) For a service being contracted for directly by a CCG (rather than by a local authority), NHS 
responsibility for paying for a particular service will rest with the CCG in whose geographical 
area the service in question is physically located. Where a service is being provided in an 
individual’s own home, the physical location of the individual’s home will determine 
responsibility. 

 
b) For a service being contracted for by a local authority using a pooled fund, NHS responsibility 

for paying for a particular service will rest with the CCG which is agreed locally to be the “host 
CCG” for the local authority in whose geographic area the service in question is physically 
located. Where a service is being provided in an individual’s own home, the physical location of 
the individual’s home will determine responsibility. 

  
For the purpose of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service NHS City & Hackney CCG is the ‘host 
CCG’ for the City of London area. 
 
Funding will flow from NHS England to the CCG direct to the host CCG for the City of London area, to 
be passed on to the City under this Agreement the City has been identified locally as the lead 
commissioner, and thus on to the relevant providers. 
 
 
F. The City role in providing Funding, the Funding flow from the CCG and the pooled budget 
 
The CCG will receive a cash-backed funding allocation related to patients under this arrangement. This 
funding shall be pooled with City funding as follows: 
 

• The City shall pool existing funding already allocated for care and support packages from the 
City social care budget. The additional funding should be identifiable in reporting.  
 

• Once pooled, funding should be treated as a single pooled fund and used to deliver the 
appropriate care for individuals to be discharged under these new arrangements.  
 

• The budget set by the City should be at a level that would have been expected to reasonably 
cover the costs of packages if COVID had not occurred.  
 

• The City must place an appropriate portion of their existing funding dedicated to adult social 
care into the pooled budget with the CCG, to ensure that there is no risk of debates about which 
fund should pay. This should include existing funding dedicated to discharge to assess 
spending. 
 

Page 120



 

 
 

 8 
 

• The City is expected to ensure that an appropriate market-rate is paid for support and will work 
together with the CCG to agree an approach to ensuring the market can sustain a rapid and 
significant increase in supply. This appropriate market-rate may need to reflect that some 
patients and the capacity being utilised would previously have been self funded.  
 

• The market rate should reflect that a) providers’ realistic additional costs are covered so they 
are sustainable and b) that what is paid during an emergency can be adjusted after that 
emergency.  
 

• For hospital discharges, it is expected that third party top-up fees would not be payable by 
residents as an appropriate market-rate for care would be paid to the providers of care. 
 
 

G. The CCG and City role in requesting cash reimbursement from NHS England for the cost of 
the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service  

 
1. The CCG will submit a monthly non-ISFE return to NHS England, by the required deadline that 

incorporates the actual spend on the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service in the preceding 
month. Following the monthly reconciliation carried out by the CCG and the Local Authority, any 
over/under claiming in a month will be adjusted in the following month’s Non-ISFE submission.  
 

2. The CCG will submit requests for cash funding in the monthly drawdown request to NHS 
England based on the CCG estimate of required funding and the Non-ISFE return.  

  
3. CCG allocations will be amended using the following:  

 
a. for 2019/20 the CCG should submit the COVID “19/20 cost reimbursement template” (final 

collection) and provide further details of the programme spend in the CCG’s month 12 non 
ISFE return.  
 

b. for 2020/21 the CCG should include the COVID cost collection within the CCG’s monthly 
non ISFE return that has been modified to include a new tab to collect actual spend in the 
month. The “non ISFE return” is included at Appendix 2 of Part Five of Schedule 1. 

 
The City must complete the Local Authority Spend reimbursement template on a monthly basis; this 
template is included at Appendix 3 of Part Five of Schedule 1. The CCG cannot take responsibility for 
completing the Local Authority Spend reimbursement template or the accuracy of the information 
contained within it.  If the Local Authority Spend reimbursement template is not returned on time to the 
CCG, the CCG will not be able to submit the Non-ISFE return on time and this will delay payment to the 
City. 
 
The consolidated monthly report will be submitted by the CCG (in accordance with the timetable at H) 
so that the CCG and the City are funded for the preceding month in a timely manner. This means that 
the City submission of expenditure reporting to the CCG will need to be incorporated into the CCG 
submission to NHS England. 

Page 121



 

 
 

 9 
 

 
 
H. The Timetable for monthly activities relating to the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service  
 

When Party 
responsible 

Action 

During the preceding 
month 

City of London Accurately records expenditure on the COVID-19 
Hospital Discharge Service on the Local Authority Spend 
reimbursement template 

At the end of the 
preceding month 

City of London Close Local Authority Ledger for the preceding month 

Working Day 7 of the 
month 

CCG Close CCG Ledger for the preceding month 

Midday, Working Day 
8 of the month1, 2 

City of London Submit final Local Authority Spend reimbursement 
template to the CCG 

COP, Working Day 8 
of the month2 

CCG Complete and Submit final Non-ISFE return to NHS 
England 

Working Day 9 of the 
month 

City of London Send Invoice to CCG for COVID-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service monthly amount – the invoice should be marked 
for the attention of Sunil Thakker, Director of Finance 

Working Day 16 of 
the month 

CCG Complete and Submit cash drawn down request to NHS 
England 

Working Day 17 of 
the month 

City of London 
and the CCG 

Carry out a retrospective month-end reconciliation to 
ensure the actual costs submitted in the Non-ISFE 
reconcile back to the local authority and CCG actual, 
allowable COVID-19 hospital discharge service costs.  

Working Day 1 of the 
following month 

NHS England Release cash to the CCG Bank Account 

Next available BACS 
run 

CCG Pay invoice / transfer money to LBH  

 
NOTES 
1. Date has been confirmed as 21st April in Month 1 of 2020 due to bank holidays however this would usually be 

on WD8. 

 
2. The Working Day 8 deadline are: 

Year Reporting Month Deadline (WD8) 12 pm 

2019/20 March 20 20/04/2020 

2020/21 

April 20 14/05/2020 

May 20 10/06/2020 

June 20 10/07/2020 

July 20 12/08/2020 

August 20 10/09/2020 

September 20 12/10/2020 

October 20 11/11/2020 

November 20 10/12/2020 

December 20 13/01/2021 

January 21 10/02/2021 

February 21 10/03/2021 

March 21 14/04/2021 

 
3. The CCG will submit a monthly non-ISFE return to NHS England, by the required deadline that incorporates 

the amount spent on the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service in the preceding month. If deadlines are altered 
the CCG will notify the City as soon as possible after the CCG becomes aware of the change. 

 

Page 122



 

 
 

 10 
 

 
I. Financial Reporting 
 
Expenditure will be recorded under the following Expenditure Categories: 
 

Expenditure 
Categories 

Definition 

Care Home A registered residential or nursing home  

Other care 
accommodation 

Other bed-based accommodation (excluding hospice). This may be in 
hotels or other buildings that temporarily house discharged patients. 

Domiciliary/home care Services provided in a person’s home.  

Reablement / 
intermediate care  
 

Services are generally provided in the person’s own home or care home, is 
intervention that involves intensive, time-limited assessment and 
therapeutic work over a period of time.  

Day Care Day Care Facilities may be called Day Hospitals, Centres, Facilities or 
Units. 

Respite care term used for services designed to give home carers a break from caring.  

Hospice Care, treatment, and support can be provided in accommodation or in the 
community. It can be long or short-term care, on an inpatient basis or 
provided through day care, day therapy or outreach services.  

Transport Any separate transport costs such as patient transport (PTS), volunteer 
drivers, taxis, local authority transport to enable the hospital discharge or 
meet the ongoing packages of support.  

Other Typically, equipment and adaptations. 

 
 
J. Consequences of the ending of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service 
 
Funding will continue for these individuals for a short period during the post-cessation phase, and NHS 
England will work with the CCG and the City to ensure that an appropriate amount of time is allowed for 
a smooth transition for individuals to return back as safely as possible to pre-COVID-19 health and living 
standards with agreed  funding arrangements.   
 
The care needs and financial assessment would be undertaken for all COVID-19 related individuals at 
the cessation of this agreement to provide a baseline going forward. Individuals provided with care 
packages under these arrangements must not face any requirement to refund commissioners 
retrospectively for the period in question.  
 
The commissioners will plan throughout the period that the enhanced discharge support process is 
running to ensure appropriate processes and governance are in place for the period following cessation 
of the enhanced discharge support process with the expectation that commissioner will endeavour to 
end this arrangement within two (2) months. As part of this, planning conversations should be taking 
place with patients and their families about the possibility that they will need to pay for their care later, 
as appropriate. 
 
  
  

Page 123



 

 
 

 11 
 

APPENDIX 1 - COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service Requirements 
 

COVID-19_hospital_

discharge_service_requirements.pdf
 

 
 
APPENDIX 2 - non ISFE return template for financial reporting 

Section 75 non ISFE 

- Hospital Discharge Programme Template (003).xlsx
 

 
 
APPENDIX 3 – Local Authority spend reimbursement template 

Section 75 Local 

Authority Template v1.xlsx
 

 

Page 124



12 
 

SCHEDULE 2 
 

EXTENSION LETTER 
 
 

Extensionlet25.2.02

0.pdf
 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



 

Dated                                                     2020 

 

 

 

 

 

   

(1)    LONDON BOROUGH OF HACKNEY  

   

  - and -   

   

(2)    NHS CITY AND HACKNEY CLINICAL 

COMMISSIONING GROUP 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEED OF VARIATION 
TO THE 

FRAMEWORK SECTION 75 AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVOLUTION 
OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SERVICES IN LONDON BOROUGH 

OF HACKNEY (INCLUDING THE BETTER CARE FUND) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 127



1 
 

THIS DEED is made on        2020 

PARTIES 

(1) LONDON BOROUGH OF HACKNEY of Hackney Service Centre, 1 Hillman Street, London 
E8 1DY (the "Council") 

(2) NHS CITY AND HACKNEY CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP of 3rd Floor, Block A, St 
Leonard’s Hospital, London, N1 5LZ (the "CCG") 

each a "party" and together the "parties". 

BACKGROUND 

A This Deed is supplemental to the framework Section 75 Agreement for the devolution of health 
and social care services in London Borough of Hackney (Including the Better Care Fund) 
entered into by the parties on 5 July 2019 and as subsequently varied by the parties on 13 
December 2019 and on 16 April 2020 (the "Agreement"). 

B In accordance with the Agreement, each of the parties has agreed to amend the Agreement as 
set out in this Deed. 

AGREEMENT: 

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

Unless otherwise provided the words and expressions defined in, and the rules of interpretation 
of, the Agreement shall have the same meaning in this Deed. 

2. AMENDMENTS TO THE AGREEMENT 

The parties agree that the Agreement is amended as set out in Schedule 1. 

3. VARIATION DATE 

The parties agree that the amendments set out in this Deed shall have  effect from 19th March 
2020. 

4. AGREEMENT IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT 

This Deed is supplemental to the Agreement and, subject to the amendments described in this 
Deed, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

5. CONFIRMATION AND INCORPORATION 

The parties further agree and declare that the terms of the Agreement except as varied by this 
Deed are confirmed as if the same were set out in this Deed in full and that such terms as so 
varied shall for all purposes (including but without limitation for the purposes of s2 of the Law of 
Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989) be deemed to be incorporated in this Deed. 

6. COUNTERPARTS 

This Deed may be executed in one or more counterparts. Any single counterpart or a set of 
counterparts executed, in either case, by all parties shall constitute a full original of this Deed 
for all purposes. 

7. GOVERNING LAW 

This Deed and any dispute or claim arising out of, or in connection with, it, its subject matter or 
formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of England and Wales. 

8. JURISDICTION 

Page 128



 

 
 

 2 
 

The parties irrevocably agree that the courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive 
jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim arising out of, or in connection with, this Deed, its 
subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims). 

Page 129



3 
 

EXECUTED as a deed by the parties and delivered on the date set out at the start of this Deed. 

 

Executed as a Deed by affixing the 
common seal of LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HACKNEY 
 
in the presence of: 

 
 
 
……………………… 
Authorised Signatory 

 
 
 
……………………… 
Authorised Signatory 

 
 
 
 
 

Executed as a Deed by the CCG acting by 
DAVID MAHER under delegated authority 
from the Accountable Officer 

 

 
 
 
 

……………………………… 
 

David Maher 
Managing Director 

NHS City and Hackney  
Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
in the presence of: 

 
 
 
………………….. 
 
Name: 
 
Address: 
 
 
Occupation: 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 130



 

 
 

 4 
 

SCHEDULE 1 
VARIATION 

 

The parties agree to amend the Agreement in accordance with this Schedule 1. 

1. The definition of COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service is added to the Agreement at Clause 1 
(Defined Terms and Interpretation) of the Agreement as the following:  

COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service means the discharge flow arrangements put in place 
as part of the COVID-19 response as defined at Part Five of Schedule 1 of this Agreement and 
the HM Government document ‘COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service Requirements’.  

2. Schedule 1 is amended to include the additional COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service 
specification set out in Annex 1 of this Deed at Part Five or Schedule 1 of this Agreement. 

 

  

Page 131



5 
 

ANNEX  1 

 
PART FIVE – COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service 

 
A. Introduction 
 
The Government has agreed to fully fund the cost of new or extended out-of-hospital health and social 
care support packages from 19th March 2020, for people being discharged from or who would 
otherwise be admitted into it, for a limited time, to enable quick and safe discharge and more generally 
reduce pressure on acute services.   
 
The funding will also cover the costs of additional short term residential, domiciliary, reablement and 
intermediate care capacity to reduce hospital admissions.  
 
During the period of operation of the Covid-19 Hospital Discharge Service there is a temporary 
suspension of the obligation of the need to carry out Continuing Healthcare assessments for patients on 
the acute hospital discharge pathway and in community settings as well as a suspension of the usual 
patient eligibility criteria. 
 
The packages which are covered by this Covid-19 Hospital Discharge Service funding are defined as: 
 

a) New packages of care entirely covered by Covid-19 funding for: 
• Individuals who are discharged with a new package of care. 
• Individuals at home with no care package who deteriorate and require a home care package 

to prevent admission to hospital. 
• Individuals who are self-funding or local authority funded in a care home placement but 

deteriorate and require a new nursing home placement to prevent admission to hospital. 
 

b) Extended packages of care partly covered by Covid-19 funding for: 
• Individuals who are discharged and retain an existing package of care but now have an 

additional package of care to prevent admission.  
• Individuals who are in the community with an existing social care package and require 

additional support to prevent admission. 
• Individuals who are in a CHC funded (including fast track) that deteriorate and require an 

additional package of care to prevent admission. 
 
Individuals on existing health and social care support packages that are not modified, or that are 
modified but not to prevent admission to Hospital, are not funded by the Covid-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service funding. 
 
Local authorities have been instructed to pool existing funding for discharge support with this additional 
money. The additional funding should be identifiable separately and support and spending from this new 
funding should be recorded for each person discharged and supported under these arrangements.  
 
Once pooled, funding should be treated as a single pooled fund and used to deliver the appropriate care 
for individuals to be discharged under these new arrangements. 
 
The use of the term ‘pool’ in the Government guidance refers to a pool created within the Council, rather 
than a pooled fund that would usually be created between an NHS body and Council through a section 
75 Agreement.  In that respect the Council adding or not adding additional funds to the amount it will 
receive from the CCG will be a matter for the Council to decide. The Council’s current intention is not to 
pool any additional funds and simply to record on the template the Covid-19 costs associated with 
hospital discharge (and avoiding hospital admittance) and claim via CCG pursuant to the arrangements 
hereunder. 
 
The Council will provide financial reporting information to CCG on the correct template and will only 
record the Covid-19 costs relating to the specific headings set out on the reporting template. The CCG 

Page 132



 

 
 

 6 
 

will then reclaim those costs and pass them back to the Council.  This arrangement is set out in more 
detail at sections F, G and H. 
 
 
B. Requirements of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service 
 
The requirement of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service is included at Appendix 1 of Part Five of 
Schedule 1. 
 
The COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service funding arrangement is being established specifically for the 
purpose of accelerating discharge and increasing admission avoidance. 
 
The Council, the CCG and the Homerton Hospital University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust have 
agreed a local specification that sets out how the local system will operate the system of discharge.  
This local specification is included at Appendix 4 of Part Five of Schedule 1. 
 
 
C. Duration of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service  
 
The COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service arrangement defined by this Part Five will commence on 19th 
March 2020 and will continue in force until such time as the CCG and the Council is notified by NHS 
England or the Department of Health and Social Care that the additional funding allocated to CCGs 
ceases and therefore this arrangement is no longer applied to new patients discharged from hospital. 
 
 
D. Extent of Funding  
 
The aim of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service is to ensure that the Government fully fund 
additional costs associated with the COVID 19 impacted packages of support.  
 
Funding should cover the following: 
 

• The full or enhanced cost of care packages agreed at the point of discharge and delivered in 
the community, both domiciliary and non-domiciliary, and from a range of providers (including 
hospices). 
 

• The additional cost of care for those who would ordinarily be deemed ‘self-funding’ during the 
period of the process if they were a hospital discharge during the emergency period or if their 
needs increased and required a new care setting.  
 

• Enhancements to existing packages of care.  
 

• It will also cover the cost of any loss of ‘means tested’ income from this cohort by the local 
authority.  

 
• The costs of providing community health services to the homeless and rough-sleepers, 

wherever this accommodation may be situated.  
 
Funding is not intended to cover:  
 

• Existing funded packages of care (prior to 19th March 2020) that will remain funded on the 
normal basis, but that if there are material changes to the package, they will then fall within 
scope of these new arrangements. 
  

• Additional administrative burden on commissioners such as staffing and non-pay related costs 
incurred by CCGs and local authorities. CCG funding for this should be covered under the 

Page 133



 

 
 

 7 
 

“workforce” element of the COVID 19 response work.  
 

• Any extra costs associated with COVID 19 virus testing. 
 
The extent of the funding should be read together with the definition at paragraph A. 
 
 
E. The CCG role in providing Funding and the Funding flow from NHS England 
 
To enable funding flows to be as simple as possible, aspects of the current NHS ‘Who Pays?’ guidance 
are being set aside for the duration of the Covid-19 emergency..  
  
New rules will apply on NHS responsibility for paying for services to support hospital discharge and 
prevent avoidable admissions, as described in this document and in COVID-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service Requirements. NHS England is mandating these new rules using its powers under section 14Z7 
of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended in 2012).  
  
The new rules on NHS payment responsibility are as follows.  
  

a) For a service being contracted for directly by a CCG (rather than by a local authority), NHS 
responsibility for paying for a particular service will rest with the CCG in whose geographical 
area the service in question is physically located. Where a service is being provided in an 
individual’s own home, the physical location of the individual’s home will determine 
responsibility. 

 
b) For a service being contracted for by a local authority using a pooled fund, NHS responsibility 

for paying for a particular service will rest with the CCG which is agreed locally to be the “host 
CCG” for the local authority in whose geographic area the service in question is physically 
located. Where a service is being provided in an individual’s own home, the physical location of 
the individual’s home will determine responsibility. 

  
For the purpose of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service NHS City & Hackney CCG is the ‘host 
CCG’ for the London Borough of Hackney area. 
 
Funding will flow from NHS England to the CCG direct to the host CCG for the London Borough of 
Hackney area, to be passed on to the Council under this Agreement the Council has been identified 
locally as the lead commissioner, and thus on to the relevant providers. 
 
 
F. The Council role in providing Funding, the Funding flow from the CCG and the pooled 

budget 
 
The CCG will receive a cash-backed funding allocation related to patients under this arrangement. This 
funding shall be pooled with Council funding as follows: 
 

• The Council shall pool existing funding already allocated for care and support packages from 
the Council social care budget. The additional funding should be identifiable in reporting.  
 

• Once pooled, funding should be treated as a single pooled fund and used to deliver the 
appropriate care for individuals to be discharged under these new arrangements.  
 

• The budget set by the Council should be at a level that would have been expected to 
reasonably cover the costs of packages if COVID had not occurred.  
 

• The Council contribution to the existing hospital discharge arrangements should be calculated 
at a net budget level and thus 1/12th of the expected spend on discharges (and any additional 
support to maintain individuals in their care setting or stepping up to care home) should be 

Page 134



 

 
 

 8 
 

funded by the pool.  
 

• The Council must place an appropriate portion of their existing funding dedicated to adult social 
care into the pooled budget with the CCG, to ensure that there is no risk of debates about which 
fund should pay. This should include existing funding dedicated to discharge to assess 
spending. 
 

• The Council is expected to ensure that an appropriate market-rate is paid for support and will 
work together with the CCG to agree an approach to ensuring the market can sustain a rapid 
and significant increase in supply. This appropriate market-rate may need to reflect that some 
patients and the capacity being utilised would previously have been self funded.  
 

• The market rate should reflect that a) providers’ realistic additional costs are covered so they 
are sustainable and b) that what is paid during an emergency can be adjusted after that 
emergency.  
 

• For hospital discharges, it is expected that third party top-up fees would not be payable by 
residents as an appropriate market-rate for care would be paid to the providers of care. 
 
 

G. The CCG and Council role in requesting cash reimbursement from NHS England for the cost 
of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service  

 
1. The CCG will submit a monthly non-ISFE return to NHS England, by the required deadline that 

incorporates the actual spend on the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service in the preceding 
month. Following the monthly reconciliation carried out by the CCG and the Local Authority, any 
over/under claiming in a month will be adjusted in the following month’s Non-ISFE submission.  
 

2. The CCG will submit requests for cash funding in the monthly drawdown request to NHS 
England based on the CCG estimate of required funding and the Non-ISFE return.  

  
3. CCG allocations will be amended using the following:  

 
a. for 2019/20 the CCG should submit the COVID “19/20 cost reimbursement template” (final 

collection) and provide further details of the programme spend in the CCG’s month 12 non 
ISFE return.  
 

b. for 2020/21 the CCG should include the COVID cost collection within the CCG’s monthly 
non ISFE return that has been modified to include a new  tab to collect actual spend in the 
month. . The “non ISFE return” is included at Appendix 2 of Part Five of Schedule 1. 

 
The Council must complete the Local Authority Spend reimbursement template on a monthly basis; this 
template is included at Appendix 3 of Part Five of Schedule 1. The CCG cannot take responsibility for 
completing the Local Authority Spend reimbursement template or the accuracy of the information 
contained within it.  If the Local Authority Spend reimbursement template is not returned on time to the 
CCG, the CCG will not be able to submit the Non-ISFE return on time and this will delay payment to the 
Council. 
 
The consolidated monthly report will be submitted by the CCG (in accordance with the timetable below) 
so that the CCG and the Council are funded for the preceding month in a timely manner. This means 
that the Council submission of expenditure reporting to the CCG will need to be incorporated into the 

Page 135



 

 
 

 9 
 

CCG submission to NHS England. 
 
 
H. The Timetable for monthly activities relating to the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service  
 

When Party 
responsible 

Action 

During the preceding 
month 

London Borough 
of Hackney 

Accurately records expenditure on the COVID-19 
Hospital Discharge Service on the Local Authority Spend 
reimbursement template 

At the end of the 
preceding month 

London Borough 
of Hackney 

Close Local Authority Ledger for the preceding month 

Working Day 7 of the 
month 

CCG Close CCG Ledger for the preceding month 

Midday, Working Day 
8 of the month1, 2 

London Borough 
of Hackney 

Submit final Local Authority Spend reimbursement 
template to the CCG 

COP, Working Day 8 
of the month2 

CCG Complete and Submit final Non-ISFE return to NHS 
England 

Working Day 9 of the 
month 

London Borough 
of Hackney 

Send Invoice to CCG for COVID-19 Hospital Discharge 
Service monthly amount – the invoice should be marked 
for the attention of Sunil Thakker, Director of Finance 

Working Day 16 of 
the month 

CCG Complete and Submit cash drawn down request to NHS 
England 

Working Day 17 of 
the month 

London Borough 
of Hackney and 
the CCG 

Carry out a retrospective month-end reconciliation to 
ensure the actual costs submitted in the Non-ISFE 
reconcile back to the local authority and CCG actual, 
allowable COVID-19 hospital discharge service costs.  

Working Day 1 of the 
following month 

NHS England Release cash to the CCG Bank Account 

Next available BACS 
run 

CCG Pay invoice / transfer money to LBH  

 
NOTES 
1. Date has been confirmed as 21st April in Month 1 of 2020 due to bank holidays however this would usually be 

on WD8. 

 
2. The Working Day 8 deadline are: 

Year Reporting Month Deadline (WD8)        12 pm 

2019/20 March 20 20/04/2020 

2020/21 

April 20 14/05/2020 

May 20 10/06/2020 

June 20 10/07/2020 

July 20 12/08/2020 

August 20 10/09/2020 

September 20 12/10/2020 

October 20 11/11/2020 

November 20 10/12/2020 

December 20 13/01/2021 

January 21 10/02/2021 

February 21 10/03/2021 

March 21 14/04/2021 

 
3. The CCG will submit a monthly non-ISFE return to NHS England, by the required deadline that incorporates 

the amount spent on the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service in the preceding month. If deadlines are altered 
the CCG will notify the Council as soon as possible after the CCG becomes aware of the change. 

 

Page 136



 

 
 

 10 
 

 
 
I. Financial Reporting 
 
Expenditure will be recorded under the following Expenditure Categories: 
 

Expenditure 
Categories 

Definition 

Care Home A registered residential or nursing home  

Other care 
accommodation 

Other bed-based accommodation (excluding hospice). This may be in 
hotels or other buildings that temporarily house discharged patients. 

Domiciliary/home care Services provided in a person’s home.  

Reablement / 
intermediate care  
 

Services are generally provided in the person’s own home or care home, is 
intervention that involves intensive, time-limited assessment and 
therapeutic work over a period of time.  

Day Care Day Care Facilities may be called Day Hospitals, Centres, Facilities or 
Units. 

Respite care term used for services designed to give home carers a break from caring.  

Hospice Care, treatment, and support can be provided in accommodation or in the 
community. It can be long or short-term care, on an inpatient basis or 
provided through day care, day therapy or outreach services.  

Transport Any separate transport costs such as patient transport (PTS), volunteer 
drivers, taxis, local authority transport to enable the hospital discharge or 
meet the ongoing packages of support.  

Other Typically, equipment and adaptations. 

 
 
J. Consequences of the ending of the COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service 
 
Funding will continue for these individuals for a short period during the post-cessation phase, and NHS 
England will work with the CCG and the Council to ensure that an appropriate amount of time is allowed 
for a smooth transition for individuals to return back as safely as possible to pre-COVID-19 health and 
living standards with agreed funding arrangements.   
 
The care needs and financial assessment would be undertaken for all COVID-19 related individuals at 
the cessation of this agreement to provide a baseline going forward. Individuals provided with care 
packages under these arrangements must not face any requirement to refund commissioners 
retrospectively for the period in question.  
 
The commissioners will plan throughout the period that the enhanced discharge support process is 
running to ensure appropriate processes and governance are in place for the period following cessation 
of the enhanced discharge support process with the expectation that commissioner will endeavour to 
end this arrangement within two (2) months. As part of this, planning conversations should be taking 
place with patients and their families about the possibility that they will need to pay for their care later, 
as appropriate. 
 
  
  

Page 137



 

 
 

 11 
 

APPENDIX 1 - COVID-19 Hospital Discharge Service Requirements 
 

COVID-19_hospital_

discharge_service_requirements.pdf
 

 
 
APPENDIX 2 - non ISFE return template for financial reporting 

Section 75 non ISFE 

- Hospital Discharge Programme Template (003).xlsx
 

 
 
APPENDIX 3 – Local Authority spend reimbursement template 

Section 75 Local 

Authority Template v1.xlsx
 

 
APPENDIX 4 – C&H Discharge Single Point of Access Specification 
 

C&H Discharge 

Single Point of Access (DSPA)  V1.1.docx
 

Page 138



ID No

Original 

Date 

received

Impact Level CH

CCG

WEL

NEL

Workstream Area/ Service 

Type

CH 031 Apr-20 CH Planned Care/Voluntary

CH 038 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/LTC

CH 046 Mar-20 CH Prevention

CH 048 Mar-20 CH Prevention

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 139



CH 059 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ CYP

CH 062 Mar-20 CH CYPMF

CH 069 Apr-20 CH Planned Care/Acute Based

Page 140



CH 068 Apr-20 CH CYPMF/Children and Young 

People: Paediatric inpatients

CH 052 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ Maternity 

CH 030 Apr-20 CH Prevention

CH 001 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 002 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 003 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 004 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 005 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

Page 141



CH 006 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 007 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 008 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 009 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 010 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 014 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/ CHS

CH 015 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Independent

Page 142



CH 016 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Independent

CH 017 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Independent

CH 018 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Independent

CH 019 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Independent

CH 020 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Independent

CH 021 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Independent

CH 022 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Independent

CH 023 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Primary Care

CH 024 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Primary Care

Page 143



CH 025 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Primary Care

CH 026 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Primary Care

CH 027 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Primary Care

CH 028 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Voluntary

CH 029 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Voluntary

CH 032 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Voluntary

CH 033 Mar-20 NEL Prevention

CH 034 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/CHS

CH 035 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/LTC

CH 036 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/Voluntary

Page 144



CH 037 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/CHS

CH 040 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/LTC

CH 041 Mar-20 CH Prevention

CH 042 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/CHS

CH 043 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/CHS

Page 145



CH 045 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/LBH

CH 047 Mar-20 CH Planned Care/CHS

CH 049 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ Children 

Safeguarding

CH 050 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ Children 

Safeguarding

Page 146



CH 051 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ Maternity 

CH 053 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/Community CYP 

services

CH 054 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/Community CYP 

services

CH 055 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ Community CYP 

services

Page 147



CH 056 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/Children and Young 

People: Paediatric acute and 

outpatients

CH 057 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/Children and Young 

People: Paediatric acute and 

outpatients

Page 148



CH 058 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ CAMHS

CH 060 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ CAMHS

CH 061 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ CAMHS

Page 149



CH 063 Mar-20 CH CYPMF

CH 064 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ CAMHS

Page 150



CH 065 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ CAMHS

CH 066 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ CAMHS

Page 151



CH 067 Mar-20 CH CYPMF/ CAMHS

CH 070

CH 071

CH 072

CH 073

CH 074

Page 152



Service Name Provider
Who requested change (name & 

title)

HUH Phase 3 PR groups Homerton Hospital Laura Graham

Cardiac Rehab Homerton Hospital Laura Graham

LTC contract GP Confed

Group Consultations GP Confed Katharine Towers 

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 153



Community Eating Disorder Service ELFT ELFT

First Steps HUH HUH

TB Team Homerton Sue Collinson- TB Case Worker

Page 154



Paediatric inpatient ward (Starlight) HUH Provider

The Home birthing Service HUH HUH decision - NEL support 

Bereavment Counselling St Josephs

Bi-Lingual Advocacy Service HUH Jane Welch - Service Manager

Community Gynaecology HUH Sue Mann - Clinical lead

Continence Service HUH Stella Timms- Clinical Lead

Dermatology HUH Christopher Dunning -Service Lead

Dietetics HUH Amanda Herbet- Professional Lead

Page 155



FootHealth HUH Csaba Barody- Clinical Lead

Leg Ulcer Clinics HUH Stella Timms- Clinical Lead

Locomotor - MsK HUH Hilda Walsh - Head of Physiotherapy

Locomotor - Pain Service HUH Mel Rendall/ Anna Ferguson  - 

Service Lead

PFD Service HUH Stella Timms- Service Lead

Wheelchair HUH Jenny Richardson - Service Lead

Community ENT Communitas Anna Bernard, Head of Operations, 

Communitas

Page 156



Direct Access Audiology (AQP) Inhealth River Calveley, Head of Planned Care, 

CCG

Direct Access Audiology (AQP) Outside Clinic River Calveley, Head of Planned Care, 

CCG

Direct Access Audiology (AQP) Scrivens River Calveley, Head of Planned Care, 

CCG

Direct Access Audiology (AQP) Specsavers River Calveley, Head of Planned Care, 

CCG

Lymphoedema Accelerate Christine O'Connor, Commercial, 

Business and Operations Director, 

Accelerate CIC

Minor Eye Conditions Service Primary Eyecare Charles Greenwood, Operations, 

Primary Eyecare

Out of Area ToP Service (AQP) BPAS Hannah Wilkie, Service Lead

Minor Surgery Service Lawson Practice- 

Lawson Consortium

Deborah Colvin, GP Partner

Minor Surgery Service Nightingale Practice- 

Lawson Consortium

Jill White, Practice Manager

Page 157



Minor Surgery Service Well Street Surgery- 

Lawson Consortium

Rey Felek, Practice Manager

Phlebotomy (Practice based) GP Confed Amaia Portelli, Director of 

Operations, GP Confed

Post Operative Wound care GP Confed Amaia Portelli, Director of 

Operations, GP Confed

Hear to Help Service Action on Hearing Loss Sharon James, Community Support 

Officer, Action on Hearing Loss

Stroke Project Shoreditch Trust

Healthier Together Hackney - Cardio-

respiratory Phase IV Rehabilitation

GLL

National Diabetes Prevention Programme ICS Health and 

Wellbeing

Specialist Diabetes Service HUH

Diabetes Structured Education Homerton Hospital

Stroke/Neurology specialist disability gym Ability Bow

Page 158



Community Heart Failure Nursing Homerton Hospital

Homerton Stroke Homerton Hospital

Social Prescribing Family Action

ACERS - Respiratory Homerton Hospital

Diabetes Community Service Homerton Hospital

Page 159



Learning disabilities LBH integrated 

commissioning 

Community Sickle Cell HUH

Looked After Children (LAC) Initial health 

assessments

HUFT C&H LAC and SG Partners

Children's safeguarding HUFT / LBH and CoL 

Children's Social Care

C&H LAC and SG Partners

Page 160



Antenatal and Post natal Clinics HUH and associate 

providers (ie. UCLH) 

CAMHS services, Community Paediatrics, 

Occupational Therapy, Physiotherapy,    

Speech and Language Therapy

HUH HUH

The School Nursing Service HUH HUH

Health visiting - New birth Home visits and 

Blood spots

HUH HUH

Page 161



1. Paeds Epilepsy 

2. Paeds Dermatology 

3. Paeds Gastro 

4. Paeds Rheumatology

5. Paeds T.B (TBC)

6. Paeds UTI 

7. Paeds Bladder 

HUH HUH

1.Paeds Allergy Clinics

2. Paeds Dietitian Clinics

3.Paeds Challenges

4.Paeds ENT (apart from Urgent slots – 

typically about two a week)

5.Paeds Surgery

6.Paeds Ophthalmology

7.Paeds Max Fac

8.Paeds Urology

9.Paeds Cardiology (Dr P. Venugopalan)

10.Paeds General Medicine (New)

11.Paeds Epilepsy (New)

12.Paeds Gastro (New)

13.Paeds Gastro (New)

14.Paeds Rheumatology (New)

15.Paeds UTI (New)

16. Paeds Bladder (New)                                                                                                   

17. Paeds CAMHS (New & FUs)

HUH HUH 

Page 162



Specialist (Child and Adolescent Mental 

Health Services) CAMHs

ELFT ELFT

Special Schools WAMHS/MHST; ELFT; 

Secondary schools and 

PRU

Providers

CAMHS Disability; HUH HUH

Page 163



Special Schools WAMHS; HUH; Primary Providers

CFS Clinical Service: LA Local Authority LA

Page 164



Off Centre Family Action: Voluntary Sector Providers

Adolescent Mental Health The Coborn System partners

Page 165



Perinatal mental health HUH

Page 166



Deputy Director Lead Commissioning Lead

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Jayne Taylor Charlotte Painter

Jayne Taylor Charlotte Painter

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 167



Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray

Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Page 168



Amy Wilkinson Sarah Darcy

Amy Wilkinson Ilaria Torre 

Jayne Taylor Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper River Calveley

Siobhan Harper River Calveley

Siobhan Harper River Calveley

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Page 169



Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper River Calveley

Siobhan Harper River Calveley

Siobhan Harper River Calveley

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Page 170



Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper River Calveley

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Page 171



Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper James Courtney

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Jayne Taylor Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Page 172



Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Jayne Taylor Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Page 173



Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Siobhan Harper Charlotte Painter

Amy Wilkinson Anna Jones (Des Nurse LAC 

CCG) 

Amy Wilkinson Mary Lee (Des Nurse SG CCG)

Page 174



Amy Wilkinson Ilaria Torre 

Amy Wilkinson Sarah Darcy

Amy Wilkinson Nadia Sica

Amy Wilkinson Nadia Sica

Page 175



Amy Wilkinson Sarah Darcy

Amy Wilkinson Sarah Darcy

Page 176



Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray

Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray and Sophie 

McElroy

Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray

Page 177



Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray and Sophie 

McElroy

Amy Wilkinson Laura Smith

Page 178



Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray and Sophie 

McElroy

Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray and Ellie 

Duncan

Page 179



Amy Wilkinson Fiona Murray and Ilaria Torre

Page 180



Initial Query / Request
Change Category

(Stop/Start/Continue/Other)

Exploring virtual / online options currently. Latest 

update from the service as follows: 

 Assessing all new referrals over the phone. 

Anyone assessed has been provided with a 

remote option or HEP, uptake is variable and we 

Other

Exploring virtual / online options currently. Latest 

update from the service as follows: 1)  For all 

patients assessed (i.e.) who have had an exercise 

capacity test, we have enrolled them on a remote 

CR programme, either the Heart Manual (which 

we have always had) or Activate my Heart (free 

during COVID) or a HEP provided by the 

physiotherapists. 2) New Referrals: We are 

assessing over the phone all new referrals, 

providing phase 1 and 2 of rehab and the 

education for Phase 3.  We sign-post to BHF but 

we cannot prescribe exercise as we do not have 

an exercise capacity test. 

Other

Only essential contacts and reviews taking place. 

work ongoing with Primary care about starting to 

review their most at risk patients. Clinical 

pathways and searches have been created.  The 

first groups to be included are people with 

uncontrolled diabetes, severe Asthma and severe 

COPD as well as Learning Disabilities. 

Other

Suspended - Currently looking at using a virtual 

model 

Other

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 181



Reduction of service Provision and Change in 

Service delivery method (e.g. telephone 

appointments vs face to face

Other -  Virtual approach

Prioritising - moving to virtual where possible Other -  Virtual approach

Prioritising urgent work. Increased home visiting 

and giving more medication to minimise f2f 

contact. Nurse/Consultant time switched to 

COVID-19 response. 

Continue- prioritising urgent

Page 182



Paediatric Inpatients admissions into Starlight 

Ward  

Other - Prioritising emergency

Suspension of serivce April 24/04/2020: Service 

reinstated

March 2020 : Suspension of 

service 

Contacting all clients to offer telephone 

counselling - some are deciding to wait to be seen 

face-to-face again but hoping to provide as much 

as possible to those who want it.

Other

All interpretation moved to phone only with 

exception of BSL where essential only 

Continue with virtual approach

Prioritising an triaging urgent patients only for 

face to face. Existing bookings are being reviewed 

and redirected to HUH if appropriate. Telephone 

clinics being undertaken if appropriate. FU 

appointments have been cancelled and patients 

Other -  Virtual approach

Moved to telephone assessment in the main. 

Home visits available for patients at risk of 

complications. Ad hoc clinics for catheter issues. 

Working with DNs to review care plans for 

patients with catheters. 

Other -  Virtual approach

The patients are being converted to ASI's then 

being triaged. running telephone and video 

consultations

Other -  Virtual approach

Moved to telephone appointments only.  Dietetics 

triaging all referrals, adding non nutrition support 

referrals to a waiting list for future pick up. All 

nutrition support referrals are being offered 

telephone appointments.

Other -  Virtual approach

Page 183



Face to face clinic only for urgent patients- 

emergency clinic run daily. Patients/Clinicians can 

book by phone. Routine patients supported by 

phone. Foot orthotics sent by post after phone 

assessment. Supporting inpatients and 

Community Nursing. Link to RLH Vascular Team if 

advice needed.  

Other -  Virtual approach

Patients switched to wraps/kits to support self-

care. Telephone follow-up. Home visit/emergency 

clinic for concerns. Tissue viability triaging all 

referrals. 

Service continues as per patient 

needs

Prioritising - moving to telephone assessement, 

providing exercise online and looking for virtual 

solutions where possible. No routine face to face 

activity. All referrals are screened. Patient who 

may be urgent or of concern receive a phone or 

video assessment. 

Continue with virtual approach 

only

All new referrals are being screened by Senior 

Staff in the Pain Service. However, patients are 

being informed that clinics have been reduced to 

telephone consultations or in some cases closed 

until further notice. Patients where appropriate 

are being screened to other parts of the service, 

informed of wait or if want to be discharged back 

to the GP this is actioned with a letter. Other than 

groups and classes, all elements of the service 

remain open, albeit with a reduced MDT 

assessment time and more limited follow up due 

to capacity.

Continue with virtual approach 

only

Prioritising - moving to virtual where possible Other -  Virtual approach

All referrals are logged & triaged by senior clinical 

staff. The following services are provided as usual: 

Urgent assessments, equipment provision and 

equipment repairs

Clinical Priorities ~  pressure ulcers, falls, WCS 

equipment failure, supporting community care 

package provision, hospital discharges, admission 

avoidance.  Face-to-face provided at home- not in 

clinic. Closed- customised seating, non urgent 

repairs, routine clinical assessment, routine 

equipment provision. 

Other -  Virtual approach

No longer running face-to-face services following 

the issuing of new guidance. Launched virtual 

consultations.

Other- Virtual Approach

Page 184



No longer running face-to-face services following 

the issuing of new guidance. Aftercare continues 

to be provided remotely.

Other- Virtual Approach

No longer running face-to-face services following 

the issuing of new guidance. Aftercare continues 

to be provided remotely.

Other- Virtual Approach

No longer running face-to-face services following 

the issuing of new guidance. Aftercare continues 

to be provided remotely.

Other- Virtual Approach

No longer running face-to-face services following 

the issuing of new guidance. Aftercare continues 

to be provided remotely.

Other- Virtual Approach

Prioritising urgent visits/care only (Text message 

and phone call to run through NHS111 

assessment). 

Other -  Prioritising Urgents

Only providing face-to-face in urgent cases. Virtual 

consultations launched for routine. 

Other- Virtual Approach

Switching to virtual where possible. Continuing 

with face-to-face and surgery where require.  

COVID-19 screening as necessary and PPE 

precautions taken as needed. New postal system 

for some terminations introduced after virtual 

appointments 

Continuing

No longer running face-to-face services following 

the issuing of new guidance. 

Stop

No longer running face-to-face services following 

the issuing of new guidance. 

Stop

Page 185



No longer running face-to-face services following 

the issuing of new guidance. 

Stop

Operating as necessary - screening patients Continuing

Operating as necessary - screening patients Continuing

Service closed but offering telephone support to 

patients

Other

Staff will continue to provide a service, contacting 

all clients to put in place a remote support plan 

and regular telephone contact.  This support will 

include reviewing individual support networks, 

ensuring that clients are confident about the 

latest Government guidance and can take any 

action according to their own individual situation 

as things unfold.

Other

Service signposting patients to how they can 

remain active at home, as well as other healthy 

lifestyle advice. Developing plans to remain in 

contact with all those currently attending these 

classes and contacting individuals programmes 

able to restart.

Stop

Virtual group education sessions will start from 

Monday 30 March.  Patients will be contacted via 

telephone.  Referrals will continue to be accepted 

and work is continuing to clear any backlog and 

invite patients to attend these sessions.

Other - Virtual 

Service largely suspended - Nurses have been 

recalled to help on the wards.  Dietitians will 

continue to offer support to patients and 

practices but are short staffed. Minimum in 

practice support available.  Centralised requests 

for patient reviews and remote review.  Still 

working through the details of this. Diabetes 

psychology continuing via remote working. 

Other

Face to face services suspended Stop

New referrals will still be accepted, assessments 

over the phone, and offer of an alternative 

‘remote’ service for gym members.

Other

Page 186



> continuing with home visits where there is 

urgent need, eg decompensating HF symptoms.  

>Any new referrals and patients discharged 

following HF admission are phone reviewed first 

then will be home visited according to clinical 

need.

>avoiding all non essential contacts

Other

>TIA services for new patients to continue as 

normal

>Currently only urgent follow ups are being seen

>Routine follow ups are being cancelled across 

the Trust

>6 month follow ups are all being done via 

telephone clinic

Other

> All sessions to be carried out by telephone

> Continuing to accept referrals, particularly those 

who GPs feel could be most vulnerable during this 

time.  Working with Volunteer Centre Hackney to 

triage support requests and match volunteers.

Other

New Referrals: Triaged. Phone call. Home visit 

only if essential.  Hospital at home and home 

oxygen services running as usual .        At risk' and 

urgent patients been identified and reviewed                                                             

Admission Avoidance

• Referral via on call phone 07920150074 for 

Other

New nurse referrals are contacted by telephone 

for advice. Where a patient needs to be started 

on insulin, or is urgent in another way, they will 

be brought in to the diabetes centre for 

consultation, these will be small in number. 

Advice line running as usual, patients can call in 

for advice by telephone, patients starting on 

insulin will continue to be seen face to face to 

start vital treatment. 'at risk' and urgent patients 

have been identified and reviewed those who are 

booked are being contacted by nurses by 

telephone. Where necessary these patients will 

still be brought in to the hospital for face to face 

appointments.

Other

Page 187



Minimal face to face OP for urgent psychiatry 

(based at St. Leonards). Team doing welfare calls 

by phone and ensuring all have a hospital 

passport.  Significant increase in capacity in duty 

function, safeguarding being maintained. 

Increased care packages being offerred to people 

previously on day care packages. CTRs going 

ahead only when essential.

Other

New referrals are being managed by Contacted 

via text on Anytime Anywhere and video call 

conducted with patients on the same platform. 

Psychology sessions and assessments running as 

normal. Therapy method has changed to video 

calls on Anytime Anywhere, rather than face to 

face. No more ward rounds to visit patients on the 

wards. The following Have been closed: MDT 

meetings with the wider team until further notice. 

We are communicating via email.

Other

Prioritising - moving to virtual where possible Other -  Virtual approach

Prioritising - moving to virtual where possible Other -  Virtual approach

Page 188



Prioritising - moving to virtual where possible Other -  Virtual approach

Reduction of all non-emergency provision of face 

to face within these community services. 

Other -  Prioritising Urgents

Reduction of all non-emergency provision of face 

to face within these community services. 

Other -  Virtual approach

Reduction of all non-emergency provision of face 

to face within these community services. 

Other -  Virtual approach

Page 189



Reduction of service Provision and Change in 

Service delivery method (e.g. telephone 

appointments vs face to face?

Other -  Virtual approach

Closure of Services Stop

Page 190



Reduction of service Provision and Change in 

Service delivery method (e.g. telephone 

appointments vs face to face

Other -  A combination of virtual 

and face to face

Move to  telephone consultation or advice only. Other -  Virtual approach

Prioritising - moving to virtual where possible Other -  Virtual approach

Page 191



Move to  Virtual consultation or advice . Other -  Virtual approach - 

Telephone consultations

Continue

Page 192



Move to  Virtual consultation or advice . Other

Limited Service Provision; Priorisation o fdischarge 

pathway

Other

Page 193



Prioritising - moving to virtual where possible Other -  Virtual approach

Page 194



Commissioner comments/notes - 

amalgamate with commissioner / 

provider suggested course of action

Commissioner assessed Impact on 

Patients

Agreed Exploring virtual / online options 

currently

Exploring virtual / online options 

currently

Exploring virtual / online options 

currently

reduced activity with patients. work 

ongoing with Primary care about 

starting to review their most at risk 

patients. Clinical pathways and 

searches have been created.  The first 

groups to be included are people with 

uncontrolled diabetes, severe Asthma 

and severe COPD as well as Learning 

Disabilities. 

Reduced monitoring and recording. 

work ongoing with Primary care about 

starting to review their most at risk 

patients. Clinical pathways and searches 

have been created.  The first groups to 

be included are people with 

uncontrolled diabetes, severe Asthma 

and severe COPD as well as Learning 

Disabilities. 

Suspended - Currently looking at using 

a virtual model 

Suspended - Currently looking at using a 

virtual model 

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 195



Existing Clients

A service will still be delivered, even 

though this will be reduced. Should all 

routine appointments of stable 

patients need to be suspended in the 

future, these young people and their 

families will be advised on how to 

identify increasing risk. If young people 

or their families feel that their child’s 

difficulties are becoming more urgent, 

the service will offer a more urgent 

telephone response service where they 

can discuss their concerns with a duty 

clinician and the service will try to help 

advise on how to manage the situation.

 New referrals

A reduced service will be provided, 

where only referrals which require an 

immediate crisis response will be 

accepted. 

 

 

Currently, the service is contacting 

young people and their families by 

telephone to offer some continuing 

support and ideas of how their 

treatment can continue using self-help 

and digital resources and offering 

telephone/virtual reviews as well as 

advising on how to manage risks. 

Update 29/04/20: CAMHS have now 

resumed accepting new referrals from 

professionals only. 

Update 29/04/20: CAMHS now 

accepting new referrals from 

professionals only 

March 2020: New referrals 

Closing to all new referrals as of 5pm 

Tuesday 17th March. This includes self-

referrals. 

 

Existing Clients 

Majority of patient contacts will be 

over the phone.

The service are prioritising cases where 

there is risk.

The service continue to support work 

with professional colleagues in emails 

and calls but patient care is the priority.

Limited face to face consultations

Agreed COVID demands mean switching to 

prioritising urgent necessary

Page 196



UPDATE 24/04/20: The Paediatric 

inpatient ward has re-opened today. 

April 2020: Provider has directed that 

all Paeds that need admission will now 

go to the Royal London. HUFT 

Paediatric A&E will remain open

UPDATE 24/04/20: Patients can now be 

admitted into the ward

April 2020:Paediatric  patients are being 

diverted to the Royal London

UPDATE 24/04/2020: Resumed 

Homebirth service and return to BAU. 

Women have been contacted as 

appropriate. 

March 2020: The home birthing service 

has been suspended, due to risks 

flagged by LAS (increased demand 

UPDATE 24/04/2020: Resumed 

Homebirth service and return to BAU.

March 2020: Access to home birthing 

service not available to patients

Plan to operate a phone service and 

develop other forms of support during 

the COVID period. 

No face to face Service

Agreed Can be less effective than face to face 

but will meet the outcomes necessary

Agreed Routine face to face delayed indefinitely 

Agreed Face to face activity limited but mostly 

deferred.

Agreed No face to face consultations 

Agreed No face to face consultations 

Page 197



Agreed No face to face consultations 

Agreed Minimal service change. More 

telephone assessment of urgency of 

need

Agreed No routine face to face. Urgent may be 

prioritised for face to face as deemed 

necessary 

Agreed No routine face to face. Urgent may be 

prioritised for face to face as deemed 

necessary 

Agreed No face to face consultations 

Agreed No face to face consultations 

Guidance leading to ending f2f: 

https://www.cbsgb.co.uk/news/33/cut

ting_surgeons_risk 

No face to face consultations 

Page 198

https://www.cbsgb.co.uk/news/33/cutting_surgeons_risk
https://www.cbsgb.co.uk/news/33/cutting_surgeons_risk
https://www.cbsgb.co.uk/news/33/cutting_surgeons_risk


Requested block contract - denied as 

per NHSE 

No face to face consultations 

Guidance recommending closing f2f 

community audiology- 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavir

us/wp-

content/uploads/sites/52/2020/03/CO

VID-19-prioritisation-within-community-

health-services-with-annex_19-March-

2020.pdf

No face to face consultations 

Guidance recommending closing f2f 

community audiology- 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavir

us/wp-

content/uploads/sites/52/2020/03/CO

VID-19-prioritisation-within-community-

health-services-with-annex_19-March-

2020.pdf

No face to face consultations 

Requested block contract - denied as 

per NHSE 

No face to face consultations 

Offered to help with domicilliary 

wound care if there was a gap in 

provision during COVID. 

Prioritising urgent visits/care only

Offered to help with referral 

refinement and follow up in 

community. 

N/A

Needed to maintain services N/A

N/A No face to face consultations 

N/A No face to face consultations 

Page 199



N/A No face to face consultations 

Prioritising patients  to enable ongoing 

mgt in primary care

Focus on priority patients/ ongoing 

management in pry care

Prioritising patients  to enable ongoing 

mgt in primary care

N/A

Plan to operate a phone service and 

develop other forms of support during 

the COVID period. 

No face to face consultations

Plan to operate a phone service and 

develop other forms of support during 

the COVID period. 

No face to face Service

Plan to remain in contact by telephone. Usual service suspended

Service continues on a non face to face 

basis. Referrals still being accepted.

No face to face Service

Face to face service largely suspended.  

Urgent patients will be asked to attend 

the hospital centre with a prescription 

from GP.

Service suspended 

No other information No Service at present

Virtula service being offered No face to face Service

Page 200



Service available on an urgency basis. reduced routine service

Conitues as normal for some patients. 

Telephone for follow ups as needed

rotuine face to face deferred

Telephone advice and support 

available. 

No face to face Service

Reduced services. Avoiding Face to face 

and home visits. Traige and 

prioritisation in place

Reduced services and less face to face. 

More support by phone as appropriate

Reduced services All face to face contact with patients 

have been reduced/replaced with 

telephone or attend anytime contact.

Page 201



Reduced face to face activity. Move to 

telephone etc

Reduceed serviee

Reduced service Reduced service

Designated nurse for LAC is overseeing  

and picking up any gaps at the 

moment. 

Limited face to face consultations

Supporting virtual child protection 

arrangements, including virtual case 

conferencing and MDT's with Children's 

social care to risk stratify and ensure on-

going support. 

Measures being put in place include;

1. Ensuring continued delivery of child 

protection medicals etc. .

2. Agreeing MDTs for assurance around 

children placed out of area

3. Co-ordinating safety guidance for 

Limited face to face consultations.

Direct visits to children/young people at 

home with their families/carers will only 

be required in the following 

circumstances:

1. When a child/young person has 

suffered harm, or there is an immediate 

risk of harm to the child/young person 

that warrants removal of the child from 

their family (visit to be undertaken 

jointly with Police)

Page 202



Antenatal clinics are moving mostly to 

virtual appointments (bookings, 16 

weeks appointments and other follow 

ups or obstetric follow ups, where 

possible). Face to face elements now 

done with nuchal scan at 12 or 20 

weeks. Similar process for 

postnatal women and babies, apart 

from those considered most at risk, 

who will still be seen F2F, and all babies 

for new birth visit

Limited face to face consultations

Services will communicate directly with 

the families of children attending 

school. 

The trust is also urgently exploring safe 

and confidential video conferencing 

and face to face telephone systems.  

Staff will be asked to continue to 

support teaching staff through 

telephone contact, the provision and 

maintenance of therapy programmes, 

and where possible training.  

Services will no longer routinely provide 

a direct service on school sites. 

Provision of health care will be under 

urgent or essential circumstances. Visits 

to see a particular child may be 

provided where essential.  

The School Nursing Service will 

continue to provide a service to the 

three special schools at present. A lead 

health professional has been allocated 

to the three special schools; these staff 

will act as a key point of contact in 

regard of health service provision 

during the coming weeks or months

Face to face health care provision will 

be under urgent or essential 

circumstances only

Staff are currently using the telephone 

assessments when necessary. Based on 

the assessment and  history, a follow 

up visit will be booked; Following the 

latest triage advice For those where a 

visit can not be undertaken, a 

telephone consultation will be being 

offered ( Work is being done to 

facilitate the use of the recommended 

IT solutions)

Face to face health care provision will 

be under urgent or essential 

circumstances only

Page 203



1. Paeds Epilepsy -  (Phone 

Consultation with FUs)

2. Paeds Dermatology - (Phone  

onsultation/photos of affected areas to 

be emailed to a dedicated email 

address)

3. Paeds Gastro (Phone Consultation 

with FUs)

4. Paeds Rheumatology (Phone 

Consultation with FUs)

5. Paeds T.B (TBC)

6. Paeds UTI (Phone Consultation with 

FUs)

7. Paeds Bladder (Phone Consultation 

with FUs)

Limited face to face consultations

N/A

Page 204



Contingency plan is being activated 

The focus is to continue to provide 

essential and critical services to young 

people and their families and gradual 

reduction and management of non-

urgent work. 

a combination of face to face contact 

as well as use of other mobile 

technologies. Existing cases, where 

necessary, will have telephone / Web-

Ex (rolled out sporadically) reviews 

from w/c 23rd March.

The service anticipates having all 

essential areas covered such as 

reception, triage, crisis, Consultant 

support, but responses might be a little 

slower than usual. Staffing capacity will 

be reviewed in line with government 

guidance

Most new routine referrals will not be 

accepted due to potential reduced 

capacity. Triage will be continuing. 

Referrers and parents and carers will be 

provided with details of where online 

support can be found. They will also be 

told to contact the service again if the 

child or young person deteriorates. 

 Once schools are open to vulnerable 

pupils only, this may be in the form of 

pulling clinicians out of schools and 

offering telephone consultation or 

advice only.

Until there is a direction to close 

schools, the service will continue to 

provide Services. 

New referrals 

Closure of all new referrals as of 5pm 

on Tuesday 17th March. This includes 

self-referrals. Urgent or risk related 

referrals will be seen by the team. 

 

Existing Clients 

Majority of patient contacts will be 

over the phone.

The service continue to support work 

with professional colleagues in emails 

and calls but patient care is the priority.

  

Limited acceptance  of new referrals by 

Service; urgent referrals to be accepted. 

Limited face to face consultations, 

Virtual approach

Page 205



Clinicians will not be visiting their 

schools, but will be available for 

consultation, advice and any other 

work they can do from their base at the 

Ark.

Limited face to face consultations

New Referrals

Clinicians continue to take new 

referrals including via the CAMHS ‘no 

wrong door’ via 

ClinicalTeam@hackney.gov.uk 

 

Existing Clients

Clinicians are mostly working from 

home, but continuing clinical work 

using video and telephone sessions / 

consultations. The service will continue 

to operate a same day crisis service, 

but anticipate having less capacity for 

face-to-face clinical risk 

assessment/management. Clinicians 

are available for virtual meetings, 

preferably using Google Hangouts, 

Zoom, or conference calls.

  

Page 206



New Referrals

The service will be risk assessing each 

case and providing additional check in 

sessions as required and linking them 

into other resources as appropriate. 

The service will continue to offer 

regular individual sessions and 

assessments for new referrals, 

conducting these over the telephone or 

via video online until it is safe to return 

to normal working practices. 

 

Existing Clients

There will be no face-to-face groups or 

services at Off Centre for the 

foreseeable future. The service is 

offering online group video sessions for 

Project Indigo (LGBTIQ+ drop-in youth 

group) at the usual time of 5.30-

7.30pm on Thursdays. 

The service is continuing to offer the 

Wednesday group via telephone or 

video. These group members have 

been contacted regarding their choice 

of ongoing provision. 

 

The service is also offering the therapy 

drop-in service via telephone on 

No face to face consultations

RAG Ratings are being carried out for 

all young people in the service. The 

service will send a weekly update to 

each borough's ACDs, Consultants and 

Care coordinators.

 

All RAG Rated green young people at 

Limited face to face consultations; The 

trust has stopped all visits to all ELFT 

sites

Page 207



Currently about 50% of the team are 

having to work from home, the whole 

team have access to email/virtual 

meeting platforms. The team are still 

waiting for a few members to get 

remote working access to RiO. Team 

base is open with 3-5 members of staff 

onsite daily. Admin is very limited. 

 

The service is setting up a duty system 

– currently remains via 0208 5108151. 

A member of staff will be allocated 

every day as duty and they will have 

access to support/advice. 

 

The team remains open to referrals via 

elft.chperinatal@nhs.net but the 

threshold may need to be higher than 

previously especially if staffing levels 

decrease. Urgent referrals will still 

need to go via UAT.

 

The team are having daily team 

meetings via Zoom/MS Teams to 

discuss cases, concern, referrals and 

allocated new assessments. 

 

Postnatal reviews on Templar ward will 

Page 208



Commissioner assessed Impact 

on Pathways

Commissioner assessed 

Impact on Payments

Is National 

Guidance 

available for 

this area?

If Yes - does the 

change request 

align with 

National 

Guidance?

Exploring virtual / online options 

currently

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual /online 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

reduced service. work ongoing 

with Primary care about starting 

to review their most at risk 

patients. Clinical pathways and 

searches have been created.  The 

first groups to be included are 

people with uncontrolled 

diabetes, severe Asthma and 

severe COPD as well as Learning 

Disabilities. 

N/A Yes Yes

Suspended - Currently looking at 

using a virtual model 

N/A Yes Yes

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 209



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of urgent 

pathway.

N/A Yes Yes

Page 210



UPDATE 24/04/20: Inpatients no 

longer being diverted and now 

admitted to HUFT Starlight Ward - 

resumed BAU.

April 2020:Redirection of patients 

to Royal London

N/A N/A N/A

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of telephone 

assessments 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Page 211



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Increased use of telephone N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Page 212



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

N/A N/A Yes Yes

N/A Yes Yes

N/A N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Page 213



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

N/A N/A Yes Yes

N/A N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

Yes

service suspended N/A Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes

service suspended N/A Yes Yes

No services N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Page 214



routine not availabel N/A Yes Yes

Some new virtual follow up. N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Less contact and face to face N/A Yes Yes

All face to face contact with 

patients have been 

reduced/replaced with telephone 

or attend anytime contact.

N/A Yes Yes

Page 215



reduced service N/A Yes Yes

Reduced service N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Page 216



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways. Face to face service 

provision will only be under 

urgent or essential circumstances 

only 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways. Face to face service 

provision will only be under 

urgent or essential circumstances 

only 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways. Face to face service 

provision will only be under 

urgent or essential circumstances 

only 

N/A Yes Yes

Page 217



N/A Yes Yes

N/A Yes Yes

Page 218



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways; Face to face service 

provision under urgent or 

essential circumstances only 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Page 219



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

N/A Yes Yes

Page 220



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Assessments and Prioritising 

Discharge pathway

N/A Yes Yes

Page 221



Implementation of Virtual 

pathways 

N/A Yes Yes

Page 222



Lead Commissioner / Provider 

Suggested course of action - 

amalgamate with commissioner 

comments

Is this a request for 

retrospective 

approval?

Date rec'd by 

C&H 

Consideration 

Panel

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 223



The service has a pop-up critical response 

team which will consist of 2-3 team 

members and will be based at the hub, 

Emanuel Miller Centre on 11, Gill Street. 

This on-site team will be available to 

conduct face to face immediate crisis 

reviews/immediate crisis assessments, 

Mon-Fri between 10:00am-4:00pm. 

N/A

N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Page 224



Yes N/A

Suspend for safety reasons, in line with 

most NEL trusts. 

N/A

agreed Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Page 225



Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Change accepted as necessary course of 

action

Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Page 226



Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Page 227



Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

Agreed to implement national guidance Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

Page 228



agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

Page 229



agreed Yes N/A

agreed Yes N/A

Our Designated Doctor for LAC and the 

Designated Doctor for Camden have 

drafted an assessment tool specifically 

for telephone consultations (is with NEL 

CYP COVID response group for 

circulation). The plan is that nurses will 

also be able to use the tool if / when the 

doctors get re-deployed.

Yes N/A

The CH Safeguarding Children's 

Partnership are collating all partners 

safeguarding contingency plans for 

review

Yes N/A

Page 230



Revised postnatal and antenatal 

guidelines have been communicated to 

Primary Care (basically all ante and 

postnatal appts are going virtual apart 

from the new birth visit and those for the 

most vulnerable women).

N/A

A letter has gone to schools / settings  for 

cascade to families to advise, along with 

local Public Heath guidance for schools 

continuing to operate for children of key 

workers and vulnerable childen. Close 

working with Hackney Learning Trust. 

N/A

A letter has gone to schools / settings for 

cascade to families to advise, along with 

local Public Heath guidance for schools 

continuing to operate for children of key 

workers and vulnerable childen. Close 

working with Hackney Learning Trust. 

N/A

A letter has gone to schools / settings or 

cascade to families to advise, along with 

local Public Heath guidance for schools 

continuing to operate for children of key 

workers and vulnerable childen. Close 

working with Hackney Learning Trust. 

N/A

Page 231



 Urgent face to face appointments are 

still holding, all other referrals and 

booked appointments are being 

reviewed and vetted and where 

appropriate followed up with telephone 

consultation

N/A

CCG / System / HUFT will keep under 

review. 

N/A

Page 232



There is priority on the provision of the 

following critical services;

·       Crisis and home treatment 

intervention including admission 

avoidance and supporting discharges 

from Tier 4

·       Daily Duty system

·       Face to face review of ‘Red’ cases at 

clinics

·       Triage functions

·       Assessment of urgent referrals.

N/A

Service to continue until complete 

closure of schools

N/A

N/A

Page 233



N/A

N/A

Page 234



N/A

N/A

Page 235



Routine appointments are no longer seen 

face to face and almost all interactions 

with patients will be via telephone, skype 

or virtual apps such as zoom. All new 

assessments are being done on phone. 

Provider has confirned that so far  no-

one has been identified that we had to 

see F2F as emergency

Page 236



C&H Consideration Panel 

Recommendation
Risk (Describe)

Agree change and review monthly  Progress stalled

Agree change and review monthly Service reduced

Agree change and review monthly Impact on long term condiiton outcomes

Agree change and review monthly Impact on long term aims for transformation

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 237



N/A . It is unclear how long this will last.

N/A Contingency plan activated from Tuesday 17th March

The service are prioritising cases where there is risk.

Urgent or risk related referrals will be seen by the team. 

'Kooth' online CAMHS live from 01st April for 11 year olds 

+.

  Crisis support directed to ELFT

N/A minimal

Page 238



N/A

N/A

Agree change and review monthly Service offer reduced 

N/A minimal

N/A routine patients may become urgent over time

N/A needs not identified 

N/A routine patients may become urgent over time

N/A needs not identified 

Page 239



N/A needs not identified 

N/A minimal

N/A Routine physio delayed indefinitely

N/A routine pain management delayed 

N/A routine appointments/Group sessions delayed indefinitely.

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

Page 240



N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

Page 241



N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

N/A Unmet need for routine patients

Agree change and review monthly Service reduced

Agree change and review monthly service unavailable

Agree change and review monthly Virtual service

Agree change and review monthly No routine services - may impact long term conditions of 

patient

Agree change and review monthly Service not available

Agree change and review monthly Service reduced

Page 242



Agree change and review monthly Service reduced

Agree change and review monthly Service reduced

Agree change and review monthly Virtual service

Agree change and review monthly Service reduced

Agree change and review monthly service will impact long term care

Page 243



Agree change and review monthly reduced service

Agree change and review monthly May increase acute activity

N/A There is increased risk of safeguarding and child protection 

issues during the pandemic due to the pressure on 

households in self isolation, without 'safe adults' in schools 

and settings and economic pressures. A clear virtual 

pathway and weekly MDT review process is being put in 

place and implemented in partnership with Children's 

Social Care. Risks around capacity and oversight due to NEL 

key staff redeployments. Some NEL co-ordination of 

capacity ie, to cover Nightingale. These local risks will be 

closely monitored by the C&H System over the next few 

weeks. 
N/A There is increased risk of safeguarding and child protection 

issues during the pandemic due to the pressure on 

households in self isolation, without 'safe adults' in schools 

and settings and economic pressures. A clear virtual 

pathway and weekly MDT review process is being put in 

place and implemented in partnership with Children's 

Social Care. Risks around capacity and oversight due to NEL 

key staff redeployments. Some NEL co-ordination of 

capacity ie, to cover Nightingale. These local risks will be 

closely monitored by the C&H System over the next few 

weeks. 

Page 244



N/A Staffing level: HUFT reports as  currently coping - have split 

into 2 management units and have 21 staff off. Other units 

seem to struggling  more capacity wise. Risk around LAS 

and response times for emergency births. Strong ELLMS / 

NEL co-ordination of risk and contingency.

N/A Services will undertake a risk assessment of each child or 

young person to determine appropriate support that will 

continue to take place.

N/A

N/A

Page 245



N/A Risk of backlog of appointments and delayed 

treatments.To be kept under reivew.

N/A Risk of backlog of appointments and delayed 

treatments.To be kept under reivew.

Page 246



N/A New Referrals: Cases deemed high risk, particularly those 

that fit within the Crisis Team and AMHT, will have an 

assessment and be followed up as deemed 

clinically appropriate

Existing Clients: All clinicians within the Service are 

currently RAG rating their cases based on risk/need, so 

there is shared understanding of clinical prioritisation and 

plans can be developed to ensure young people are 

managed in a safe way through the crisis. This should 

continue to be monitored. Particular risk around CYP need 

CAMHS support, but virtual contingencies in place.

N/A

N/A The service are prioritising cases where there is risk. Crisis 

support directed to ELFT

Page 247



N/A Contingency plan activated from Tuesday 17th March

The service are prioritising cases where there is risk.

Urgent or risk related referrals will be seen by the team. 

'Kooth' online CAMHS live from 01st April for 11 year olds 

+.

  Crisis support directed to ELFT

N/A Contingency plan activated from Tuesday 17th March

The service are prioritising cases where there is risk.

Urgent or risk related referrals will be seen by the team. 

'Kooth' online CAMHS live from 01st April for 11 year olds 

+.

  Crisis support directed to ELFT

Page 248



N/A Contingency plan activated from Tuesday 17th March

The service are prioritising cases where there is risk.

Urgent or risk related referrals will be seen by the team. 

'Kooth' online CAMHS live from 01st April for 11 year olds 

+.

  Crisis support directed to ELFT

RAG Ratings are being carried out for all young people in 

the service. The service will send a weekly update to each 

borough's ACDs, Consultants and Care coordinators.

Page 249



Needs to be kept under review - key risks around peri-natal 

women in isolation and those with  exiisitng mental heath. 

Midwidery new birth visits still in place F2F for most 

vulnernable. 

Page 250



Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Urgent - decision needed within 24 hours

Moderately urgent - decision in 2-3 days 

Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Risk (Score)
Urgency of need for approval.(Please see RAG 

rating key above)

Date shared 

with NEL 

Incident Room

Sent to NeEL 

Incident Room for 

decision or 

informaiton 

(dropdown)

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed N/A

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

City and Hackney Service Change Master Sheet

Page 251



Med - High Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Med Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 252



Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Med Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 253



Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 254



Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 255



Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 256



Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 257



Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed N/A

Low Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

High Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

High Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 258



Med Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Med Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Med Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Med Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 259



Med Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Med Blue - complete, decision made or not needed

Page 260



Med - High Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Med - High Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Med - High Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Page 261



Med Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Low Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Page 262



Med Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Med Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Page 263



Med Lower urgency - decision within 5 days

Page 264



NEL Response
Date of latest 

update

01/05/20

01/05/20

01/05/20

01/05/20

Page 265



01/05/20

01/05/20

01/05/20

Page 266



24/04/20

24/04/20

Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Page 452



Page 453



Page 454



Page 455



Page 456



Page 457



Page 458



Page 459



Page 460



Page 461



Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



Page 465



Page 466



Page 467



Page 468



Page 469



Page 470



Page 471



Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Page 475



Page 476



Page 477



Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



Page 482



Page 483



Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



Page 492



Page 493



Page 494



Page 495



Page 496



Page 497



Page 498



Page 499



Page 500



Page 501



Page 502



Page 503



Page 504



Page 505



Page 506



Page 507



Page 508



Page 509



Page 510



Page 511



Page 512



Page 513



Page 514



Page 515



Page 516



Page 517



Page 518



Page 519



Page 520



Page 521



Page 522



Page 523



Page 524



Page 525



Page 526



Page 527



Page 528



Page 529



Page 530



Page 531



Page 532



Page 533



Page 534



Page 535



Page 536



Page 537



Page 538



Page 539



Page 540



Page 541



Page 542



Page 543



Page 544



Page 545



Page 546



Page 547



Page 548



Page 549



Page 550



Page 551



Page 552



Page 553



Page 554



Page 555



Page 556



Page 557



Page 558



Page 559



Page 560



Page 561



Page 562



Page 563



Page 564



Page 565



Page 566



Page 567



Page 568



Page 569



Page 570



Page 571



Page 572



Page 573



Page 574



Page 575



Page 576



Page 577



Page 578



Page 579



Page 580



Page 581



Page 582



Page 583



Page 584



Page 585



Page 586



Page 587



Page 588



Page 589



Page 590



Page 591



Page 592



Page 593



Page 594



Page 595



Page 596



Page 597



Page 598



Page 599



Page 600



Page 601



Page 602



Page 603



Page 604



Page 605



Page 606



Page 607



Page 608



Page 609



Page 610



Page 611



Page 612



Page 613



Page 614



Page 615



Page 616



Page 617



Page 618



Page 619



Page 620



Page 621



Page 622



Page 623



Page 624



Page 625



Page 626



Page 627



Page 628



Page 629



Page 630



Page 631



Page 632



Page 633



Page 634



Page 635



Page 636



Page 637



Page 638



Page 639



Page 640



Page 641



Page 642



Page 643



Page 644



Page 645



Page 646



Page 647



Page 648



Page 649



Page 650



Page 651



Page 652



Page 653



Page 654



Page 655



Page 656



Page 657



Page 658



Page 659



Page 660



Page 661



Page 662



Page 663



Page 664



Page 665



Page 666



Page 667



Page 668



Page 669



Page 670



Page 671



Page 672



Page 673



Page 674



Page 675



Page 676



Page 677



Page 678



Page 679



Page 680



Page 681



Page 682



Page 683



Page 684



Page 685



Page 686



Page 687



Page 688



Page 689



Page 690



Page 691



Page 692



Page 693



Page 694



Page 695



Page 696



Page 697



Page 698



Page 699



Page 700



Page 701



Page 702



Page 703



Page 704



Page 705



Page 706



Page 707



Page 708



Page 709



Page 710



Page 711



Page 712



Page 713



Page 714



Page 715



Page 716



Page 717



Page 718



Page 719



Page 720



Page 721



Page 722



Page 723



Page 724



Page 725



Page 726



Page 727



Page 728



Page 729



Page 730



Page 731



Page 732



Page 733



Page 734



Page 735



Page 736



Page 737



Page 738



Page 739



Page 740



Page 741



Page 742



Page 743



Page 744



Page 745



Page 746



Page 747



Page 748



Page 749



Page 750



Page 751



Page 752



Page 753



Page 754



Page 755



Page 756



Page 757



Page 758



Page 759



Page 760



Page 761



Page 762



Page 763



Page 764



Page 765



Page 766



Page 767



Page 768



Page 769



Page 770



Page 771



Page 772



Page 773



Page 774



Page 775



Page 776



Page 777



Page 778



Page 779



Page 780



Page 781



Page 782



Page 783



Page 784



Page 785



Page 786



Page 787



Page 788



Page 789



Page 790



Page 791



Page 792



Page 793



Page 794



Page 795



Page 796



Page 797



Page 798



Page 799



Page 800



Page 801



Page 802



Page 803



Page 804



Page 805



Page 806



Page 807



Page 808



Page 809



Page 810



Page 811



Page 812



Page 813



Page 814



Page 815



Page 816



Page 817



Page 818



Page 819



Page 820



Page 821



Page 822



Page 823



Page 824



Page 825



Page 826



Page 827



Page 828



Page 829



Page 830



Page 831



Page 832



Page 833



Page 834



Page 835



Page 836



Page 837



Page 838



Page 839



Page 840



Page 841



Page 842



Page 843



Page 844



Page 845



Page 846



Page 847



Page 848



Page 849



Page 850



Page 851



Page 852



Page 853



Page 854



Page 855



Page 856



Page 857



Page 858



Page 859



Page 860



Page 861



Page 862



Page 863



Page 864



Page 865



Page 866



Page 867



Page 868



Page 869



Page 870



Page 871



Page 872



Page 873



Page 874



Page 875



Page 876



Page 877



Page 878



Page 879



Page 880



Page 881



Page 882



Page 883



Page 884



Page 885



Page 886



Page 887



Page 888



Page 889



Page 890



Page 891



Page 892



Page 893



Page 894



Page 895



Page 896



Page 897



Page 898



Page 899



Page 900



Page 901



Page 902



Page 903



Page 904



Page 905



Page 906



Page 907



Page 908



Page 909



Page 910



Page 911



Page 912



Page 913



Page 914



Page 915



Page 916



Page 917



Page 918



Page 919



Page 920



Page 921



Page 922



Page 923



Page 924



Page 925



Page 926



Page 927



Page 928



Page 929



Page 930



Page 931



Page 932



Page 933



Page 934



Page 935



Page 936



Page 937



Page 938



Page 939



Page 940



Page 941



Page 942



Page 943



Page 944



Page 945



Page 946



Page 947



Page 948



Page 949



Page 950



Page 951



Page 952



Page 953



Page 954



Page 955



Page 956



Page 957



Page 958



Page 959



Page 960



Page 961



Page 962



Page 963



Page 964



Page 965



Page 966



Page 967



Page 968



Page 969



Page 970



Page 971



Page 972



Page 973



Page 974



Page 975



Page 976



Page 977



Page 978



Page 979



Page 980



Page 981



Page 982



Page 983



Page 984



Page 985



Page 986



Page 987



Page 988



Page 989



Page 990



Page 991



Page 992



Page 993



Page 994



Page 995



Page 996



Page 997



Page 998



Page 999



Page 1000



Page 1001



Page 1002



Page 1003



Page 1004



Page 1005



Page 1006



Page 1007



Page 1008



Page 1009



Page 1010



Page 1011



Page 1012



Page 1013



Page 1014



Page 1015



Page 1016



Page 1017



Page 1018



Page 1019



Page 1020



Page 1021



Page 1022



Page 1023



Page 1024



Page 1025



Page 1026



Page 1027



Page 1028



Page 1029



Page 1030



Page 1031



Page 1032



Page 1033



Page 1034



Page 1035



Page 1036



Page 1037



Page 1038



Page 1039



Page 1040



Page 1041



Page 1042



Page 1043



Page 1044



Page 1045



Page 1046



Page 1047



Page 1048



Page 1049



Page 1050



Page 1051



Page 1052



Page 1053



Page 1054



Page 1055



Page 1056



Page 1057



Page 1058



Page 1059



Page 1060



Page 1061



Page 1062



Page 1063



Page 1064



Page 1065



Page 1066



Page 1067



Page 1068



Page 1069



Page 1070



Page 1071



Page 1072



Page 1073



Page 1074



Page 1075



Page 1076



Page 1077



Page 1078



Page 1079



Page 1080



Page 1081



Page 1082



Page 1083



Page 1084



Page 1085



Page 1086



Page 1087



Page 1088



Page 1089



Page 1090



Page 1091



Page 1092



Page 1093



Page 1094



Page 1095



Page 1096



Page 1097



Page 1098



Page 1099



Page 1100



Page 1101



Page 1102



Page 1103



Page 1104



Page 1105



Page 1106



Page 1107



Page 1108



Page 1109



Page 1110



Page 1111



Page 1112



Page 1113



Page 1114



Page 1115



Page 1116



Page 1117



Page 1118



Page 1119



Page 1120



Page 1121



Page 1122



Page 1123



Page 1124



Page 1125



Page 1126



Page 1127



Page 1128



Page 1129



Page 1130



Page 1131



Page 1132



Page 1133



Page 1134



Page 1135



Page 1136



Page 1137



Page 1138



Page 1139



Page 1140



Page 1141



Page 1142



Page 1143



Page 1144



Page 1145



Page 1146



Page 1147



Page 1148



Page 1149



Page 1150



Page 1151



Page 1152



Page 1153



Page 1154



Page 1155



Page 1156



Page 1157



Page 1158



Page 1159



Page 1160



Page 1161



Page 1162



Page 1163



Page 1164



Page 1165



Page 1166



Page 1167



Page 1168



Page 1169



Page 1170



Page 1171



Page 1172



Page 1173



Page 1174



Page 1175



Page 1176



Page 1177



Page 1178



Page 1179



Page 1180



Page 1181



Page 1182



Page 1183



Page 1184



Page 1185



Page 1186



Page 1187



Page 1188



Page 1189



Page 1190



Page 1191



Page 1192



Page 1193



Page 1194



Page 1195



Page 1196



Page 1197



Page 1198



Page 1199



Page 1200



Page 1201



Page 1202



Page 1203



Page 1204



Page 1205



Page 1206



Page 1207



Page 1208



Page 1209



Page 1210



Page 1211



Page 1212



Page 1213



Page 1214



Page 1215



Page 1216



Page 1217



Page 1218



Page 1219



Page 1220



Page 1221



Page 1222



Page 1223



Page 1224



Page 1225



Page 1226



Page 1227



Page 1228



Page 1229



Page 1230



Page 1231



Page 1232



Page 1233



Page 1234



Page 1235



Page 1236



Page 1237



Page 1238



Page 1239



Page 1240



Page 1241



Page 1242



Page 1243



Page 1244



Page 1245



Page 1246



Page 1247



Page 1248



Page 1249



Page 1250



Page 1251



Page 1252



Page 1253



Page 1254



Page 1255



Page 1256



Page 1257



Page 1258



Page 1259



Page 1260



Page 1261



Page 1262



Page 1263



Page 1264



Page 1265



Page 1266



Page 1267



Page 1268



Page 1269



Page 1270



Page 1271



Page 1272



Page 1273



Page 1274



Page 1275



Page 1276



Page 1277



Page 1278



Page 1279



Page 1280



Page 1281



Page 1282



Page 1283



Page 1284



Page 1285



Page 1286



Page 1287



Page 1288



Page 1289



Page 1290



Page 1291



Page 1292



Page 1293



Page 1294



Page 1295



Page 1296



Page 1297



Page 1298



Page 1299



Page 1300



Page 1301



Page 1302



Page 1303



Page 1304



Page 1305



Page 1306



Page 1307



Page 1308



Page 1309



Page 1310



Page 1311



Page 1312



Page 1313



Page 1314



Page 1315



Page 1316



Page 1317



Page 1318



Page 1319



Page 1320



Page 1321



Page 1322



Page 1323



Page 1324



Page 1325



Page 1326



Page 1327



Page 1328



Page 1329



Page 1330



Page 1331



Page 1332



Page 1333



Page 1334



Page 1335



Page 1336



Page 1337



Page 1338



Page 1339



Page 1340



Page 1341



Page 1342



Page 1343



Page 1344



Page 1345



Page 1346



Page 1347



Page 1348



Page 1349



Page 1350



Page 1351



Page 1352



Page 1353



Page 1354



Page 1355



Page 1356



Page 1357



Page 1358



Page 1359



Page 1360



Page 1361



Page 1362



Page 1363



Page 1364



Page 1365



Page 1366



Page 1367



Page 1368



Page 1369



Page 1370



Page 1371



Page 1372



Page 1373



Page 1374



Page 1375



Page 1376



Page 1377



Page 1378



Page 1379



Page 1380



Page 1381



Page 1382



Page 1383



Page 1384



Page 1385



Page 1386



Page 1387



Page 1388



Page 1389



Page 1390



Page 1391



Page 1392



Page 1393



Page 1394



Page 1395



Page 1396



Page 1397



Page 1398



Page 1399



Page 1400



Page 1401



Page 1402



Page 1403



Page 1404



Page 1405



Page 1406



Page 1407



Page 1408



Page 1409



Page 1410



Page 1411



Page 1412



Page 1413



Page 1414



Page 1415



Page 1416



Page 1417



Page 1418



Page 1419



Page 1420



Page 1421



Page 1422



Page 1423



Page 1424



Page 1425



Page 1426



Page 1427



Page 1428



Page 1429



Page 1430



Page 1431



Page 1432



Page 1433



Page 1434



Page 1435



Page 1436



Page 1437



Page 1438



Page 1439



Page 1440



Page 1441



Page 1442



Page 1443



Page 1444



Page 1445



Page 1446



Page 1447



Page 1448



Page 1449



Page 1450



Page 1451



Page 1452



Page 1453



Page 1454



Page 1455



Page 1456



Page 1457



Page 1458



Page 1459



Page 1460



Page 1461



Page 1462



Page 1463



Page 1464



Page 1465



Page 1466



Page 1467



Page 1468



Page 1469



Page 1470



Page 1471



Page 1472



Page 1473



Page 1474



Page 1475



Page 1476



Page 1477



Page 1478



Page 1479



Page 1480



Page 1481



Page 1482



Page 1483



Page 1484



Page 1485



Page 1486



Page 1487



Page 1488



Page 1489



Page 1490



Page 1491



Page 1492



Page 1493



Page 1494



Page 1495



Page 1496



Page 1497



Page 1498



Page 1499



Page 1500



Page 1501



Page 1502



Page 1503



Page 1504



Page 1505



Page 1506



Page 1507



Page 1508



Page 1509



Page 1510



Page 1511



Page 1512



Page 1513



Page 1514



Page 1515



Page 1516



Page 1517



Page 1518



Page 1519



Page 1520



Page 1521



Page 1522



Page 1523



Page 1524



Page 1525



Page 1526



Page 1527



Page 1528



Page 1529



Page 1530



Page 1531



Page 1532



Page 1533



Page 1534



Page 1535



Page 1536



Page 1537



Page 1538



Page 1539



Page 1540



Page 1541



Page 1542



Page 1543



Page 1544



Page 1545



Page 1546



Page 1547



Page 1548



Page 1549



Page 1550



Page 1551



Page 1552



Page 1553



Page 1554



Page 1555



Page 1556



Page 1557



Page 1558



Page 1559



Page 1560



Page 1561



Page 1562



Page 1563



Page 1564



Page 1565



Page 1566



Page 1567



Page 1568



Page 1569



Page 1570



Page 1571



Page 1572



Page 1573



Page 1574



Page 1575



Page 1576



Page 1577



Page 1578



Page 1579



Page 1580



Page 1581



Page 1582



Page 1583



Page 1584



Page 1585



Page 1586



Page 1587



Page 1588



Page 1589



Page 1590



Page 1591



Page 1592



Page 1593



Page 1594



Page 1595



Page 1596



Page 1597



Page 1598



Page 1599



Page 1600



Page 1601



Page 1602



Page 1603



Page 1604



Page 1605



Page 1606



Page 1607



Page 1608



Page 1609



Page 1610



Page 1611



Page 1612



Page 1613



Page 1614



Page 1615



Page 1616



Page 1617



Page 1618



Page 1619



Page 1620



Page 1621



Page 1622



Page 1623



Page 1624



Page 1625



Page 1626



Page 1627



Page 1628



Page 1629



Page 1630



Page 1631



Page 1632



Page 1633



Page 1634



Page 1635



Page 1636



Page 1637



Page 1638



Page 1639



Page 1640



Page 1641



Page 1642



Page 1643



Page 1644



Page 1645



Page 1646



Page 1647



Page 1648



Page 1649



Page 1650



Page 1651



Page 1652



Page 1653



Page 1654



Page 1655



Page 1656



Page 1657



Page 1658



Page 1659



Page 1660



Page 1661



Page 1662



Page 1663



Page 1664



Page 1665



Page 1666



Page 1667



Page 1668



Page 1669



Page 1670



Page 1671



Page 1672



Page 1673



Page 1674



Page 1675



Page 1676



Page 1677



Page 1678



Page 1679



Page 1680



Page 1681



Page 1682



Page 1683



Page 1684



Page 1685



Page 1686



Page 1687



Page 1688



Page 1689



Page 1690



Page 1691



Page 1692



Page 1693



Page 1694



Page 1695



Page 1696



Page 1697



Page 1698



Page 1699



Page 1700



Page 1701



Page 1702



Page 1703



Page 1704



Page 1705



Page 1706



Page 1707



Page 1708



Page 1709



Page 1710



Page 1711



Page 1712



Page 1713



Page 1714



Page 1715



Page 1716



Page 1717



Page 1718



Page 1719



Page 1720



Page 1721



Page 1722



Page 1723



Page 1724



Page 1725



Page 1726



Page 1727



Page 1728



Page 1729



Page 1730



Page 1731



Page 1732



Page 1733



Page 1734



Page 1735



Page 1736



Page 1737



Page 1738



Page 1739



Page 1740



Page 1741



Page 1742



Page 1743



Page 1744



Page 1745



Page 1746



Page 1747



Page 1748



Page 1749



Page 1750



Page 1751



Page 1752



Page 1753



Page 1754



Page 1755



Page 1756



Page 1757



Page 1758



Page 1759



Page 1760



Page 1761



Page 1762



Page 1763



Page 1764



Page 1765



Page 1766



Page 1767



Page 1768



Page 1769



Page 1770



Page 1771



Page 1772



Page 1773



Page 1774



Page 1775



Page 1776



Page 1777



Page 1778



Page 1779



Page 1780



Page 1781



Page 1782



Page 1783



Page 1784



Page 1785



Page 1786



Page 1787



Page 1788



Page 1789



Page 1790



Page 1791



Page 1792



Page 1793



Page 1794



Page 1795



Page 1796



Page 1797



Page 1798



Page 1799



Page 1800



Page 1801



Page 1802



Page 1803



Page 1804



Page 1805



Page 1806



Page 1807



Page 1808



Page 1809



Page 1810



Page 1811



Page 1812



Page 1813



Page 1814



Page 1815



Page 1816



Page 1817



Page 1818



Page 1819



Page 1820



Page 1821



Page 1822



Page 1823



Page 1824



Page 1825



Page 1826



Page 1827



Page 1828



Page 1829



Page 1830



Page 1831



Page 1832



Page 1833



Page 1834



Page 1835



Page 1836



Page 1837



Page 1838



Page 1839



Page 1840



Page 1841



Page 1842



Page 1843



Page 1844



Page 1845



Page 1846



Page 1847



Page 1848



Page 1849



Page 1850



Page 1851



Page 1852



Page 1853



Page 1854



Page 1855



Page 1856



Page 1857



Page 1858



Page 1859



Page 1860



Page 1861



Page 1862



Page 1863



Page 1864



Page 1865



Page 1866



Page 1867



Page 1868



Page 1869



Page 1870



Page 1871



Page 1872



Page 1873



Page 1874



Page 1875



Page 1876



Page 1877



Page 1878



Page 1879



Page 1880



Page 1881



Page 1882



Page 1883



Page 1884



Page 1885



Page 1886



Page 1887



Page 1888



Page 1889



Page 1890



Page 1891



Page 1892



Page 1893



Page 1894



Page 1895



Page 1896



Page 1897



Page 1898



Page 1899



Page 1900



Page 1901



Page 1902



Page 1903



Page 1904



Page 1905



Page 1906



Page 1907



Page 1908



Page 1909



Page 1910



Page 1911



Page 1912



Page 1913



Page 1914



Page 1915



Page 1916



Page 1917



Page 1918



Page 1919



Page 1920



Page 1921



Page 1922



Page 1923



Page 1924



Page 1925



Page 1926



Page 1927



Page 1928



Page 1929



Page 1930



Page 1931



Page 1932



Page 1933



Page 1934



Page 1935



Page 1936



Page 1937



Page 1938



Page 1939



Page 1940



Page 1941



Page 1942



Page 1943



Page 1944



Page 1945



Page 1946



Page 1947



Page 1948



Page 1949



Page 1950



Page 1951



Page 1952



Page 1953



Page 1954



Page 1955



Page 1956



Page 1957



Page 1958



Page 1959



Page 1960



Page 1961



Page 1962



Page 1963



Page 1964



Page 1965



Page 1966



Page 1967



Page 1968



Page 1969



Page 1970



Page 1971



Page 1972



Page 1973



Page 1974



Page 1975



Page 1976



Page 1977



Page 1978



Page 1979



Page 1980



Page 1981



Page 1982



Page 1983



Page 1984



Page 1985



Page 1986



Page 1987



Page 1988



Page 1989



Page 1990



Page 1991



Page 1992



Page 1993



Page 1994



Page 1995



Page 1996



Page 1997



Page 1998



Page 1999



Page 2000



Page 2001



Page 2002



Page 2003



Page 2004



Page 2005



Page 2006



Page 2007



Page 2008



Page 2009



Page 2010



Page 2011



Page 2012



Page 2013



Page 2014



Page 2015



Page 2016



Page 2017



Page 2018



Page 2019



Page 2020



Page 2021



Page 2022



Page 2023



Page 2024



Page 2025



Page 2026



Page 2027



Page 2028



Page 2029



Page 2030



Page 2031



Page 2032



Page 2033



Page 2034



Page 2035



Page 2036



Page 2037



Page 2038



Page 2039



Page 2040



Page 2041



Page 2042



Page 2043



Page 2044



Page 2045



Page 2046



Page 2047



Page 2048



Page 2049



Page 2050



Page 2051



Page 2052



Page 2053



Page 2054



Page 2055



Page 2056



Page 2057



Page 2058



Page 2059



Page 2060



Page 2061



Page 2062



Page 2063



Page 2064



Page 2065



Page 2066



Page 2067



Page 2068



Page 2069



Page 2070



Page 2071



Page 2072



Page 2073



Page 2074



Page 2075



Page 2076



Page 2077



Page 2078



Page 2079



Page 2080



Page 2081



Page 2082



Page 2083



Page 2084



Page 2085



Page 2086



Page 2087



Page 2088



Page 2089



Page 2090



Page 2091



Page 2092



Page 2093



Page 2094



Page 2095



Page 2096



Page 2097



Page 2098



Page 2099



Page 2100



Page 2101



Page 2102



Page 2103



Page 2104



Page 2105



Page 2106



Page 2107



Page 2108



Page 2109



Page 2110



Page 2111



Page 2112



Page 2113



Page 2114



Page 2115



Page 2116



Page 2117



Page 2118



Page 2119



Page 2120



Page 2121



Page 2122



Page 2123



Page 2124



Page 2125



Page 2126



Page 2127



Page 2128



Page 2129



Page 2130



Page 2131



Page 2132



Page 2133



Page 2134



Page 2135



Page 2136



Page 2137



Page 2138



Page 2139



Page 2140



Page 2141



Page 2142



Page 2143



Page 2144



Page 2145



Page 2146



Page 2147



Page 2148



Page 2149



Page 2150



Page 2151



Page 2152



Page 2153



Page 2154



Page 2155



Page 2156



Page 2157



Page 2158



Page 2159



Page 2160



Page 2161



Page 2162



Page 2163



Page 2164



Page 2165



Page 2166



Page 2167



Page 2168



Page 2169



Page 2170



Page 2171



Page 2172



Page 2173



Page 2174



Page 2175



Page 2176



Page 2177



Page 2178



Page 2179



Page 2180



Page 2181



Page 2182



Page 2183



Page 2184



Page 2185



Page 2186



Page 2187



Page 2188



Page 2189



Page 2190



Page 2191



Page 2192



Page 2193



Page 2194



Page 2195



Page 2196



Page 2197



Page 2198



Page 2199



Page 2200



Page 2201



Page 2202



Page 2203



Page 2204



Page 2205



Page 2206



Page 2207



Page 2208



Page 2209



Page 2210



Page 2211



Page 2212



Page 2213



Page 2214



Page 2215



Page 2216



Page 2217



Page 2218



Page 2219



Page 2220



Page 2221



Page 2222



Page 2223



Page 2224



Page 2225



Page 2226



Page 2227



Page 2228



Page 2229



Page 2230



Page 2231



Page 2232



Page 2233



Page 2234



Page 2235



Page 2236



Page 2237



Page 2238



Page 2239



Page 2240



Page 2241



Page 2242



Page 2243



Page 2244



Page 2245



Page 2246



Page 2247



Page 2248



Page 2249



Page 2250



Page 2251



Page 2252



Page 2253



Page 2254



Page 2255



Page 2256



Page 2257



Page 2258



Page 2259



Page 2260



Page 2261



Page 2262



Page 2263



Page 2264



Page 2265



Page 2266



Page 2267



Page 2268



Page 2269



Page 2270



Page 2271



Page 2272



Page 2273



Page 2274



Page 2275



Page 2276



Page 2277



Page 2278



Page 2279



Page 2280



Page 2281



Page 2282



Page 2283



Page 2284



Page 2285



Page 2286



Page 2287



Page 2288



Page 2289



Page 2290



Page 2291



Page 2292



Page 2293



Page 2294



Page 2295



Page 2296



Page 2297



Page 2298



Page 2299



Page 2300



Page 2301



Page 2302



Page 2303



Page 2304



Page 2305



Page 2306



Page 2307



Page 2308



Page 2309



Page 2310



Page 2311



Page 2312



Page 2313



Page 2314



Page 2315



Page 2316



Page 2317



Page 2318



Page 2319



Page 2320



Page 2321



Page 2322



Page 2323



Page 2324



Page 2325



Page 2326



Page 2327



Page 2328



Page 2329



Page 2330



Page 2331



Page 2332



Page 2333



Page 2334



Page 2335



Page 2336



Page 2337



Page 2338



Page 2339



Page 2340



Page 2341



Page 2342



Page 2343



Page 2344



Page 2345



Page 2346



Page 2347



Page 2348



Page 2349



Page 2350



Page 2351



Page 2352



Page 2353



Page 2354



Page 2355



Page 2356



Page 2357



Page 2358



Page 2359



Page 2360



Page 2361



Page 2362



Page 2363



Page 2364



Page 2365



Page 2366



Page 2367



Page 2368



Page 2369



Page 2370



Page 2371



Page 2372



Page 2373



Page 2374



Page 2375



Page 2376



Page 2377



Page 2378



Page 2379



Page 2380



Page 2381



Page 2382



Page 2383



Page 2384



Page 2385



Page 2386



Page 2387



Page 2388



Page 2389



Page 2390



Page 2391



Page 2392



Page 2393



Page 2394



Page 2395



Page 2396



Page 2397



Page 2398



Page 2399



Page 2400



Page 2401



Page 2402



Page 2403



Page 2404



Page 2405



Page 2406



Page 2407



Page 2408



Page 2409



Page 2410



Page 2411



Page 2412



Page 2413



Page 2414



Page 2415



Page 2416



Page 2417



Page 2418



Page 2419



Page 2420



Page 2421



Page 2422



Page 2423



Page 2424



Page 2425



Page 2426



Page 2427



Page 2428



Page 2429



Page 2430



Page 2431



Page 2432



Page 2433



Page 2434



Page 2435



Page 2436



Page 2437



Page 2438



Page 2439



Page 2440



Page 2441



Page 2442



Page 2443



Page 2444



Page 2445



Page 2446



Page 2447



Page 2448



Page 2449



Page 2450



Page 2451



Page 2452



Page 2453



Page 2454



Page 2455



Page 2456



Page 2457



Page 2458



Page 2459



Page 2460



Page 2461



Page 2462



Page 2463



Page 2464



Page 2465



Page 2466



Page 2467



Page 2468



Page 2469



Page 2470



Page 2471



Page 2472



Page 2473



Page 2474



Page 2475



Page 2476



Page 2477



Page 2478



Page 2479



Page 2480



Page 2481



Page 2482



Page 2483



Page 2484



Page 2485



Page 2486



Page 2487



Page 2488



Page 2489



Page 2490



Page 2491



Page 2492



Page 2493



Page 2494



Page 2495



Page 2496



Page 2497



Page 2498



Page 2499



Page 2500



Page 2501



Page 2502



Page 2503



Page 2504



Page 2505



Page 2506



Page 2507



Page 2508



Page 2509



Page 2510



Page 2511



Page 2512



Page 2513



Page 2514



Page 2515



Page 2516



Page 2517



Page 2518



Page 2519



Page 2520



Page 2521



Page 2522



Page 2523



Page 2524



Page 2525



Page 2526



Page 2527



Page 2528



Page 2529



Page 2530



Page 2531



Page 2532



Page 2533



Page 2534



Page 2535



Page 2536



Page 2537



Page 2538



Page 2539



Page 2540



Page 2541



Page 2542



Page 2543



Page 2544



Page 2545



Page 2546



Page 2547



Page 2548



Page 2549



Page 2550



Page 2551



Page 2552



Page 2553



Page 2554



Page 2555



Page 2556



Page 2557



Page 2558



Page 2559



Page 2560



Page 2561



Page 2562



Page 2563



Page 2564



Page 2565



Page 2566



Page 2567



Page 2568



Page 2569



Page 2570



Page 2571



Page 2572



Page 2573



Page 2574



Page 2575



Page 2576



Page 2577



Page 2578



Page 2579



Page 2580



Page 2581



Page 2582



Page 2583



Page 2584



Page 2585



Page 2586



Page 2587



Page 2588



Page 2589



Page 2590



Page 2591



Page 2592



Page 2593



Page 2594



Page 2595



Page 2596



Page 2597



Page 2598



Page 2599



Page 2600



Page 2601



Page 2602



Page 2603



Page 2604



Page 2605



Page 2606



Page 2607



Page 2608



Page 2609



Page 2610



Page 2611



Page 2612



Page 2613



Page 2614



Page 2615



Page 2616



Page 2617



Page 2618



Page 2619



Page 2620



Page 2621



Page 2622



Page 2623



Page 2624



Page 2625



Page 2626



Page 2627



Page 2628



Page 2629



Page 2630



Page 2631



Page 2632



Page 2633



Page 2634



Page 2635



Page 2636



Page 2637



Page 2638



Page 2639



Page 2640



Page 2641



Page 2642



Page 2643



Page 2644



Page 2645



Page 2646



Page 2647



Page 2648



Page 2649



Page 2650



Page 2651



Page 2652



Page 2653



Page 2654



Page 2655



Page 2656



Page 2657



Page 2658



Page 2659



Page 2660



Page 2661



Page 2662



Page 2663



Page 2664



Page 2665



Page 2666



Page 2667



Page 2668



Page 2669



Page 2670



Page 2671



Page 2672



Page 2673



Page 2674



Page 2675



Page 2676



Page 2677



Page 2678



Page 2679



Page 2680



Page 2681



Page 2682



Page 2683



Page 2684



Page 2685



Page 2686



Page 2687



Page 2688



Page 2689



Page 2690



Page 2691



Page 2692



Page 2693



Page 2694



Page 2695



Page 2696



Page 2697



Page 2698



Page 2699



Page 2700



Page 2701



Page 2702



Page 2703



Page 2704



Page 2705



Page 2706



Page 2707



Page 2708



Page 2709



Page 2710



Page 2711



Page 2712



Page 2713



Page 2714



Page 2715



Page 2716



Page 2717



Page 2718



Page 2719



Page 2720



Page 2721



Page 2722



Page 2723



Page 2724



Page 2725



Page 2726



Page 2727



Page 2728



Page 2729



Page 2730



Page 2731



Page 2732



Page 2733



Page 2734



Page 2735



Page 2736



Page 2737



Page 2738



Page 2739



Page 2740



Page 2741



Page 2742



Page 2743



Page 2744



Page 2745



Page 2746



Page 2747



Page 2748



Page 2749



Page 2750



Page 2751



Page 2752



Page 2753



Page 2754



Page 2755



Page 2756



Page 2757



Page 2758



Page 2759



Page 2760



Page 2761



Page 2762



Page 2763



Page 2764



Page 2765



Page 2766



Page 2767



Page 2768



Page 2769



Page 2770



Page 2771



Page 2772



Page 2773



Page 2774



Page 2775



Page 2776



Page 2777



Page 2778



Page 2779



Page 2780



Page 2781



Page 2782



Page 2783



Page 2784



Page 2785



Page 2786



Page 2787



Page 2788



Page 2789



Page 2790



Page 2791



Page 2792



Page 2793



Page 2794



Page 2795



Page 2796



Page 2797



Page 2798



Page 2799



Page 2800



Page 2801



Page 2802



Page 2803



Page 2804



Page 2805



Page 2806



Page 2807



Page 2808



Page 2809



Page 2810



Page 2811



Page 2812



Page 2813



Page 2814



Page 2815



Page 2816



Page 2817



Page 2818



Page 2819



Page 2820



Page 2821



Page 2822



Page 2823



Page 2824



Page 2825



Page 2826



Page 2827



Page 2828



Page 2829



Page 2830



Page 2831



Page 2832



Page 2833



Page 2834



Page 2835



Page 2836



Page 2837



Page 2838



Page 2839



Page 2840



Page 2841



Page 2842



Page 2843



Page 2844



Page 2845



Page 2846



Page 2847



Page 2848



Page 2849



Page 2850



Page 2851



Page 2852



Page 2853



Page 2854



Page 2855



Page 2856



Page 2857



Page 2858



Page 2859



Page 2860



Page 2861



Page 2862



Page 2863



Page 2864



Page 2865



Page 2866



Page 2867



Page 2868



Page 2869



Page 2870



Page 2871



Page 2872



Page 2873



Page 2874



Page 2875



Page 2876



Page 2877



Page 2878



Page 2879



Page 2880



Page 2881



Page 2882



Page 2883



Page 2884



Page 2885



Page 2886



Page 2887



Page 2888



Page 2889



Page 2890



Page 2891



Page 2892



Page 2893



Page 2894



Page 2895



Page 2896



Page 2897



Page 2898



Page 2899



Page 2900



Page 2901



Page 2902



Page 2903



Page 2904



Page 2905



Page 2906



Page 2907



Page 2908



Page 2909



Page 2910



Page 2911



Page 2912



Page 2913



Page 2914



Page 2915



Page 2916



Page 2917



Page 2918



Page 2919



Page 2920



Page 2921



Page 2922



Page 2923



Page 2924



Page 2925



Page 2926



Page 2927



Page 2928



Page 2929



Page 2930



Page 2931



Page 2932



Page 2933



Page 2934



Page 2935



Page 2936



Page 2937



Page 2938



Page 2939



Page 2940



Page 2941



Page 2942



Page 2943



Page 2944



Page 2945



Page 2946



Page 2947



Page 2948



Page 2949



Page 2950



Page 2951



Page 2952



Page 2953



Page 2954



Page 2955



Page 2956



Page 2957



Page 2958



Page 2959



Page 2960



Page 2961



Page 2962



Page 2963



Page 2964



Page 2965



Page 2966



Page 2967



Page 2968



Page 2969



Page 2970



Page 2971



Page 2972



Page 2973



Page 2974



Page 2975



Page 2976



Page 2977



Page 2978



Page 2979



Page 2980



Page 2981



Page 2982



Page 2983



Page 2984



Page 2985



Page 2986



Page 2987



Page 2988



Page 2989



Page 2990



Page 2991



Page 2992



Page 2993



Page 2994



Page 2995



Page 2996



Page 2997



Page 2998



Page 2999



Page 3000



Page 3001



Page 3002



Page 3003



Page 3004



Page 3005



Page 3006



Page 3007



Page 3008



Page 3009



Page 3010



Page 3011



Page 3012



Page 3013



Page 3014



Page 3015



Page 3016



Page 3017



Page 3018



Page 3019



Page 3020



Page 3021



Page 3022



Page 3023



Page 3024



Page 3025



Page 3026



Page 3027



Page 3028



Page 3029



Page 3030



Page 3031



Page 3032



Page 3033



Page 3034



Page 3035



Page 3036



Page 3037



Page 3038



Page 3039



Page 3040



Page 3041



Page 3042



Page 3043



Page 3044



Page 3045



Page 3046



Page 3047



Page 3048



Page 3049



Page 3050



Page 3051



Page 3052



Page 3053



Page 3054



Page 3055



Page 3056



Page 3057



Page 3058



Page 3059



Page 3060



Page 3061



Page 3062



Page 3063



Page 3064



Page 3065



Page 3066



Page 3067



Page 3068



Page 3069



Page 3070



Page 3071



Page 3072



Page 3073



Page 3074



Page 3075



Page 3076



Page 3077



Page 3078



Page 3079



Page 3080



Page 3081



Page 3082



Page 3083



Page 3084



Page 3085



Page 3086



Page 3087



Page 3088



Page 3089



Page 3090



Page 3091



Page 3092



Page 3093



Page 3094



Page 3095



Page 3096



Page 3097



Page 3098



Page 3099



Page 3100



Page 3101



Page 3102



Page 3103



Page 3104



Page 3105



Page 3106



Page 3107



Page 3108



Page 3109



Page 3110



Page 3111



Page 3112



Page 3113



Page 3114



Page 3115



Page 3116



Page 3117



Page 3118



Page 3119



Page 3120



Page 3121



Page 3122



Page 3123



Page 3124



Page 3125



Page 3126



Page 3127



Page 3128



Page 3129



Page 3130



Page 3131



Page 3132



Page 3133



Page 3134



Page 3135



Page 3136



Page 3137



Page 3138



Page 3139



Page 3140



Page 3141



Page 3142



Page 3143



Page 3144



Page 3145



Page 3146



Page 3147



Page 3148



Page 3149



Page 3150



Page 3151



Page 3152



Page 3153



Page 3154



Page 3155



Page 3156



Page 3157



Page 3158



Page 3159



Page 3160



Page 3161



Page 3162



Page 3163



Page 3164



Page 3165



Page 3166



Page 3167



Page 3168



Page 3169



Page 3170



Page 3171



Page 3172



Page 3173



Page 3174



Page 3175



Page 3176



Page 3177



Page 3178



Page 3179



Page 3180



Page 3181



Page 3182



Page 3183



Page 3184



Page 3185



Page 3186



Page 3187



Page 3188



Page 3189



Page 3190



Page 3191



Page 3192



Page 3193



Page 3194



Page 3195



Page 3196



Page 3197



Page 3198



Page 3199



Page 3200



Page 3201



Page 3202



Page 3203



Page 3204



Page 3205



Page 3206



Page 3207



Page 3208



Page 3209



Page 3210



Page 3211



Page 3212



Page 3213



Page 3214



Page 3215



Page 3216



Page 3217



Page 3218



Page 3219



Page 3220



Page 3221



Page 3222



Page 3223



Page 3224



Page 3225



Page 3226



Page 3227



Page 3228



Page 3229



Page 3230



Page 3231



Page 3232



Page 3233



Page 3234



Page 3235



Page 3236



Page 3237



Page 3238



Page 3239



Page 3240



Page 3241



Page 3242



Page 3243



Page 3244



Page 3245



Page 3246



Page 3247



Page 3248



Page 3249



Page 3250



Page 3251



Page 3252



Page 3253



Page 3254



Page 3255



Page 3256



Page 3257



Page 3258



Page 3259



Page 3260



Page 3261



Page 3262



Page 3263



Page 3264



Page 3265



Page 3266



Page 3267



Page 3268



Page 3269



Page 3270



Page 3271



Page 3272



Page 3273



Page 3274



Page 3275



Page 3276



Page 3277



Page 3278



Page 3279



Page 3280



Page 3281



Page 3282



Page 3283



Page 3284



Page 3285



Page 3286



Page 3287



Page 3288



Page 3289



Page 3290



Page 3291



Page 3292



Page 3293



Page 3294



Page 3295



Page 3296



Page 3297



Page 3298



Page 3299



Page 3300



Page 3301



Page 3302



Page 3303



Page 3304



Page 3305



Page 3306



Page 3307



Page 3308



Page 3309



Page 3310



Page 3311



Page 3312



Page 3313



Page 3314



Page 3315



Page 3316



Page 3317



Page 3318



Page 3319



Page 3320



Page 3321



Page 3322



Page 3323



Page 3324



Page 3325



Page 3326



Page 3327



Page 3328



Page 3329



Page 3330



Page 3331



Page 3332



Page 3333



Page 3334



Page 3335



Page 3336



Page 3337



Page 3338



Page 3339



Page 3340



Page 3341



Page 3342



Page 3343



Page 3344



Page 3345



Page 3346



Page 3347



Page 3348



Page 3349



Page 3350



Page 3351



Page 3352



Page 3353



Page 3354



Page 3355



Page 3356



Page 3357



Page 3358



Page 3359



Page 3360



Page 3361



Page 3362



Page 3363



Page 3364



Page 3365



Page 3366



Page 3367



Page 3368



Page 3369



Page 3370



Page 3371



Page 3372



Page 3373



Page 3374



Page 3375



Page 3376



Page 3377



Page 3378



Page 3379



Page 3380



Page 3381



Page 3382



Page 3383



Page 3384



Page 3385



Page 3386



Page 3387



Page 3388



Page 3389



Page 3390



Page 3391



Page 3392



Page 3393



Page 3394



Page 3395



Page 3396



Page 3397



Page 3398



Page 3399



Page 3400



Page 3401



Page 3402



Page 3403



Page 3404



Page 3405



Page 3406



Page 3407



Page 3408



Page 3409



Page 3410



Page 3411



Page 3412



Page 3413



Page 3414



Page 3415



Page 3416



Page 3417



Page 3418



Page 3419



Page 3420



Page 3421



Page 3422



Page 3423



Page 3424



Page 3425



Page 3426



Page 3427



Page 3428



Page 3429



Page 3430



Page 3431



Page 3432



Page 3433



Page 3434



Page 3435



Page 3436



Page 3437



Page 3438



Page 3439



Page 3440



Page 3441



Page 3442



Page 3443



Page 3444



Page 3445



Page 3446



Page 3447



Page 3448



Page 3449



Page 3450



Page 3451



Page 3452



Page 3453



Page 3454



Page 3455



Page 3456



Page 3457



Page 3458



Page 3459



Page 3460



Page 3461



Page 3462



Page 3463



Page 3464



Page 3465



Page 3466



Page 3467



Page 3468



Page 3469



Page 3470



Page 3471



Page 3472



Page 3473



Page 3474



Page 3475



Page 3476



Page 3477



Page 3478



Page 3479



Page 3480



Page 3481



Page 3482



Page 3483



Page 3484



Page 3485



Page 3486



Page 3487



Page 3488



Page 3489



Page 3490



Page 3491



Page 3492



Page 3493



Page 3494



Page 3495



Page 3496



Page 3497



Page 3498



Page 3499



Page 3500



Page 3501



Page 3502



Page 3503



Page 3504



Page 3505



Page 3506



Page 3507



Page 3508



Page 3509



Page 3510



Page 3511



Page 3512



Page 3513



Page 3514



Page 3515



Page 3516



Page 3517



Page 3518



Page 3519



Page 3520



Page 3521



Page 3522



Page 3523



Page 3524



Page 3525



Page 3526



Page 3527



Page 3528



Page 3529



Page 3530



Page 3531



Page 3532



Page 3533



Page 3534



Page 3535



Page 3536



Page 3537



Page 3538



Page 3539



Page 3540



Page 3541



Page 3542



Page 3543



Page 3544



Page 3545



Page 3546



Page 3547



Page 3548



Page 3549



Page 3550



Page 3551



Page 3552



Page 3553



Page 3554



Page 3555



Page 3556



Page 3557



Page 3558



Page 3559



Page 3560



Page 3561



Page 3562



Page 3563



Page 3564



Page 3565



Page 3566



Page 3567



Page 3568



Page 3569



Page 3570



Page 3571



Page 3572



Page 3573



Page 3574



Page 3575



Page 3576



Page 3577



Page 3578



Page 3579



Page 3580



Page 3581



Page 3582



Page 3583



Page 3584



Page 3585



Page 3586



Page 3587



Page 3588



Page 3589



Page 3590



Page 3591



Page 3592



Page 3593



Page 3594



Page 3595



Page 3596



Page 3597



Page 3598



Page 3599



Page 3600



Page 3601



Page 3602



Page 3603



Page 3604



Page 3605



Page 3606



Page 3607



Page 3608



Page 3609



Page 3610



Page 3611



Page 3612



Page 3613



Page 3614



Page 3615



Page 3616



Page 3617



Page 3618



Page 3619



Page 3620



Page 3621



Page 3622



Page 3623



Page 3624



Page 3625



Page 3626



Page 3627



Page 3628



Page 3629



Page 3630



Page 3631



Page 3632



Page 3633



Page 3634



Page 3635



Page 3636



Page 3637



Page 3638



Page 3639



Page 3640



Page 3641



Page 3642



Page 3643



Page 3644



Page 3645



Page 3646



Page 3647



Page 3648



Page 3649



Page 3650



Page 3651



Page 3652



Page 3653



Page 3654



Page 3655



Page 3656



Page 3657



Page 3658



Page 3659



Page 3660



Page 3661



Page 3662



Page 3663



Page 3664



Page 3665



Page 3666



Page 3667



Page 3668



Page 3669



Page 3670



Page 3671



Page 3672



Page 3673



Page 3674



Page 3675



Page 3676



Page 3677



Page 3678



Page 3679



Page 3680



Page 3681



Page 3682



Page 3683



Page 3684



Page 3685



Page 3686



Page 3687



Page 3688



Page 3689



Page 3690



Page 3691



Page 3692



Page 3693



Page 3694



Page 3695



Page 3696



Page 3697



Page 3698



Page 3699



Page 3700



Page 3701



Page 3702



Page 3703



Page 3704



Page 3705



Page 3706



Page 3707



Page 3708



Page 3709



Page 3710



Page 3711



Page 3712



Page 3713



Page 3714



Page 3715



Page 3716



Page 3717



Page 3718



Page 3719



Page 3720



Page 3721



Page 3722



Page 3723



Page 3724



Page 3725



Page 3726



Page 3727



Page 3728



Page 3729



Page 3730



Page 3731



Page 3732



Page 3733



Page 3734



Page 3735



Page 3736



Page 3737



Page 3738



Page 3739



Page 3740



Page 3741



Page 3742



Page 3743



Page 3744



Page 3745



Page 3746



Page 3747



Page 3748



Page 3749



Page 3750



Page 3751



Page 3752



Page 3753



Page 3754



Page 3755



Page 3756



Page 3757



Page 3758



Page 3759



Page 3760



Page 3761



Page 3762



Page 3763



Page 3764



Page 3765



Page 3766



Page 3767



Page 3768



Page 3769



Page 3770



Page 3771



Page 3772



Page 3773



Page 3774



Page 3775



Page 3776



Page 3777



Page 3778



Page 3779



Page 3780



Page 3781



Page 3782



Page 3783



Page 3784



Page 3785



Page 3786



Page 3787



Page 3788



Page 3789



Page 3790



Page 3791



Page 3792



Page 3793



Page 3794



Page 3795



Page 3796



Page 3797



Page 3798



Page 3799



Page 3800



Page 3801



Page 3802



Page 3803



Page 3804



Page 3805



Page 3806



Page 3807



Page 3808



Page 3809



Page 3810



Page 3811



Page 3812



Page 3813



Page 3814



Page 3815



Page 3816



Page 3817



Page 3818



Page 3819



Page 3820



Page 3821



Page 3822



Page 3823



Page 3824



Page 3825



Page 3826



Page 3827



Page 3828



Page 3829



Page 3830



Page 3831



Page 3832



Page 3833



Page 3834



Page 3835



Page 3836



Page 3837



Page 3838



Page 3839



Page 3840



Page 3841



Page 3842



Page 3843



Page 3844



Page 3845



Page 3846



Page 3847



Page 3848



Page 3849



Page 3850



Page 3851



Page 3852



Page 3853



Page 3854



Page 3855



Page 3856



Page 3857



Page 3858



Page 3859



Page 3860



Page 3861



Page 3862



Page 3863



Page 3864



Page 3865



Page 3866



Page 3867



Page 3868



Page 3869



Page 3870



Page 3871



Page 3872



Page 3873



Page 3874



Page 3875



Page 3876



Page 3877



Page 3878



Page 3879



Page 3880



Page 3881



Page 3882



Page 3883



Page 3884



Page 3885



Page 3886



Page 3887



Page 3888



Page 3889



Page 3890



Page 3891



Page 3892



Page 3893



Page 3894



Page 3895



Page 3896



Page 3897



Page 3898



Page 3899



Page 3900



Page 3901



Page 3902



Page 3903



Page 3904



Page 3905



Page 3906



Page 3907



Page 3908



Page 3909



Page 3910



Page 3911



Page 3912



Page 3913



Page 3914



Page 3915



Page 3916



Page 3917



Page 3918



Page 3919



Page 3920



Page 3921



Page 3922



Page 3923



Page 3924



Page 3925



Page 3926



Page 3927



Page 3928



Page 3929



Page 3930



Page 3931



Page 3932



Page 3933



Page 3934



Page 3935



Page 3936



Page 3937



Page 3938



Page 3939



Page 3940



Page 3941



Page 3942



Page 3943



Page 3944



Page 3945



Page 3946



Page 3947



Page 3948



Page 3949



Page 3950



Page 3951



Page 3952



Page 3953



Page 3954



Page 3955



Page 3956



Page 3957



Page 3958



Page 3959



Page 3960



Page 3961



Page 3962



Page 3963



Page 3964



Page 3965



Page 3966



Page 3967



Page 3968



Page 3969



Page 3970



Page 3971



Page 3972



Page 3973



Page 3974



Page 3975



Page 3976



Page 3977



Page 3978



Page 3979



Page 3980



Page 3981



Page 3982



Page 3983



Page 3984



Page 3985



Page 3986



Page 3987



Page 3988



Page 3989



Page 3990



Page 3991



Page 3992



Page 3993



Page 3994



Page 3995



Page 3996



Page 3997



Page 3998



Page 3999



Page 4000



Page 4001



Page 4002



Page 4003



Page 4004



Page 4005



Page 4006



Page 4007



Page 4008



Page 4009



Page 4010



Page 4011



Page 4012



Page 4013



Page 4014



Page 4015



Page 4016



Page 4017



Page 4018



Page 4019



Page 4020



Page 4021



Page 4022



Page 4023



Page 4024



Page 4025



Page 4026



Page 4027



Page 4028



Page 4029



Page 4030



Page 4031



Page 4032



Page 4033



Page 4034



Page 4035



Page 4036



Page 4037



Page 4038



Page 4039



Page 4040



Page 4041



Page 4042



Page 4043



Page 4044



Page 4045



Page 4046



Page 4047



Page 4048



Page 4049



Page 4050



Page 4051



Page 4052



Page 4053



Page 4054



Page 4055



Page 4056



Page 4057



Page 4058



Page 4059



Page 4060



Page 4061



Page 4062



Page 4063



Page 4064



Page 4065



Page 4066



Page 4067



Page 4068



Page 4069



Page 4070



Page 4071



Page 4072



Page 4073



Page 4074



Page 4075



Page 4076



Page 4077



Page 4078



Page 4079



Page 4080



Page 4081



Page 4082



Page 4083



Page 4084



Page 4085



Page 4086



Page 4087



Page 4088



Page 4089



Page 4090



Page 4091



Page 4092



Page 4093



Page 4094



Page 4095



Page 4096



Page 4097



Page 4098



Page 4099



Page 4100



Page 4101



Page 4102



Page 4103



Page 4104



Page 4105



Page 4106



Page 4107



Page 4108



Page 4109



Page 4110



Page 4111



Page 4112



Page 4113



Page 4114



Page 4115



Page 4116



Page 4117



Page 4118



Page 4119



Page 4120



Page 4121



Page 4122



Page 4123



Page 4124



Page 4125



Page 4126



Page 4127



Page 4128



Page 4129



Page 4130



Page 4131



Page 4132



Page 4133



Page 4134



Page 4135



Page 4136



Page 4137



Page 4138



Page 4139



Page 4140



Page 4141



Page 4142



Page 4143



Page 4144



Page 4145



Page 4146



Page 4147



Page 4148



Page 4149



Page 4150



Page 4151



Page 4152



Page 4153



Page 4154



Page 4155



Page 4156



Page 4157



Page 4158



Page 4159



Page 4160



Page 4161



Page 4162



Page 4163



Page 4164



Page 4165



Page 4166



Page 4167



Page 4168



Page 4169



Page 4170



Page 4171



Page 4172



Page 4173



Page 4174



Page 4175



Page 4176



Page 4177



Page 4178



Page 4179



Page 4180



Page 4181



Page 4182



Page 4183



Page 4184



Page 4185



Page 4186



Page 4187



Page 4188



Page 4189



Page 4190



Page 4191



Page 4192



Page 4193



Page 4194



Page 4195



Page 4196



Page 4197



Page 4198



Page 4199



Page 4200



Page 4201



Page 4202



Page 4203



Page 4204



Page 4205



Page 4206



Page 4207



Page 4208



Page 4209



Page 4210



Page 4211



Page 4212



Page 4213



Page 4214



Page 4215



Page 4216



Page 4217



Page 4218



Page 4219



Page 4220



Page 4221



Page 4222



Page 4223



Page 4224



Page 4225



Page 4226



Page 4227



Page 4228



Page 4229



Page 4230



Page 4231



Page 4232



Page 4233



Page 4234



Page 4235



Page 4236



Page 4237



Page 4238



Page 4239



Page 4240



Page 4241



Page 4242



Page 4243



Page 4244



Page 4245



Page 4246



Page 4247



Page 4248



Page 4249



Page 4250



Page 4251



Page 4252



Page 4253



Page 4254



Page 4255



Page 4256



Page 4257



Page 4258



Page 4259



Page 4260



Page 4261



Page 4262



Page 4263



Page 4264



Page 4265



Page 4266



Page 4267



Page 4268



Page 4269



Page 4270



Page 4271



Page 4272



Page 4273



Page 4274



Page 4275



Page 4276



Page 4277



Page 4278



Page 4279



Page 4280



Page 4281



Page 4282



Page 4283



Page 4284



Page 4285



Page 4286



Page 4287



Page 4288



Page 4289



Page 4290



Page 4291



Page 4292



Page 4293



Page 4294



Page 4295



Page 4296



Page 4297



Page 4298



Page 4299



Page 4300



Page 4301



Page 4302



Page 4303



Page 4304



Page 4305



Page 4306



Page 4307



Page 4308



Page 4309



Page 4310



Page 4311



Page 4312



Page 4313



Page 4314



Page 4315



Page 4316



Page 4317



Page 4318



Page 4319



Page 4320



Page 4321



Page 4322



Page 4323



Page 4324



Page 4325



Page 4326



Page 4327



Page 4328



Page 4329



Page 4330



Page 4331



Page 4332



Page 4333



Page 4334



Page 4335



Page 4336



Page 4337



Page 4338



Page 4339



Page 4340



Page 4341



Page 4342



Page 4343



Page 4344



Page 4345



Page 4346



Page 4347



Page 4348



Page 4349



Page 4350



Page 4351



Page 4352



Page 4353



Page 4354



Page 4355



Page 4356



Page 4357



Page 4358



Page 4359



Page 4360



Page 4361



Page 4362



Page 4363



Page 4364



Page 4365



Page 4366



Page 4367



Page 4368



Page 4369



Page 4370



Page 4371



Page 4372



Page 4373



Page 4374



Page 4375



Page 4376



Page 4377



Page 4378



Page 4379



Page 4380



Page 4381



Page 4382



Page 4383



Page 4384



Page 4385



Page 4386



Page 4387



Page 4388



Page 4389



Page 4390



Page 4391



Page 4392



Page 4393



Page 4394



Page 4395



Page 4396



Page 4397



Page 4398



Page 4399



Page 4400



Page 4401



Page 4402



Page 4403



Page 4404



Page 4405



Page 4406



Page 4407



Page 4408



Page 4409



Page 4410



Page 4411



Page 4412



Page 4413



Page 4414



Page 4415



Page 4416



Page 4417



Page 4418



Page 4419



Page 4420



Page 4421



Page 4422



Page 4423



Page 4424



Page 4425



Page 4426



Page 4427



Page 4428



Page 4429



Page 4430



Page 4431



Page 4432



Page 4433



Page 4434



Page 4435



Page 4436



Page 4437



Page 4438



Page 4439



Page 4440



Page 4441



Page 4442



Page 4443



Page 4444



Page 4445



Page 4446



Page 4447



Page 4448



Page 4449



Page 4450



Page 4451



Page 4452



Page 4453



Page 4454



Page 4455



Page 4456



Page 4457



Page 4458



Page 4459



Page 4460



Page 4461



Page 4462



Page 4463



Page 4464



Page 4465



Page 4466



Page 4467



Page 4468



Page 4469



Page 4470



Page 4471



Page 4472



Page 4473



Page 4474



Page 4475



Page 4476



Page 4477



Page 4478



Page 4479



Page 4480



Page 4481



Page 4482



Page 4483



Page 4484



Page 4485



Page 4486



Page 4487



Page 4488



Page 4489



Page 4490



Page 4491



Page 4492



Page 4493



Page 4494



Page 4495



Page 4496



Page 4497



Page 4498



Page 4499



Page 4500



Page 4501



Page 4502



Page 4503



Page 4504



Page 4505



Page 4506



Page 4507



Page 4508



Page 4509



Page 4510



Page 4511



Page 4512



Page 4513



Page 4514



Page 4515



Page 4516



Page 4517



Page 4518



Page 4519



Page 4520



Page 4521



Page 4522



Page 4523



Page 4524



Page 4525



Page 4526



Page 4527



Page 4528



Page 4529



Page 4530



Page 4531



Page 4532



Page 4533



Page 4534



Page 4535



Page 4536



Page 4537



Page 4538



Page 4539



Page 4540



Page 4541



Page 4542



Page 4543



Page 4544



Page 4545



Page 4546



Page 4547



Page 4548



Page 4549



Page 4550



Page 4551



Page 4552



Page 4553



Page 4554



Page 4555



Page 4556



Page 4557



Page 4558



Page 4559



Page 4560



Page 4561



Page 4562



Page 4563



Page 4564



Page 4565



Page 4566



Page 4567



Page 4568



Page 4569



Page 4570



Page 4571



Page 4572



Page 4573



Page 4574



Page 4575



Page 4576



Page 4577



Page 4578



Page 4579



Page 4580



Page 4581



Page 4582



Page 4583



Page 4584



Page 4585



Page 4586



Page 4587



Page 4588



Page 4589



Page 4590



Page 4591



Page 4592



Page 4593



Page 4594



Page 4595



Page 4596



Page 4597



Page 4598



Page 4599



Page 4600



Page 4601



Page 4602



Page 4603



Page 4604



Page 4605



Page 4606



Page 4607



Page 4608



Page 4609



Page 4610



Page 4611



Page 4612



Page 4613



Page 4614



Page 4615



Page 4616



Page 4617



Page 4618



Page 4619



Page 4620



Page 4621



Page 4622



Page 4623



Page 4624



Page 4625



Page 4626



Page 4627



Page 4628



Page 4629



Page 4630



Page 4631



Page 4632



Page 4633



Page 4634



Page 4635



Page 4636



Page 4637



Page 4638



Page 4639



Page 4640



Page 4641



Page 4642



Page 4643



Page 4644



Page 4645



Page 4646



Page 4647



Page 4648



Page 4649



Page 4650



Page 4651



Page 4652



Page 4653



Page 4654



Page 4655



Page 4656



Page 4657



Page 4658



Page 4659



Page 4660



Page 4661



Page 4662



Page 4663



Page 4664



Page 4665



Page 4666



Page 4667



Page 4668



Page 4669



Page 4670



Page 4671



Page 4672



Page 4673



Page 4674



Page 4675



Page 4676



Page 4677



Page 4678



Page 4679



Page 4680



Page 4681



Page 4682



Page 4683



Page 4684



Page 4685



Page 4686



Page 4687



Page 4688



Page 4689



Page 4690



Page 4691



Page 4692



Page 4693



Page 4694



Page 4695



Page 4696



Page 4697



Page 4698



Page 4699



Page 4700



Page 4701



Page 4702



Page 4703



Page 4704



Page 4705



Page 4706



Page 4707



Page 4708



Page 4709



Page 4710



Page 4711



Page 4712



Page 4713



Page 4714



Page 4715



Page 4716



Page 4717



Page 4718



Page 4719



Page 4720



Page 4721



Page 4722



Page 4723



Page 4724



Page 4725



Page 4726



Page 4727



Page 4728



Page 4729



Page 4730



Page 4731



Page 4732



Page 4733



Page 4734



Page 4735



Page 4736



Page 4737



Page 4738



Page 4739



Page 4740



Page 4741



Page 4742



Page 4743



Page 4744



Page 4745



Page 4746



Page 4747



Page 4748



Page 4749



Page 4750



Page 4751



Page 4752



Page 4753



Page 4754



Page 4755



Page 4756



Page 4757



Page 4758



Page 4759



Page 4760



Page 4761



Page 4762



Page 4763



Page 4764



Page 4765



Page 4766



Page 4767



Page 4768



Page 4769



Page 4770



Page 4771



Page 4772



Page 4773



Page 4774



Page 4775



Page 4776



Page 4777



Page 4778



Page 4779



Page 4780



Page 4781



Page 4782



Page 4783



Page 4784



Page 4785



Page 4786



Page 4787



Page 4788



Page 4789



Page 4790



Page 4791



Page 4792



Page 4793



Page 4794



Page 4795



Page 4796



Page 4797



Page 4798



Page 4799



Page 4800



Page 4801



Page 4802



Page 4803



Page 4804



Page 4805



Page 4806



Page 4807



Page 4808



Page 4809



Page 4810



Page 4811



Page 4812



Page 4813



Page 4814



Page 4815



Page 4816



Page 4817



Page 4818



Page 4819



Page 4820



Page 4821



Page 4822



Page 4823



Page 4824



Page 4825



Page 4826



Page 4827



Page 4828



Page 4829



Page 4830



Page 4831



Page 4832



Page 4833



Page 4834



Page 4835



Page 4836



Page 4837



Page 4838



Page 4839



Page 4840



Page 4841



Page 4842



Page 4843



Page 4844



Page 4845



Page 4846



Page 4847



Page 4848



Page 4849



Page 4850



Page 4851



Page 4852



Page 4853



Page 4854



Page 4855



Page 4856



Page 4857



Page 4858



Page 4859



Page 4860



Page 4861



Page 4862



Page 4863



Page 4864



Page 4865



Page 4866



Page 4867



Page 4868



Page 4869



Page 4870



Page 4871



Page 4872



Page 4873



Page 4874



Page 4875



Page 4876



Page 4877



Page 4878



Page 4879



Page 4880



Page 4881



Page 4882



Page 4883



Page 4884



Page 4885



Page 4886



Page 4887



Page 4888



Page 4889



Page 4890



Page 4891



Page 4892



Page 4893



Page 4894



Page 4895



Page 4896



Page 4897



Page 4898



Page 4899



Page 4900



Page 4901



Page 4902



Page 4903



Page 4904



Page 4905



Page 4906



Page 4907



Page 4908



Page 4909



Page 4910



Page 4911



Page 4912



Page 4913



Page 4914



Page 4915



Page 4916



Page 4917



Page 4918



Page 4919



Page 4920



Page 4921



Page 4922



Page 4923



Page 4924



Page 4925



Page 4926



Page 4927



Page 4928



Page 4929



Page 4930



Page 4931



Page 4932



Page 4933



Page 4934



Page 4935



Page 4936



Page 4937



Page 4938



Page 4939



Page 4940



Page 4941



Page 4942



Page 4943



Page 4944



Page 4945



Page 4946



Page 4947



Page 4948



Page 4949



Page 4950



Page 4951



Page 4952



Page 4953



Page 4954



Page 4955



Page 4956



Page 4957



Page 4958



Page 4959



Page 4960



Page 4961



Page 4962



Page 4963



Page 4964



Page 4965



Page 4966



Page 4967



Page 4968



Page 4969



Page 4970



Page 4971



Page 4972



Page 4973



Page 4974



Page 4975



Page 4976



Page 4977



Page 4978



Page 4979



Page 4980



Page 4981



Page 4982



Page 4983



Page 4984



Page 4985



Page 4986



Page 4987



Page 4988



Page 4989



Page 4990



Page 4991



Page 4992



Page 4993



Page 4994



Page 4995



Page 4996



Page 4997



Page 4998



Page 4999



Page 5000



Page 5001



Page 5002



Page 5003



Page 5004



Page 5005



Page 5006



Page 5007



Page 5008



Page 5009



Page 5010



Page 5011



Page 5012



Page 5013



Page 5014



Page 5015



Page 5016



Page 5017



Page 5018



Page 5019



Page 5020



Page 5021



Page 5022



Page 5023



Page 5024



Page 5025



Page 5026



Page 5027



Page 5028



Page 5029



Page 5030



Page 5031



Page 5032



Page 5033



Page 5034



Page 5035



Page 5036



Page 5037



Page 5038



Page 5039



Page 5040



Page 5041



Page 5042



Page 5043



Page 5044



Page 5045



Page 5046



Page 5047



Page 5048



Page 5049



Page 5050



Page 5051



Page 5052



Page 5053



Page 5054



Page 5055



Page 5056



Page 5057



Page 5058



Page 5059



Page 5060



Page 5061



Page 5062



Page 5063



Page 5064



Page 5065



Page 5066



Page 5067



Page 5068



Page 5069



Page 5070



Page 5071



Page 5072



Page 5073



Page 5074



Page 5075



Page 5076



Page 5077



Page 5078



Page 5079



Page 5080



Page 5081



Page 5082



Page 5083



Page 5084



Page 5085



Page 5086



Page 5087



Page 5088



Page 5089



Page 5090



Page 5091



Page 5092



Page 5093



Page 5094



Page 5095



Page 5096



Page 5097



Page 5098



Page 5099



Page 5100



Page 5101



Page 5102



Page 5103



Page 5104



Page 5105



Page 5106



Page 5107



Page 5108



Page 5109



Page 5110



Page 5111



Page 5112



Page 5113



Page 5114



Page 5115



Page 5116



Page 5117



Page 5118



Page 5119



Page 5120



Page 5121



Page 5122



Page 5123



Page 5124



Page 5125



Page 5126



Page 5127



Page 5128



Page 5129



Page 5130



Page 5131



Page 5132



Page 5133



Page 5134



Page 5135



Page 5136



Page 5137



Page 5138



Page 5139



Page 5140



Page 5141



Page 5142



Page 5143



Page 5144



Page 5145



Page 5146



Page 5147



Page 5148



Page 5149



Page 5150



Page 5151



Page 5152



Page 5153



Page 5154



Page 5155



Page 5156



Page 5157



Page 5158



Page 5159



Page 5160



Page 5161



Page 5162



Page 5163



Page 5164



Page 5165



Page 5166



Page 5167



Page 5168



Page 5169



Page 5170



Page 5171



Page 5172



Page 5173



Page 5174



Page 5175



Page 5176



Page 5177



Page 5178



Page 5179



Page 5180



Page 5181



Page 5182



Page 5183



Page 5184



Page 5185



Page 5186



Page 5187



Page 5188



Page 5189



Page 5190



Page 5191



Page 5192



Page 5193



Page 5194



Page 5195



Page 5196



Page 5197



Page 5198



Page 5199



Page 5200



Page 5201



Page 5202



Page 5203



Page 5204



Page 5205



Page 5206



Page 5207



Page 5208



Page 5209



Page 5210



Page 5211



Page 5212



Page 5213



Page 5214



Page 5215



Page 5216



Page 5217



Page 5218



Page 5219



Page 5220



Page 5221



Page 5222



Page 5223



Page 5224



Page 5225



Page 5226



Page 5227



Page 5228



Page 5229



Page 5230



Page 5231



Page 5232



Page 5233



Page 5234



Page 5235



Page 5236



Page 5237



Page 5238



Page 5239



Page 5240



Page 5241



Page 5242



Page 5243



Page 5244



Page 5245



Page 5246



Page 5247



Page 5248



Page 5249



Page 5250



Page 5251



Page 5252



Page 5253



Page 5254



Page 5255



Page 5256



Page 5257



Page 5258



Page 5259



Page 5260



Page 5261



Page 5262



Page 5263



Page 5264



Page 5265



Page 5266



Page 5267



Page 5268



Page 5269



Page 5270



Page 5271



Page 5272



Page 5273



Page 5274



Page 5275



Page 5276



Page 5277



Page 5278



Page 5279



Page 5280



Page 5281



Page 5282



Page 5283



Page 5284



Page 5285



Page 5286



Page 5287



Page 5288



Page 5289



Page 5290



Page 5291



Page 5292



Page 5293



Page 5294



Page 5295



Page 5296



Page 5297



Page 5298



Page 5299



Page 5300



Page 5301



Page 5302



Page 5303



Page 5304



Page 5305



Page 5306



Page 5307



Page 5308



Page 5309



Page 5310



Page 5311



Page 5312



Page 5313



Page 5314



Page 5315



Page 5316



Page 5317



Page 5318



Page 5319



Page 5320



Page 5321



Page 5322



Page 5323



Page 5324



Page 5325



Page 5326



Page 5327



Page 5328



Page 5329



Page 5330



Page 5331



Page 5332



Page 5333



Page 5334



Page 5335



Page 5336



Page 5337



Page 5338



Page 5339



Page 5340



Page 5341



Page 5342



Page 5343



Page 5344



Page 5345



Page 5346



Page 5347



Page 5348



Page 5349



Page 5350



Page 5351



Page 5352



Page 5353



Page 5354



Page 5355



Page 5356



Page 5357



Page 5358



Page 5359



Page 5360



Page 5361



Page 5362



Page 5363



Page 5364



Page 5365



Page 5366



Page 5367



Page 5368



Page 5369



Page 5370



Page 5371



Page 5372



Page 5373



Page 5374



Page 5375



Page 5376



Page 5377



Page 5378



Page 5379



Page 5380



Page 5381



Page 5382



Page 5383



Page 5384



Page 5385



Page 5386



Page 5387



Page 5388



Page 5389



Page 5390



Page 5391



Page 5392



Page 5393



Page 5394



Page 5395



Page 5396



Page 5397



Page 5398



Page 5399



Page 5400



Page 5401



Page 5402



Page 5403



Page 5404



Page 5405



Page 5406



Page 5407



Page 5408



Page 5409



Page 5410



Page 5411



Page 5412



Page 5413



Page 5414



Page 5415



Page 5416



Page 5417



Page 5418



Page 5419



Page 5420



Page 5421



Page 5422



Page 5423



Page 5424



Page 5425



Page 5426



Page 5427



Page 5428



Page 5429



Page 5430



Page 5431



Page 5432



Page 5433



Page 5434



Page 5435



Page 5436



Page 5437



Page 5438



Page 5439



Page 5440



Page 5441



Page 5442



Page 5443



Page 5444



Page 5445



Page 5446



Page 5447



Page 5448



Page 5449



Page 5450



Page 5451



Page 5452



Page 5453



Page 5454



Page 5455



Page 5456



Page 5457



Page 5458



Page 5459



Page 5460



Page 5461



Page 5462



Page 5463



Page 5464



Page 5465



Page 5466



Page 5467



Page 5468



Page 5469



Page 5470



Page 5471



Page 5472



Page 5473



Page 5474



Page 5475



Page 5476



Page 5477



Page 5478



Page 5479



Page 5480



Page 5481



Page 5482



Page 5483



Page 5484



Page 5485



Page 5486



Page 5487



Page 5488



Page 5489



Page 5490



Page 5491



Page 5492



Page 5493



Page 5494



Page 5495



Page 5496



Page 5497



Page 5498



Page 5499



Page 5500



Page 5501



Page 5502



Page 5503



Page 5504



Page 5505



Page 5506



Page 5507



Page 5508



Page 5509



Page 5510



Page 5511



Page 5512



Page 5513



Page 5514



Page 5515



Page 5516



Page 5517



Page 5518



Page 5519



Page 5520



Page 5521



Page 5522



Page 5523



Page 5524



Page 5525



Page 5526



Page 5527



Page 5528



Page 5529



Page 5530



Page 5531



Page 5532



Page 5533



Page 5534



Page 5535



Page 5536



Page 5537



Page 5538



Page 5539



Page 5540



Page 5541



Page 5542



Page 5543



Page 5544



Page 5545



Page 5546



Page 5547



Page 5548



Page 5549



Page 5550



Page 5551



Page 5552



Page 5553



Page 5554



Page 5555



Page 5556



Page 5557



Page 5558



Page 5559



Page 5560



Page 5561



Page 5562



Page 5563



Page 5564



Page 5565



Page 5566



Page 5567



Page 5568



Page 5569



Page 5570



Page 5571



Page 5572



Page 5573



Page 5574



Page 5575



Page 5576



Page 5577



Page 5578



Page 5579



Page 5580



Page 5581



Page 5582



Page 5583



Page 5584



Page 5585



Page 5586



Page 5587



Page 5588



Page 5589



Page 5590



Page 5591



Page 5592



Page 5593



Page 5594



Page 5595



Page 5596



Page 5597



Page 5598



Page 5599



Page 5600



Page 5601



Page 5602



Page 5603



Page 5604



Page 5605



Page 5606



Page 5607



Page 5608



Page 5609



Page 5610



Page 5611



Page 5612



Page 5613



Page 5614



Page 5615



Page 5616



Page 5617



Page 5618



Page 5619



Page 5620



Page 5621



Page 5622



Page 5623



Page 5624



Page 5625



Page 5626



Page 5627



Page 5628



Page 5629



Page 5630



Page 5631



Page 5632



Page 5633



Page 5634



Page 5635



Page 5636



Page 5637



Page 5638



Page 5639



Page 5640



Page 5641



Page 5642



Page 5643



Page 5644



Page 5645



Page 5646



Page 5647



Page 5648



Page 5649



Page 5650



Page 5651



Page 5652



Page 5653



Page 5654



Page 5655



Page 5656



Page 5657



Page 5658



Page 5659



Page 5660



Page 5661



Page 5662



Page 5663



Page 5664



Page 5665



Page 5666



Page 5667



Page 5668



Page 5669



Page 5670



Page 5671



Page 5672



Page 5673



Page 5674



Page 5675



Page 5676



Page 5677



Page 5678



Page 5679



Page 5680



Page 5681



Page 5682



Page 5683



Page 5684



Page 5685



Page 5686



Page 5687



Page 5688



Page 5689



Page 5690



Page 5691



Page 5692



Page 5693



Page 5694



Page 5695



Page 5696



Page 5697



Page 5698



Page 5699



Page 5700



Page 5701



Page 5702



Page 5703



Page 5704



Page 5705



Page 5706



Page 5707



Page 5708



Page 5709



Page 5710



Page 5711



Page 5712



Page 5713



Page 5714



Page 5715



Page 5716



Page 5717



Page 5718



Page 5719



Page 5720



Page 5721



Page 5722



Page 5723



Page 5724



Page 5725



Page 5726



Page 5727



Page 5728



Page 5729



Page 5730



Page 5731



Page 5732



Page 5733



Page 5734



Page 5735



Page 5736



Page 5737



Page 5738



Page 5739



Page 5740



Page 5741



Page 5742



Page 5743



Page 5744



Page 5745



Page 5746



Page 5747



Page 5748



Page 5749



Page 5750



Page 5751



Page 5752



Page 5753



Page 5754



Page 5755



Page 5756



Page 5757



Page 5758



Page 5759



Page 5760



Page 5761



Page 5762



Page 5763



Page 5764



Page 5765



Page 5766



Page 5767



Page 5768



Page 5769



Page 5770



Page 5771



Page 5772



Page 5773



Page 5774



Page 5775



Page 5776



Page 5777



Page 5778



Page 5779



Page 5780



Page 5781



Page 5782



Page 5783



Page 5784



Page 5785



Page 5786



Page 5787



Page 5788



Page 5789



Page 5790



Page 5791



Page 5792



Page 5793



Page 5794



Page 5795



Page 5796



Page 5797



Page 5798



Page 5799



Page 5800



Page 5801



Page 5802



Page 5803



Page 5804



Page 5805



Page 5806



Page 5807



Page 5808



Page 5809



Page 5810



Page 5811



Page 5812



Page 5813



Page 5814



Page 5815



Page 5816



Page 5817



Page 5818



Page 5819



Page 5820



Page 5821



Page 5822



Page 5823



Page 5824



Page 5825



Page 5826



Page 5827



Page 5828



Page 5829



Page 5830



Page 5831



Page 5832



Page 5833



Page 5834



Page 5835



Page 5836



Page 5837



Page 5838



Page 5839



Page 5840



Page 5841



Page 5842



Page 5843



Page 5844



Page 5845



Page 5846



Page 5847



Page 5848



Page 5849



Page 5850



Page 5851



Page 5852



Page 5853



Page 5854



Page 5855



Page 5856



Page 5857



Page 5858



Page 5859



Page 5860



Page 5861



Page 5862



Page 5863



Page 5864



Page 5865



Page 5866



Page 5867



Page 5868



Page 5869



Page 5870



Page 5871



Page 5872



Page 5873



Page 5874



Page 5875



Page 5876



Page 5877



Page 5878



Page 5879



Page 5880



Page 5881



Page 5882



Page 5883



Page 5884



Page 5885



Page 5886



Page 5887



Page 5888



Page 5889



Page 5890



Page 5891



Page 5892



Page 5893



Page 5894



Page 5895



Page 5896



Page 5897



Page 5898



Page 5899



Page 5900



Page 5901



Page 5902



Page 5903



Page 5904



Page 5905



Page 5906



Page 5907



Page 5908



Page 5909



Page 5910



Page 5911



Page 5912



Page 5913



Page 5914



Page 5915



Page 5916



Page 5917



Page 5918



Page 5919



Page 5920



Page 5921



Page 5922



Page 5923



Page 5924



Page 5925



Page 5926



Page 5927



Page 5928



Page 5929



Page 5930



Page 5931



Page 5932



Page 5933



Page 5934



Page 5935



Page 5936



Page 5937



Page 5938



Page 5939



Page 5940



Page 5941



Page 5942



Page 5943



Page 5944



Page 5945



Page 5946



Page 5947



Page 5948



Page 5949



Page 5950



Page 5951



Page 5952



Page 5953



Page 5954



Page 5955



Page 5956



Page 5957



Page 5958



Page 5959



Page 5960



Page 5961



Page 5962



Page 5963



Page 5964



Page 5965



Page 5966



Page 5967



Page 5968



Page 5969



Page 5970



Page 5971



Page 5972



Page 5973



Page 5974



Page 5975



Page 5976



Page 5977



Page 5978



Page 5979



Page 5980



Page 5981



Page 5982



Page 5983



Page 5984



Page 5985



Page 5986



Page 5987



Page 5988



Page 5989



Page 5990



Page 5991



Page 5992



Page 5993



Page 5994



Page 5995



Page 5996



Page 5997



Page 5998



Page 5999



Page 6000



Page 6001



Page 6002



Page 6003



Page 6004



Page 6005



Page 6006



Page 6007



Page 6008



Page 6009



Page 6010



Page 6011



Page 6012



Page 6013



Page 6014



Page 6015



Page 6016



Page 6017



Page 6018



Page 6019



Page 6020



Page 6021



Page 6022



Page 6023



Page 6024



Page 6025



Page 6026



Page 6027



Page 6028



Page 6029



Page 6030



Page 6031



Page 6032



Page 6033



Page 6034



Page 6035



Page 6036



Page 6037



Page 6038



Page 6039



Page 6040



Page 6041



Page 6042



Page 6043



Page 6044



Page 6045



Page 6046



Page 6047



Page 6048



Page 6049



Page 6050



Page 6051



Page 6052



Page 6053



Page 6054



Page 6055



Page 6056



Page 6057



Page 6058



Page 6059



Page 6060



Page 6061



Page 6062



Page 6063



Page 6064



Page 6065



Page 6066



Page 6067



Page 6068



Page 6069



Page 6070



Page 6071



Page 6072



Page 6073



Page 6074



Page 6075



Page 6076



Page 6077



Page 6078



Page 6079



Page 6080



Page 6081



Page 6082



Page 6083



Page 6084



Page 6085



Page 6086



Page 6087



Page 6088



Page 6089



Page 6090



Page 6091



Page 6092



Page 6093



Page 6094



Page 6095



Page 6096



Page 6097



Page 6098



Page 6099



Page 6100



Page 6101



Page 6102



Page 6103



Page 6104



Page 6105



Page 6106



Page 6107



Page 6108



Page 6109



Page 6110



Page 6111



Page 6112



Page 6113



Page 6114



Page 6115



Page 6116



Page 6117



Page 6118



Page 6119



Page 6120



Page 6121



Page 6122



Page 6123



Page 6124



Page 6125



Page 6126



Page 6127



Page 6128



Page 6129



Page 6130



Page 6131



Page 6132



Page 6133



Page 6134



Page 6135



Page 6136



Page 6137



Page 6138



Page 6139



Page 6140



Page 6141



Page 6142



Page 6143



Page 6144



Page 6145



Page 6146



Page 6147



Page 6148



Page 6149



Page 6150



Page 6151



Page 6152



Page 6153



Page 6154



Page 6155



Page 6156



Page 6157



Page 6158



Page 6159



Page 6160



Page 6161



Page 6162



Page 6163



Page 6164



Page 6165



Page 6166



Page 6167



Page 6168



Page 6169



Page 6170



Page 6171



Page 6172



Page 6173



Page 6174



Page 6175



Page 6176



Page 6177



Page 6178



Page 6179



Page 6180



Page 6181



Page 6182



Page 6183



Page 6184



Page 6185



Page 6186



Page 6187



Page 6188



Page 6189



Page 6190



Page 6191



Page 6192



Page 6193



Page 6194



Page 6195



Page 6196



Page 6197



Page 6198



Page 6199



Page 6200



Page 6201



Page 6202



Page 6203



Page 6204



Page 6205



Page 6206



Page 6207



Page 6208



Page 6209



Page 6210



Page 6211



Page 6212



Page 6213



Page 6214



Page 6215



Page 6216



Page 6217



Page 6218



Page 6219



Page 6220



Page 6221



Page 6222



Page 6223



Page 6224



Page 6225



Page 6226



Page 6227



Page 6228



Page 6229



Page 6230



Page 6231



Page 6232



Page 6233



Page 6234



Page 6235



Page 6236



Page 6237



Page 6238



Page 6239



Page 6240



Page 6241



Page 6242



Page 6243



Page 6244



Page 6245



Page 6246



Page 6247



Page 6248



Page 6249



Page 6250



Page 6251



Page 6252



Page 6253



Page 6254



Page 6255



Page 6256



Page 6257



Page 6258



Page 6259



Page 6260



Page 6261



Page 6262



Page 6263



Page 6264



Page 6265



Page 6266



Page 6267



Page 6268



Page 6269



Page 6270



Page 6271



Page 6272



Page 6273



Page 6274



Page 6275



Page 6276



Page 6277



Page 6278



Page 6279



Page 6280



Page 6281



Page 6282



Page 6283



Page 6284



Page 6285



Page 6286



Page 6287



Page 6288



Page 6289



Page 6290



Page 6291



Page 6292



Page 6293



Page 6294



Page 6295



Page 6296



Page 6297



Page 6298



Page 6299



Page 6300



Page 6301



Page 6302



Page 6303



Page 6304



Page 6305



Page 6306



Page 6307



Page 6308



Page 6309



Page 6310



Page 6311



Page 6312



Page 6313



Page 6314



Page 6315



Page 6316



Page 6317



Page 6318



Page 6319



Page 6320



Page 6321



Page 6322



Page 6323



Page 6324



Page 6325



Page 6326



Page 6327



Page 6328



Page 6329



Page 6330



Page 6331



Page 6332



Page 6333



Page 6334



Page 6335



Page 6336



Page 6337



Page 6338



Page 6339



Page 6340



Page 6341



Page 6342



Page 6343



Page 6344



Page 6345



Page 6346



Page 6347



Page 6348



Page 6349



Page 6350



Page 6351



Page 6352



Page 6353



Page 6354



Page 6355



Page 6356



Page 6357



Page 6358



Page 6359



Page 6360



Page 6361



Page 6362



Page 6363



Page 6364



Page 6365



Page 6366



Page 6367



Page 6368



Page 6369



Page 6370



Page 6371



Page 6372



Page 6373



Page 6374



Page 6375



Page 6376



Page 6377



Page 6378



Page 6379



Page 6380



Page 6381



Page 6382



Page 6383



Page 6384



Page 6385



Page 6386



Page 6387



Page 6388



Page 6389



Page 6390



Page 6391



Page 6392



Page 6393



Page 6394



Page 6395



Page 6396



Page 6397



Page 6398



Page 6399



Page 6400



Page 6401



Page 6402



Page 6403



Page 6404



Page 6405



Page 6406



Page 6407



Page 6408



Page 6409



Page 6410



Page 6411



Page 6412



Page 6413



Page 6414



Page 6415



Page 6416



Page 6417



Page 6418



Page 6419



Page 6420



Page 6421



Page 6422



Page 6423



Page 6424



Page 6425



Page 6426



Page 6427



Page 6428



Page 6429



Page 6430



Page 6431



Page 6432



Page 6433



Page 6434



Page 6435



Page 6436



Page 6437



Page 6438



Page 6439



Page 6440



Page 6441



Page 6442



Page 6443



Page 6444



Page 6445



Page 6446



Page 6447



Page 6448



Page 6449



Page 6450



Page 6451



Page 6452



Page 6453



Page 6454



Page 6455



Page 6456



Page 6457



Page 6458



Page 6459



Page 6460



Page 6461



Page 6462



Page 6463



Page 6464



Page 6465



Page 6466



Page 6467



Page 6468



Page 6469



Page 6470



Page 6471



Page 6472



Page 6473



Page 6474



Page 6475



Page 6476



Page 6477



Page 6478



Page 6479



Page 6480



Page 6481



Page 6482



Page 6483



Page 6484



Page 6485



Page 6486



Page 6487



Page 6488



Page 6489



Page 6490



Page 6491



Page 6492



Page 6493



Page 6494



Page 6495



Page 6496



Page 6497



Page 6498



Page 6499



Page 6500



Page 6501



Page 6502



Page 6503



Page 6504



Page 6505



Page 6506



Page 6507



Page 6508



Page 6509



Page 6510



Page 6511



Page 6512



Page 6513



Page 6514



Page 6515



Page 6516



Page 6517



Page 6518



Page 6519



Page 6520



Page 6521



Page 6522



Page 6523



Page 6524



Page 6525



Page 6526



Page 6527



Page 6528



Page 6529



Page 6530



Page 6531



Page 6532



Page 6533



Page 6534



Page 6535



Page 6536



Page 6537



Page 6538



Page 6539



Page 6540



Page 6541



Page 6542



Page 6543



Page 6544



Page 6545



Page 6546



Page 6547



Page 6548



Page 6549



Page 6550



Page 6551



Page 6552



Page 6553



Page 6554



Page 6555



Page 6556



Page 6557



Page 6558



Page 6559



Page 6560



Page 6561



Page 6562



Page 6563



Page 6564



Page 6565



Page 6566



Page 6567



Page 6568



Page 6569



Page 6570



Page 6571



Page 6572



Page 6573



Page 6574



Page 6575



Page 6576



Page 6577



Page 6578



Page 6579



Page 6580



Page 6581



Page 6582



Page 6583



Page 6584



Page 6585



Page 6586



Page 6587



Page 6588



Page 6589



Page 6590



Page 6591



Page 6592



Page 6593



Page 6594



Page 6595



Page 6596



Page 6597



Page 6598



Page 6599



Page 6600



Page 6601



Page 6602



Page 6603



Page 6604



Page 6605



Page 6606



Page 6607



Page 6608



Page 6609



Page 6610



Page 6611



Page 6612



Page 6613



Page 6614



Page 6615



Page 6616



Page 6617



Page 6618



Page 6619



Page 6620



Page 6621



Page 6622



Page 6623



Page 6624



Page 6625



Page 6626



Page 6627



Page 6628



Page 6629



Page 6630



Page 6631



Page 6632



Page 6633



Page 6634



Page 6635



Page 6636



Page 6637



Page 6638



Page 6639



Page 6640



Page 6641



Page 6642



Page 6643



Page 6644



Page 6645



Page 6646



Page 6647



Page 6648



Page 6649



Page 6650



Page 6651



Page 6652



Page 6653



Page 6654



Page 6655



Page 6656



Page 6657



Page 6658



Page 6659



Page 6660



Page 6661



Page 6662



Page 6663



Page 6664



Page 6665



Page 6666



Page 6667



Page 6668



Page 6669



Page 6670



Page 6671



Page 6672



Page 6673



Page 6674



Page 6675



Page 6676



Page 6677



Page 6678



Page 6679



Page 6680



Page 6681



Page 6682



Page 6683



Page 6684



Page 6685



Page 6686



Page 6687



Page 6688



Page 6689



Page 6690



Page 6691



Page 6692



Page 6693



Page 6694



Page 6695



Page 6696



Page 6697



Page 6698



Page 6699



Page 6700



Page 6701



Page 6702



Page 6703



Page 6704



Page 6705



Page 6706



Page 6707



Page 6708



Page 6709



Page 6710



Page 6711



Page 6712



Page 6713



Page 6714



Page 6715



Page 6716



Page 6717



Page 6718



Page 6719



Page 6720



Page 6721



Page 6722



Page 6723



Page 6724



Page 6725



Page 6726



Page 6727



Page 6728



Page 6729



Page 6730



Page 6731



Page 6732



Page 6733



Page 6734



Page 6735



Page 6736



Page 6737



Page 6738



Page 6739



Page 6740



Page 6741



Page 6742



Page 6743



Page 6744



Page 6745



Page 6746



Page 6747



Page 6748



Page 6749



Page 6750



Page 6751



Page 6752



Page 6753



Page 6754



Page 6755



Page 6756



Page 6757



Page 6758



Page 6759



Page 6760



Page 6761



Page 6762



Page 6763



Page 6764



Page 6765



Page 6766



Page 6767



Page 6768



Page 6769



Page 6770



Page 6771



Page 6772



Page 6773



Page 6774



Page 6775



Page 6776



Page 6777



Page 6778



Page 6779



Page 6780



Page 6781



Page 6782



Page 6783



Page 6784



Page 6785



Page 6786



Page 6787



Page 6788



Page 6789



Page 6790



Page 6791



Page 6792



Page 6793



Page 6794



Page 6795



Page 6796



Page 6797



Page 6798



Page 6799



Page 6800



Page 6801



Page 6802



Page 6803



Page 6804



Page 6805



Page 6806



Page 6807



Page 6808



Page 6809



Page 6810



Page 6811



Page 6812



Page 6813



Page 6814



Page 6815



Page 6816



Page 6817



Page 6818



Page 6819



Page 6820



Page 6821



Page 6822



Page 6823



Page 6824



Page 6825



Page 6826



Page 6827



Page 6828



Page 6829



Page 6830



Page 6831



Page 6832



Page 6833



Page 6834



Page 6835



Page 6836



Page 6837



Page 6838



Page 6839



Page 6840



Page 6841



Page 6842



Page 6843



Page 6844



Page 6845



Page 6846



Page 6847



Page 6848



Page 6849



Page 6850



Page 6851



Page 6852



Page 6853



Page 6854



Page 6855



Page 6856



Page 6857



Page 6858



Page 6859



Page 6860



Page 6861



Page 6862



Page 6863



Page 6864



Page 6865



Page 6866



Page 6867



Page 6868



Page 6869



Page 6870



Page 6871



Page 6872



Page 6873



Page 6874



Page 6875



Page 6876



Page 6877



Page 6878



Page 6879



Page 6880



Page 6881



Page 6882



Page 6883



Page 6884



Page 6885



Page 6886



Page 6887



Page 6888



Page 6889



Page 6890



Page 6891



Page 6892



Page 6893



Page 6894



Page 6895



Page 6896



Page 6897



Page 6898



Page 6899



Page 6900



Page 6901



Page 6902



Page 6903



Page 6904



Page 6905



Page 6906



Page 6907



Page 6908



Page 6909



Page 6910



Page 6911



Page 6912



Page 6913



Page 6914



Page 6915



Page 6916



Page 6917



Page 6918



Page 6919



Page 6920



Page 6921



Page 6922



Page 6923



Page 6924



Page 6925



Page 6926



Page 6927



Page 6928



Page 6929



Page 6930



Page 6931



Page 6932



Page 6933



Page 6934



Page 6935



Page 6936



Page 6937



Page 6938



Page 6939



Page 6940



Page 6941



Page 6942



Page 6943



Page 6944



Page 6945



Page 6946



Page 6947



Page 6948



Page 6949



Page 6950



Page 6951



Page 6952



Page 6953



Page 6954



Page 6955



Page 6956



Page 6957



Page 6958



Page 6959



Page 6960



Page 6961



Page 6962



Page 6963



Page 6964



Page 6965



Page 6966



Page 6967



Page 6968



Page 6969



Page 6970



Page 6971



Page 6972



Page 6973



Page 6974



Page 6975



Page 6976



Page 6977



Page 6978



Page 6979



Page 6980



Page 6981



Page 6982



Page 6983



Page 6984



Page 6985



Page 6986



Page 6987



Page 6988



Page 6989



Page 6990



Page 6991



Page 6992



Page 6993



Page 6994



Page 6995



Page 6996



Page 6997



Page 6998



Page 6999



Page 7000



Page 7001



Page 7002



Page 7003



Page 7004



Page 7005



Page 7006



Page 7007



Page 7008



Page 7009



Page 7010



Page 7011



Page 7012



Page 7013



Page 7014



Page 7015



Page 7016



Page 7017



Page 7018



Page 7019



Page 7020



Page 7021



Page 7022



Page 7023



Page 7024



Page 7025



Page 7026



Page 7027



Page 7028



Page 7029



Page 7030



Page 7031



Page 7032



Page 7033



Page 7034



Page 7035



Page 7036



Page 7037



Page 7038



Page 7039



Page 7040



Page 7041



Page 7042



Page 7043



Page 7044



Page 7045



Page 7046



Page 7047



Page 7048



Page 7049



Page 7050



Page 7051



Page 7052



Page 7053



Page 7054



Page 7055



Page 7056



Page 7057



Page 7058



Page 7059



Page 7060



Page 7061



Page 7062



Page 7063



Page 7064



Page 7065



Page 7066



Page 7067



Page 7068



Page 7069



Page 7070



Page 7071



Page 7072



Page 7073



Page 7074



Page 7075



Page 7076



Page 7077



Page 7078



Page 7079



Page 7080



Page 7081



Page 7082



Page 7083



Page 7084



Page 7085



Page 7086



Page 7087



Page 7088



Page 7089



Page 7090



Page 7091



Page 7092



Page 7093



Page 7094



Page 7095



Page 7096



Page 7097



Page 7098



Page 7099



Page 7100



Page 7101



Page 7102



Page 7103



Page 7104



Page 7105



Page 7106



Page 7107



Page 7108



Page 7109



Page 7110



Page 7111



Page 7112



Page 7113



Page 7114



Page 7115



Page 7116



Page 7117



Page 7118



Page 7119



Page 7120



Page 7121



Page 7122



Page 7123



Page 7124



Page 7125



Page 7126



Page 7127



Page 7128



Page 7129



Page 7130



Page 7131



Page 7132



Page 7133



Page 7134



Page 7135



Page 7136



Page 7137



Page 7138



Page 7139



Page 7140



Page 7141



Page 7142



Page 7143



Page 7144



Page 7145



Page 7146



Page 7147



Page 7148



Page 7149



Page 7150



Page 7151



Page 7152



Page 7153



Page 7154



Page 7155



Page 7156



Page 7157



Page 7158



Page 7159



Page 7160



Page 7161



Page 7162



Page 7163



Page 7164



Page 7165



Page 7166



Page 7167



Page 7168



Page 7169



Page 7170



Page 7171



Page 7172



Page 7173



Page 7174



Page 7175



Page 7176



Page 7177



Page 7178



Page 7179



Page 7180



Page 7181



Page 7182



Page 7183



Page 7184



Page 7185



Page 7186



Page 7187



Page 7188



Page 7189



Page 7190



Page 7191



Page 7192



Page 7193



Page 7194



Page 7195



Page 7196



Page 7197



Page 7198



Page 7199



Page 7200



Page 7201



Page 7202



Page 7203



Page 7204



Page 7205



Page 7206



Page 7207



Page 7208



Page 7209



Page 7210



Page 7211



Page 7212



Page 7213



Page 7214



Page 7215



Page 7216



Page 7217



Page 7218



Page 7219



Page 7220



Page 7221



Page 7222



Page 7223



Page 7224



Page 7225



Page 7226



Page 7227



Page 7228



Page 7229



Page 7230



Page 7231



Page 7232



Page 7233



Page 7234



Page 7235



Page 7236



Page 7237



Page 7238



Page 7239



Page 7240



Page 7241



Page 7242



Page 7243



Page 7244



Page 7245



Page 7246



Page 7247



Page 7248



Page 7249



Page 7250



Page 7251



Page 7252



Page 7253



Page 7254



Page 7255



Page 7256



Page 7257



Page 7258



Page 7259



Page 7260



Page 7261



Page 7262



Page 7263



Page 7264



Page 7265



Page 7266



Page 7267



Page 7268



Page 7269



Page 7270



Page 7271



Page 7272



Page 7273



Page 7274



Page 7275



Page 7276



Page 7277



Page 7278



Page 7279



Page 7280



Page 7281



Page 7282



Page 7283



Page 7284



Page 7285



Page 7286



Page 7287



Page 7288



Page 7289



Page 7290



Page 7291



Page 7292



Page 7293



Page 7294



Page 7295



Page 7296



Page 7297



Page 7298



Page 7299



Page 7300



Page 7301



Page 7302



Page 7303



Page 7304



Page 7305



Page 7306



Page 7307



Page 7308



Page 7309



Page 7310



Page 7311



Page 7312



Page 7313



Page 7314



Page 7315



Page 7316



Page 7317



Page 7318



Page 7319



Page 7320



Page 7321



Page 7322



Page 7323



Page 7324



Page 7325



Page 7326



Page 7327



Page 7328



Page 7329



Page 7330



Page 7331



Page 7332



Page 7333



Page 7334



Page 7335



Page 7336



Page 7337



Page 7338



Page 7339



Page 7340



Page 7341



Page 7342



Page 7343



Page 7344



Page 7345



Page 7346



Page 7347



Page 7348



Page 7349



Page 7350



Page 7351



Page 7352



Page 7353



Page 7354



Page 7355



Page 7356



Page 7357



Page 7358



Page 7359



Page 7360



Page 7361



Page 7362



Page 7363



Page 7364



Page 7365



Page 7366



Page 7367



Page 7368



Page 7369



Page 7370



Page 7371



Page 7372



Page 7373



Page 7374



Page 7375



Page 7376



Page 7377



Page 7378



Page 7379



Page 7380



Page 7381



Page 7382



Page 7383



Page 7384



Page 7385



Page 7386



Page 7387



Page 7388



Page 7389



Page 7390



Page 7391



Page 7392



Page 7393



Page 7394



Page 7395



Page 7396



Page 7397



Page 7398



Page 7399



Page 7400



Page 7401



Page 7402



Page 7403



Page 7404



Page 7405



Page 7406



Page 7407



Page 7408



Page 7409



Page 7410



Page 7411



Page 7412



Page 7413



Page 7414



Page 7415



Page 7416



Page 7417



Page 7418



Page 7419



Page 7420



Page 7421



Page 7422



Page 7423



Page 7424



Page 7425



Page 7426



Page 7427



Page 7428



Page 7429



Page 7430



Page 7431



Page 7432



Page 7433



Page 7434



Page 7435



Page 7436



Page 7437



Page 7438



Page 7439



Page 7440



Page 7441



Page 7442



Page 7443



Page 7444



Page 7445



Page 7446



Page 7447



Page 7448



Page 7449



Page 7450



Page 7451



Page 7452



Page 7453



Page 7454



Page 7455



Page 7456



Page 7457



Page 7458



Page 7459



Page 7460



Page 7461



Page 7462



Page 7463



Page 7464



Page 7465



Page 7466



Page 7467



Page 7468



Page 7469



Page 7470



Page 7471



Page 7472



Page 7473



Page 7474



Page 7475



Page 7476



Page 7477



Page 7478



Page 7479



Page 7480



Page 7481



Page 7482



Page 7483



Page 7484



Page 7485



Page 7486



Page 7487



Page 7488



Page 7489



Page 7490



Page 7491



Page 7492



Page 7493



Page 7494



Page 7495



Page 7496



Page 7497



Page 7498



Page 7499



Page 7500



Page 7501



Page 7502



Page 7503



Page 7504



Page 7505



Page 7506



Page 7507



Page 7508



Page 7509



Page 7510



Page 7511



Page 7512



Page 7513



Page 7514



Page 7515



Page 7516



Page 7517



Page 7518



Page 7519



Page 7520



Page 7521



Page 7522



Page 7523



Page 7524



Page 7525



Page 7526



Page 7527



Page 7528



Page 7529



Page 7530



Page 7531



Page 7532



Page 7533



Page 7534



Page 7535



Page 7536



Page 7537



Page 7538



Page 7539



Page 7540



Page 7541



Page 7542



Page 7543



Page 7544



Page 7545



Page 7546



Page 7547



Page 7548



Page 7549



Page 7550



Page 7551



Page 7552



Page 7553



Page 7554



Page 7555



Page 7556



Page 7557



Page 7558



Page 7559



Page 7560



Page 7561



Page 7562



Page 7563



Page 7564



Page 7565



Page 7566



Page 7567



Page 7568



Page 7569



Page 7570



Page 7571



Page 7572



Page 7573



Page 7574



Page 7575



Page 7576



Page 7577



Page 7578



Page 7579



Page 7580



Page 7581



Page 7582



Page 7583



Page 7584



Page 7585



Page 7586



Page 7587



Page 7588



Page 7589



Page 7590



Page 7591



Page 7592



Page 7593



Page 7594



Page 7595



Page 7596



Page 7597



Page 7598



Page 7599



Page 7600



Page 7601



Page 7602



Page 7603



Page 7604



Page 7605



Page 7606



Page 7607



Page 7608



Page 7609



Page 7610



Page 7611



Page 7612



Page 7613



Page 7614



Page 7615



Page 7616



Page 7617



Page 7618



Page 7619



Page 7620



Page 7621



Page 7622



Page 7623



Page 7624



Page 7625



Page 7626



Page 7627



Page 7628



Page 7629



Page 7630



Page 7631



Page 7632



Page 7633



Page 7634



Page 7635



Page 7636



Page 7637



Page 7638



Page 7639



Page 7640



Page 7641



Page 7642



Page 7643



Page 7644



Page 7645



Page 7646



Page 7647



Page 7648



Page 7649



Page 7650



Page 7651



Page 7652



Page 7653



Page 7654



Page 7655



Page 7656



Page 7657



Page 7658



Page 7659



Page 7660



Page 7661



Page 7662



Page 7663



Page 7664



Page 7665



Page 7666



Page 7667



Page 7668



Page 7669



Page 7670



Page 7671



Page 7672



Page 7673



Page 7674



Page 7675



Page 7676



Page 7677



Page 7678



Page 7679



Page 7680



Page 7681



Page 7682



Page 7683



Page 7684



Page 7685



Page 7686



Page 7687



Page 7688



Page 7689



Page 7690



Page 7691



Page 7692



Page 7693



Page 7694



Page 7695



Page 7696



Page 7697



Page 7698



Page 7699



Page 7700



Page 7701



Page 7702



Page 7703



Page 7704



Page 7705



Page 7706



Page 7707



Page 7708



Page 7709



Page 7710



Page 7711



Page 7712



Page 7713



Page 7714



Page 7715



Page 7716



Page 7717



Page 7718



Page 7719



Page 7720



Page 7721



Page 7722



Page 7723



Page 7724



Page 7725



Page 7726



Page 7727



Page 7728



Page 7729



Page 7730



Page 7731



Page 7732



Page 7733



Page 7734



Page 7735



Page 7736



Page 7737



Page 7738



Page 7739



Page 7740



Page 7741



Page 7742



Page 7743



Page 7744



Page 7745



Page 7746



Page 7747



Page 7748



Page 7749



Page 7750



Page 7751



Page 7752



Page 7753



Page 7754



Page 7755



Page 7756



Page 7757



Page 7758



Page 7759



Page 7760



Page 7761



Page 7762



Page 7763



Page 7764



Page 7765



Page 7766



Page 7767



Page 7768



Page 7769



Page 7770



Page 7771



Page 7772



Page 7773



Page 7774



Page 7775



Page 7776



Page 7777



Page 7778



Page 7779



Page 7780



Page 7781



Page 7782



Page 7783



Page 7784



Page 7785



Page 7786



Page 7787



Page 7788



Page 7789



Page 7790



Page 7791



Page 7792



Page 7793



Page 7794



Page 7795



Page 7796



Page 7797



Page 7798



Page 7799



Page 7800



Page 7801



Page 7802



Page 7803



Page 7804



Page 7805



Page 7806



Page 7807



Page 7808



Page 7809



Page 7810



Page 7811



Page 7812



Page 7813



Page 7814



Page 7815



Page 7816



Page 7817



Page 7818



Page 7819



Page 7820



Page 7821



Page 7822



Page 7823



Page 7824



Page 7825



Page 7826



Page 7827



Page 7828



Page 7829



Page 7830



Page 7831



Page 7832



Page 7833



Page 7834



Page 7835



Page 7836



Page 7837



Page 7838



Page 7839



Page 7840



Page 7841



Page 7842



Page 7843



Page 7844



Page 7845



Page 7846



Page 7847



Page 7848



Page 7849



Page 7850



Page 7851



Page 7852



Page 7853



Page 7854



Page 7855



Page 7856



Page 7857



Page 7858



Page 7859



Page 7860



Page 7861



Page 7862



Page 7863



Page 7864



Page 7865



Page 7866



Page 7867



Page 7868



Page 7869



Page 7870



Page 7871



Page 7872



Page 7873



Page 7874



Page 7875



Page 7876



Page 7877



Page 7878



Page 7879



Page 7880



Page 7881



Page 7882



Page 7883



Page 7884



Page 7885



Page 7886



Page 7887



Page 7888



Page 7889



Page 7890



Page 7891



Page 7892



Page 7893



Page 7894



Page 7895



Page 7896



Page 7897



Page 7898



Page 7899



Page 7900



Page 7901



Page 7902



Page 7903



Page 7904



Page 7905



Page 7906



Page 7907



Page 7908



Page 7909



Page 7910



Page 7911



Page 7912



Page 7913



Page 7914



Page 7915



Page 7916



Page 7917



Page 7918



Page 7919



Page 7920



Page 7921



Page 7922



Page 7923



Page 7924



Page 7925



Page 7926



Page 7927



Page 7928



Page 7929



Page 7930



Page 7931



Page 7932



Page 7933



Page 7934



Page 7935



Page 7936



Page 7937



Page 7938



Page 7939



Page 7940



Page 7941



Page 7942



Page 7943



Page 7944



Page 7945



Page 7946



Page 7947



Page 7948



Page 7949



Page 7950



Page 7951



Page 7952



Page 7953



Page 7954



Page 7955



Page 7956



Page 7957



Page 7958



Page 7959



Page 7960



Page 7961



Page 7962



Page 7963



Page 7964



Page 7965



Page 7966



Page 7967



Page 7968



Page 7969



Page 7970



Page 7971



Page 7972



Page 7973



Page 7974



Page 7975



Page 7976



Page 7977



Page 7978



Page 7979



Page 7980



Page 7981



Page 7982



Page 7983



Page 7984



Page 7985



Page 7986



Page 7987



Page 7988



Page 7989



Page 7990



Page 7991



Page 7992



Page 7993



Page 7994



Page 7995



Page 7996



Page 7997



Page 7998



Page 7999



Page 8000



Page 8001



Page 8002



Page 8003



Page 8004



Page 8005



Page 8006



Page 8007



Page 8008



Page 8009



Page 8010



Page 8011



Page 8012



Page 8013



Page 8014



Page 8015



Page 8016



Page 8017



Page 8018



Page 8019



Page 8020



Page 8021



Page 8022



Page 8023



Page 8024



Page 8025



Page 8026



Page 8027



Page 8028



Page 8029



Page 8030



Page 8031



Page 8032



Page 8033



Page 8034



Page 8035



Page 8036



Page 8037



Page 8038



Page 8039



Page 8040



Page 8041



Page 8042



Page 8043



Page 8044



Page 8045



Page 8046



Page 8047



Page 8048



Page 8049



Page 8050



Page 8051



Page 8052



Page 8053



Page 8054



Page 8055



Page 8056



Page 8057



Page 8058



Page 8059



Page 8060



Page 8061



Page 8062



Page 8063



Page 8064



Page 8065



Page 8066



Page 8067



Page 8068



Page 8069



Page 8070



Page 8071



Page 8072



Page 8073



Page 8074



Page 8075



Page 8076



Page 8077



Page 8078



Page 8079



Page 8080



Page 8081



Page 8082



Page 8083



Page 8084



Page 8085



Page 8086



Page 8087



Page 8088



Page 8089



Page 8090



Page 8091



Page 8092



Page 8093



Page 8094



Page 8095



Page 8096



Page 8097



Page 8098



Page 8099



Page 8100



Page 8101



Page 8102



Page 8103



Page 8104



Page 8105



Page 8106



Page 8107



Page 8108



Page 8109



Page 8110



Page 8111



Page 8112



Page 8113



Page 8114



Page 8115



Page 8116



Page 8117



Page 8118



Page 8119



Page 8120



Page 8121



Page 8122



Page 8123



Page 8124



Page 8125



Page 8126



Page 8127



Page 8128



Page 8129



Page 8130



Page 8131



Page 8132



Page 8133



Page 8134



Page 8135



Page 8136



Page 8137



Page 8138



Page 8139



Page 8140



Page 8141



Page 8142



Page 8143



Page 8144



Page 8145



Page 8146



Page 8147



Page 8148



Page 8149



Page 8150



Page 8151



Page 8152



Page 8153



Page 8154



Page 8155



Page 8156



Page 8157



Page 8158



Page 8159



Page 8160



Page 8161



Page 8162



Page 8163



Page 8164



Page 8165



Page 8166



Page 8167



Page 8168



Page 8169



Page 8170



Page 8171



Page 8172



Page 8173



Page 8174



Page 8175



Page 8176



Page 8177



Page 8178



Page 8179



Page 8180



Page 8181



Page 8182



Page 8183



Page 8184



Page 8185



Page 8186



Page 8187



Page 8188



Page 8189



Page 8190



Page 8191



Page 8192



Page 8193



Page 8194



Page 8195



Page 8196



Page 8197



Page 8198



Page 8199



Page 8200



Page 8201



Page 8202



Page 8203



Page 8204



Page 8205



Page 8206



Page 8207



Page 8208



Page 8209



Page 8210



Page 8211



Page 8212



Page 8213



Page 8214



Page 8215



Page 8216



Page 8217



Page 8218



Page 8219



Page 8220



Page 8221



Page 8222



Page 8223



Page 8224



Page 8225



Page 8226



Page 8227



Page 8228



Page 8229



Page 8230



Page 8231



Page 8232



Page 8233



Page 8234



Page 8235



Page 8236



Page 8237



Page 8238



Page 8239



Page 8240



Page 8241



Page 8242



Page 8243



Page 8244



Page 8245



Page 8246



Page 8247



Page 8248



Page 8249



Page 8250



Page 8251



Page 8252



Page 8253



Page 8254



Page 8255



Page 8256



Page 8257



Page 8258



Page 8259



Page 8260



Page 8261



Page 8262



Page 8263



Page 8264



Page 8265



Page 8266



Page 8267



Page 8268



Page 8269



Page 8270



Page 8271



Page 8272



Page 8273



Page 8274



Page 8275



Page 8276



Page 8277



Page 8278



Page 8279



Page 8280



Page 8281



Page 8282



Page 8283



Page 8284



Page 8285



Page 8286



Page 8287



Page 8288



Page 8289



Page 8290



Page 8291



Page 8292



Page 8293



Page 8294



Page 8295



Page 8296



Page 8297



Page 8298



Page 8299



Page 8300



Page 8301



Page 8302



Page 8303



Page 8304



Page 8305



Page 8306



Page 8307



Page 8308



Page 8309



Page 8310



Page 8311



Page 8312



Page 8313



Page 8314



Page 8315



Page 8316



Page 8317



Page 8318



Page 8319



Page 8320



Page 8321



Page 8322



Page 8323



Page 8324



Page 8325



Page 8326



Page 8327



Page 8328



Page 8329



Page 8330



Page 8331



Page 8332



Page 8333



Page 8334



Page 8335



Page 8336



Page 8337



Page 8338



Page 8339



Page 8340



Page 8341



Page 8342



Page 8343



Page 8344



Page 8345



Page 8346



Page 8347



Page 8348



Page 8349



Page 8350



Page 8351



Page 8352



Page 8353



Page 8354



Page 8355



Page 8356



Page 8357



Page 8358



Page 8359



Page 8360



Page 8361



Page 8362



Page 8363



Page 8364



Page 8365



Page 8366



Page 8367



Page 8368



Page 8369



Page 8370



Page 8371



Page 8372



Page 8373



Page 8374



Page 8375



Page 8376



Page 8377



Page 8378



Page 8379



Page 8380



Page 8381



Page 8382



Page 8383



Page 8384



Page 8385



Page 8386



Page 8387



Page 8388



Page 8389



Page 8390



Page 8391



Page 8392



Page 8393



Page 8394



Page 8395



Page 8396



Page 8397



Page 8398



Page 8399



Page 8400



Page 8401



Page 8402



Page 8403



Page 8404



Page 8405



Page 8406



Page 8407



Page 8408



Page 8409



Page 8410



Page 8411



Page 8412



Page 8413



Page 8414



Page 8415



Page 8416



Page 8417



Page 8418



Page 8419



Page 8420



Page 8421



Page 8422



Page 8423



Page 8424



Page 8425



Page 8426



Page 8427



Page 8428



Page 8429



Page 8430



Page 8431



Page 8432



Page 8433



Page 8434



Page 8435



Page 8436



Page 8437



Page 8438



Page 8439



Page 8440



Page 8441



Page 8442



Page 8443



Page 8444



Page 8445



Page 8446



Page 8447



Page 8448



Page 8449



Page 8450



Page 8451



Page 8452



Page 8453



Page 8454



Page 8455



Page 8456



Page 8457



Page 8458



Page 8459



Page 8460



Page 8461



Page 8462



Page 8463



Page 8464



Page 8465



Page 8466



Page 8467



Page 8468



Page 8469



Page 8470



Page 8471



Page 8472



Page 8473



Page 8474



Page 8475



Page 8476



Page 8477



Page 8478



Page 8479



Page 8480



Page 8481



Page 8482



Page 8483



Page 8484



Page 8485



Page 8486



Page 8487



Page 8488



Page 8489



Page 8490



Page 8491



Page 8492



Page 8493



Page 8494



Page 8495



Page 8496



Page 8497



Page 8498



Page 8499



Page 8500



Page 8501



Page 8502



Page 8503



Page 8504



Page 8505



Page 8506



Page 8507



Page 8508



Page 8509



Page 8510



Page 8511



Page 8512



Page 8513



Page 8514



Page 8515



Page 8516



Page 8517



Page 8518



Page 8519



Page 8520



Page 8521



Page 8522



Page 8523



Page 8524



Page 8525



Page 8526



Page 8527



Page 8528



Page 8529



Page 8530



Page 8531



Page 8532



Page 8533



Page 8534



Page 8535



Page 8536



Page 8537



Page 8538



Page 8539



Page 8540



Page 8541



Page 8542



Page 8543



Page 8544



Page 8545



Page 8546



Page 8547



Page 8548



Page 8549



Page 8550



Page 8551



Page 8552



Page 8553



Page 8554



Page 8555



Page 8556



Page 8557



Page 8558



Page 8559



Page 8560



Page 8561



Page 8562



Page 8563



Page 8564



Page 8565



Page 8566



Page 8567



Page 8568



Page 8569



Page 8570



Page 8571



Page 8572



Page 8573



Page 8574



Page 8575



Page 8576



Page 8577



Page 8578



Page 8579



Page 8580



Page 8581



Page 8582



Page 8583



Page 8584



Page 8585



Page 8586



Page 8587



Page 8588



Page 8589



Page 8590



Page 8591



Page 8592



Page 8593



Page 8594



Page 8595



Page 8596



Page 8597



Page 8598



Page 8599



Page 8600



Page 8601



Page 8602



Page 8603



Page 8604



Page 8605



Page 8606



Page 8607



Page 8608



Page 8609



Page 8610



Page 8611



Page 8612



Page 8613



Page 8614



Page 8615



Page 8616



Page 8617



Page 8618



Page 8619



Page 8620



Page 8621



Page 8622



Page 8623



Page 8624



Page 8625



Page 8626



Page 8627



Page 8628



Page 8629



Page 8630



Page 8631



Page 8632



Page 8633



Page 8634



Page 8635



Page 8636



Page 8637



Page 8638



Page 8639



Page 8640



Page 8641



Page 8642



Page 8643



Page 8644



Page 8645



Page 8646



Page 8647



Page 8648



Page 8649



Page 8650



Page 8651



Page 8652



Page 8653



Page 8654



Page 8655



Page 8656



Page 8657



Page 8658



Page 8659



Page 8660



Page 8661



Page 8662



Page 8663



Page 8664



Page 8665



Page 8666



Page 8667



Page 8668



Page 8669



Page 8670



Page 8671



Page 8672



Page 8673



Page 8674



Page 8675



Page 8676



Page 8677



Page 8678



Page 8679



Page 8680



Page 8681



Page 8682



Page 8683



Page 8684



Page 8685



Page 8686



Page 8687



Page 8688



Page 8689



Page 8690



Page 8691



Page 8692



Page 8693



Page 8694



Page 8695



Page 8696



Page 8697



Page 8698



Page 8699



Page 8700



Page 8701



Page 8702



Page 8703



Page 8704



Page 8705



Page 8706



Page 8707



Page 8708



Page 8709



Page 8710



Page 8711



Page 8712



Page 8713



Page 8714



Page 8715



Page 8716



Page 8717



Page 8718



Page 8719



Page 8720



Page 8721



Page 8722



Page 8723



Page 8724



Page 8725



Page 8726



Page 8727



Page 8728



Page 8729



Page 8730



Page 8731



Page 8732



Page 8733



Page 8734



Page 8735



Page 8736



Page 8737



Page 8738



Page 8739



Page 8740



Page 8741



Page 8742



Page 8743



Page 8744



Page 8745



Page 8746



Page 8747



Page 8748



Page 8749



Page 8750



Page 8751



Page 8752



Page 8753



Page 8754



Page 8755



Page 8756



Page 8757



Page 8758



Page 8759



Page 8760



Page 8761



Page 8762



Page 8763



Page 8764



Page 8765



Page 8766



Page 8767



Page 8768



Page 8769



Page 8770



Page 8771



Page 8772



Page 8773



Page 8774



Page 8775



Page 8776



Page 8777



Page 8778



Page 8779



Page 8780



Page 8781



Page 8782



Page 8783



Page 8784



Page 8785



Page 8786



Page 8787



Page 8788



Page 8789



Page 8790



Page 8791



Page 8792



Page 8793



Page 8794



Page 8795



Page 8796



Page 8797



Page 8798



Page 8799



Page 8800



Page 8801



Page 8802



Page 8803



Page 8804



Page 8805



Page 8806



Page 8807



Page 8808



Page 8809



Page 8810



Page 8811



Page 8812



Page 8813



Page 8814



Page 8815



Page 8816



Page 8817



Page 8818



Page 8819



Page 8820



Page 8821



Page 8822



Page 8823



Page 8824



Page 8825



Page 8826



Page 8827



Page 8828



Page 8829



Page 8830



Page 8831



Page 8832



Page 8833



Page 8834



Page 8835



Page 8836



Page 8837



Page 8838



Page 8839



Page 8840



Page 8841



Page 8842



Page 8843



Page 8844



Page 8845



Page 8846



Page 8847



Page 8848



Page 8849



Page 8850



Page 8851



Page 8852



Page 8853



Page 8854



Page 8855



Page 8856



Page 8857



Page 8858



Page 8859



Page 8860



Page 8861



Page 8862



Page 8863



Page 8864



Page 8865



Page 8866



Page 8867



Page 8868



Page 8869



Page 8870



Page 8871



Page 8872



Page 8873



Page 8874



Page 8875



Page 8876



Page 8877



Page 8878



Page 8879



Page 8880



Page 8881



Page 8882



Page 8883



Page 8884



Page 8885



Page 8886



Page 8887



Page 8888



Page 8889



Page 8890



Page 8891



Page 8892



Page 8893



Page 8894



Page 8895



Page 8896



Page 8897



Page 8898



Page 8899



Page 8900



Page 8901



Page 8902



Page 8903



Page 8904



Page 8905



Page 8906



Page 8907



Page 8908



Page 8909



Page 8910



Page 8911



Page 8912



Page 8913



Page 8914



Page 8915



Page 8916



Page 8917



Page 8918



Page 8919



Page 8920



Page 8921



Page 8922



Page 8923



Page 8924



Page 8925



Page 8926



Page 8927



Page 8928



Page 8929



Page 8930



Page 8931



Page 8932



Page 8933



Page 8934



Page 8935



Page 8936



Page 8937



Page 8938



Page 8939



Page 8940



Page 8941



Page 8942



Page 8943



Page 8944



Page 8945



Page 8946



Page 8947



Page 8948



Page 8949



Page 8950



Page 8951



Page 8952



Page 8953



Page 8954



Page 8955



Page 8956



Page 8957



Page 8958



Page 8959



Page 8960



Page 8961



Page 8962



Page 8963



Page 8964



Page 8965



Page 8966



Page 8967



Page 8968



Page 8969



Page 8970



Page 8971



Page 8972



Page 8973



Page 8974



Page 8975



Page 8976



Page 8977



Page 8978



Page 8979



Page 8980



Page 8981



Page 8982



Page 8983



Page 8984



Page 8985



Page 8986



Page 8987



Page 8988



Page 8989



Page 8990



Page 8991



Page 8992



Page 8993



Page 8994



Page 8995



Page 8996



Page 8997



Page 8998



Page 8999



Page 9000



Page 9001



Page 9002



Page 9003



Page 9004



Page 9005



Page 9006



Page 9007



Page 9008



Page 9009



Page 9010



Page 9011



Page 9012



Page 9013



Page 9014



Page 9015



Page 9016



Page 9017



Page 9018



Page 9019



Page 9020



Page 9021



Page 9022



Page 9023



Page 9024



Page 9025



Page 9026



Page 9027



Page 9028



Page 9029



Page 9030



Page 9031



Page 9032



Page 9033



Page 9034



Page 9035



Page 9036



Page 9037



Page 9038



Page 9039



Page 9040



Page 9041



Page 9042



Page 9043



Page 9044



Page 9045



Page 9046



Page 9047



Page 9048



Page 9049



Page 9050



Page 9051



Page 9052



Page 9053



Page 9054



Page 9055



Page 9056



Page 9057



Page 9058



Page 9059



Page 9060



Page 9061



Page 9062



Page 9063



Page 9064



Page 9065



Page 9066



Page 9067



Page 9068



Page 9069



Page 9070



Page 9071



Page 9072



Page 9073



Page 9074



Page 9075



Page 9076



Page 9077



Page 9078



Page 9079



Page 9080



Page 9081



Page 9082



Page 9083



Page 9084



Page 9085



Page 9086



Page 9087



Page 9088



Page 9089



Page 9090



Page 9091



Page 9092



Page 9093



Page 9094



Page 9095



Page 9096



Page 9097



Page 9098



Page 9099



Page 9100



Page 9101



Page 9102



Page 9103



Page 9104



Page 9105



Page 9106



Page 9107



Page 9108



Page 9109



Page 9110



Page 9111



Page 9112



Page 9113



Page 9114



Page 9115



Page 9116



Page 9117



Page 9118



Page 9119



Page 9120



Page 9121



Page 9122



Page 9123



Page 9124



Page 9125



Page 9126



Page 9127



Page 9128



Page 9129



Page 9130



Page 9131



Page 9132



Page 9133



Page 9134



Page 9135



Page 9136



Page 9137



Page 9138



Page 9139



Page 9140



Page 9141



Page 9142



Page 9143



Page 9144



Page 9145



Page 9146



Page 9147



Page 9148



Page 9149



Page 9150



Page 9151



Page 9152



Page 9153



Page 9154



Page 9155



Page 9156



Page 9157



Page 9158



Page 9159



Page 9160



Page 9161



Page 9162



Page 9163



Page 9164



Page 9165



Page 9166



Page 9167



Page 9168



Page 9169



Page 9170



Page 9171



Page 9172



Page 9173



Page 9174



Page 9175



Page 9176



Page 9177



Page 9178



Page 9179



Page 9180



Page 9181



Page 9182



Page 9183



Page 9184



Page 9185



Page 9186



Page 9187



Page 9188



Page 9189



Page 9190



Page 9191



Page 9192



Page 9193



Page 9194



Page 9195



Page 9196



Page 9197



Page 9198



Page 9199



Page 9200



Page 9201



Page 9202



Page 9203



Page 9204



Page 9205



Page 9206



Page 9207



Page 9208



Page 9209



Page 9210



Page 9211



Page 9212



Page 9213



Page 9214



Page 9215



Page 9216



Page 9217



Page 9218



Page 9219



Page 9220



Page 9221



Page 9222



Page 9223



Page 9224



Page 9225



Page 9226



Page 9227



Page 9228



Page 9229



Page 9230



Page 9231



Page 9232



Page 9233



Page 9234



Page 9235



Page 9236



Page 9237



Page 9238



Page 9239



Page 9240



Page 9241



Page 9242



Page 9243



Page 9244



Page 9245



Page 9246



Page 9247



Page 9248



Page 9249



Page 9250



Page 9251



Page 9252



Page 9253



Page 9254



Page 9255



Page 9256



Page 9257



Page 9258



Page 9259



Page 9260



Page 9261



Page 9262



Page 9263



Page 9264



Page 9265



Page 9266



Page 9267



Page 9268



Page 9269



Page 9270



Page 9271



Page 9272



Page 9273



Page 9274



Page 9275



Page 9276



Page 9277



Page 9278



Page 9279



Page 9280



Page 9281



Page 9282



Page 9283



Page 9284



Page 9285



Page 9286



Page 9287



Page 9288



Page 9289



Page 9290



Page 9291



Page 9292



Page 9293



Page 9294



Page 9295



Page 9296



Page 9297



Page 9298



Page 9299



Page 9300



Page 9301



Page 9302



Page 9303



Page 9304



Page 9305



Page 9306



Page 9307



Page 9308



Page 9309



Page 9310



Page 9311



Page 9312



Page 9313



Page 9314



Page 9315



Page 9316



Page 9317



Page 9318



Page 9319



Page 9320



Page 9321



Page 9322



Page 9323



Page 9324



Page 9325



Page 9326



Page 9327



Page 9328



Page 9329



Page 9330



Page 9331



Page 9332



Page 9333



Page 9334



Page 9335



Page 9336



Page 9337



Page 9338



Page 9339



Page 9340



Page 9341



Page 9342



Page 9343



Page 9344



Page 9345



Page 9346



Page 9347



Page 9348



Page 9349



Page 9350



Page 9351



Page 9352



Page 9353



Page 9354



Page 9355



Page 9356



Page 9357



Page 9358



Page 9359



Page 9360



Page 9361



Page 9362



Page 9363



Page 9364



Page 9365



Page 9366



Page 9367



Page 9368



Page 9369



Page 9370



Page 9371



Page 9372



Page 9373



Page 9374



Page 9375



Page 9376



Page 9377



Page 9378



Page 9379



Page 9380



Page 9381



Page 9382



Page 9383



Page 9384



Page 9385



Page 9386



Page 9387



Page 9388



Page 9389



Page 9390



Page 9391



Page 9392



Page 9393



Page 9394



Page 9395



Page 9396



Page 9397



Page 9398



Page 9399



Page 9400



Page 9401



Page 9402



Page 9403



Page 9404



Page 9405



Page 9406



Page 9407



Page 9408



Page 9409



Page 9410



Page 9411



Page 9412



Page 9413



Page 9414



Page 9415



Page 9416



Page 9417



Page 9418



Page 9419



Page 9420



Page 9421



Page 9422



Page 9423



Page 9424



Page 9425



Page 9426



Page 9427



Page 9428



Page 9429



Page 9430



Page 9431



Page 9432



Page 9433



Page 9434



Page 9435



Page 9436



Page 9437



Page 9438



Page 9439



Page 9440



Page 9441



Page 9442



Page 9443



Page 9444



Page 9445



Page 9446



Page 9447



Page 9448



Page 9449



Page 9450



Page 9451



Page 9452



Page 9453



Page 9454



Page 9455



Page 9456



Page 9457



Page 9458



Page 9459



Page 9460



Page 9461



Page 9462



Page 9463



Page 9464



Page 9465



Page 9466



Page 9467



Page 9468



Page 9469



Page 9470



Page 9471



Page 9472



Page 9473



Page 9474



Page 9475



Page 9476



Page 9477



Page 9478



Page 9479



Page 9480



Page 9481



Page 9482



Page 9483



Page 9484



Page 9485



Page 9486



Page 9487



Page 9488



Page 9489



Page 9490



Page 9491



Page 9492



Page 9493



Page 9494



Page 9495



Page 9496



Page 9497



Page 9498



Page 9499



Page 9500



Page 9501



Page 9502



Page 9503



Page 9504



Page 9505



Page 9506



Page 9507



Page 9508



Page 9509



Page 9510



Page 9511



Page 9512



Page 9513



Page 9514



Page 9515



Page 9516



Page 9517



Page 9518



Page 9519



Page 9520



Page 9521



Page 9522



Page 9523



Page 9524



Page 9525



Page 9526



Page 9527



Page 9528



Page 9529



Page 9530



Page 9531



Page 9532



Page 9533



Page 9534



Page 9535



Page 9536



Page 9537



Page 9538



Page 9539



Page 9540



Page 9541



Page 9542



Page 9543



Page 9544



Page 9545



Page 9546



Page 9547



Page 9548



Page 9549



Page 9550



Page 9551



Page 9552



Page 9553



Page 9554



Page 9555



Page 9556



Page 9557



Page 9558



Page 9559



Page 9560



Page 9561



Page 9562



Page 9563



Page 9564



Page 9565



Page 9566



Page 9567



Page 9568



Page 9569



Page 9570



Page 9571



Page 9572



Page 9573



Page 9574



Page 9575



Page 9576



Page 9577



Page 9578



Page 9579



Page 9580



Page 9581



Page 9582



Page 9583



Page 9584



Page 9585



Page 9586



Page 9587



Page 9588



Page 9589



Page 9590



Page 9591



Page 9592



Page 9593



Page 9594



Page 9595



Page 9596



Page 9597



Page 9598



Page 9599



Page 9600



Page 9601



Page 9602



Page 9603



Page 9604



Page 9605



Page 9606



Page 9607



Page 9608



Page 9609



Page 9610



Page 9611



Page 9612



Page 9613



Page 9614



Page 9615



Page 9616



Page 9617



Page 9618



Page 9619



Page 9620



Page 9621



Page 9622



Page 9623



Page 9624



Page 9625



Page 9626



Page 9627



Page 9628



Page 9629



Page 9630



Page 9631



Page 9632



Page 9633



Page 9634



Page 9635



Page 9636



Page 9637



Page 9638



Page 9639



Page 9640



Page 9641



Page 9642



Page 9643



Page 9644



Page 9645



Page 9646



Page 9647



Page 9648



Page 9649



Page 9650



Page 9651



Page 9652



Page 9653



Page 9654



Page 9655



Page 9656



Page 9657



Page 9658



Page 9659



Page 9660



Page 9661



Page 9662



Page 9663



Page 9664



Page 9665



Page 9666



Page 9667



Page 9668



Page 9669



Page 9670



Page 9671



Page 9672



Page 9673



Page 9674



Page 9675



Page 9676



Page 9677



Page 9678



Page 9679



Page 9680



Page 9681



Page 9682



Page 9683



Page 9684



Page 9685



Page 9686



Page 9687



Page 9688



Page 9689



Page 9690



Page 9691



Page 9692



Page 9693



Page 9694



Page 9695



Page 9696



Page 9697



Page 9698



Page 9699



Page 9700



Page 9701



Page 9702



Page 9703



Page 9704



Page 9705



Page 9706



Page 9707



Page 9708



Page 9709



Page 9710



Page 9711



Page 9712



Page 9713



Page 9714



Page 9715



Page 9716



Page 9717



Page 9718



Page 9719



Page 9720



Page 9721



Page 9722



Page 9723



Page 9724



Page 9725



Page 9726



Page 9727



Page 9728



Page 9729



Page 9730



Page 9731



Page 9732



Page 9733



Page 9734



Page 9735



Page 9736



Page 9737



Page 9738



Page 9739



Page 9740



Page 9741



Page 9742



Page 9743



Page 9744



Page 9745



Page 9746



Page 9747



Page 9748



Page 9749



Page 9750



Page 9751



Page 9752



Page 9753



Page 9754



Page 9755



Page 9756



Page 9757



Page 9758



Page 9759



Page 9760



Page 9761



Page 9762



Page 9763



Page 9764



Page 9765



Page 9766



Page 9767



Page 9768



Page 9769



Page 9770



Page 9771



Page 9772



Page 9773



Page 9774



Page 9775



Page 9776



Page 9777



Page 9778



Page 9779



Page 9780



Page 9781



Page 9782



Page 9783



Page 9784



Page 9785



Page 9786



Page 9787



Page 9788



Page 9789



Page 9790



Page 9791



Page 9792



Page 9793



Page 9794



Page 9795



Page 9796



Page 9797



Page 9798



Page 9799



Page 9800



Page 9801



Page 9802



Page 9803



Page 9804



Page 9805



Page 9806



Page 9807



Page 9808



Page 9809



Page 9810



Page 9811



Page 9812



Page 9813



Page 9814



Page 9815



Page 9816



Page 9817



Page 9818



Page 9819



Page 9820



Page 9821



Page 9822



Page 9823



Page 9824



Page 9825



Page 9826



Page 9827



Page 9828



Page 9829



Page 9830



Page 9831



Page 9832



Page 9833



Page 9834



Page 9835



Page 9836



Page 9837



Page 9838



Page 9839



Page 9840



Page 9841



Page 9842



Page 9843



Page 9844



Page 9845



Page 9846



Page 9847



Page 9848



Page 9849



Page 9850



Page 9851



Page 9852



Page 9853



Page 9854



Page 9855



Page 9856



Page 9857



Page 9858



Page 9859



Page 9860



Page 9861



Page 9862



Page 9863



Page 9864



Page 9865



Page 9866



Page 9867



Page 9868



Page 9869



Page 9870



Page 9871



Page 9872



Page 9873



Page 9874



Page 9875



Page 9876



Page 9877



Page 9878



Page 9879



Page 9880



Page 9881



Page 9882



Page 9883



Page 9884



Page 9885



Page 9886



Page 9887



Page 9888



Page 9889



Page 9890



Page 9891



Page 9892



Page 9893



Page 9894



Page 9895



Page 9896



Page 9897



Page 9898



Page 9899



Page 9900



Page 9901



Page 9902



Page 9903



Page 9904



Page 9905



Page 9906



Page 9907



Page 9908



Page 9909



Page 9910



Page 9911



Page 9912



Page 9913



Page 9914



Page 9915



Page 9916



Page 9917



Page 9918



Page 9919



Page 9920



Page 9921



Page 9922



Page 9923



Page 9924



Page 9925



Page 9926



Page 9927



Page 9928



Page 9929



Page 9930



Page 9931



Page 9932



Page 9933



Page 9934



Page 9935



Page 9936



Page 9937



Page 9938



Page 9939



Page 9940



Page 9941



Page 9942



Page 9943



Page 9944



Page 9945



Page 9946



Page 9947



Page 9948



Page 9949



Page 9950



Page 9951



Page 9952



Page 9953



Page 9954



Page 9955



Page 9956



Page 9957



Page 9958



Page 9959



Page 9960



Page 9961



Page 9962



Page 9963



Page 9964



Page 9965



Page 9966



Page 9967



Page 9968



Page 9969



Page 9970



Page 9971



Page 9972



Page 9973



Page 9974



Page 9975



Page 9976



Page 9977



Page 9978



Page 9979



Page 9980



Page 9981



Page 9982



Page 9983



Page 9984



Page 9985



Page 9986



Page 9987



Page 9988



Page 9989



Page 9990



Page 9991



Page 9992



Page 9993



Page 9994



Page 9995



Page 9996



Page 9997



Page 9998



Page 9999



Page 10000



Page 10001



Page 10002



Page 10003



Page 10004



Page 10005



Page 10006



Page 10007



Page 10008



Page 10009



Page 10010



Page 10011



Page 10012



Page 10013



Page 10014



Page 10015



Page 10016



Page 10017



Page 10018



Page 10019



Page 10020



Page 10021



Page 10022



Page 10023



Page 10024



Page 10025



Page 10026



Page 10027



Page 10028



Page 10029



Page 10030



Page 10031



Page 10032



Page 10033



Page 10034



Page 10035



Page 10036



Page 10037



Page 10038



Page 10039



Page 10040



Page 10041



Page 10042



Page 10043



Page 10044



Page 10045



Page 10046



Page 10047



Page 10048



Page 10049



Page 10050



Page 10051



Page 10052



Page 10053



Page 10054



Page 10055



Page 10056



Page 10057



Page 10058



Page 10059



Page 10060



Page 10061



Page 10062



Page 10063



Page 10064



Page 10065



Page 10066



Page 10067



Page 10068



Page 10069



Page 10070



Page 10071



Page 10072



Page 10073



Page 10074



Page 10075



Page 10076



Page 10077



Page 10078



Page 10079



Page 10080



Page 10081



Page 10082



Page 10083



Page 10084



Page 10085



Page 10086



Page 10087



Page 10088



Page 10089



Page 10090



Page 10091



Page 10092



Page 10093



Page 10094



Page 10095



Page 10096



Page 10097



Page 10098



Page 10099



Page 10100



Page 10101



Page 10102



Page 10103



Page 10104



Page 10105



Page 10106



Page 10107



Page 10108



Page 10109



Page 10110



Page 10111



Page 10112



Page 10113



Page 10114



Page 10115



Page 10116



Page 10117



Page 10118



Page 10119



Page 10120



Page 10121



Page 10122



Page 10123



Page 10124



Page 10125



Page 10126



Page 10127



Page 10128



Page 10129



Page 10130



Page 10131



Page 10132



Page 10133



Page 10134



Page 10135



Page 10136



Page 10137



Page 10138



Page 10139



Page 10140



Page 10141



Page 10142



Page 10143



Page 10144



Page 10145



Page 10146



Page 10147



Page 10148



Page 10149



Page 10150



Page 10151



Page 10152



Page 10153



Page 10154



Page 10155



Page 10156



Page 10157



Page 10158



Page 10159



Page 10160



Page 10161



Page 10162



Page 10163



Page 10164



Page 10165



Page 10166



Page 10167



Page 10168



Page 10169



Page 10170



Page 10171



Page 10172



Page 10173



Page 10174



Page 10175



Page 10176



Page 10177



Page 10178



Page 10179



Page 10180



Page 10181



Page 10182



Page 10183



Page 10184



Page 10185



Page 10186



Page 10187



Page 10188



Page 10189



Page 10190



Page 10191



Page 10192



Page 10193



Page 10194



Page 10195



Page 10196



Page 10197



Page 10198



Page 10199



Page 10200



Page 10201



Page 10202



Page 10203



Page 10204



Page 10205



Page 10206



Page 10207



Page 10208



Page 10209



Page 10210



Page 10211



Page 10212



Page 10213



Page 10214



Page 10215



Page 10216



Page 10217



Page 10218



Page 10219



Page 10220



Page 10221



Page 10222



Page 10223



Page 10224



Page 10225



Page 10226



Page 10227



Page 10228



Page 10229



Page 10230



Page 10231



Page 10232



Page 10233



Page 10234



Page 10235



Page 10236



Page 10237



Page 10238



Page 10239



Page 10240



Page 10241



Page 10242



Page 10243



Page 10244



Page 10245



Page 10246



Page 10247



Page 10248



Page 10249



Page 10250



Page 10251



Page 10252



Page 10253



Page 10254



Page 10255



Page 10256



Page 10257



Page 10258



Page 10259



Page 10260



Page 10261



Page 10262



Page 10263



Page 10264



Page 10265



Page 10266



Page 10267



Page 10268



Page 10269



Page 10270



Page 10271



Page 10272



Page 10273



Page 10274



Page 10275



Page 10276



Page 10277



Page 10278



Page 10279



Page 10280



Page 10281



Page 10282



Page 10283



Page 10284



Page 10285



Page 10286



Page 10287



Page 10288



Page 10289



Page 10290



Page 10291



Page 10292



Page 10293



Page 10294



Page 10295



Page 10296



Page 10297



Page 10298



Page 10299



Page 10300



Page 10301



Page 10302



Page 10303



Page 10304



Page 10305



Page 10306



Page 10307



Page 10308



Page 10309



Page 10310



Page 10311



Page 10312



Page 10313



Page 10314



Page 10315



Page 10316



Page 10317



Page 10318



Page 10319



Page 10320



Page 10321



Page 10322



Page 10323



Page 10324



Page 10325



Page 10326



Page 10327



Page 10328



Page 10329



Page 10330



Page 10331



Page 10332



Page 10333



Page 10334



Page 10335



Page 10336



Page 10337



Page 10338



Page 10339



Page 10340



Page 10341



Page 10342



Page 10343



Page 10344



Page 10345



Page 10346



Page 10347



Page 10348



Page 10349



Page 10350



Page 10351



Page 10352



Page 10353



Page 10354



Page 10355



Page 10356



Page 10357



Page 10358



Page 10359



Page 10360



Page 10361



Page 10362



Page 10363



Page 10364



Page 10365



Page 10366



Page 10367



Page 10368



Page 10369



Page 10370



Page 10371



Page 10372



Page 10373



Page 10374



Page 10375



Page 10376



Page 10377



Page 10378



Page 10379



Page 10380



Page 10381



Page 10382



Page 10383



Page 10384



Page 10385



Page 10386



Page 10387



Page 10388



Page 10389



Page 10390



Page 10391



Page 10392



Page 10393



Page 10394



Page 10395



Page 10396



Page 10397



Page 10398



Page 10399



Page 10400



Page 10401



Page 10402



Page 10403



Page 10404



Page 10405



Page 10406



Page 10407



Page 10408



Page 10409



Page 10410



Page 10411



Page 10412



Page 10413



Page 10414



Page 10415



Page 10416



Page 10417



Page 10418



Page 10419



Page 10420



Page 10421



Page 10422



Page 10423



Page 10424



Page 10425



Page 10426



Page 10427



Page 10428



Page 10429



Page 10430



Page 10431



Page 10432



Page 10433



Page 10434



Page 10435



Page 10436



Page 10437



Page 10438



Page 10439



Page 10440



Page 10441



Page 10442



Page 10443



Page 10444



Page 10445



Page 10446



Page 10447



Page 10448



Page 10449



Page 10450



Page 10451



Page 10452



Page 10453



Page 10454



Page 10455



Page 10456



Page 10457



Page 10458



Page 10459



Page 10460



Page 10461



Page 10462



Page 10463



Page 10464



Page 10465



Page 10466



Page 10467



Page 10468



Page 10469



Page 10470



Page 10471



Page 10472



Page 10473



Page 10474



Page 10475



Page 10476



Page 10477



Page 10478



Page 10479



Page 10480



Page 10481



Page 10482



Page 10483



Page 10484



Page 10485



Page 10486



Page 10487



Page 10488



Page 10489



Page 10490



Page 10491



Page 10492



Page 10493



Page 10494



Page 10495



Page 10496



Page 10497



Page 10498



Page 10499



Page 10500



Page 10501



Page 10502



Page 10503



Page 10504



Page 10505



Page 10506



Page 10507



Page 10508



Page 10509



Page 10510



Page 10511



Page 10512



Page 10513



Page 10514



Page 10515



Page 10516



Page 10517



Page 10518



Page 10519



Page 10520



Page 10521



Page 10522



Page 10523



Page 10524



Page 10525



Page 10526



Page 10527



Page 10528



Page 10529



Page 10530



Page 10531



Page 10532



Page 10533



Page 10534



Page 10535



Page 10536



Page 10537



Page 10538



Page 10539



Page 10540



Page 10541



Page 10542



Page 10543



Page 10544



Page 10545



Page 10546



Page 10547



Page 10548



Page 10549



Page 10550



Page 10551



Page 10552



Page 10553



Page 10554



Page 10555



Page 10556



Page 10557



Page 10558



Page 10559



Page 10560



Page 10561



Page 10562



Page 10563



Page 10564



Page 10565



Page 10566



Page 10567



Page 10568



Page 10569



Page 10570



Page 10571



Page 10572



Page 10573



Page 10574



Page 10575



Page 10576



Page 10577



Page 10578



Page 10579



Page 10580



Page 10581



Page 10582



Page 10583



Page 10584



Page 10585



Page 10586



Page 10587



Page 10588



Page 10589



Page 10590



Page 10591



Page 10592



Page 10593



Page 10594



Page 10595



Page 10596



Page 10597



Page 10598



Page 10599



Page 10600



Page 10601



Page 10602



Page 10603



Page 10604



Page 10605



Page 10606



Page 10607



Page 10608



Page 10609



Page 10610



Page 10611



Page 10612



Page 10613



Page 10614



Page 10615



Page 10616



Page 10617



Page 10618



Page 10619



Page 10620



Page 10621



Page 10622



Page 10623



Page 10624



Page 10625



Page 10626



Page 10627



Page 10628



Page 10629



Page 10630



Page 10631



Page 10632



Page 10633



Page 10634



Page 10635



Page 10636



Page 10637



Page 10638



Page 10639



Page 10640



Page 10641



Page 10642



Page 10643



Page 10644



Page 10645



Page 10646



Page 10647



Page 10648



Page 10649



Page 10650



Page 10651



Page 10652



Page 10653



Page 10654



Page 10655



Page 10656



Page 10657



Page 10658



Page 10659



Page 10660



Page 10661



Page 10662



Page 10663



Page 10664



Page 10665



Page 10666



Page 10667



Page 10668



Page 10669



Page 10670



Page 10671



Page 10672



Page 10673



Page 10674



Page 10675



Page 10676



Page 10677



Page 10678



Page 10679



Page 10680



Page 10681



Page 10682



Page 10683



Page 10684



Page 10685



Page 10686



Page 10687



Page 10688



Page 10689



Page 10690



Page 10691



Page 10692



Page 10693



Page 10694



Page 10695



Page 10696



Page 10697



Page 10698



Page 10699



Page 10700



Page 10701



Page 10702



Page 10703



Page 10704



Page 10705



Page 10706



Page 10707



Page 10708



Page 10709



Page 10710



Page 10711



Page 10712



Page 10713



Page 10714



Page 10715



Page 10716



Page 10717



Page 10718



Page 10719



Page 10720



Page 10721



Page 10722



Page 10723



Page 10724



Page 10725



Page 10726



Page 10727



Page 10728



Page 10729



Page 10730



Page 10731



Page 10732



Page 10733



Page 10734



Page 10735



Page 10736



Page 10737



Page 10738



Page 10739



Page 10740



Page 10741



Page 10742



Page 10743



Page 10744



Page 10745



Page 10746



Page 10747



Page 10748



Page 10749



Page 10750



Page 10751



Page 10752



Page 10753



Page 10754



Page 10755



Page 10756



Page 10757



Page 10758



Page 10759



Page 10760



Page 10761



Page 10762



Page 10763



Page 10764



Page 10765



Page 10766



Page 10767



Page 10768



Page 10769



Page 10770



Page 10771



Page 10772



Page 10773



Page 10774



Page 10775



Page 10776



Page 10777



Page 10778



Page 10779



Page 10780



Page 10781



Page 10782



Page 10783



Page 10784



Page 10785



Page 10786



Page 10787



Page 10788



Page 10789



Page 10790



Page 10791



Page 10792



Page 10793



Page 10794



Page 10795



Page 10796



Page 10797



Page 10798



Page 10799



Page 10800



Page 10801



Page 10802



Page 10803



Page 10804



Page 10805



Page 10806



Page 10807



Page 10808



Page 10809



Page 10810



Page 10811



Page 10812



Page 10813



Page 10814



Page 10815



Page 10816



Page 10817



Page 10818



Page 10819



Page 10820



Page 10821



Page 10822



Page 10823



Page 10824



Page 10825



Page 10826



Page 10827



Page 10828



Page 10829



Page 10830



Page 10831



Page 10832



Page 10833



Page 10834



Page 10835



Page 10836



Page 10837



Page 10838



Page 10839



Page 10840



Page 10841



Page 10842



Page 10843



Page 10844



Page 10845



Page 10846



Page 10847



Page 10848



Page 10849



Page 10850



Page 10851



Page 10852



Page 10853



Page 10854



Page 10855



Page 10856



Page 10857



Page 10858



Page 10859



Page 10860



Page 10861



Page 10862



Page 10863



Page 10864



Page 10865



Page 10866



Page 10867



Page 10868



Page 10869



Page 10870



Page 10871



Page 10872



Page 10873



Page 10874



Page 10875



Page 10876



Page 10877



Page 10878



Page 10879



Page 10880



Page 10881



Page 10882



Page 10883



Page 10884



Page 10885



Page 10886



Page 10887



Page 10888



Page 10889



Page 10890



Page 10891



Page 10892



Page 10893



Page 10894



Page 10895



Page 10896



Page 10897



Page 10898



Page 10899



Page 10900



Page 10901



Page 10902



Page 10903



Page 10904



Page 10905



Page 10906



Page 10907



Page 10908



Page 10909



Page 10910



Page 10911



Page 10912



Page 10913



Page 10914



Page 10915



Page 10916



Page 10917



Page 10918



Page 10919



Page 10920



Page 10921



Page 10922



Page 10923



Page 10924



Page 10925



Page 10926



Page 10927



Page 10928



Page 10929



Page 10930



Page 10931



Page 10932



Page 10933



Page 10934



Page 10935



Page 10936



Page 10937



Page 10938



Page 10939



Page 10940



Page 10941



Page 10942



Page 10943



Page 10944



Page 10945



Page 10946



Page 10947



Page 10948



Page 10949



Page 10950



Page 10951



Page 10952



Page 10953



Page 10954



Page 10955



Page 10956



Page 10957



Page 10958



Page 10959



Page 10960



Page 10961



Page 10962



Page 10963



Page 10964



Page 10965



Page 10966



Page 10967



Page 10968



Page 10969



Page 10970



Page 10971



Page 10972



Page 10973



Page 10974



Page 10975



Page 10976



Page 10977



Page 10978



Page 10979



Page 10980



Page 10981



Page 10982



Page 10983



Page 10984



Page 10985



Page 10986



Page 10987



Page 10988



Page 10989



Page 10990



Page 10991



Page 10992



Page 10993



Page 10994



Page 10995



Page 10996



Page 10997



Page 10998



Page 10999



Page 11000



Page 11001



Page 11002



Page 11003



Page 11004



Page 11005



Page 11006



Page 11007



Page 11008



Page 11009



Page 11010



Page 11011



Page 11012



Page 11013



Page 11014



Page 11015



Page 11016



Page 11017



Page 11018



Page 11019



Page 11020



Page 11021



Page 11022



Page 11023



Page 11024



Page 11025



Page 11026



Page 11027



Page 11028



Page 11029



Page 11030



Page 11031



Page 11032



Page 11033



Page 11034



Page 11035



Page 11036



Page 11037



Page 11038



Page 11039



Page 11040



Page 11041



Page 11042



Page 11043



Page 11044



Page 11045



Page 11046



Page 11047



Page 11048



Page 11049



Page 11050



Page 11051



Page 11052



Page 11053



Page 11054



Page 11055



Page 11056



Page 11057



Page 11058



Page 11059



Page 11060



Page 11061



Page 11062



Page 11063



Page 11064



Page 11065



Page 11066



Page 11067



Page 11068



Page 11069



Page 11070



Page 11071



Page 11072



Page 11073



Page 11074



Page 11075



Page 11076



Page 11077



Page 11078



Page 11079



Page 11080



Page 11081



Page 11082



Page 11083



Page 11084



Page 11085



Page 11086



Page 11087



Page 11088



Page 11089



Page 11090



Page 11091



Page 11092



Page 11093



Page 11094



Page 11095



Page 11096



Page 11097



Page 11098



Page 11099



Page 11100



Page 11101



Page 11102



Page 11103



Page 11104



Page 11105



Page 11106



Page 11107



Page 11108



Page 11109



Page 11110



Page 11111



Page 11112



Page 11113



Page 11114



Page 11115



Page 11116



Page 11117



Page 11118



Page 11119



Page 11120



Page 11121



Page 11122



Page 11123



Page 11124



Page 11125



Page 11126



Page 11127



Page 11128



Page 11129



Page 11130



Page 11131



Page 11132



Page 11133



Page 11134



Page 11135



Page 11136



Page 11137



Page 11138



Page 11139



Page 11140



Page 11141



Page 11142



Page 11143



Page 11144



Page 11145



Page 11146



Page 11147



Page 11148



Page 11149



Page 11150



Page 11151



Page 11152



Page 11153



Page 11154



Page 11155



Page 11156



Page 11157



Page 11158



Page 11159



Page 11160



Page 11161



Page 11162



Page 11163



Page 11164



Page 11165



Page 11166



Page 11167



Page 11168



Page 11169



Page 11170



Page 11171



Page 11172



Page 11173



Page 11174



Page 11175



Page 11176



Page 11177



Page 11178



Page 11179



Page 11180



Page 11181



Page 11182



Page 11183



Page 11184



Page 11185



Page 11186



Page 11187



Page 11188



Page 11189



Page 11190



Page 11191



Page 11192



Page 11193



Page 11194



Page 11195



Page 11196



Page 11197



Page 11198



Page 11199



Page 11200



Page 11201



Page 11202



Page 11203



Page 11204



Page 11205



Page 11206



Page 11207



Page 11208



Page 11209



Page 11210



Page 11211



Page 11212



Page 11213



Page 11214



Page 11215



Page 11216



Page 11217



Page 11218



Page 11219



Page 11220



Page 11221



Page 11222



Page 11223



Page 11224



Page 11225



Page 11226



Page 11227



Page 11228



Page 11229



Page 11230



Page 11231



Page 11232



Page 11233



Page 11234



Page 11235



Page 11236



Page 11237



Page 11238



Page 11239



Page 11240



Page 11241



Page 11242



Page 11243



Page 11244



Page 11245



Page 11246



Page 11247



Page 11248



Page 11249



Page 11250



Page 11251



Page 11252



Page 11253



Page 11254



Page 11255



Page 11256



Page 11257



Page 11258



Page 11259



Page 11260



Page 11261



Page 11262



Page 11263



Page 11264



Page 11265



Page 11266



Page 11267



Page 11268



Page 11269



Page 11270



Page 11271



Page 11272



Page 11273



Page 11274



Page 11275



Page 11276



Page 11277



Page 11278



Page 11279



Page 11280



Page 11281



Page 11282



Page 11283



Page 11284



Page 11285



Page 11286



Page 11287



Page 11288



Page 11289



Page 11290



Page 11291



Page 11292



Page 11293



Page 11294



Page 11295



Page 11296



Page 11297



Page 11298



Page 11299



Page 11300



Page 11301



Page 11302



Page 11303



Page 11304



Page 11305



Page 11306



Page 11307



Page 11308



Page 11309



Page 11310



Page 11311



Page 11312



Page 11313



Page 11314



Page 11315



Page 11316



Page 11317



Page 11318



Page 11319



Page 11320



Page 11321



Page 11322



Page 11323



Page 11324



Page 11325



Page 11326



Page 11327



Page 11328



Page 11329



Page 11330



Page 11331



Page 11332



Page 11333



Page 11334



Page 11335



Page 11336



Page 11337



Page 11338



Page 11339



Page 11340



Page 11341



Page 11342



Page 11343



Page 11344



Page 11345



Page 11346



Page 11347



Page 11348



Page 11349



Page 11350



Page 11351



Page 11352



Page 11353



Page 11354



Page 11355



Page 11356



Page 11357



Page 11358



Page 11359



Page 11360



Page 11361



Page 11362



Page 11363



Page 11364



Page 11365



Page 11366



Page 11367



Page 11368



Page 11369



Page 11370



Page 11371



Page 11372



Page 11373



Page 11374



Page 11375



Page 11376



Page 11377



Page 11378



Page 11379



Page 11380



Page 11381



Page 11382



Page 11383



Page 11384



Page 11385



Page 11386



Page 11387



Page 11388



Page 11389



Page 11390



Page 11391



Page 11392



Page 11393



Page 11394



Page 11395



Page 11396



Page 11397



Page 11398



Page 11399



Page 11400



Page 11401



Page 11402



Page 11403



Page 11404



Page 11405



Page 11406



Page 11407



Page 11408



Page 11409



Page 11410



Page 11411



Page 11412



Page 11413



Page 11414



Page 11415



Page 11416



Page 11417



Page 11418



Page 11419



Page 11420



Page 11421



Page 11422



Page 11423



Page 11424



Page 11425



Page 11426



Page 11427



Page 11428



Page 11429



Page 11430



Page 11431



Page 11432



Page 11433



Page 11434



Page 11435



Page 11436



Page 11437



Page 11438



Page 11439



Page 11440



Page 11441



Page 11442



Page 11443



Page 11444



Page 11445



Page 11446



Page 11447



Page 11448



Page 11449



Page 11450



Page 11451



Page 11452



Page 11453



Page 11454



Page 11455



Page 11456



Page 11457



Page 11458



Page 11459



Page 11460



Page 11461



Page 11462



Page 11463



Page 11464



Page 11465



Page 11466



Page 11467



Page 11468



Page 11469



Page 11470



Page 11471



Page 11472



Page 11473



Page 11474



Page 11475



Page 11476



Page 11477



Page 11478



Page 11479



Page 11480



Page 11481



Page 11482



Page 11483



Page 11484



Page 11485



Page 11486



Page 11487



Page 11488



Page 11489



Page 11490



Page 11491



Page 11492



Page 11493



Page 11494



Page 11495



Page 11496



Page 11497



Page 11498



Page 11499



Page 11500



Page 11501



Page 11502



Page 11503



Page 11504



Page 11505



Page 11506



Page 11507



Page 11508



Page 11509



Page 11510



Page 11511



Page 11512



Page 11513



Page 11514



Page 11515



Page 11516



Page 11517



Page 11518



Page 11519



Page 11520



Page 11521



Page 11522



Page 11523



Page 11524



Page 11525



Page 11526



Page 11527



Page 11528



Page 11529



Page 11530



Page 11531



Page 11532



Page 11533



Page 11534



Page 11535



Page 11536



Page 11537



Page 11538



Page 11539



Page 11540



Page 11541



Page 11542



Page 11543



Page 11544



Page 11545



Page 11546



Page 11547



Page 11548



Page 11549



Page 11550



Page 11551



Page 11552



Page 11553



Page 11554



Page 11555



Page 11556



Page 11557



Page 11558



Page 11559



Page 11560



Page 11561



Page 11562



Page 11563



Page 11564



Page 11565



Page 11566



Page 11567



Page 11568



Page 11569



Page 11570



Page 11571



Page 11572



Page 11573



Page 11574



Page 11575



Page 11576



Page 11577



Page 11578



Page 11579



Page 11580



Page 11581



Page 11582



Page 11583



Page 11584



Page 11585



Page 11586



Page 11587



Page 11588



Page 11589



Page 11590



Page 11591



Page 11592



Page 11593



Page 11594



Page 11595



Page 11596



Page 11597



Page 11598



Page 11599



Page 11600



Page 11601



Page 11602



Page 11603



Page 11604



Page 11605



Page 11606



Page 11607



Page 11608



Page 11609



Page 11610



Page 11611



Page 11612



Page 11613



Page 11614



Page 11615



Page 11616



Page 11617



Page 11618



Page 11619



Page 11620



Page 11621



Page 11622



Page 11623



Page 11624



Page 11625



Page 11626



Page 11627



Page 11628



Page 11629



Page 11630



Page 11631



Page 11632



Page 11633



Page 11634



Page 11635



Page 11636



Page 11637



Page 11638



Page 11639



Page 11640



Page 11641



Page 11642



Page 11643



Page 11644



Page 11645



Page 11646



Page 11647



Page 11648



Page 11649



Page 11650



Page 11651



Page 11652



Page 11653



Page 11654



Page 11655



Page 11656



Page 11657



Page 11658



Page 11659



Page 11660



Page 11661



Page 11662



Page 11663



Page 11664



Page 11665



Page 11666



Page 11667



Page 11668



Page 11669



Page 11670



Page 11671



Page 11672



Page 11673



Page 11674



Page 11675



Page 11676



Page 11677



Page 11678



Page 11679



Page 11680



Page 11681



Page 11682



Page 11683



Page 11684



Page 11685



Page 11686



Page 11687



Page 11688



Page 11689



Page 11690



Page 11691



Page 11692



Page 11693



Page 11694



Page 11695



Page 11696



Page 11697



Page 11698



Page 11699



Page 11700



Page 11701



Page 11702



Page 11703



Page 11704



Page 11705



Page 11706



Page 11707



Page 11708



Page 11709



Page 11710



Page 11711



Page 11712



Page 11713



Page 11714



Page 11715



Page 11716



Page 11717



Page 11718



Page 11719



Page 11720



Page 11721



Page 11722



Page 11723



Page 11724



Page 11725



Page 11726



Page 11727



Page 11728



Page 11729



Page 11730



Page 11731



Page 11732



Page 11733



Page 11734



Page 11735



Page 11736



Page 11737



Page 11738



Page 11739



Page 11740



Page 11741



Page 11742



Page 11743



Page 11744



Page 11745



Page 11746



Page 11747



Page 11748



Page 11749



Page 11750



Page 11751



Page 11752



Page 11753



Page 11754



Page 11755



Page 11756



Page 11757



Page 11758



Page 11759



Page 11760



Page 11761



Page 11762



Page 11763



Page 11764



Page 11765



Page 11766



Page 11767



Page 11768



Page 11769



Page 11770



Page 11771



Page 11772



Page 11773



Page 11774



Page 11775



Page 11776



Page 11777



Page 11778



Page 11779



Page 11780



Page 11781



Page 11782



Page 11783



Page 11784



Page 11785



Page 11786



Page 11787



Page 11788



Page 11789



Page 11790



Page 11791



Page 11792



Page 11793



Page 11794



Page 11795



Page 11796



Page 11797



Page 11798



Page 11799



Page 11800



Page 11801



Page 11802



Page 11803



Page 11804



Page 11805



Page 11806



Page 11807



Page 11808



Page 11809



Page 11810



Page 11811



Page 11812



Page 11813



Page 11814



Page 11815



Page 11816



Page 11817



Page 11818



Page 11819



Page 11820



Page 11821



Page 11822



Page 11823



Page 11824



Page 11825



Page 11826



Page 11827



Page 11828



Page 11829



Page 11830



Page 11831



Page 11832



Page 11833



Page 11834



Page 11835



Page 11836



Page 11837



Page 11838



Page 11839



Page 11840



Page 11841



Page 11842



Page 11843



Page 11844



Page 11845



Page 11846



Page 11847



Page 11848



Page 11849



Page 11850



Page 11851



Page 11852



Page 11853



Page 11854



Page 11855



Page 11856



Page 11857



Page 11858



Page 11859



Page 11860



Page 11861



Page 11862



Page 11863



Page 11864



Page 11865



Page 11866



Page 11867



Page 11868



Page 11869



Page 11870



Page 11871



Page 11872



Page 11873



Page 11874



Page 11875



Page 11876



Page 11877



Page 11878



Page 11879



Page 11880



Page 11881



Page 11882



Page 11883



Page 11884



Page 11885



Page 11886



Page 11887



Page 11888



Page 11889



Page 11890



Page 11891



Page 11892



Page 11893



Page 11894



Page 11895



Page 11896



Page 11897



Page 11898



Page 11899



Page 11900



Page 11901



Page 11902



Page 11903



Page 11904



Page 11905



Page 11906



Page 11907



Page 11908



Page 11909



Page 11910



Page 11911



Page 11912



Page 11913



Page 11914



Page 11915



Page 11916



Page 11917



Page 11918



Page 11919



Page 11920



Page 11921



Page 11922



Page 11923



Page 11924



Page 11925



Page 11926



Page 11927



Page 11928



Page 11929



Page 11930



Page 11931



Page 11932



Page 11933



Page 11934



Page 11935



Page 11936



Page 11937



Page 11938



Page 11939



Page 11940



Page 11941



Page 11942



Page 11943



Page 11944



Page 11945



Page 11946



Page 11947



Page 11948



Page 11949



Page 11950



Page 11951



Page 11952



Page 11953



Page 11954



Page 11955



Page 11956



Page 11957



Page 11958



Page 11959



Page 11960



Page 11961



Page 11962



Page 11963



Page 11964



Page 11965



Page 11966



Page 11967



Page 11968



Page 11969



Page 11970



Page 11971



Page 11972



Page 11973



Page 11974



Page 11975



Page 11976



Page 11977



Page 11978



Page 11979



Page 11980



Page 11981



Page 11982



Page 11983



Page 11984



Page 11985



Page 11986



Page 11987



Page 11988



Page 11989



Page 11990



Page 11991



Page 11992



Page 11993



Page 11994



Page 11995



Page 11996



Page 11997



Page 11998



Page 11999



Page 12000



Page 12001



Page 12002



Page 12003



Page 12004



Page 12005



Page 12006



Page 12007



Page 12008



Page 12009



Page 12010



Page 12011



Page 12012



Page 12013



Page 12014



Page 12015



Page 12016



Page 12017



Page 12018



Page 12019



Page 12020



Page 12021



Page 12022



Page 12023



Page 12024



Page 12025



Page 12026



Page 12027



Page 12028



Page 12029



Page 12030



Page 12031



Page 12032



Page 12033



Page 12034



Page 12035



Page 12036



Page 12037



Page 12038



Page 12039



Page 12040



Page 12041



Page 12042



Page 12043



Page 12044



Page 12045



Page 12046



Page 12047



Page 12048



Page 12049



Page 12050



Page 12051



Page 12052



Page 12053



Page 12054



Page 12055



Page 12056



Page 12057



Page 12058



Page 12059



Page 12060



Page 12061



Page 12062



Page 12063



Page 12064



Page 12065



Page 12066



Page 12067



Page 12068



Page 12069



Page 12070



Page 12071



Page 12072



Page 12073



Page 12074



Page 12075



Page 12076



Page 12077



Page 12078



Page 12079



Page 12080



Page 12081



Page 12082



Page 12083



Page 12084



Page 12085



Page 12086



Page 12087



Page 12088



Page 12089



Page 12090



Page 12091



Page 12092



Page 12093



Page 12094



Page 12095



Page 12096



Page 12097



Page 12098



Page 12099



Page 12100



Page 12101



Page 12102



Page 12103



Page 12104



Page 12105



Page 12106



Page 12107



Page 12108



Page 12109



Page 12110



Page 12111



Page 12112



Page 12113



Page 12114



Page 12115



Page 12116



Page 12117



Page 12118



Page 12119



Page 12120



Page 12121



Page 12122



Page 12123



Page 12124



Page 12125



Page 12126



Page 12127



Page 12128



Page 12129



Page 12130



Page 12131



Page 12132



Page 12133



Page 12134



Page 12135



Page 12136



Page 12137



Page 12138



Page 12139



Page 12140



Page 12141



Page 12142



Page 12143



Page 12144



Page 12145



Page 12146



Page 12147



Page 12148



Page 12149



Page 12150



Page 12151



Page 12152



Page 12153



Page 12154



Page 12155



Page 12156



Page 12157



Page 12158



Page 12159



Page 12160



Page 12161



Page 12162



Page 12163



Page 12164



Page 12165



Page 12166



Page 12167



Page 12168



Page 12169



Page 12170



Page 12171



Page 12172



Page 12173



Page 12174



Page 12175



Page 12176



Page 12177



Page 12178



Page 12179



Page 12180



Page 12181



Page 12182



Page 12183



Page 12184



Page 12185



Page 12186



Page 12187



Page 12188



Page 12189



Page 12190



Page 12191



Page 12192



Page 12193



Page 12194



Page 12195



Page 12196



Page 12197



Page 12198



Page 12199



Page 12200



Page 12201



Page 12202



Page 12203



Page 12204



Page 12205



Page 12206



Page 12207



Page 12208



Page 12209



Page 12210



Page 12211



Page 12212



Page 12213



Page 12214



Page 12215



Page 12216



Page 12217



Page 12218



Page 12219



Page 12220



Page 12221



Page 12222



Page 12223



Page 12224



Page 12225



Page 12226



Page 12227



Page 12228



Page 12229



Page 12230



Page 12231



Page 12232



Page 12233



Page 12234



Page 12235



Page 12236



Page 12237



Page 12238



Page 12239



Page 12240



Page 12241



Page 12242



Page 12243



Page 12244



Page 12245



Page 12246



Page 12247



Page 12248



Page 12249



Page 12250



Page 12251



Page 12252



Page 12253



Page 12254



Page 12255



Page 12256



Page 12257



Page 12258



Page 12259



Page 12260



Page 12261



Page 12262



Page 12263



Page 12264



Page 12265



Page 12266



Page 12267



Page 12268



Page 12269



Page 12270



Page 12271



Page 12272



Page 12273



Page 12274



Page 12275



Page 12276



Page 12277



Page 12278



Page 12279



Page 12280



Page 12281



Page 12282



Page 12283



Page 12284



Page 12285



Page 12286



Page 12287



Page 12288



Page 12289



Page 12290



Page 12291



Page 12292



Page 12293



Page 12294



Page 12295



Page 12296



Page 12297



Page 12298



Page 12299



Page 12300



Page 12301



Page 12302



Page 12303



Page 12304



Page 12305



Page 12306



Page 12307



Page 12308



Page 12309



Page 12310



Page 12311



Page 12312



Page 12313



Page 12314



Page 12315



Page 12316



Page 12317



Page 12318



Page 12319



Page 12320



Page 12321



Page 12322



Page 12323



Page 12324



Page 12325



Page 12326



Page 12327



Page 12328



Page 12329



Page 12330



Page 12331



Page 12332



Page 12333



Page 12334



Page 12335



Page 12336



Page 12337



Page 12338



Page 12339



Page 12340



Page 12341



Page 12342



Page 12343



Page 12344



Page 12345



Page 12346



Page 12347



Page 12348



Page 12349



Page 12350



Page 12351



Page 12352



Page 12353



Page 12354



Page 12355



Page 12356



Page 12357



Page 12358



Page 12359



Page 12360



Page 12361



Page 12362



Page 12363



Page 12364



Page 12365



Page 12366



Page 12367



Page 12368



Page 12369



Page 12370



Page 12371



Page 12372



Page 12373



Page 12374



Page 12375



Page 12376



Page 12377



Page 12378



Page 12379



Page 12380



Page 12381



Page 12382



Page 12383



Page 12384



Page 12385



Page 12386



Page 12387



Page 12388



Page 12389



Page 12390



Page 12391



Page 12392



Page 12393



Page 12394



Page 12395



Page 12396



Page 12397



Page 12398



Page 12399



Page 12400



Page 12401



Page 12402



Page 12403



Page 12404



Page 12405



Page 12406



Page 12407



Page 12408



Page 12409



Page 12410



Page 12411



Page 12412



Page 12413



Page 12414



Page 12415



Page 12416



Page 12417



Page 12418



Page 12419



Page 12420



Page 12421



Page 12422



Page 12423



Page 12424



Page 12425



Page 12426



Page 12427



Page 12428



Page 12429



Page 12430



Page 12431



Page 12432



Page 12433



Page 12434



Page 12435



Page 12436



Page 12437



Page 12438



Page 12439



Page 12440



Page 12441



Page 12442



Page 12443



Page 12444



Page 12445



Page 12446



Page 12447



Page 12448



Page 12449



Page 12450



Page 12451



Page 12452



Page 12453



Page 12454



Page 12455



Page 12456



Page 12457



Page 12458



Page 12459



Page 12460



Page 12461



Page 12462



Page 12463



Page 12464



Page 12465



Page 12466



Page 12467



Page 12468



Page 12469



Page 12470



Page 12471



Page 12472



Page 12473



Page 12474



Page 12475



Page 12476



Page 12477



Page 12478



Page 12479



Page 12480



Page 12481



Page 12482



Page 12483



Page 12484



Page 12485



Page 12486



Page 12487



Page 12488



Page 12489



Page 12490



Page 12491



Page 12492



Page 12493



Page 12494



Page 12495



Page 12496



Page 12497



Page 12498



Page 12499



Page 12500



Page 12501



Page 12502



Page 12503



Page 12504



Page 12505



Page 12506



Page 12507



Page 12508



Page 12509



Page 12510



Page 12511



Page 12512



Page 12513



Page 12514



Page 12515



Page 12516



Page 12517



Page 12518



Page 12519



Page 12520



Page 12521



Page 12522



Page 12523



Page 12524



Page 12525



Page 12526



Page 12527



Page 12528



Page 12529



Page 12530



Page 12531



Page 12532



Page 12533



Page 12534



Page 12535



Page 12536



Page 12537



Page 12538



Page 12539



Page 12540



Page 12541



Page 12542



Page 12543



Page 12544



Page 12545



Page 12546



Page 12547



Page 12548



Page 12549



Page 12550



Page 12551



Page 12552



Page 12553



Page 12554



Page 12555



Page 12556



Page 12557



Page 12558



Page 12559



Page 12560



Page 12561



Page 12562



Page 12563



Page 12564



Page 12565



Page 12566



Page 12567



Page 12568



Page 12569



Page 12570



Page 12571



Page 12572



Page 12573



Page 12574



Page 12575



Page 12576



Page 12577



Page 12578



Page 12579



Page 12580



Page 12581



Page 12582



Page 12583



Page 12584



Page 12585



Page 12586



Page 12587



Page 12588



Page 12589



Page 12590



Page 12591



Page 12592



Page 12593



Page 12594



Page 12595



Page 12596



Page 12597



Page 12598



Page 12599



Page 12600



Page 12601



Page 12602



Page 12603



Page 12604



Page 12605



Page 12606



Page 12607



Page 12608



Page 12609



Page 12610



Page 12611



Page 12612



Page 12613



Page 12614



Page 12615



Page 12616



Page 12617



Page 12618



Page 12619



Page 12620



Page 12621



Page 12622



Page 12623



Page 12624



Page 12625



Page 12626



Page 12627



Page 12628



Page 12629



Page 12630



Page 12631



Page 12632



Page 12633



Page 12634



Page 12635



Page 12636



Page 12637



Page 12638



Page 12639



Page 12640



Page 12641



Page 12642



Page 12643



Page 12644



Page 12645



Page 12646



Page 12647



Page 12648



Page 12649



Page 12650



Page 12651



Page 12652



Page 12653



Page 12654



Page 12655



Page 12656



Page 12657



Page 12658



Page 12659



Page 12660



Page 12661



Page 12662



Page 12663



Page 12664



Page 12665



Page 12666



Page 12667



Page 12668



Page 12669



Page 12670



Page 12671



Page 12672



Page 12673



Page 12674



Page 12675



Page 12676



Page 12677



Page 12678



Page 12679



Page 12680



Page 12681



Page 12682



Page 12683



Page 12684



Page 12685



Page 12686



Page 12687



Page 12688



Page 12689



Page 12690



Page 12691



Page 12692



Page 12693



Page 12694



Page 12695



Page 12696



Page 12697



Page 12698



Page 12699



Page 12700



Page 12701



Page 12702



Page 12703



Page 12704



Page 12705



Page 12706



Page 12707



Page 12708



Page 12709



Page 12710



Page 12711



Page 12712



Page 12713



Page 12714



Page 12715



Page 12716



Page 12717



Page 12718



Page 12719



Page 12720



Page 12721



Page 12722



Page 12723



Page 12724



Page 12725



Page 12726



Page 12727



Page 12728



Page 12729



Page 12730



Page 12731



Page 12732



Page 12733



Page 12734



Page 12735



Page 12736



Page 12737



Page 12738



Page 12739



Page 12740



Page 12741



Page 12742



Page 12743



Page 12744



Page 12745



Page 12746



Page 12747



Page 12748



Page 12749



Page 12750



Page 12751



Page 12752



Page 12753



Page 12754



Page 12755



Page 12756



Page 12757



Page 12758



Page 12759



Page 12760



Page 12761



Page 12762



Page 12763



Page 12764



Page 12765



Page 12766



Page 12767



Page 12768



Page 12769



Page 12770



Page 12771



Page 12772



Page 12773



Page 12774



Page 12775



Page 12776



Page 12777



Page 12778



Page 12779



Page 12780



Page 12781



Page 12782



Page 12783



Page 12784



Page 12785



Page 12786



Page 12787



Page 12788



Page 12789



Page 12790



Page 12791



Page 12792



Page 12793



Page 12794



Page 12795



Page 12796



Page 12797



Page 12798



Page 12799



Page 12800



Page 12801



Page 12802



Page 12803



Page 12804



Page 12805



Page 12806



Page 12807



Page 12808



Page 12809



Page 12810



Page 12811



Page 12812



Page 12813



Page 12814



Page 12815



Page 12816



Page 12817



Page 12818



Page 12819



Page 12820



Page 12821



Page 12822



Page 12823



Page 12824



Page 12825



Page 12826



Page 12827



Page 12828



Page 12829



Page 12830



Page 12831



Page 12832



Page 12833



Page 12834



Page 12835



Page 12836



Page 12837



Page 12838



Page 12839



Page 12840



Page 12841



Page 12842



Page 12843



Page 12844



Page 12845



Page 12846



Page 12847



Page 12848



Page 12849



Page 12850



Page 12851



Page 12852



Page 12853



Page 12854



Page 12855



Page 12856



Page 12857



Page 12858



Page 12859



Page 12860



Page 12861



Page 12862



Page 12863



Page 12864



Page 12865



Page 12866



Page 12867



Page 12868



Page 12869



Page 12870



Page 12871



Page 12872



Page 12873



Page 12874



Page 12875



Page 12876



Page 12877



Page 12878



Page 12879



Page 12880



Page 12881



Page 12882



Page 12883



Page 12884



Page 12885



Page 12886



Page 12887



Page 12888



Page 12889



Page 12890



Page 12891



Page 12892



Page 12893



Page 12894



Page 12895



Page 12896



Page 12897



Page 12898



Page 12899



Page 12900



Page 12901



Page 12902



Page 12903



Page 12904



Page 12905



Page 12906



Page 12907



Page 12908



Page 12909



Page 12910



Page 12911



Page 12912



Page 12913



Page 12914



Page 12915



Page 12916



Page 12917



Page 12918



Page 12919



Page 12920



Page 12921



Page 12922



Page 12923



Page 12924



Page 12925



Page 12926



Page 12927



Page 12928



Page 12929



Page 12930



Page 12931



Page 12932



Page 12933



Page 12934



Page 12935



Page 12936



Page 12937



Page 12938



Page 12939



Page 12940



Page 12941



Page 12942



Page 12943



Page 12944



Page 12945



Page 12946



Page 12947



Page 12948



Page 12949



Page 12950



Page 12951



Page 12952



Page 12953



Page 12954



Page 12955



Page 12956



Page 12957



Page 12958



Page 12959



Page 12960



Page 12961



Page 12962



Page 12963



Page 12964



Page 12965



Page 12966



Page 12967



Page 12968



Page 12969



Page 12970



Page 12971



Page 12972



Page 12973



Page 12974



Page 12975



Page 12976



Page 12977



Page 12978



Page 12979



Page 12980



Page 12981



Page 12982



Page 12983



Page 12984



Page 12985



Page 12986



Page 12987



Page 12988



Page 12989



Page 12990



Page 12991



Page 12992



Page 12993



Page 12994



Page 12995



Page 12996



Page 12997



Page 12998



Page 12999



Page 13000



Page 13001



Page 13002



Page 13003



Page 13004



Page 13005



Page 13006



Page 13007



Page 13008



Page 13009



Page 13010



Page 13011



Page 13012



Page 13013



Page 13014



Page 13015



Page 13016



Page 13017



Page 13018



Page 13019



Page 13020



Page 13021



Page 13022



Page 13023



Page 13024



Page 13025



Page 13026



Page 13027



Page 13028



Page 13029



Page 13030



Page 13031



Page 13032



Page 13033



Page 13034



Page 13035



Page 13036



Page 13037



Page 13038



Page 13039



Page 13040



Page 13041



Page 13042



Page 13043



Page 13044



Page 13045



Page 13046



Page 13047



Page 13048



Page 13049



Page 13050



Page 13051



Page 13052



Page 13053



Page 13054



Page 13055



Page 13056



Page 13057



Page 13058



Page 13059



Page 13060



Page 13061



Page 13062



Page 13063



Page 13064



Page 13065



Page 13066



Page 13067



Page 13068



Page 13069



Page 13070



Page 13071



Page 13072



Page 13073



Page 13074



Page 13075



Page 13076



Page 13077



Page 13078



Page 13079



Page 13080



Page 13081



Page 13082



Page 13083



Page 13084



Page 13085



Page 13086



Page 13087



Page 13088



Page 13089



Page 13090



Page 13091



Page 13092



Page 13093



Page 13094



Page 13095



Page 13096



Page 13097



Page 13098



Page 13099



Page 13100



Page 13101



Page 13102



Page 13103



Page 13104



Page 13105



Page 13106



Page 13107



Page 13108



Page 13109



Page 13110



Page 13111



Page 13112



Page 13113



Page 13114



Page 13115



Page 13116



Page 13117



Page 13118



Page 13119



Page 13120



Page 13121



Page 13122



Page 13123



Page 13124



Page 13125



Page 13126



Page 13127



Page 13128



Page 13129



Page 13130



Page 13131



Page 13132



Page 13133



Page 13134



Page 13135



Page 13136



Page 13137



Page 13138



Page 13139



Page 13140



Page 13141



Page 13142



Page 13143



Page 13144



Page 13145



Page 13146



Page 13147



Page 13148



Page 13149



Page 13150



Page 13151



Page 13152



Page 13153



Page 13154



Page 13155



Page 13156



Page 13157



Page 13158



Page 13159



Page 13160



Page 13161



Page 13162



Page 13163



Page 13164



Page 13165



Page 13166



Page 13167



Page 13168



Page 13169



Page 13170



Page 13171



Page 13172



Page 13173



Page 13174



Page 13175



Page 13176



Page 13177



Page 13178



Page 13179



Page 13180



Page 13181



Page 13182



Page 13183



Page 13184



Page 13185



Page 13186



Page 13187



Page 13188



Page 13189



Page 13190



Page 13191



Page 13192



Page 13193



Page 13194



Page 13195



Page 13196



Page 13197



Page 13198



Page 13199



Page 13200



Page 13201



Page 13202



Page 13203



Page 13204



Page 13205



Page 13206



Page 13207



Page 13208



Page 13209



Page 13210



Page 13211



Page 13212



Page 13213



Page 13214



Page 13215



Page 13216



Page 13217



Page 13218



Page 13219



Page 13220



Page 13221



Page 13222



Page 13223



Page 13224



Page 13225



Page 13226



Page 13227



Page 13228



Page 13229



Page 13230



Page 13231



Page 13232



Page 13233



Page 13234



Page 13235



Page 13236



Page 13237



Page 13238



Page 13239



Page 13240



Page 13241



Page 13242



Page 13243



Page 13244



Page 13245



Page 13246



Page 13247



Page 13248



Page 13249



Page 13250



Page 13251



Page 13252



Page 13253



Page 13254



Page 13255



Page 13256



Page 13257



Page 13258



Page 13259



Page 13260



Page 13261



Page 13262



Page 13263



Page 13264



Page 13265



Page 13266



Page 13267



Page 13268



Page 13269



Page 13270



Page 13271



Page 13272



Page 13273



Page 13274



Page 13275



Page 13276



Page 13277



Page 13278



Page 13279



Page 13280



Page 13281



Page 13282



Page 13283



Page 13284



Page 13285



Page 13286



Page 13287



Page 13288



Page 13289



Page 13290



Page 13291



Page 13292



Page 13293



Page 13294



Page 13295



Page 13296



Page 13297



Page 13298



Page 13299



Page 13300



Page 13301



Page 13302



Page 13303



Page 13304



Page 13305



Page 13306



Page 13307



Page 13308



Page 13309



Page 13310



Page 13311



Page 13312



Page 13313



Page 13314



Page 13315



Page 13316



Page 13317



Page 13318



Page 13319



Page 13320



Page 13321



Page 13322



Page 13323



Page 13324



Page 13325



Page 13326



Page 13327



Page 13328



Page 13329



Page 13330



Page 13331



Page 13332



Page 13333



Page 13334



Page 13335



Page 13336



Page 13337



Page 13338



Page 13339



Page 13340



Page 13341



Page 13342



Page 13343



Page 13344



Page 13345



Page 13346



Page 13347



Page 13348



Page 13349



Page 13350



Page 13351



Page 13352



Page 13353



Page 13354



Page 13355



Page 13356



Page 13357



Page 13358



Page 13359



Page 13360



Page 13361



Page 13362



Page 13363



Page 13364



Page 13365



Page 13366



Page 13367



Page 13368



Page 13369



Page 13370



Page 13371



Page 13372



Page 13373



Page 13374



Page 13375



Page 13376



Page 13377



Page 13378



Page 13379



Page 13380



Page 13381



Page 13382



Page 13383



Page 13384



Page 13385



Page 13386



Page 13387



Page 13388



Page 13389



Page 13390



Page 13391



Page 13392



Page 13393



Page 13394



Page 13395



Page 13396



Page 13397



Page 13398



Page 13399



Page 13400



Page 13401



Page 13402



Page 13403



Page 13404



Page 13405



Page 13406



Page 13407



Page 13408



Page 13409



Page 13410



Page 13411



Page 13412



Page 13413



Page 13414



Page 13415



Page 13416



Page 13417



Page 13418



Page 13419



Page 13420



Page 13421



Page 13422



Page 13423



Page 13424



Page 13425



Page 13426



Page 13427



Page 13428



Page 13429



Page 13430



Page 13431



Page 13432



Page 13433



Page 13434



Page 13435



Page 13436



Page 13437



Page 13438



Page 13439



Page 13440



Page 13441



Page 13442



Page 13443



Page 13444



Page 13445



Page 13446



Page 13447



Page 13448



Page 13449



Page 13450



Page 13451



Page 13452



Page 13453



Page 13454



Page 13455



Page 13456



Page 13457



Page 13458



Page 13459



Page 13460



Page 13461



Page 13462



Page 13463



Page 13464



Page 13465



Page 13466



Page 13467



Page 13468



Page 13469



Page 13470



Page 13471



Page 13472



Page 13473



Page 13474



Page 13475



Page 13476



Page 13477



Page 13478



Page 13479



Page 13480



Page 13481



Page 13482



Page 13483



Page 13484



Page 13485



Page 13486



Page 13487



Page 13488



Page 13489



Page 13490



Page 13491



Page 13492



Page 13493



Page 13494



Page 13495



Page 13496



Page 13497



Page 13498



Page 13499



Page 13500



Page 13501



Page 13502



Page 13503



Page 13504



Page 13505



Page 13506



Page 13507



Page 13508



Page 13509



Page 13510



Page 13511



Page 13512



Page 13513



Page 13514



Page 13515



Page 13516



Page 13517



Page 13518



Page 13519



Page 13520



Page 13521



Page 13522



Page 13523



Page 13524



Page 13525



Page 13526



Page 13527



Page 13528



Page 13529



Page 13530



Page 13531



Page 13532



Page 13533



Page 13534



Page 13535



Page 13536



Page 13537



Page 13538



Page 13539



Page 13540



Page 13541



Page 13542



Page 13543



Page 13544



Page 13545



Page 13546



Page 13547



Page 13548



Page 13549



Page 13550



Page 13551



Page 13552



Page 13553



Page 13554



Page 13555



Page 13556



Page 13557



Page 13558



Page 13559



Page 13560



Page 13561



Page 13562



Page 13563



Page 13564



Page 13565



Page 13566



Page 13567



Page 13568



Page 13569



Page 13570



Page 13571



Page 13572



Page 13573



Page 13574



Page 13575



Page 13576



Page 13577



Page 13578



Page 13579



Page 13580



Page 13581



Page 13582



Page 13583



Page 13584



Page 13585



Page 13586



Page 13587



Page 13588



Page 13589



Page 13590



Page 13591



Page 13592



Page 13593



Page 13594



Page 13595



Page 13596



Page 13597



Page 13598



Page 13599



Page 13600



Page 13601



Page 13602



Page 13603



Page 13604



Page 13605



Page 13606



Page 13607



Page 13608



Page 13609



Page 13610



Page 13611



Page 13612



Page 13613



Page 13614



Page 13615



Page 13616



Page 13617



Page 13618



Page 13619



Page 13620



Page 13621



Page 13622



Page 13623



Page 13624



Page 13625



Page 13626



Page 13627



Page 13628



Page 13629



Page 13630



Page 13631



Page 13632



Page 13633



Page 13634



Page 13635



Page 13636



Page 13637



Page 13638



Page 13639



Page 13640



Page 13641



Page 13642



Page 13643



Page 13644



Page 13645



Page 13646



Page 13647



Page 13648



Page 13649



Page 13650



Page 13651



Page 13652



Page 13653



Page 13654



Page 13655



Page 13656



Page 13657



Page 13658



Page 13659



Page 13660



Page 13661



Page 13662



Page 13663



Page 13664



Page 13665



Page 13666



Page 13667



Page 13668



Page 13669



Page 13670



Page 13671



Page 13672



Page 13673



Page 13674



Page 13675



Page 13676



Page 13677



Page 13678



Page 13679



Page 13680



Page 13681



Page 13682



Page 13683



Page 13684



Page 13685



Page 13686



Page 13687



Page 13688



Page 13689



Page 13690



Page 13691



Page 13692



Page 13693



Page 13694



Page 13695



Page 13696



Page 13697



Page 13698



Page 13699



Page 13700



Page 13701



Page 13702



Page 13703



Page 13704



Page 13705



Page 13706



Page 13707



Page 13708



Page 13709



Page 13710



Page 13711



Page 13712



Page 13713



Page 13714



Page 13715



Page 13716



Page 13717



Page 13718



Page 13719



Page 13720



Page 13721



Page 13722



Page 13723



Page 13724



Page 13725



Page 13726



Page 13727



Page 13728



Page 13729



Page 13730



Page 13731



Page 13732



Page 13733



Page 13734



Page 13735



Page 13736



Page 13737



Page 13738



Page 13739



Page 13740



Page 13741



Page 13742



Page 13743



Page 13744



Page 13745



Page 13746



Page 13747



Page 13748



Page 13749



Page 13750



Page 13751



Page 13752



Page 13753



Page 13754



Page 13755



Page 13756



Page 13757



Page 13758



Page 13759



Page 13760



Page 13761



Page 13762



Page 13763



Page 13764



Page 13765



Page 13766



Page 13767



Page 13768



Page 13769



Page 13770



Page 13771



Page 13772



Page 13773



Page 13774



Page 13775



Page 13776



Page 13777



Page 13778



Page 13779



Page 13780



Page 13781



Page 13782



Page 13783



Page 13784



Page 13785



Page 13786



Page 13787



Page 13788



Page 13789



Page 13790



Page 13791



Page 13792



Page 13793



Page 13794



Page 13795



Page 13796



Page 13797



Page 13798



Page 13799



Page 13800



Page 13801



Page 13802



Page 13803



Page 13804



Page 13805



Page 13806



Page 13807



Page 13808



Page 13809



Page 13810



Page 13811



Page 13812



Page 13813



Page 13814



Page 13815



Page 13816



Page 13817



Page 13818



Page 13819



Page 13820



Page 13821



Page 13822



Page 13823



Page 13824



Page 13825



Page 13826



Page 13827



Page 13828



Page 13829



Page 13830



Page 13831



Page 13832



Page 13833



Page 13834



Page 13835



Page 13836



Page 13837



Page 13838



Page 13839



Page 13840



Page 13841



Page 13842



Page 13843



Page 13844



Page 13845



Page 13846



Page 13847



Page 13848



Page 13849



Page 13850



Page 13851



Page 13852



Page 13853



Page 13854



Page 13855



Page 13856



Page 13857



Page 13858



Page 13859



Page 13860



Page 13861



Page 13862



Page 13863



Page 13864



Page 13865



Page 13866



Page 13867



Page 13868



Page 13869



Page 13870



Page 13871



Page 13872



Page 13873



Page 13874



Page 13875



Page 13876



Page 13877



Page 13878



Page 13879



Page 13880



Page 13881



Page 13882



Page 13883



Page 13884



Page 13885



Page 13886



Page 13887



Page 13888



Page 13889



Page 13890



Page 13891



Page 13892



Page 13893



Page 13894



Page 13895



Page 13896



Page 13897



Page 13898



Page 13899



Page 13900



Page 13901



Page 13902



Page 13903



Page 13904



Page 13905



Page 13906



Page 13907



Page 13908



Page 13909



Page 13910



Page 13911



Page 13912



Page 13913



Page 13914



Page 13915



Page 13916



Page 13917



Page 13918



Page 13919



Page 13920



Page 13921



Page 13922



Page 13923



Page 13924



Page 13925



Page 13926



Page 13927



Page 13928



Page 13929



Page 13930



Page 13931



Page 13932



Page 13933



Page 13934



Page 13935



Page 13936



Page 13937



Page 13938



Page 13939



Page 13940



Page 13941



Page 13942



Page 13943



Page 13944



Page 13945



Page 13946



Page 13947



Page 13948



Page 13949



Page 13950



Page 13951



Page 13952



Page 13953



Page 13954



Page 13955



Page 13956



Page 13957



Page 13958



Page 13959



Page 13960



Page 13961



Page 13962



Page 13963



Page 13964



Page 13965



Page 13966



Page 13967



Page 13968



Page 13969



Page 13970



Page 13971



Page 13972



Page 13973



Page 13974



Page 13975



Page 13976



Page 13977



Page 13978



Page 13979



Page 13980



Page 13981



Page 13982



Page 13983



Page 13984



Page 13985



Page 13986



Page 13987



Page 13988



Page 13989



Page 13990



Page 13991



Page 13992



Page 13993



Page 13994



Page 13995



Page 13996



Page 13997



Page 13998



Page 13999



Page 14000



Page 14001



Page 14002



Page 14003



Page 14004



Page 14005



Page 14006



Page 14007



Page 14008



Page 14009



Page 14010



Page 14011



Page 14012



Page 14013



Page 14014



Page 14015



Page 14016



Page 14017



Page 14018



Page 14019



Page 14020



Page 14021



Page 14022



Page 14023



Page 14024



Page 14025



Page 14026



Page 14027



Page 14028



Page 14029



Page 14030



Page 14031



Page 14032



Page 14033



Page 14034



Page 14035



Page 14036



Page 14037



Page 14038



Page 14039



Page 14040



Page 14041



Page 14042



Page 14043



Page 14044



Page 14045



Page 14046



Page 14047



Page 14048



Page 14049



Page 14050



Page 14051



Page 14052



Page 14053



Page 14054



Page 14055



Page 14056



Page 14057



Page 14058



Page 14059



Page 14060



Page 14061



Page 14062



Page 14063



Page 14064



Page 14065



Page 14066



Page 14067



Page 14068



Page 14069



Page 14070



Page 14071



Page 14072



Page 14073



Page 14074



Page 14075



Page 14076



Page 14077



Page 14078



Page 14079



Page 14080



Page 14081



Page 14082



Page 14083



Page 14084



Page 14085



Page 14086



Page 14087



Page 14088



Page 14089



Page 14090



Page 14091



Page 14092



Page 14093



Page 14094



Page 14095



Page 14096



Page 14097



Page 14098



Page 14099



Page 14100



Page 14101



Page 14102



Page 14103



Page 14104



Page 14105



Page 14106



Page 14107



Page 14108



Page 14109



Page 14110



Page 14111



Page 14112



Page 14113



Page 14114



Page 14115



Page 14116



Page 14117



Page 14118



Page 14119



Page 14120



Page 14121



Page 14122



Page 14123



Page 14124



Page 14125



Page 14126



Page 14127



Page 14128



Page 14129



Page 14130



Page 14131



Page 14132



Page 14133



Page 14134



Page 14135



Page 14136



Page 14137



Page 14138



Page 14139



Page 14140



Page 14141



Page 14142



Page 14143



Page 14144



Page 14145



Page 14146



Page 14147



Page 14148



Page 14149



Page 14150



Page 14151



Page 14152



Page 14153



Page 14154



Page 14155



Page 14156



Page 14157



Page 14158



Page 14159



Page 14160



Page 14161



Page 14162



Page 14163



Page 14164



Page 14165



Page 14166



Page 14167



Page 14168



Page 14169



Page 14170



Page 14171



Page 14172



Page 14173



Page 14174



Page 14175



Page 14176



Page 14177



Page 14178



Page 14179



Page 14180



Page 14181



Page 14182



Page 14183



Page 14184



Page 14185



Page 14186



Page 14187



Page 14188



Page 14189



Page 14190



Page 14191



Page 14192



Page 14193



Page 14194



Page 14195



Page 14196



Page 14197



Page 14198



Page 14199



Page 14200



Page 14201



Page 14202



Page 14203



Page 14204



Page 14205



Page 14206



Page 14207



Page 14208



Page 14209



Page 14210



Page 14211



Page 14212



Page 14213



Page 14214



Page 14215



Page 14216



Page 14217



Page 14218



Page 14219



Page 14220



Page 14221



Page 14222



Page 14223



Page 14224



Page 14225



Page 14226



Page 14227



Page 14228



Page 14229



Page 14230



Page 14231



Page 14232



Page 14233



Page 14234



Page 14235



Page 14236



Page 14237



Page 14238



Page 14239



Page 14240



Page 14241



Page 14242



Page 14243



Page 14244



Page 14245



Page 14246



Page 14247



Page 14248



Page 14249



Page 14250



Page 14251



Page 14252



Page 14253



Page 14254



Page 14255



Page 14256



Page 14257



Page 14258



Page 14259



Page 14260



Page 14261



Page 14262



Page 14263



Page 14264



Page 14265



Page 14266



Page 14267



Page 14268



Page 14269



Page 14270



Page 14271



Page 14272



Page 14273



Page 14274



Page 14275



Page 14276



Page 14277



Page 14278



Page 14279



Page 14280



Page 14281



Page 14282



Page 14283



Page 14284



Page 14285



Page 14286



Page 14287



Page 14288



Page 14289



Page 14290



Page 14291



Page 14292



Page 14293



Page 14294



Page 14295



Page 14296



Page 14297



Page 14298



Page 14299



Page 14300



Page 14301



Page 14302



Page 14303



Page 14304



Page 14305



Page 14306



Page 14307



Page 14308



Page 14309



Page 14310



Page 14311



Page 14312



Page 14313



Page 14314



Page 14315



Page 14316



Page 14317



Page 14318



Page 14319



Page 14320



Page 14321



Page 14322



Page 14323



Page 14324



Page 14325



Page 14326



Page 14327



Page 14328



Page 14329



Page 14330



Page 14331



Page 14332



Page 14333



Page 14334



Page 14335



Page 14336



Page 14337



Page 14338



Page 14339



Page 14340



Page 14341



Page 14342



Page 14343



Page 14344



Page 14345



Page 14346



Page 14347



Page 14348



Page 14349



Page 14350



Page 14351



Page 14352



Page 14353



Page 14354



Page 14355



Page 14356



Page 14357



Page 14358



Page 14359



Page 14360



Page 14361



Page 14362



Page 14363



Page 14364



Page 14365



Page 14366



Page 14367



Page 14368



Page 14369



Page 14370



Page 14371



Page 14372



Page 14373



Page 14374



Page 14375



Page 14376



Page 14377



Page 14378



Page 14379



Page 14380



Page 14381



Page 14382



Page 14383



Page 14384



Page 14385



Page 14386



Page 14387



Page 14388



Page 14389



Page 14390



Page 14391



Page 14392



Page 14393



Page 14394



Page 14395



Page 14396



Page 14397



Page 14398



Page 14399



Page 14400



Page 14401



Page 14402



Page 14403



Page 14404



Page 14405



Page 14406



Page 14407



Page 14408



Page 14409



Page 14410



Page 14411



Page 14412



Page 14413



Page 14414



Page 14415



Page 14416



Page 14417



Page 14418



Page 14419



Page 14420



Page 14421



Page 14422



Page 14423



Page 14424



Page 14425



Page 14426



Page 14427



Page 14428



Page 14429



Page 14430



Page 14431



Page 14432



Page 14433



Page 14434



Page 14435



Page 14436



Page 14437



Page 14438



Page 14439



Page 14440



Page 14441



Page 14442



Page 14443



Page 14444



Page 14445



Page 14446



Page 14447



Page 14448



Page 14449



Page 14450



Page 14451



Page 14452



Page 14453



Page 14454



Page 14455



Page 14456



Page 14457



Page 14458



Page 14459



Page 14460



Page 14461



Page 14462



Page 14463



Page 14464



Page 14465



Page 14466



Page 14467



Page 14468



Page 14469



Page 14470



Page 14471



Page 14472



Page 14473



Page 14474



Page 14475



Page 14476



Page 14477



Page 14478



Page 14479



Page 14480



Page 14481



Page 14482



Page 14483



Page 14484



Page 14485



Page 14486



Page 14487



Page 14488



Page 14489



Page 14490



Page 14491



Page 14492



Page 14493



Page 14494



Page 14495



Page 14496



Page 14497



Page 14498



Page 14499



Page 14500



Page 14501



Page 14502



Page 14503



Page 14504



Page 14505



Page 14506



Page 14507



Page 14508



Page 14509



Page 14510



Page 14511



Page 14512



Page 14513



Page 14514



Page 14515



Page 14516



Page 14517



Page 14518



Page 14519



Page 14520



Page 14521



Page 14522



Page 14523



Page 14524



Page 14525



Page 14526



Page 14527



Page 14528



Page 14529



Page 14530



Page 14531



Page 14532



Page 14533



Page 14534



Page 14535



Page 14536



Page 14537



Page 14538



Page 14539



Page 14540



Page 14541



Page 14542



Page 14543



Page 14544



Page 14545



Page 14546



Page 14547



Page 14548



Page 14549



Page 14550



Page 14551



Page 14552



Page 14553



Page 14554



Page 14555



Page 14556



Page 14557



Page 14558



Page 14559



Page 14560



Page 14561



Page 14562



Page 14563



Page 14564



Page 14565



Page 14566



Page 14567



Page 14568



Page 14569



Page 14570



Page 14571



Page 14572



Page 14573



Page 14574



Page 14575



Page 14576



Page 14577



Page 14578



Page 14579



Page 14580



Page 14581



Page 14582



Page 14583



Page 14584



Page 14585



Page 14586



Page 14587



Page 14588



Page 14589



Page 14590



Page 14591



Page 14592



Page 14593



Page 14594



Page 14595



Page 14596



Page 14597



Page 14598



Page 14599



Page 14600



Page 14601



Page 14602



Page 14603



Page 14604



Page 14605



Page 14606



Page 14607



Page 14608



Page 14609



Page 14610



Page 14611



Page 14612



Page 14613



Page 14614



Page 14615



Page 14616



Page 14617



Page 14618



Page 14619



Page 14620



Page 14621



Page 14622



Page 14623



Page 14624



Page 14625



Page 14626



Page 14627



Page 14628



Page 14629



Page 14630



Page 14631



Page 14632



Page 14633



Page 14634



Page 14635



Page 14636



Page 14637



Page 14638



Page 14639



Page 14640



Page 14641



Page 14642



Page 14643



Page 14644



Page 14645



Page 14646



Page 14647



Page 14648



Page 14649



Page 14650



Page 14651



Page 14652



Page 14653



Page 14654



Page 14655



Page 14656



Page 14657



Page 14658



Page 14659



Page 14660



Page 14661



Page 14662



Page 14663



Page 14664



Page 14665



Page 14666



Page 14667



Page 14668



Page 14669



Page 14670



Page 14671



Page 14672



Page 14673



Page 14674



Page 14675



Page 14676



Page 14677



Page 14678



Page 14679



Page 14680



Page 14681



Page 14682



Page 14683



Page 14684



Page 14685



Page 14686



Page 14687



Page 14688



Page 14689



Page 14690



Page 14691



Page 14692



Page 14693



Page 14694



Page 14695



Page 14696



Page 14697



Page 14698



Page 14699



Page 14700



Page 14701



Page 14702



Page 14703



Page 14704



Page 14705



Page 14706



Page 14707



Page 14708



Page 14709



Page 14710



Page 14711



Page 14712



Page 14713



Page 14714



Page 14715



Page 14716



Page 14717



Page 14718



Page 14719



Page 14720



Page 14721



Page 14722



Page 14723



Page 14724



Page 14725



Page 14726



Page 14727



Page 14728



Page 14729



Page 14730



Page 14731



Page 14732



Page 14733



Page 14734



Page 14735



Page 14736



Page 14737



Page 14738



Page 14739



Page 14740



Page 14741



Page 14742



Page 14743



Page 14744



Page 14745



Page 14746



Page 14747



Page 14748



Page 14749



Page 14750



Page 14751



Page 14752



Page 14753



Page 14754



Page 14755



Page 14756



Page 14757



Page 14758



Page 14759



Page 14760



Page 14761



Page 14762



Page 14763



Page 14764



Page 14765



Page 14766



Page 14767



Page 14768



Page 14769



Page 14770



Page 14771



Page 14772



Page 14773



Page 14774



Page 14775



Page 14776



Page 14777



Page 14778



Page 14779



Page 14780



Page 14781



Page 14782



Page 14783



Page 14784



Page 14785



Page 14786



Page 14787



Page 14788



Page 14789



Page 14790



Page 14791



Page 14792



Page 14793



Page 14794



Page 14795



Page 14796



Page 14797



Page 14798



Page 14799



Page 14800



Page 14801



Page 14802



Page 14803



Page 14804



Page 14805



Page 14806



Page 14807



Page 14808



Page 14809



Page 14810



Page 14811



Page 14812



Page 14813



Page 14814



Page 14815



Page 14816



Page 14817



Page 14818



Page 14819



Page 14820



Page 14821



Page 14822



Page 14823



Page 14824



Page 14825



Page 14826



Page 14827



Page 14828



Page 14829



Page 14830



Page 14831



Page 14832



Page 14833



Page 14834



Page 14835



Page 14836



Page 14837



Page 14838



Page 14839



Page 14840



Page 14841



Page 14842



Page 14843



Page 14844



Page 14845



Page 14846



Page 14847



Page 14848



Page 14849



Page 14850



Page 14851



Page 14852



Page 14853



Page 14854



Page 14855



Page 14856



Page 14857



Page 14858



Page 14859



Page 14860



Page 14861



Page 14862



Page 14863



Page 14864



Page 14865



Page 14866



Page 14867



Page 14868



Page 14869



Page 14870



Page 14871



Page 14872



Page 14873



Page 14874



Page 14875



Page 14876



Page 14877



Page 14878



Page 14879



Page 14880



Page 14881



Page 14882



Page 14883



Page 14884



Page 14885



Page 14886



Page 14887



Page 14888



Page 14889



Page 14890



Page 14891



Page 14892



Page 14893



Page 14894



Page 14895



Page 14896



Page 14897



Page 14898



Page 14899



Page 14900



Page 14901



Page 14902



Page 14903



Page 14904



Page 14905



Page 14906



Page 14907



Page 14908



Page 14909



Page 14910



Page 14911



Page 14912



Page 14913



Page 14914



Page 14915



Page 14916



Page 14917



Page 14918



Page 14919



Page 14920



Page 14921



Page 14922



Page 14923



Page 14924



Page 14925



Page 14926



Page 14927



Page 14928



Page 14929



Page 14930



Page 14931



Page 14932



Page 14933



Page 14934



Page 14935



Page 14936



Page 14937



Page 14938



Page 14939



Page 14940



Page 14941



Page 14942



Page 14943



Page 14944



Page 14945



Page 14946



Page 14947



Page 14948



Page 14949



Page 14950



Page 14951



Page 14952



Page 14953



Page 14954



Page 14955



Page 14956



Page 14957



Page 14958



Page 14959



Page 14960



Page 14961



Page 14962



Page 14963



Page 14964



Page 14965



Page 14966



Page 14967



Page 14968



Page 14969



Page 14970



Page 14971



Page 14972



Page 14973



Page 14974



Page 14975



Page 14976



Page 14977



Page 14978



Page 14979



Page 14980



Page 14981



Page 14982



Page 14983



Page 14984



Page 14985



Page 14986



Page 14987



Page 14988



Page 14989



Page 14990



Page 14991



Page 14992



Page 14993



Page 14994



Page 14995



Page 14996



Page 14997



Page 14998



Page 14999



Page 15000



Page 15001



Page 15002



Page 15003



Page 15004



Page 15005



Page 15006



Page 15007



Page 15008



Page 15009



Page 15010



Page 15011



Page 15012



Page 15013



Page 15014



Page 15015



Page 15016



Page 15017



Page 15018



Page 15019



Page 15020



Page 15021



Page 15022



Page 15023



Page 15024



Page 15025



Page 15026



Page 15027



Page 15028



Page 15029



Page 15030



Page 15031



Page 15032



Page 15033



Page 15034



Page 15035



Page 15036



Page 15037



Page 15038



Page 15039



Page 15040



Page 15041



Page 15042



Page 15043



Page 15044



Page 15045



Page 15046



Page 15047



Page 15048



Page 15049



Page 15050



Page 15051



Page 15052



Page 15053



Page 15054



Page 15055



Page 15056



Page 15057



Page 15058



Page 15059



Page 15060



Page 15061



Page 15062



Page 15063



Page 15064



Page 15065



Page 15066



Page 15067



Page 15068



Page 15069



Page 15070



Page 15071



Page 15072



Page 15073



Page 15074



Page 15075



Page 15076



Page 15077



Page 15078



Page 15079



Page 15080



Page 15081



Page 15082



Page 15083



Page 15084



Page 15085



Page 15086



Page 15087



Page 15088



Page 15089



Page 15090



Page 15091



Page 15092



Page 15093



Page 15094



Page 15095



Page 15096



Page 15097



Page 15098



Page 15099



Page 15100



Page 15101



Page 15102



Page 15103



Page 15104



Page 15105



Page 15106



Page 15107



Page 15108



Page 15109



Page 15110



Page 15111



Page 15112



Page 15113



Page 15114



Page 15115



Page 15116



Page 15117



Page 15118



Page 15119



Page 15120



Page 15121



Page 15122



Page 15123



Page 15124



Page 15125



Page 15126



Page 15127



Page 15128



Page 15129



Page 15130



Page 15131



Page 15132



Page 15133



Page 15134



Page 15135



Page 15136



Page 15137



Page 15138



Page 15139



Page 15140



Page 15141



Page 15142



Page 15143



Page 15144



Page 15145



Page 15146



Page 15147



Page 15148



Page 15149



Page 15150



Page 15151



Page 15152



Page 15153



Page 15154



Page 15155



Page 15156



Page 15157



Page 15158



Page 15159



Page 15160



Page 15161



Page 15162



Page 15163



Page 15164



Page 15165



Page 15166



Page 15167



Page 15168



Page 15169



Page 15170



Page 15171



Page 15172



Page 15173



Page 15174



Page 15175



Page 15176



Page 15177



Page 15178



Page 15179



Page 15180



Page 15181



Page 15182



Page 15183



Page 15184



Page 15185



Page 15186



Page 15187



Page 15188



Page 15189



Page 15190



Page 15191



Page 15192



Page 15193



Page 15194



Page 15195



Page 15196



Page 15197



Page 15198



Page 15199



Page 15200



Page 15201



Page 15202



Page 15203



Page 15204



Page 15205



Page 15206



Page 15207



Page 15208



Page 15209



Page 15210



Page 15211



Page 15212



Page 15213



Page 15214



Page 15215



Page 15216



Page 15217



Page 15218



Page 15219



Page 15220



Page 15221



Page 15222



Page 15223



Page 15224



Page 15225



Page 15226



Page 15227



Page 15228



Page 15229



Page 15230



Page 15231



Page 15232



Page 15233



Page 15234



Page 15235



Page 15236



Page 15237



Page 15238



Page 15239



Page 15240



Page 15241



Page 15242



Page 15243



Page 15244



Page 15245



Page 15246



Page 15247



Page 15248



Page 15249



Page 15250



Page 15251



Page 15252



Page 15253



Page 15254



Page 15255



Page 15256



Page 15257



Page 15258



Page 15259



Page 15260



Page 15261



Page 15262



Page 15263



Page 15264



Page 15265



Page 15266



Page 15267



Page 15268



Page 15269



Page 15270



Page 15271



Page 15272



Page 15273



Page 15274



Page 15275



Page 15276



Page 15277



Page 15278



Page 15279



Page 15280



Page 15281



Page 15282



Page 15283



Page 15284



Page 15285



Page 15286



Page 15287



Page 15288



Page 15289



Page 15290



Page 15291



Page 15292



Page 15293



Page 15294



Page 15295



Page 15296



Page 15297



Page 15298



Page 15299



Page 15300



Page 15301



Page 15302



Page 15303



Page 15304



Page 15305



Page 15306



Page 15307



Page 15308



Page 15309



Page 15310



Page 15311



Page 15312



Page 15313



Page 15314



Page 15315



Page 15316



Page 15317



Page 15318



Page 15319



Page 15320



Page 15321



Page 15322



Page 15323



Page 15324



Page 15325



Page 15326



Page 15327



Page 15328



Page 15329



Page 15330



Page 15331



Page 15332



Page 15333



Page 15334



Page 15335



Page 15336



Page 15337



Page 15338



Page 15339



Page 15340



Page 15341



Page 15342



Page 15343



Page 15344



Page 15345



Page 15346



Page 15347



Page 15348



Page 15349



Page 15350



Page 15351



Page 15352



Page 15353



Page 15354



Page 15355



Page 15356



Page 15357



Page 15358



Page 15359



Page 15360



Page 15361



Page 15362



Page 15363



Page 15364



Page 15365



Page 15366



Page 15367



Page 15368



Page 15369



Page 15370



Page 15371



Page 15372



Page 15373



Page 15374



Page 15375



Page 15376



Page 15377



Page 15378



Page 15379



Page 15380



Page 15381



Page 15382



Page 15383



Page 15384



Page 15385



Page 15386



Page 15387



Page 15388



Page 15389



Page 15390



Page 15391



Page 15392



Page 15393



Page 15394



Page 15395



Page 15396



Page 15397



Page 15398



Page 15399



Page 15400



Page 15401



Page 15402



Page 15403



Page 15404



Page 15405



Page 15406



Page 15407



Page 15408



Page 15409



Page 15410



Page 15411



Page 15412



Page 15413



Page 15414



Page 15415



Page 15416



Page 15417



Page 15418



Page 15419



Page 15420



Page 15421



Page 15422



Page 15423



Page 15424



Page 15425



Page 15426



Page 15427



Page 15428



Page 15429



Page 15430



Page 15431



Page 15432



Page 15433



Page 15434



Page 15435



Page 15436



Page 15437



Page 15438



Page 15439



Page 15440



Page 15441



Page 15442



Page 15443



Page 15444



Page 15445



Page 15446



Page 15447



Page 15448



Page 15449



Page 15450



Page 15451



Page 15452



Page 15453



Page 15454



Page 15455



Page 15456



Page 15457



Page 15458



Page 15459



Page 15460



Page 15461



Page 15462



Page 15463



Page 15464



Page 15465



Page 15466



Page 15467



Page 15468



Page 15469



Page 15470



Page 15471



Page 15472



Page 15473



Page 15474



Page 15475



Page 15476



Page 15477



Page 15478



Page 15479



Page 15480



Page 15481



Page 15482



Page 15483



Page 15484



Page 15485



Page 15486



Page 15487



Page 15488



Page 15489



Page 15490



Page 15491



Page 15492



Page 15493



Page 15494



Page 15495



Page 15496



Page 15497



Page 15498



Page 15499



Page 15500



Page 15501



Page 15502



Page 15503



Page 15504



Page 15505



Page 15506



Page 15507



Page 15508



Page 15509



Page 15510



Page 15511



Page 15512



Page 15513



Page 15514



Page 15515



Page 15516



Page 15517



Page 15518



Page 15519



Page 15520



Page 15521



Page 15522



Page 15523



Page 15524



Page 15525



Page 15526



Page 15527



Page 15528



Page 15529



Page 15530



Page 15531



Page 15532



Page 15533



Page 15534



Page 15535



Page 15536



Page 15537



Page 15538



Page 15539



Page 15540



Page 15541



Page 15542



Page 15543



Page 15544



Page 15545



Page 15546



Page 15547



Page 15548



Page 15549



Page 15550



Page 15551



Page 15552



Page 15553



Page 15554



Page 15555



Page 15556



Page 15557



Page 15558



Page 15559



Page 15560



Page 15561



Page 15562



Page 15563



Page 15564



Page 15565



Page 15566



Page 15567



Page 15568



Page 15569



Page 15570



Page 15571



Page 15572



Page 15573



Page 15574



Page 15575



Page 15576



Page 15577



Page 15578



Page 15579



Page 15580



Page 15581



Page 15582



Page 15583



Page 15584



Page 15585



Page 15586



Page 15587



Page 15588



Page 15589



Page 15590



Page 15591



Page 15592



Page 15593



Page 15594



Page 15595



Page 15596



Page 15597



Page 15598



Page 15599



Page 15600



Page 15601



Page 15602



Page 15603



Page 15604



Page 15605



Page 15606



Page 15607



Page 15608



Page 15609



Page 15610



Page 15611



Page 15612



Page 15613



Page 15614



Page 15615



Page 15616



Page 15617



Page 15618



Page 15619



Page 15620



Page 15621



Page 15622



Page 15623



Page 15624



Page 15625



Page 15626



Page 15627



Page 15628



Page 15629



Page 15630



Page 15631



Page 15632



Page 15633



Page 15634



Page 15635



Page 15636



Page 15637



Page 15638



Page 15639



Page 15640



Page 15641



Page 15642



Page 15643



Page 15644



Page 15645



Page 15646



Page 15647



Page 15648



Page 15649



Page 15650



Page 15651



Page 15652



Page 15653



Page 15654



Page 15655



Page 15656



Page 15657



Page 15658



Page 15659



Page 15660



Page 15661



Page 15662



Page 15663



Page 15664



Page 15665



Page 15666



Page 15667



Page 15668



Page 15669



Page 15670



Page 15671



Page 15672



Page 15673



Page 15674



Page 15675



Page 15676



Page 15677



Page 15678



Page 15679



Page 15680



Page 15681



Page 15682



Page 15683



Page 15684



Page 15685



Page 15686



Page 15687



Page 15688



Page 15689



Page 15690



Page 15691



Page 15692



Page 15693



Page 15694



Page 15695



Page 15696



Page 15697



Page 15698



Page 15699



Page 15700



Page 15701



Page 15702



Page 15703



Page 15704



Page 15705



Page 15706



Page 15707



Page 15708



Page 15709



Page 15710



Page 15711



Page 15712



Page 15713



Page 15714



Page 15715



Page 15716



Page 15717



Page 15718



Page 15719



Page 15720



Page 15721



Page 15722



Page 15723



Page 15724



Page 15725



Page 15726



Page 15727



Page 15728



Page 15729



Page 15730



Page 15731



Page 15732



Page 15733



Page 15734



Page 15735



Page 15736



Page 15737



Page 15738



Page 15739



Page 15740



Page 15741



Page 15742



Page 15743



Page 15744



Page 15745



Page 15746



Page 15747



Page 15748



Page 15749



Page 15750



Page 15751



Page 15752



Page 15753



Page 15754



Page 15755



Page 15756



Page 15757



Page 15758



Page 15759



Page 15760



Page 15761



Page 15762



Page 15763



Page 15764



Page 15765



Page 15766



Page 15767



Page 15768



Page 15769



Page 15770



Page 15771



Page 15772



Page 15773



Page 15774



Page 15775



Page 15776



Page 15777



Page 15778



Page 15779



Page 15780



Page 15781



Page 15782



Page 15783



Page 15784



Page 15785



Page 15786



Page 15787



Page 15788



Page 15789



Page 15790



Page 15791



Page 15792



Page 15793



Page 15794



Page 15795



Page 15796



Page 15797



Page 15798



Page 15799



Page 15800



Page 15801



Page 15802



Page 15803



Page 15804



Page 15805



Page 15806



Page 15807



Page 15808



Page 15809



Page 15810



Page 15811



Page 15812



Page 15813



Page 15814



Page 15815



Page 15816



Page 15817



Page 15818



Page 15819



Page 15820



Page 15821



Page 15822



Page 15823



Page 15824



Page 15825



Page 15826



Page 15827



Page 15828



Page 15829



Page 15830



Page 15831



Page 15832



Page 15833



Page 15834



Page 15835



Page 15836



Page 15837



Page 15838



Page 15839



Page 15840



Page 15841



Page 15842



Page 15843



Page 15844



Page 15845



Page 15846



Page 15847



Page 15848



Page 15849



Page 15850



Page 15851



Page 15852



Page 15853



Page 15854



Page 15855



Page 15856



Page 15857



Page 15858



Page 15859



Page 15860



Page 15861



Page 15862



Page 15863



Page 15864



Page 15865



Page 15866



Page 15867



Page 15868



Page 15869



Page 15870



Page 15871



Page 15872



Page 15873



Page 15874



Page 15875



Page 15876



Page 15877



Page 15878



Page 15879



Page 15880



Page 15881



Page 15882



Page 15883



Page 15884



Page 15885



Page 15886



Page 15887



Page 15888



Page 15889



Page 15890



Page 15891



Page 15892



Page 15893



Page 15894



Page 15895



Page 15896



Page 15897



Page 15898



Page 15899



Page 15900



Page 15901



Page 15902



Page 15903



Page 15904



Page 15905



Page 15906



Page 15907



Page 15908



Page 15909



Page 15910



Page 15911



Page 15912



Page 15913



Page 15914



Page 15915



Page 15916



Page 15917



Page 15918



Page 15919



Page 15920



Page 15921



Page 15922



Page 15923



Page 15924



Page 15925



Page 15926



Page 15927



Page 15928



Page 15929



Page 15930



Page 15931



Page 15932



Page 15933



Page 15934



Page 15935



Page 15936



Page 15937



Page 15938



Page 15939



Page 15940



Page 15941



Page 15942



Page 15943



Page 15944



Page 15945



Page 15946



Page 15947



Page 15948



Page 15949



Page 15950



Page 15951



Page 15952



Page 15953



Page 15954



Page 15955



Page 15956



Page 15957



Page 15958



Page 15959



Page 15960



Page 15961



Page 15962



Page 15963



Page 15964



Page 15965



Page 15966



Page 15967



Page 15968



Page 15969



Page 15970



Page 15971



Page 15972



Page 15973



Page 15974



Page 15975



Page 15976



Page 15977



Page 15978



Page 15979



Page 15980



Page 15981



Page 15982



Page 15983



Page 15984



Page 15985



Page 15986



Page 15987



Page 15988



Page 15989



Page 15990



Page 15991



Page 15992



Page 15993



Page 15994



Page 15995



Page 15996



Page 15997



Page 15998



Page 15999



Page 16000



Page 16001



Page 16002



Page 16003



Page 16004



Page 16005



Page 16006



Page 16007



Page 16008



Page 16009



Page 16010



Page 16011



Page 16012



Page 16013



Page 16014



Page 16015



Page 16016



Page 16017



Page 16018



Page 16019



Page 16020



Page 16021



Page 16022



Page 16023



Page 16024



Page 16025



Page 16026



Page 16027



Page 16028



Page 16029



Page 16030



Page 16031



Page 16032



Page 16033



Page 16034



Page 16035



Page 16036



Page 16037



Page 16038



Page 16039



Page 16040



Page 16041



Page 16042



Page 16043



Page 16044



Page 16045



Page 16046



Page 16047



Page 16048



Page 16049



Page 16050



Page 16051



Page 16052



Page 16053



Page 16054



Page 16055



Page 16056



Page 16057



Page 16058



Page 16059



Page 16060



Page 16061



Page 16062



Page 16063



Page 16064



Page 16065



Page 16066



Page 16067



Page 16068



Page 16069



Page 16070



Page 16071



Page 16072



Page 16073



Page 16074



Page 16075



Page 16076



Page 16077



Page 16078



Page 16079



Page 16080



Page 16081



Page 16082



Page 16083



Page 16084



Page 16085



Page 16086



Page 16087



Page 16088



Page 16089



Page 16090



Page 16091



Page 16092



Page 16093



Page 16094



Page 16095



Page 16096



Page 16097



Page 16098



Page 16099



Page 16100



Page 16101



Page 16102



Page 16103



Page 16104



Page 16105



Page 16106



Page 16107



Page 16108



Page 16109



Page 16110



Page 16111



Page 16112



Page 16113



Page 16114



Page 16115



Page 16116



Page 16117



Page 16118



Page 16119



Page 16120



Page 16121



Page 16122



Page 16123



Page 16124



Page 16125



Page 16126



Page 16127



Page 16128



Page 16129



Page 16130



Page 16131



Page 16132



Page 16133



Page 16134



Page 16135



Page 16136



Page 16137



Page 16138



Page 16139



Page 16140



Page 16141



Page 16142



Page 16143



Page 16144



Page 16145



Page 16146



Page 16147



Page 16148



Page 16149



Page 16150



Page 16151



Page 16152



Page 16153



Page 16154



Page 16155



Page 16156



Page 16157



Page 16158



Page 16159



Page 16160



Page 16161



Page 16162



Page 16163



Page 16164



Page 16165



Page 16166



Page 16167



Page 16168



Page 16169



Page 16170



Page 16171



Page 16172



Page 16173



Page 16174



Page 16175



Page 16176



Page 16177



Page 16178



Page 16179



Page 16180



Page 16181



Page 16182



Page 16183



Page 16184



Page 16185



Page 16186



Page 16187



Page 16188



Page 16189



Page 16190



Page 16191



Page 16192



Page 16193



Page 16194



Page 16195



Page 16196



Page 16197



Page 16198



Page 16199



Page 16200



Page 16201



Page 16202



Page 16203



Page 16204



Page 16205



Page 16206



Page 16207



Page 16208



Page 16209



Page 16210



Page 16211



Page 16212



Page 16213



Page 16214



Page 16215



Page 16216



Page 16217



Page 16218



Page 16219



Page 16220



Page 16221



Page 16222



Page 16223



Page 16224



Page 16225



Page 16226



Page 16227



Page 16228



Page 16229



Page 16230



Page 16231



Page 16232



Page 16233



Page 16234



Page 16235



Page 16236



Page 16237



Page 16238



Page 16239



Page 16240



Page 16241



Page 16242



Page 16243



Page 16244



Page 16245



Page 16246



Page 16247



Page 16248



Page 16249



Page 16250



Page 16251



Page 16252



Page 16253



Page 16254



Page 16255



Page 16256



Page 16257



Page 16258



Page 16259



Page 16260



Page 16261



Page 16262



Page 16263



Page 16264



Page 16265



Page 16266



Page 16267



Page 16268



Page 16269



Page 16270



Page 16271



Page 16272



Page 16273



Page 16274



Page 16275



Page 16276



Page 16277



Page 16278



Page 16279



Page 16280



Page 16281



Page 16282



Page 16283



Page 16284



Page 16285



Page 16286



Page 16287



Page 16288



Page 16289



Page 16290



Page 16291



Page 16292



Page 16293



Page 16294



Page 16295



Page 16296



Page 16297



Page 16298



Page 16299



Page 16300



Page 16301



Page 16302



Page 16303



Page 16304



Page 16305



Page 16306



Page 16307



Page 16308



Page 16309



Page 16310



Page 16311



Page 16312



Page 16313



Page 16314



Page 16315



Page 16316



Page 16317



Page 16318



Page 16319



Page 16320



Page 16321



Page 16322



Page 16323



Page 16324



Page 16325



Page 16326



Page 16327



Page 16328



Page 16329



Page 16330



Page 16331



Page 16332



Page 16333



Page 16334



Page 16335



Page 16336



Page 16337



Page 16338



Page 16339



Page 16340



Page 16341



Page 16342



Page 16343



Page 16344



Page 16345



Page 16346



Page 16347



Page 16348



Page 16349



Page 16350



Page 16351



Page 16352



Page 16353



Page 16354



Page 16355



Page 16356



Page 16357



Page 16358



Page 16359



Page 16360



Page 16361



Page 16362



Page 16363



Page 16364



Page 16365



Page 16366



Page 16367



Page 16368



Page 16369



Page 16370



Page 16371



Page 16372



Page 16373



Page 16374



Page 16375



Page 16376



Page 16377



Page 16378



Page 16379



Page 16380



Page 16381



Page 16382



Page 16383



Page 16384



Page 16385



Page 16386



Page 16387



Page 16388



Page 16389



Page 16390



Page 16391



Page 16392



Page 16393



Page 16394



Page 16395



Page 16396



Page 16397



Page 16398



Page 16399



Page 16400



Page 16401



Page 16402



Page 16403



Page 16404



Page 16405



Page 16406



Page 16407



Page 16408



Page 16409



Page 16410



Page 16411



Page 16412



Page 16413



Page 16414



Page 16415



Page 16416



Page 16417



Page 16418



Page 16419



Page 16420



Page 16421



Page 16422



Page 16423



Page 16424



Page 16425



Page 16426



Page 16427



Page 16428



Page 16429



Page 16430



Page 16431



Page 16432



Page 16433



Page 16434



Page 16435



Page 16436



Page 16437



Page 16438



Page 16439



Page 16440



Page 16441



Page 16442



Page 16443



Page 16444



Page 16445



Page 16446



Page 16447



Page 16448



Page 16449



Page 16450



Page 16451



Page 16452



Page 16453



Page 16454



Page 16455



Page 16456



Page 16457



Page 16458



Page 16459



Page 16460



Page 16461



Page 16462



Page 16463



Page 16464



Page 16465



Page 16466



Page 16467



Page 16468



Page 16469



Page 16470



Page 16471



Page 16472



Page 16473



Page 16474



Page 16475



Page 16476



Page 16477



Page 16478



Page 16479



Page 16480



Page 16481



Page 16482



Page 16483



Page 16484



Page 16485



Page 16486



Page 16487



Page 16488



Page 16489



Page 16490



Page 16491



Page 16492



Page 16493



Page 16494



Page 16495



Page 16496



Page 16497



Page 16498



Page 16499



Page 16500



Page 16501



Page 16502



Page 16503



Page 16504



Page 16505



Page 16506



Page 16507



Page 16508



Page 16509



Page 16510



Page 16511



Page 16512



Page 16513



Page 16514



Page 16515



Page 16516



Page 16517



Page 16518



Page 16519



Page 16520



Page 16521



Page 16522



Page 16523



Page 16524



Page 16525



Page 16526



Page 16527



Page 16528



Page 16529



Page 16530



Page 16531



Page 16532



Page 16533



Page 16534



Page 16535



Page 16536



Page 16537



Page 16538



Page 16539



Page 16540



Page 16541



Page 16542



Page 16543



Page 16544



Page 16545



Page 16546



Page 16547



Page 16548



Page 16549



Page 16550



Page 16551



Page 16552



Page 16553



Page 16554



Page 16555



Page 16556



Page 16557



Page 16558



Page 16559



Page 16560



Page 16561



Page 16562



Page 16563



Page 16564



Page 16565



Page 16566



Page 16567



Page 16568



Page 16569



Page 16570



Page 16571



Page 16572



Page 16573



Page 16574



Page 16575



Page 16576



Page 16577



Page 16578



Page 16579



Page 16580



Page 16581



Page 16582



Page 16583



Page 16584



Page 16585



Page 16586



Page 16587



Page 16588



Page 16589



Page 16590



Page 16591



Page 16592



Page 16593



Page 16594



Page 16595



Page 16596



Page 16597



Page 16598



Page 16599



Page 16600



Page 16601



Page 16602



Page 16603



Page 16604



Page 16605



Page 16606



Page 16607



Page 16608



Page 16609



Page 16610



Page 16611



Page 16612



Page 16613



Page 16614



Page 16615



Page 16616



Page 16617



Page 16618



Page 16619



Page 16620



Page 16621



Page 16622



Page 16623



Page 16624



Page 16625



Page 16626



Page 16627



Page 16628



Page 16629



Page 16630



Page 16631



Page 16632



Page 16633



Page 16634



Page 16635



Page 16636



Page 16637



Page 16638



Page 16639



Page 16640



Page 16641



Page 16642



Page 16643



Page 16644



Page 16645



Page 16646



Page 16647



Page 16648



Page 16649



Page 16650



Page 16651



Page 16652



Page 16653



Page 16654



Page 16655



Page 16656



Page 16657



Page 16658



Page 16659



Page 16660



Page 16661



Page 16662



Page 16663



Page 16664



Page 16665



Page 16666



Page 16667



Page 16668



Page 16669



Page 16670



Page 16671



Page 16672



Page 16673



Page 16674



Page 16675



Page 16676



Page 16677



Page 16678



Page 16679



Page 16680



Page 16681



Page 16682



Page 16683



Page 16684



Page 16685



Page 16686



Page 16687



Page 16688



Page 16689



Page 16690



Page 16691



Page 16692



Page 16693



Page 16694



Page 16695



Page 16696



Page 16697



Page 16698



Page 16699



Page 16700



Page 16701



Page 16702



Page 16703



Page 16704



Page 16705



Page 16706



Page 16707



Page 16708



Page 16709



Page 16710



Page 16711



Page 16712



Page 16713



Page 16714



Page 16715



Page 16716



Page 16717



Page 16718



Page 16719



Page 16720



Page 16721



Page 16722



Page 16723



Page 16724



Page 16725



Page 16726



Page 16727



Page 16728



Page 16729



Page 16730



Page 16731



Page 16732



Page 16733



Page 16734



Page 16735



Page 16736



Page 16737



Page 16738



Page 16739



Page 16740



Page 16741



Page 16742



Page 16743



Page 16744



Page 16745



Page 16746



Page 16747



Page 16748



Page 16749



Page 16750



Page 16751



Page 16752



Page 16753



Page 16754



Page 16755



Page 16756



Page 16757



Page 16758



Page 16759



Page 16760



Page 16761



Page 16762



Page 16763



Page 16764



Page 16765



Page 16766



Page 16767



Page 16768



Page 16769



Page 16770



Page 16771



Page 16772



Page 16773



Page 16774



Page 16775



Page 16776



Page 16777



Page 16778



Page 16779



Page 16780



Page 16781



Page 16782



Page 16783



Page 16784



Page 16785



Page 16786



Page 16787



Page 16788



Page 16789



Page 16790



Page 16791



Page 16792



Page 16793



Page 16794



Page 16795



Page 16796



Page 16797



Page 16798



Page 16799



Page 16800



Page 16801



Page 16802



Page 16803



Page 16804



Page 16805



Page 16806



Page 16807



Page 16808



Page 16809



Page 16810



Page 16811



Page 16812



Page 16813



Page 16814



Page 16815



Page 16816



Page 16817



Page 16818



Page 16819



Page 16820



Page 16821



Page 16822



Page 16823



Page 16824



Page 16825



Page 16826



Page 16827



Page 16828



Page 16829



Page 16830



Page 16831



Page 16832



Page 16833



Page 16834



Page 16835



Page 16836



Page 16837



Page 16838



Page 16839



Page 16840



Page 16841



Page 16842



Page 16843



Page 16844



Page 16845



Page 16846



Page 16847



Page 16848



Page 16849



Page 16850



Page 16851



Page 16852



Page 16853



Page 16854



Page 16855



Page 16856



Page 16857



Page 16858



Page 16859



Page 16860



Page 16861



Page 16862



Page 16863



Page 16864



Page 16865



Page 16866



Page 16867



Page 16868



Page 16869



Page 16870



Page 16871



Page 16872



Page 16873



Page 16874



Page 16875



Page 16876



Page 16877



Page 16878



Page 16879



Page 16880



Page 16881



Page 16882



Page 16883



Page 16884



Page 16885



Page 16886



Page 16887



Page 16888



Page 16889



Page 16890



Page 16891



Page 16892



Page 16893



Page 16894



Page 16895



Page 16896



Page 16897



Page 16898



Page 16899



Page 16900



Page 16901



Page 16902



Page 16903



Page 16904



Page 16905



Page 16906



Page 16907



Page 16908



Page 16909



Page 16910



Page 16911



Page 16912



Page 16913



Page 16914



Page 16915



Page 16916



Page 16917



Page 16918



Page 16919



Page 16920



Page 16921



Page 16922



Page 16923



Page 16924



Page 16925



Page 16926



Page 16927



Page 16928



Page 16929



Page 16930



Page 16931



Page 16932



Page 16933



Page 16934



Page 16935



Page 16936



Page 16937



Page 16938



Page 16939



Page 16940



Page 16941



Page 16942



Page 16943



Page 16944



Page 16945



Page 16946



Page 16947



Page 16948



Page 16949



Page 16950



Page 16951



Page 16952



Page 16953



Page 16954



Page 16955



Page 16956



Page 16957



Page 16958



Page 16959



Page 16960



Page 16961



Page 16962



Page 16963



Page 16964



Page 16965



Page 16966



Page 16967



Page 16968



Page 16969



Page 16970



Page 16971



Page 16972



Page 16973



Page 16974



Page 16975



Page 16976



Page 16977



Page 16978



Page 16979



Page 16980



Page 16981



Page 16982



Page 16983



Page 16984



Page 16985



Page 16986



Page 16987



Page 16988



Page 16989



Page 16990



Page 16991



Page 16992



Page 16993



Page 16994



Page 16995



Page 16996



Page 16997



Page 16998



Page 16999



Page 17000



Page 17001



Page 17002



Page 17003



Page 17004



Page 17005



Page 17006



Page 17007



Page 17008



Page 17009



Page 17010



Page 17011



Page 17012



Page 17013



Page 17014



Page 17015



Page 17016



Page 17017



Page 17018



Page 17019



Page 17020



Page 17021



Page 17022



Page 17023



Page 17024



Page 17025



Page 17026



Page 17027



Page 17028



Page 17029



Page 17030



Page 17031



Page 17032



Page 17033



Page 17034



Page 17035



Page 17036



Page 17037



Page 17038



Page 17039



Page 17040



Page 17041



Page 17042



Page 17043



Page 17044



Page 17045



Page 17046



Page 17047



Page 17048



Page 17049



Page 17050



Page 17051



Page 17052



Page 17053



Page 17054



Page 17055



Page 17056



Page 17057



Page 17058



Page 17059



Page 17060



Page 17061



Page 17062



Page 17063



Page 17064



Page 17065



Page 17066



Page 17067



Page 17068



Page 17069



Page 17070



Page 17071



Page 17072



Page 17073



Page 17074



Page 17075



Page 17076



Page 17077



Page 17078



Page 17079



Page 17080



Page 17081



Page 17082



Page 17083



Page 17084



Page 17085



Page 17086



Page 17087



Page 17088



Page 17089



Page 17090



Page 17091



Page 17092



Page 17093



Page 17094



Page 17095



Page 17096



Page 17097



Page 17098



Page 17099



Page 17100



Page 17101



Page 17102



Page 17103



Page 17104



Page 17105



Page 17106



Page 17107



Page 17108



Page 17109



Page 17110



Page 17111



Page 17112



Page 17113



Page 17114



Page 17115



Page 17116



Page 17117



Page 17118



Page 17119



Page 17120



Page 17121



Page 17122



Page 17123



Page 17124



Page 17125



Page 17126



Page 17127



Page 17128



Page 17129



Page 17130



Page 17131



Page 17132



Page 17133



Page 17134



Page 17135



Page 17136



Page 17137



Page 17138



Page 17139



Page 17140



Page 17141



Page 17142



Page 17143



Page 17144



Page 17145



Page 17146



Page 17147



Page 17148



Page 17149



Page 17150



Page 17151



Page 17152



Page 17153



Page 17154



Page 17155



Page 17156



Page 17157



Page 17158



Page 17159



Page 17160



Page 17161



Page 17162



Page 17163



Page 17164



Page 17165



Page 17166



Page 17167



Page 17168



Page 17169



Page 17170



Page 17171



Page 17172



Page 17173



Page 17174



Page 17175



Page 17176



Page 17177



Page 17178



Page 17179



Page 17180



Page 17181



Page 17182



Page 17183



Page 17184



Page 17185



Page 17186



Page 17187



Page 17188



Page 17189



Page 17190



Page 17191



Page 17192



Page 17193



Page 17194



Page 17195



Page 17196



Page 17197



Page 17198



Page 17199



Page 17200



Page 17201



Page 17202



Page 17203



Page 17204



Page 17205



Page 17206



Page 17207



Page 17208



Page 17209



Page 17210



Page 17211



Page 17212



Page 17213



Page 17214



Page 17215



Page 17216



Page 17217



Page 17218



Page 17219



Page 17220



Page 17221



Page 17222



Page 17223



Page 17224



Page 17225



Page 17226



Page 17227



Page 17228



Page 17229



Page 17230



Page 17231



Page 17232



Page 17233



Page 17234



Page 17235



Page 17236



Page 17237



Page 17238



Page 17239



Page 17240



Page 17241



Page 17242



Page 17243



Page 17244



Page 17245



Page 17246



Page 17247



Page 17248



Page 17249



Page 17250



Page 17251



Page 17252



Page 17253



Page 17254



Page 17255



Page 17256



Page 17257



Page 17258



Page 17259



Page 17260



Page 17261



Page 17262



Page 17263



Page 17264



Page 17265



Page 17266



Page 17267



Page 17268



Page 17269



Page 17270



Page 17271



Page 17272



Page 17273



Page 17274



Page 17275



Page 17276



Page 17277



Page 17278



Page 17279



Page 17280



Page 17281



Page 17282



Page 17283



Page 17284



Page 17285



Page 17286



Page 17287



Page 17288



Page 17289



Page 17290



Page 17291



Page 17292



Page 17293



Page 17294



Page 17295



Page 17296



Page 17297



Page 17298



Page 17299



Page 17300



Page 17301



Page 17302



Page 17303



Page 17304



Page 17305



Page 17306



Page 17307



Page 17308



Page 17309



Page 17310



Page 17311



Page 17312



Page 17313



Page 17314



Page 17315



Page 17316



Page 17317



Page 17318



Page 17319



Page 17320



Page 17321



Page 17322



Page 17323



Page 17324



Page 17325



Page 17326



Page 17327



Page 17328



Page 17329



Page 17330



Page 17331



Page 17332



Page 17333



Page 17334



Page 17335



Page 17336



Page 17337



Page 17338



Page 17339



Page 17340



Page 17341



Page 17342



Page 17343



Page 17344



Page 17345



Page 17346



Page 17347



Page 17348



Page 17349



Page 17350



Page 17351



Page 17352



Page 17353



Page 17354



Page 17355



Page 17356



Page 17357



Page 17358



Page 17359



Page 17360



Page 17361



Page 17362



Page 17363



Page 17364



Page 17365



Page 17366



Page 17367



Page 17368



Page 17369



Page 17370



Page 17371



Page 17372



Page 17373



Page 17374



Page 17375



Page 17376



Page 17377



Page 17378



Page 17379



Page 17380



Page 17381



Page 17382



Page 17383



Page 17384



Page 17385



Page 17386



Page 17387



Page 17388



Page 17389



Page 17390



Page 17391



Page 17392



Page 17393



Page 17394



Page 17395



Page 17396



Page 17397



Page 17398



Page 17399



Page 17400



Page 17401



Page 17402



Page 17403



Page 17404



Page 17405



Page 17406



Page 17407



Page 17408



Page 17409



Page 17410



Page 17411



Page 17412



Page 17413



Page 17414



Page 17415



Page 17416



Page 17417



Page 17418



Page 17419



Page 17420



Page 17421



Page 17422



Page 17423



Page 17424



Page 17425



Page 17426



Page 17427



Page 17428



Page 17429



Page 17430



Page 17431



Page 17432



Page 17433



Page 17434



Page 17435



Page 17436



Page 17437



Page 17438



Page 17439



Page 17440



Page 17441



Page 17442



Page 17443



Page 17444



Page 17445



Page 17446



Page 17447



Page 17448



Page 17449



Page 17450



Page 17451



Page 17452



Page 17453



Page 17454



Page 17455



Page 17456



Page 17457



Page 17458



Page 17459



Page 17460



Page 17461



Page 17462



Page 17463



Page 17464



Page 17465



Page 17466



Page 17467



Page 17468



Page 17469



Page 17470



Page 17471



Page 17472



Page 17473



Page 17474



Page 17475



Page 17476



Page 17477



Page 17478



Page 17479



Page 17480



Page 17481



Page 17482



Page 17483



Page 17484



Page 17485



Page 17486



Page 17487



Page 17488



Page 17489



Page 17490



Page 17491



Page 17492



Page 17493



Page 17494



Page 17495



Page 17496



Page 17497



Page 17498



Page 17499



Page 17500



Page 17501



Page 17502



Page 17503



Page 17504



Page 17505



Page 17506



Page 17507



Page 17508



Page 17509



Page 17510



Page 17511



Page 17512



Page 17513



Page 17514



Page 17515



Page 17516



Page 17517



Page 17518



Page 17519



Page 17520



Page 17521



Page 17522



Page 17523



Page 17524



Page 17525



Page 17526



Page 17527



Page 17528



Page 17529



Page 17530



Page 17531



Page 17532



Page 17533



Page 17534



Page 17535



Page 17536



Page 17537



Page 17538



Page 17539



Page 17540



Page 17541



Page 17542



Page 17543



Page 17544



Page 17545



Page 17546



Page 17547



Page 17548



Page 17549



Page 17550



Page 17551



Page 17552



Page 17553



Page 17554



Page 17555



Page 17556



Page 17557



Page 17558



Page 17559



Page 17560



Page 17561



Page 17562



Page 17563



Page 17564



Page 17565



Page 17566



Page 17567



Page 17568



Page 17569



Page 17570



Page 17571



Page 17572



Page 17573



Page 17574



Page 17575



Page 17576



Page 17577



Page 17578



Page 17579



Page 17580



Page 17581



Page 17582



Page 17583



Page 17584



Page 17585



Page 17586



Page 17587



Page 17588



Page 17589



Page 17590



Page 17591



Page 17592



Page 17593



Page 17594



Page 17595



Page 17596



Page 17597



Page 17598



Page 17599



Page 17600



Page 17601



Page 17602



Page 17603



Page 17604



Page 17605



Page 17606



Page 17607



Page 17608



Page 17609



Page 17610



Page 17611



Page 17612



Page 17613



Page 17614



Page 17615



Page 17616



Page 17617



Page 17618



Page 17619



Page 17620



Page 17621



Page 17622



Page 17623



Page 17624



Page 17625



Page 17626



Page 17627



Page 17628



Page 17629



Page 17630



Page 17631



Page 17632



Page 17633



Page 17634



Page 17635



Page 17636



Page 17637



Page 17638



Page 17639



Page 17640



Page 17641



Page 17642



Page 17643



Page 17644



Page 17645



Page 17646



Page 17647



Page 17648



Page 17649



Page 17650



Page 17651



Page 17652



Page 17653



Page 17654



Page 17655



Page 17656



Page 17657



Page 17658



Page 17659



Page 17660



Page 17661



Page 17662



Page 17663



Page 17664



Page 17665



Page 17666



Page 17667



Page 17668



Page 17669



Page 17670



Page 17671



Page 17672



Page 17673



Page 17674



Page 17675



Page 17676



Page 17677



Page 17678



Page 17679



Page 17680



Page 17681



Page 17682



Page 17683



Page 17684



Page 17685



Page 17686



Page 17687



Page 17688



Page 17689



Page 17690



Page 17691



Page 17692



Page 17693



Page 17694



Page 17695



Page 17696



Page 17697



Page 17698



Page 17699



Page 17700



Page 17701



Page 17702



Page 17703



Page 17704



Page 17705



Page 17706



Page 17707



Page 17708



Page 17709



Page 17710



Page 17711



Page 17712



Page 17713



Page 17714



Page 17715



Page 17716



Page 17717



Page 17718



Page 17719



Page 17720



Page 17721



Page 17722



Page 17723



Page 17724



Page 17725



Page 17726



Page 17727



Page 17728



Page 17729



Page 17730



Page 17731



Page 17732



Page 17733



Page 17734



Page 17735



Page 17736



Page 17737



Page 17738



Page 17739



Page 17740



Page 17741



Page 17742



Page 17743



Page 17744



Page 17745



Page 17746



Page 17747



Page 17748



Page 17749



Page 17750



Page 17751



Page 17752



Page 17753



Page 17754



Page 17755



Page 17756



Page 17757



Page 17758



Page 17759



Page 17760



Page 17761



Page 17762



Page 17763



Page 17764



Page 17765



Page 17766



Page 17767



Page 17768



Page 17769



Page 17770



Page 17771



Page 17772



Page 17773



Page 17774



Page 17775



Page 17776



Page 17777



Page 17778



Page 17779



Page 17780



Page 17781



Page 17782



Page 17783



Page 17784



Page 17785



Page 17786



Page 17787



Page 17788



Page 17789



Page 17790



Page 17791



Page 17792



Page 17793



Page 17794



Page 17795



Page 17796



Page 17797



Page 17798



Page 17799



Page 17800



Page 17801



Page 17802



Page 17803



Page 17804



Page 17805



Page 17806



Page 17807



Page 17808



Page 17809



Page 17810



Page 17811



Page 17812



Page 17813



Page 17814



Page 17815



Page 17816



Page 17817



Page 17818



Page 17819



Page 17820



Page 17821



Page 17822



Page 17823



Page 17824



Page 17825



Page 17826



Page 17827



Page 17828



Page 17829



Page 17830



Page 17831



Page 17832



Page 17833



Page 17834



Page 17835



Page 17836



Page 17837



Page 17838



Page 17839



Page 17840



Page 17841



Page 17842



Page 17843



Page 17844



Page 17845



Page 17846



Page 17847



Page 17848



Page 17849



Page 17850



Page 17851



Page 17852



Page 17853



Page 17854



Page 17855



Page 17856



Page 17857



Page 17858



Page 17859



Page 17860



Page 17861



Page 17862



Page 17863



Page 17864



Page 17865



Page 17866



Page 17867



Page 17868



Page 17869



Page 17870



Page 17871



Page 17872



Page 17873



Page 17874



Page 17875



Page 17876



Page 17877



Page 17878



Page 17879



Page 17880



Page 17881



Page 17882



Page 17883



Page 17884



Page 17885



Page 17886



Page 17887



Page 17888



Page 17889



Page 17890



Page 17891



Page 17892



Page 17893



Page 17894



Page 17895



Page 17896



Page 17897



Page 17898



Page 17899



Page 17900



Page 17901



Page 17902



Page 17903



Page 17904



Page 17905



Page 17906



Page 17907



Page 17908



Page 17909



Page 17910



Page 17911



Page 17912



Page 17913



Page 17914



Page 17915



Page 17916



Page 17917



Page 17918



Page 17919



Page 17920



Page 17921



Page 17922



Page 17923



Page 17924



Page 17925



Page 17926



Page 17927



Page 17928



Page 17929



Page 17930



Page 17931



Page 17932



Page 17933



Page 17934



Page 17935



Page 17936



Page 17937



Page 17938



Page 17939



Page 17940



Page 17941



Page 17942



Page 17943



Page 17944



Page 17945



Page 17946



Page 17947



Page 17948



Page 17949



Page 17950



Page 17951



Page 17952



Page 17953



Page 17954



Page 17955



Page 17956



Page 17957



Page 17958



Page 17959



Page 17960



Page 17961



Page 17962



Page 17963



Page 17964



Page 17965



Page 17966



Page 17967



Page 17968



Page 17969



Page 17970



Page 17971



Page 17972



Page 17973



Page 17974



Page 17975



Page 17976



Page 17977



Page 17978



Page 17979



Page 17980



Page 17981



Page 17982



Page 17983



Page 17984



Page 17985



Page 17986



Page 17987



Page 17988



Page 17989



Page 17990



Page 17991



Page 17992



Page 17993



Page 17994



Page 17995



Page 17996



Page 17997



Page 17998



Page 17999



Page 18000



Page 18001



Page 18002



Page 18003



Page 18004



Page 18005



Page 18006



Page 18007



Page 18008



Page 18009



Page 18010



Page 18011



Page 18012



Page 18013



Page 18014



Page 18015



Page 18016



Page 18017



Page 18018



Page 18019



Page 18020



Page 18021



Page 18022



Page 18023



Page 18024



Page 18025



Page 18026



Page 18027



Page 18028



Page 18029



Page 18030



Page 18031



Page 18032



Page 18033



Page 18034



Page 18035



Page 18036



Page 18037



Page 18038



Page 18039



Page 18040



Page 18041



Page 18042



Page 18043



Page 18044



Page 18045



Page 18046



Page 18047



Page 18048



Page 18049



Page 18050



Page 18051



Page 18052



Page 18053



Page 18054



Page 18055



Page 18056



Page 18057



Page 18058



Page 18059



Page 18060



Page 18061



Page 18062



Page 18063



Page 18064



Page 18065



Page 18066



Page 18067



Page 18068



Page 18069



Page 18070



Page 18071



Page 18072



Page 18073



Page 18074



Page 18075



Page 18076



Page 18077



Page 18078



Page 18079



Page 18080



Page 18081



Page 18082



Page 18083



Page 18084



Page 18085



Page 18086



Page 18087



Page 18088



Page 18089



Page 18090



Page 18091



Page 18092



Page 18093



Page 18094



Page 18095



Page 18096



Page 18097



Page 18098



Page 18099



Page 18100



Page 18101



Page 18102



Page 18103



Page 18104



Page 18105



Page 18106



Page 18107



Page 18108



Page 18109



Page 18110



Page 18111



Page 18112



Page 18113



Page 18114



Page 18115



Page 18116



Page 18117



Page 18118



Page 18119



Page 18120



Page 18121



Page 18122



Page 18123



Page 18124



Page 18125



Page 18126



Page 18127



Page 18128



Page 18129



Page 18130



Page 18131



Page 18132



Page 18133



Page 18134



Page 18135



Page 18136



Page 18137



Page 18138



Page 18139



Page 18140



Page 18141



Page 18142



Page 18143



Page 18144



Page 18145



Page 18146



Page 18147



Page 18148



Page 18149



Page 18150



Page 18151



Page 18152



Page 18153



Page 18154



Page 18155



Page 18156



Page 18157



Page 18158



Page 18159



Page 18160



Page 18161



Page 18162



Page 18163



Page 18164



Page 18165



Page 18166



Page 18167



Page 18168



Page 18169



Page 18170



Page 18171



Page 18172



Page 18173



Page 18174



Page 18175



Page 18176



Page 18177



Page 18178



Page 18179



Page 18180



Page 18181



Page 18182



Page 18183



Page 18184



Page 18185



Page 18186



Page 18187



Page 18188



Page 18189



Page 18190



Page 18191



Page 18192



Page 18193



Page 18194



Page 18195



Page 18196



Page 18197



Page 18198



Page 18199



Page 18200



Page 18201



Page 18202



Page 18203



Page 18204



Page 18205



Page 18206



Page 18207



Page 18208



Page 18209



Page 18210



Page 18211



Page 18212



Page 18213



Page 18214



Page 18215



Page 18216



Page 18217



Page 18218



Page 18219



Page 18220



Page 18221



Page 18222



Page 18223



Page 18224



Page 18225



Page 18226



Page 18227



Page 18228



Page 18229



Page 18230



Page 18231



Page 18232



Page 18233



Page 18234



Page 18235



Page 18236



Page 18237



Page 18238



Page 18239



Page 18240



Page 18241



Page 18242



Page 18243



Page 18244



Page 18245



Page 18246



Page 18247



Page 18248



Page 18249



Page 18250



Page 18251



Page 18252



Page 18253



Page 18254



Page 18255



Page 18256



Page 18257



Page 18258



Page 18259



Page 18260



Page 18261



Page 18262



Page 18263



Page 18264



Page 18265



Page 18266



Page 18267



Page 18268



Page 18269



Page 18270



Page 18271



Page 18272



Page 18273



Page 18274



Page 18275



Page 18276



Page 18277



Page 18278



Page 18279



Page 18280



Page 18281



Page 18282



Page 18283



Page 18284



Page 18285



Page 18286



Page 18287



Page 18288



Page 18289



Page 18290



Page 18291



Page 18292



Page 18293



Page 18294



Page 18295



Page 18296



Page 18297



Page 18298



Page 18299



Page 18300



Page 18301



Page 18302



Page 18303



Page 18304



Page 18305



Page 18306



Page 18307



Page 18308



Page 18309



Page 18310



Page 18311



Page 18312



Page 18313



Page 18314



Page 18315



Page 18316



Page 18317



Page 18318



Page 18319



Page 18320



Page 18321



Page 18322



Page 18323



Page 18324



Page 18325



Page 18326



Page 18327



Page 18328



Page 18329



Page 18330



Page 18331



Page 18332



Page 18333



Page 18334



Page 18335



Page 18336



Page 18337



Page 18338



Page 18339



Page 18340



Page 18341



Page 18342



Page 18343



Page 18344



Page 18345



Page 18346



Page 18347



Page 18348



Page 18349



Page 18350



Page 18351



Page 18352



Page 18353



Page 18354



Page 18355



Page 18356



Page 18357



Page 18358



Page 18359



Page 18360



Page 18361



Page 18362



Page 18363



Page 18364



Page 18365



Page 18366



Page 18367



Page 18368



Page 18369



Page 18370



Page 18371



Page 18372



Page 18373



Page 18374



Page 18375



Page 18376



Page 18377



Page 18378



Page 18379



Page 18380



Page 18381



Page 18382



Page 18383



Page 18384



Page 18385



Page 18386



Page 18387



Page 18388



Page 18389



Page 18390



Page 18391



Page 18392



Page 18393



Page 18394



Page 18395



Page 18396



Page 18397



Page 18398



Page 18399



Page 18400



Page 18401



Page 18402



Page 18403



Page 18404



Page 18405



Page 18406



Page 18407



Page 18408



Page 18409



Page 18410



Page 18411



Page 18412



Page 18413



Page 18414



Page 18415



Page 18416



Page 18417



Page 18418



Page 18419



Page 18420



Page 18421



Page 18422



Page 18423



Page 18424



Page 18425



Page 18426



Page 18427



Page 18428



Page 18429



Page 18430



Page 18431



Page 18432



Page 18433



Page 18434



Page 18435



Page 18436



Page 18437



Page 18438



Page 18439



Page 18440



Page 18441



Page 18442



Page 18443



Page 18444



Page 18445



Page 18446



Page 18447



Page 18448



Page 18449



Page 18450



Page 18451



Page 18452



Page 18453



Page 18454



Page 18455



Page 18456



Page 18457



Page 18458



Page 18459



Page 18460



Page 18461



Page 18462



Page 18463



Page 18464



Page 18465



Page 18466



Page 18467



Page 18468



Page 18469



Page 18470



Page 18471



Page 18472



Page 18473



Page 18474



Page 18475



Page 18476



Page 18477



Page 18478



Page 18479



Page 18480



Page 18481



Page 18482



Page 18483



Page 18484



Page 18485



Page 18486



Page 18487



Page 18488



Page 18489



Page 18490



Page 18491



Page 18492



Page 18493



Page 18494



Page 18495



Page 18496



Page 18497



Page 18498



Page 18499



Page 18500



Page 18501



Page 18502



Page 18503



Page 18504



Page 18505



Page 18506



Page 18507



Page 18508



Page 18509



Page 18510



Page 18511



Page 18512



Page 18513



Page 18514



Page 18515



Page 18516



Page 18517



Page 18518



Page 18519



Page 18520



Page 18521



Page 18522



Page 18523



Page 18524



Page 18525



Page 18526



Page 18527



Page 18528



Page 18529



Page 18530



Page 18531



Page 18532



Page 18533



Page 18534



Page 18535



Page 18536



Page 18537



Page 18538



Page 18539



Page 18540



Page 18541



Page 18542



Page 18543



Page 18544



Page 18545



Page 18546



Page 18547



Page 18548



Page 18549



Page 18550



Page 18551



Page 18552



Page 18553



Page 18554



Page 18555



Page 18556



Page 18557



Page 18558



Page 18559



Page 18560



Page 18561



Page 18562



Page 18563



Page 18564



Page 18565



Page 18566



Page 18567



Page 18568



Page 18569



Page 18570



Page 18571



Page 18572



Page 18573



Page 18574



Page 18575



Page 18576



Page 18577



Page 18578



Page 18579



Page 18580



Page 18581



Page 18582



Page 18583



Page 18584



Page 18585



Page 18586



Page 18587



Page 18588



Page 18589



Page 18590



Page 18591



Page 18592



Page 18593



Page 18594



Page 18595



Page 18596



Page 18597



Page 18598



Page 18599



Page 18600



Page 18601



Page 18602



Page 18603



Page 18604



Page 18605



Page 18606



Page 18607



Page 18608



Page 18609



Page 18610



Page 18611



Page 18612



Page 18613



Page 18614



Page 18615



Page 18616



Page 18617



Page 18618



Page 18619



Page 18620



Page 18621



Page 18622



Page 18623



Page 18624



Page 18625



Page 18626



Page 18627



Page 18628



Page 18629



Page 18630



Page 18631



Page 18632



Page 18633



Page 18634



Page 18635



Page 18636



Page 18637



Page 18638



Page 18639



Page 18640



Page 18641



Page 18642



Page 18643



Page 18644



Page 18645



Page 18646



Page 18647



Page 18648



Page 18649



Page 18650



Page 18651



Page 18652



Page 18653



Page 18654



Page 18655



Page 18656



Page 18657



Page 18658



Page 18659



Page 18660



Page 18661



Page 18662



Page 18663



Page 18664



Page 18665



Page 18666



Page 18667



Page 18668



Page 18669



Page 18670



Page 18671



Page 18672



Page 18673



Page 18674



Page 18675



Page 18676



Page 18677



Page 18678



Page 18679



Page 18680



Page 18681



Page 18682



Page 18683



Page 18684



Page 18685



Page 18686



Page 18687



Page 18688



Page 18689



Page 18690



Page 18691



Page 18692



Page 18693



Page 18694



Page 18695



Page 18696



Page 18697



Page 18698



Page 18699



Page 18700



Page 18701



Page 18702



Page 18703



Page 18704



Page 18705



Page 18706



Page 18707



Page 18708



Page 18709



Page 18710



Page 18711



Page 18712



Page 18713



Page 18714



Page 18715



Page 18716



Page 18717



Page 18718



Page 18719



Page 18720



Page 18721



Page 18722



Page 18723



Page 18724



Page 18725



Page 18726



Page 18727



Page 18728



Page 18729



Page 18730



Page 18731



Page 18732



Page 18733



Page 18734



Page 18735



Page 18736



Page 18737



Page 18738



Page 18739



Page 18740



Page 18741



Page 18742



Page 18743



Page 18744



Page 18745



Page 18746



Page 18747



Page 18748



Page 18749



Page 18750



Page 18751



Page 18752



Page 18753



Page 18754



Page 18755



Page 18756



Page 18757



Page 18758



Page 18759



Page 18760



Page 18761



Page 18762



Page 18763



Page 18764



Page 18765



Page 18766



Page 18767



Page 18768



Page 18769



Page 18770



Page 18771



Page 18772



Page 18773



Page 18774



Page 18775



Page 18776



Page 18777



Page 18778



Page 18779



Page 18780



Page 18781



Page 18782



Page 18783



Page 18784



Page 18785



Page 18786



Page 18787



Page 18788



Page 18789



Page 18790



Page 18791



Page 18792



Page 18793



Page 18794



Page 18795



Page 18796



Page 18797



Page 18798



Page 18799



Page 18800



Page 18801



Page 18802



Page 18803



Page 18804



Page 18805



Page 18806



Page 18807



Page 18808



Page 18809



Page 18810



Page 18811



Page 18812



Page 18813



Page 18814



Page 18815



Page 18816



Page 18817



Page 18818



Page 18819



Page 18820



Page 18821



Page 18822



Page 18823



Page 18824



Page 18825



Page 18826



Page 18827



Page 18828



Page 18829



Page 18830



Page 18831



Page 18832



Page 18833



Page 18834



Page 18835



Page 18836



Page 18837



Page 18838



Page 18839



Page 18840



Page 18841



Page 18842



Page 18843



Page 18844



Page 18845



Page 18846



Page 18847



Page 18848



Page 18849



Page 18850



Page 18851



Page 18852



Page 18853



Page 18854



Page 18855



Page 18856



Page 18857



Page 18858



Page 18859



Page 18860



Page 18861



Page 18862



Page 18863



Page 18864



Page 18865



Page 18866



Page 18867



Page 18868



Page 18869



Page 18870



Page 18871



Page 18872



Page 18873



Page 18874



Page 18875



Page 18876



Page 18877



Page 18878



Page 18879



Page 18880



Page 18881



Page 18882



Page 18883



Page 18884



Page 18885



Page 18886



Page 18887



Page 18888



Page 18889



Page 18890



Page 18891



Page 18892



Page 18893



Page 18894



Page 18895



Page 18896



Page 18897



Page 18898



Page 18899



Page 18900



Page 18901



Page 18902



Page 18903



Page 18904



Page 18905



Page 18906



Page 18907



Page 18908



Page 18909



Page 18910



Page 18911



Page 18912



Page 18913



Page 18914



Page 18915



Page 18916



Page 18917



Page 18918



Page 18919



Page 18920



Page 18921



Page 18922



Page 18923



Page 18924



Page 18925



Page 18926



Page 18927



Page 18928



Page 18929



Page 18930



Page 18931



Page 18932



Page 18933



Page 18934



Page 18935



Page 18936



Page 18937



Page 18938



Page 18939



Page 18940



Page 18941



Page 18942



Page 18943



Page 18944



Page 18945



Page 18946



Page 18947



Page 18948



Page 18949



Page 18950



Page 18951



Page 18952



Page 18953



Page 18954



Page 18955



Page 18956



Page 18957



Page 18958



Page 18959



Page 18960



Page 18961



Page 18962



Page 18963



Page 18964



Page 18965



Page 18966



Page 18967



Page 18968



Page 18969



Page 18970



Page 18971



Page 18972



Page 18973



Page 18974



Page 18975



Page 18976



Page 18977



Page 18978



Page 18979



Page 18980



Page 18981



Page 18982



Page 18983



Page 18984



Page 18985



Page 18986



Page 18987



Page 18988



Page 18989



Page 18990



Page 18991



Page 18992



Page 18993



Page 18994



Page 18995



Page 18996



Page 18997



Page 18998



Page 18999



Page 19000



Page 19001



Page 19002



Page 19003



Page 19004



Page 19005



Page 19006



Page 19007



Page 19008



Page 19009



Page 19010



Page 19011



Page 19012



Page 19013



Page 19014



Page 19015



Page 19016



Page 19017



Page 19018



Page 19019



Page 19020



Page 19021



Page 19022



Page 19023



Page 19024



Page 19025



Page 19026



Page 19027



Page 19028



Page 19029



Page 19030



Page 19031



Page 19032



Page 19033



Page 19034



Page 19035



Page 19036



Page 19037



Page 19038



Page 19039



Page 19040



Page 19041



Page 19042



Page 19043



Page 19044



Page 19045



Page 19046



Page 19047



Page 19048



Page 19049



Page 19050



Page 19051



Page 19052



Page 19053



Page 19054



Page 19055



Page 19056



Page 19057



Page 19058



Page 19059



Page 19060



Page 19061



Page 19062



Page 19063



Page 19064



Page 19065



Page 19066



Page 19067



Page 19068



Page 19069



Page 19070



Page 19071



Page 19072



Page 19073



Page 19074



Page 19075



Page 19076



Page 19077



Page 19078



Page 19079



Page 19080



Page 19081



Page 19082



Page 19083



Page 19084



Page 19085



Page 19086



Page 19087



Page 19088



Page 19089



Page 19090



Page 19091



Page 19092



Page 19093



Page 19094



Page 19095



Page 19096



Page 19097



Page 19098



Page 19099



Page 19100



Page 19101



Page 19102



Page 19103



Page 19104



Page 19105



Page 19106



Page 19107



Page 19108



Page 19109



Page 19110



Page 19111



Page 19112



Page 19113



Page 19114



Page 19115



Page 19116



Page 19117



Page 19118



Page 19119



Page 19120



Page 19121



Page 19122



Page 19123



Page 19124



Page 19125



Page 19126



Page 19127



Page 19128



Page 19129



Page 19130



Page 19131



Page 19132



Page 19133



Page 19134



Page 19135



Page 19136



Page 19137



Page 19138



Page 19139



Page 19140



Page 19141



Page 19142



Page 19143



Page 19144



Page 19145



Page 19146



Page 19147



Page 19148



Page 19149



Page 19150



Page 19151



Page 19152



Page 19153



Page 19154



Page 19155



Page 19156



Page 19157



Page 19158



Page 19159



Page 19160



Page 19161



Page 19162



Page 19163



Page 19164



Page 19165



Page 19166



Page 19167



Page 19168



Page 19169



Page 19170



Page 19171



Page 19172



Page 19173



Page 19174



Page 19175



Page 19176



Page 19177



Page 19178



Page 19179



Page 19180



Page 19181



Page 19182



Page 19183



Page 19184



Page 19185



Page 19186



Page 19187



Page 19188



Page 19189



Page 19190



Page 19191



Page 19192



Page 19193



Page 19194



Page 19195



Page 19196



Page 19197



Page 19198



Page 19199



Page 19200



Page 19201



Page 19202



Page 19203



Page 19204



Page 19205



Page 19206



Page 19207



Page 19208



Page 19209



Page 19210



Page 19211



Page 19212



Page 19213



Page 19214



Page 19215



Page 19216



Page 19217



Page 19218



Page 19219



Page 19220



Page 19221



Page 19222



Page 19223



Page 19224



Page 19225



Page 19226



Page 19227



Page 19228



Page 19229



Page 19230



Page 19231



Page 19232



Page 19233



Page 19234



Page 19235



Page 19236



Page 19237



Page 19238



Page 19239



Page 19240



Page 19241



Page 19242



Page 19243



Page 19244



Page 19245



Page 19246



Page 19247



Page 19248



Page 19249



Page 19250



Page 19251



Page 19252



Page 19253



Page 19254



Page 19255



Page 19256



Page 19257



Page 19258



Page 19259



Page 19260



Page 19261



Page 19262



Page 19263



Page 19264



Page 19265



Page 19266



Page 19267



Page 19268



Page 19269



Page 19270



Page 19271



Page 19272



Page 19273



Page 19274



Page 19275



Page 19276



Page 19277



Page 19278



Page 19279



Page 19280



Page 19281



Page 19282



Page 19283



Page 19284



Page 19285



Page 19286



Page 19287



Page 19288



Page 19289



Page 19290



Page 19291



Page 19292



Page 19293



Page 19294



Page 19295



Page 19296



Page 19297



Page 19298



Page 19299



Page 19300



Page 19301



Page 19302



Page 19303



Page 19304



Page 19305



Page 19306



Page 19307



Page 19308



Page 19309



Page 19310



Page 19311



Page 19312



Page 19313



Page 19314



Page 19315



Page 19316



Page 19317



Page 19318



Page 19319



Page 19320



Page 19321



Page 19322



Page 19323



Page 19324



Page 19325



Page 19326



Page 19327



Page 19328



Page 19329



Page 19330



Page 19331



Page 19332



Page 19333



Page 19334



Page 19335



Page 19336



Page 19337



Page 19338



Page 19339



Page 19340



Page 19341



Page 19342



Page 19343



Page 19344



Page 19345



Page 19346



Page 19347



Page 19348



Page 19349



Page 19350



Page 19351



Page 19352



Page 19353



Page 19354



Page 19355



Page 19356



Page 19357



Page 19358



Page 19359



Page 19360



Page 19361



Page 19362



Page 19363



Page 19364



Page 19365



Page 19366



Page 19367



Page 19368



Page 19369



Page 19370



Page 19371



Page 19372



Page 19373



Page 19374



Page 19375



Page 19376



Page 19377



Page 19378



Page 19379



Page 19380



Page 19381



Page 19382



Page 19383



Page 19384



Page 19385



Page 19386



Page 19387



Page 19388



Page 19389



Page 19390



Page 19391



Page 19392



Page 19393



Page 19394



Page 19395



Page 19396



Page 19397



Page 19398



Page 19399



Page 19400



Page 19401



Page 19402



Page 19403



Page 19404



Page 19405



Page 19406



Page 19407



Page 19408



Page 19409



Page 19410



Page 19411



Page 19412



Page 19413



Page 19414



Page 19415



Page 19416



Page 19417



Page 19418



Page 19419



Page 19420



Page 19421



Page 19422



Page 19423



Page 19424



Page 19425



Page 19426



Page 19427



Page 19428



Page 19429



Page 19430



Page 19431



Page 19432



Page 19433



Page 19434



Page 19435



Page 19436



Page 19437



Page 19438



Page 19439



Page 19440



Page 19441



Page 19442



Page 19443



Page 19444



Page 19445



Page 19446



Page 19447



Page 19448



Page 19449



Page 19450



Page 19451



Page 19452



Page 19453



Page 19454



Page 19455



Page 19456



Page 19457



Page 19458



Page 19459



Page 19460



Page 19461



Page 19462



Page 19463



Page 19464



Page 19465



Page 19466



Page 19467



Page 19468



Page 19469



Page 19470



Page 19471



Page 19472



Page 19473



Page 19474



Page 19475



Page 19476



Page 19477



Page 19478



Page 19479



Page 19480



Page 19481



Page 19482



Page 19483



Page 19484



Page 19485



Page 19486



Page 19487



Page 19488



Page 19489



Page 19490



Page 19491



Page 19492



Page 19493



Page 19494



Page 19495



Page 19496



Page 19497



Page 19498



Page 19499



Page 19500



Page 19501



Page 19502



Page 19503



Page 19504



Page 19505



Page 19506



Page 19507



Page 19508



Page 19509



Page 19510



Page 19511



Page 19512



Page 19513



Page 19514



Page 19515



Page 19516



Page 19517



Page 19518



Page 19519



Page 19520



Page 19521



Page 19522



Page 19523



Page 19524



Page 19525



Page 19526



Page 19527



Page 19528



Page 19529



Page 19530



Page 19531



Page 19532



Page 19533



Page 19534



Page 19535



Page 19536



Page 19537



Page 19538



Page 19539



Page 19540



Page 19541



Page 19542



Page 19543



Page 19544



Page 19545



Page 19546



Page 19547



Page 19548



Page 19549



Page 19550



Page 19551



Page 19552



Page 19553



Page 19554



Page 19555



Page 19556



Page 19557



Page 19558



Page 19559



Page 19560



Page 19561



Page 19562



Page 19563



Page 19564



Page 19565



Page 19566



Page 19567



Page 19568



Page 19569



Page 19570



Page 19571



Page 19572



Page 19573



Page 19574



Page 19575



Page 19576



Page 19577



Page 19578



Page 19579



Page 19580



Page 19581



Page 19582



Page 19583



Page 19584



Page 19585



Page 19586



Page 19587



Page 19588



Page 19589



Page 19590



Page 19591



Page 19592



Page 19593



Page 19594



Page 19595



Page 19596



Page 19597



Page 19598



Page 19599



Page 19600



Page 19601



Page 19602



Page 19603



Page 19604



Page 19605



Page 19606



Page 19607



Page 19608



Page 19609



Page 19610



Page 19611



Page 19612



Page 19613



Page 19614



Page 19615



Page 19616



Page 19617



Page 19618



Page 19619



Page 19620



Page 19621



Page 19622



Page 19623



Page 19624



Page 19625



Page 19626



Page 19627



Page 19628



Page 19629



Page 19630



Page 19631



Page 19632



Page 19633



Page 19634



Page 19635



Page 19636



Page 19637



Page 19638



Page 19639



Page 19640



Page 19641



Page 19642



Page 19643



Page 19644



Page 19645



Page 19646



Page 19647



Page 19648



Page 19649



Page 19650



Page 19651



Page 19652



Page 19653



Page 19654



Page 19655



Page 19656



Page 19657



Page 19658



Page 19659



Page 19660



Page 19661



Page 19662



Page 19663



Page 19664



Page 19665



Page 19666



Page 19667



Page 19668



Page 19669



Page 19670



Page 19671



Page 19672



Page 19673



Page 19674



Page 19675



Page 19676



Page 19677



Page 19678



Page 19679



Page 19680



Page 19681



Page 19682



Page 19683



Page 19684



Page 19685



Page 19686



Page 19687



Page 19688



Page 19689



Page 19690



Page 19691



Page 19692



Page 19693



Page 19694



Page 19695



Page 19696



Page 19697



Page 19698



Page 19699



Page 19700



Page 19701



Page 19702



Page 19703



Page 19704



Page 19705



Page 19706



Page 19707



Page 19708



Page 19709



Page 19710



Page 19711



Page 19712



Page 19713



Page 19714



Page 19715



Page 19716



Page 19717



Page 19718



Page 19719



Page 19720



Page 19721



Page 19722



Page 19723



Page 19724



Page 19725



Page 19726



Page 19727



Page 19728



Page 19729



Page 19730



Page 19731



Page 19732



Page 19733



Page 19734



Page 19735



Page 19736



Page 19737



Page 19738



Page 19739



Page 19740



Page 19741



Page 19742



Page 19743



Page 19744



Page 19745



Page 19746



Page 19747



Page 19748



Page 19749



Page 19750



Page 19751



Page 19752



Page 19753



Page 19754



Page 19755



Page 19756



Page 19757



Page 19758



Page 19759



Page 19760



Page 19761



Page 19762



Page 19763



Page 19764



Page 19765



Page 19766



Page 19767



Page 19768



Page 19769



Page 19770



Page 19771



Page 19772



Page 19773



Page 19774



Page 19775



Page 19776



Page 19777



Page 19778



Page 19779



Page 19780



Page 19781



Page 19782



Page 19783



Page 19784



Page 19785



Page 19786



Page 19787



Page 19788



Page 19789



Page 19790



Page 19791



Page 19792



Page 19793



Page 19794



Page 19795



Page 19796



Page 19797



Page 19798



Page 19799



Page 19800



Page 19801



Page 19802



Page 19803



Page 19804



Page 19805



Page 19806



Page 19807



Page 19808



Page 19809



Page 19810



Page 19811



Page 19812



Page 19813



Page 19814



Page 19815



Page 19816



Page 19817



Page 19818



Page 19819



Page 19820



Page 19821



Page 19822



Page 19823



Page 19824



Page 19825



Page 19826



Page 19827



Page 19828



Page 19829



Page 19830



Page 19831



Page 19832



Page 19833



Page 19834



Page 19835



Page 19836



Page 19837



Page 19838



Page 19839



Page 19840



Page 19841



Page 19842



Page 19843



Page 19844



Page 19845



Page 19846



Page 19847



Page 19848



Page 19849



Page 19850



Page 19851



Page 19852



Page 19853



Page 19854



Page 19855



Page 19856



Page 19857



Page 19858



Page 19859



Page 19860



Page 19861



Page 19862



Page 19863



Page 19864



Page 19865



Page 19866



Page 19867



Page 19868



Page 19869



Page 19870



Page 19871



Page 19872



Page 19873



Page 19874



Page 19875



Page 19876



Page 19877



Page 19878



Page 19879



Page 19880



Page 19881



Page 19882



Page 19883



Page 19884



Page 19885



Page 19886



Page 19887



Page 19888



Page 19889



Page 19890



Page 19891



Page 19892



Page 19893



Page 19894



Page 19895



Page 19896



Page 19897



Page 19898



Page 19899



Page 19900



Page 19901



Page 19902



Page 19903



Page 19904



Page 19905



Page 19906



Page 19907



Page 19908



Page 19909



Page 19910



Page 19911



Page 19912



Page 19913



Page 19914



Page 19915



Page 19916



Page 19917



Page 19918



Page 19919



Page 19920



Page 19921



Page 19922



Page 19923



Page 19924



Page 19925



Page 19926



Page 19927



Page 19928



Page 19929



Page 19930



Page 19931



Page 19932



Page 19933



Page 19934



Page 19935



Page 19936



Page 19937



Page 19938



Page 19939



Page 19940



Page 19941



Page 19942



Page 19943



Page 19944



Page 19945



Page 19946



Page 19947



Page 19948



Page 19949



Page 19950



Page 19951



Page 19952



Page 19953



Page 19954



Page 19955



Page 19956



Page 19957



Page 19958



Page 19959



Page 19960



Page 19961



Page 19962



Page 19963



Page 19964



Page 19965



Page 19966



Page 19967



Page 19968



Page 19969



Page 19970



Page 19971



Page 19972



Page 19973



Page 19974



Page 19975



Page 19976



Page 19977



Page 19978



Page 19979



Page 19980



Page 19981



Page 19982



Page 19983



Page 19984



Page 19985



Page 19986



Page 19987



Page 19988



Page 19989



Page 19990



Page 19991



Page 19992



Page 19993



Page 19994



Page 19995



Page 19996



Page 19997



Page 19998



Page 19999



Page 20000



Page 20001



Page 20002



Page 20003



Page 20004



Page 20005



Page 20006



Page 20007



Page 20008



Page 20009



Page 20010



Page 20011



Page 20012



Page 20013



Page 20014



Page 20015



Page 20016



Page 20017



Page 20018



Page 20019



Page 20020



Page 20021



Page 20022



Page 20023



Page 20024



Page 20025



Page 20026



Page 20027



Page 20028



Page 20029



Page 20030



Page 20031



Page 20032



Page 20033



Page 20034



Page 20035



Page 20036



Page 20037



Page 20038



Page 20039



Page 20040



Page 20041



Page 20042



Page 20043



Page 20044



Page 20045



Page 20046



Page 20047



Page 20048



Page 20049



Page 20050



Page 20051



Page 20052



Page 20053



Page 20054



Page 20055



Page 20056



Page 20057



Page 20058



Page 20059



Page 20060



Page 20061



Page 20062



Page 20063



Page 20064



Page 20065



Page 20066



Page 20067



Page 20068



Page 20069



Page 20070



Page 20071



Page 20072



Page 20073



Page 20074



Page 20075



Page 20076



Page 20077



Page 20078



Page 20079



Page 20080



Page 20081



Page 20082



Page 20083



Page 20084



Page 20085



Page 20086



Page 20087



Page 20088



Page 20089



Page 20090



Page 20091



Page 20092



Page 20093



Page 20094



Page 20095



Page 20096



Page 20097



Page 20098



Page 20099



Page 20100



Page 20101



Page 20102



Page 20103



Page 20104



Page 20105



Page 20106



Page 20107



Page 20108



Page 20109



Page 20110



Page 20111



Page 20112



Page 20113



Page 20114



Page 20115



Page 20116



Page 20117



Page 20118



Page 20119



Page 20120



Page 20121



Page 20122



Page 20123



Page 20124



Page 20125



Page 20126



Page 20127



Page 20128



Page 20129



Page 20130



Page 20131



Page 20132



Page 20133



Page 20134



Page 20135



Page 20136



Page 20137



Page 20138



Page 20139



Page 20140



Page 20141



Page 20142



Page 20143



Page 20144



Page 20145



Page 20146



Page 20147



Page 20148



Page 20149



Page 20150



Page 20151



Page 20152



Page 20153



Page 20154



Page 20155



Page 20156



Page 20157



Page 20158



Page 20159



Page 20160



Page 20161



Page 20162



Page 20163



Page 20164



Page 20165



Page 20166



Page 20167



Page 20168



Page 20169



Page 20170



Page 20171



Page 20172



Page 20173



Page 20174



Page 20175



Page 20176



Page 20177



Page 20178



Page 20179



Page 20180



Page 20181



Page 20182



Page 20183



Page 20184



Page 20185



Page 20186



Page 20187



Page 20188



Page 20189



Page 20190



Page 20191



Page 20192



Page 20193



Page 20194



Page 20195



Page 20196



Page 20197



Page 20198



Page 20199



Page 20200



Page 20201



Page 20202



Page 20203



Page 20204



Page 20205



Page 20206



Page 20207



Page 20208



Page 20209



Page 20210



Page 20211



Page 20212



Page 20213



Page 20214



Page 20215



Page 20216



Page 20217



Page 20218



Page 20219



Page 20220



Page 20221



Page 20222



Page 20223



Page 20224



Page 20225



Page 20226



Page 20227



Page 20228



Page 20229



Page 20230



Page 20231



Page 20232



Page 20233



Page 20234



Page 20235



Page 20236



Page 20237



Page 20238



Page 20239



Page 20240



Page 20241



Page 20242



Page 20243



Page 20244



Page 20245



Page 20246



Page 20247



Page 20248



Page 20249



Page 20250



Page 20251



Page 20252



Page 20253



Page 20254



Page 20255



Page 20256



Page 20257



Page 20258



Page 20259



Page 20260



Page 20261



Page 20262



Page 20263



Page 20264



Page 20265



Page 20266



Page 20267



Page 20268



Page 20269



Page 20270



Page 20271



Page 20272



Page 20273



Page 20274



Page 20275



Page 20276



Page 20277



Page 20278



Page 20279



Page 20280



Page 20281



Page 20282



Page 20283



Page 20284



Page 20285



Page 20286



Page 20287



Page 20288



Page 20289



Page 20290



Page 20291



Page 20292



Page 20293



Page 20294



Page 20295



Page 20296



Page 20297



Page 20298



Page 20299



Page 20300



Page 20301



Page 20302



Page 20303



Page 20304



Page 20305



Page 20306



Page 20307



Page 20308



Page 20309



Page 20310



Page 20311



Page 20312



Page 20313



Page 20314



Page 20315



Page 20316



Page 20317



Page 20318



Page 20319



Page 20320



Page 20321



Page 20322



Page 20323



Page 20324



Page 20325



Page 20326



Page 20327



Page 20328



Page 20329



Page 20330



Page 20331



Page 20332



Page 20333



Page 20334



Page 20335



Page 20336



Page 20337



Page 20338



Page 20339



Page 20340



Page 20341



Page 20342



Page 20343



Page 20344



Page 20345



Page 20346



Page 20347



Page 20348



Page 20349



Page 20350



Page 20351



Page 20352



Page 20353



Page 20354



Page 20355



Page 20356



Page 20357



Page 20358



Page 20359



Page 20360



Page 20361



Page 20362



Page 20363



Page 20364



Page 20365



Page 20366



Page 20367



Page 20368



Page 20369



Page 20370



Page 20371



Page 20372



Page 20373



Page 20374



Page 20375



Page 20376



Page 20377



Page 20378



Page 20379



Page 20380



Page 20381



Page 20382



Page 20383



Page 20384



Page 20385



Page 20386



Page 20387



Page 20388



Page 20389



Page 20390



Page 20391



Page 20392



Page 20393



Page 20394



Page 20395



Page 20396



Page 20397



Page 20398



Page 20399



Page 20400



Page 20401



Page 20402



Page 20403



Page 20404



Page 20405



Page 20406



Page 20407



Page 20408



Page 20409



Page 20410



Page 20411



Page 20412



Page 20413



Page 20414



Page 20415



Page 20416



Page 20417



Page 20418



Page 20419



Page 20420



Page 20421



Page 20422



Page 20423



Page 20424



Page 20425



Page 20426



Page 20427



Page 20428



Page 20429



Page 20430



Page 20431



Page 20432



Page 20433



Page 20434



Page 20435



Page 20436



Page 20437



Page 20438



Page 20439



Page 20440



Page 20441



Page 20442



Page 20443



Page 20444



Page 20445



Page 20446



Page 20447



Page 20448



Page 20449



Page 20450



Page 20451



Page 20452



Page 20453



Page 20454



Page 20455



Page 20456



Page 20457



Page 20458



Page 20459



Page 20460



Page 20461



Page 20462



Page 20463



Page 20464



Page 20465



Page 20466



Page 20467



Page 20468



Page 20469



Page 20470



Page 20471



Page 20472



Page 20473



Page 20474



Page 20475



Page 20476



Page 20477



Page 20478



Page 20479



Page 20480



Page 20481



Page 20482



Page 20483



Page 20484



Page 20485



Page 20486



Page 20487



Page 20488



Page 20489



Page 20490



Page 20491



Page 20492



Page 20493



Page 20494



Page 20495



Page 20496



Page 20497



Page 20498



Page 20499



Page 20500



Page 20501



Page 20502



Page 20503



Page 20504



Page 20505



Page 20506



Page 20507



Page 20508



Page 20509



Page 20510



Page 20511



Page 20512



Page 20513



Page 20514



Page 20515



Page 20516



Page 20517



Page 20518



Page 20519



Page 20520



Page 20521



Page 20522



Page 20523



Page 20524



Page 20525



Page 20526



Page 20527



Page 20528



Page 20529



Page 20530



Page 20531



Page 20532



Page 20533



Page 20534



Page 20535



Page 20536



Page 20537



Page 20538



Page 20539



Page 20540



Page 20541



Page 20542



Page 20543



Page 20544



Page 20545



Page 20546



Page 20547



Page 20548



Page 20549



Page 20550



Page 20551



Page 20552



Page 20553



Page 20554



Page 20555



Page 20556



Page 20557



Page 20558



Page 20559



Page 20560



Page 20561



Page 20562



Page 20563



Page 20564



Page 20565



Page 20566



Page 20567



Page 20568



Page 20569



Page 20570



Page 20571



Page 20572



Page 20573



Page 20574



Page 20575



Page 20576



Page 20577



Page 20578



Page 20579



Page 20580



Page 20581



Page 20582



Page 20583



Page 20584



Page 20585



Page 20586



Page 20587



Page 20588



Page 20589



Page 20590



Page 20591



Page 20592



Page 20593



Page 20594



Page 20595



Page 20596



Page 20597



Page 20598



Page 20599



Page 20600



Page 20601



Page 20602



Page 20603



Page 20604



Page 20605



Page 20606



Page 20607



Page 20608



Page 20609



Page 20610



Page 20611



Page 20612



Page 20613



Page 20614



Page 20615



Page 20616



Page 20617



Page 20618



Page 20619



Page 20620



Page 20621



Page 20622



Page 20623



Page 20624



Page 20625



Page 20626



Page 20627



Page 20628



Page 20629



Page 20630



Page 20631



Page 20632



Page 20633



Page 20634



Page 20635



Page 20636



Page 20637



Page 20638



Page 20639



Page 20640



Page 20641



Page 20642



Page 20643



Page 20644



Page 20645



Page 20646



Page 20647



Page 20648



Page 20649



Page 20650



Page 20651



Page 20652



Page 20653



Page 20654



Page 20655



Page 20656



Page 20657



Page 20658



Page 20659



Page 20660



Page 20661



Page 20662



Page 20663



Page 20664



Page 20665



Page 20666



Page 20667



Page 20668



Page 20669



Page 20670



Page 20671



Page 20672



Page 20673



Page 20674



Page 20675



Page 20676



Page 20677



Page 20678



Page 20679



Page 20680



Page 20681



Page 20682



Page 20683



Page 20684



Page 20685



Page 20686



Page 20687



Page 20688



Page 20689



Page 20690



Page 20691



Page 20692



Page 20693



Page 20694



Page 20695



Page 20696



Page 20697



Page 20698



Page 20699



Page 20700



Page 20701



Page 20702



Page 20703



Page 20704



Page 20705



Page 20706



Page 20707



Page 20708



Page 20709



Page 20710



Page 20711



Page 20712



Page 20713



Page 20714



Page 20715



Page 20716



Page 20717



Page 20718



Page 20719



Page 20720



Page 20721



Page 20722



Page 20723



Page 20724



Page 20725



Page 20726



Page 20727



Page 20728



Page 20729



Page 20730



Page 20731



Page 20732



Page 20733



Page 20734



Page 20735



Page 20736



Page 20737



Page 20738



Page 20739



Page 20740



Page 20741



Page 20742



Page 20743



Page 20744



Page 20745



Page 20746



Page 20747



Page 20748



Page 20749



Page 20750



Page 20751



Page 20752



Page 20753



Page 20754



Page 20755



Page 20756



Page 20757



Page 20758



Page 20759



Page 20760



Page 20761



Page 20762



Page 20763



Page 20764



Page 20765



Page 20766



Page 20767



Page 20768



Page 20769



Page 20770



Page 20771



Page 20772



Page 20773



Page 20774



Page 20775



Page 20776



Page 20777



Page 20778



Page 20779



Page 20780



Page 20781



Page 20782



Page 20783



Page 20784



Page 20785



Page 20786



Page 20787



Page 20788



Page 20789



Page 20790



Page 20791



Page 20792



Page 20793



Page 20794



Page 20795



Page 20796



Page 20797



Page 20798



Page 20799



Page 20800



Page 20801



Page 20802



Page 20803



Page 20804



Page 20805



Page 20806



Page 20807



Page 20808



Page 20809



Page 20810



Page 20811



Page 20812



Page 20813



Page 20814



Page 20815



Page 20816



Page 20817



Page 20818



Page 20819



Page 20820



Page 20821



Page 20822



Page 20823



Page 20824



Page 20825



Page 20826



Page 20827



Page 20828



Page 20829



Page 20830



Page 20831



Page 20832



Page 20833



Page 20834



Page 20835



Page 20836



Page 20837



Page 20838



Page 20839



Page 20840



Page 20841



Page 20842



Page 20843



Page 20844



Page 20845



Page 20846



Page 20847



Page 20848



Page 20849



Page 20850



Page 20851



Page 20852



Page 20853



Page 20854



Page 20855



Page 20856



Page 20857



Page 20858



Page 20859



Page 20860



Page 20861



Page 20862



Page 20863



Page 20864



Page 20865



Page 20866



Page 20867



Page 20868



Page 20869



Page 20870



Page 20871



Page 20872



Page 20873



Page 20874



Page 20875



Page 20876



Page 20877



Page 20878



Page 20879



Page 20880



Page 20881



Page 20882



Page 20883



Page 20884



Page 20885



Page 20886



Page 20887



Page 20888



Page 20889



Page 20890



Page 20891



Page 20892



Page 20893



Page 20894



Page 20895



Page 20896



Page 20897



Page 20898



Page 20899



Page 20900



Page 20901



Page 20902



Page 20903



Page 20904



Page 20905



Page 20906



Page 20907



Page 20908



Page 20909



Page 20910



Page 20911



Page 20912



Page 20913



Page 20914



Page 20915



Page 20916



Page 20917



Page 20918



Page 20919



Page 20920



Page 20921



Page 20922



Page 20923



Page 20924



Page 20925



Page 20926



Page 20927



Page 20928



Page 20929



Page 20930



Page 20931



Page 20932



Page 20933



Page 20934



Page 20935



Page 20936



Page 20937



Page 20938



Page 20939



Page 20940



Page 20941



Page 20942



Page 20943



Page 20944



Page 20945



Page 20946



Page 20947



Page 20948



Page 20949



Page 20950



Page 20951



Page 20952



Page 20953



Page 20954



Page 20955



Page 20956



Page 20957



Page 20958



Page 20959



Page 20960



Page 20961



Page 20962



Page 20963



Page 20964



Page 20965



Page 20966



Page 20967



Page 20968



Page 20969



Page 20970



Page 20971



Page 20972



Page 20973



Page 20974



Page 20975



Page 20976



Page 20977



Page 20978



Page 20979



Page 20980



Page 20981



Page 20982



Page 20983



Page 20984



Page 20985



Page 20986



Page 20987



Page 20988



Page 20989



Page 20990



Page 20991



Page 20992



Page 20993



Page 20994



Page 20995



Page 20996



Page 20997



Page 20998



Page 20999



Page 21000



Page 21001



Page 21002



Page 21003



Page 21004



Page 21005



Page 21006



Page 21007



Page 21008



Page 21009



Page 21010



Page 21011



Page 21012



Page 21013



Page 21014



Page 21015



Page 21016



Page 21017



Page 21018



Page 21019



Page 21020



Page 21021



Page 21022



Page 21023



Page 21024



Page 21025



Page 21026



Page 21027



Page 21028



Page 21029



Page 21030



Page 21031



Page 21032



Page 21033



Page 21034



Page 21035



Page 21036



Page 21037



Page 21038



Page 21039



Page 21040



Page 21041



Page 21042



Page 21043



Page 21044



Page 21045



Page 21046



Page 21047



Page 21048



Page 21049



Page 21050



Page 21051



Page 21052



Page 21053



Page 21054



Page 21055



Page 21056



Page 21057



Page 21058



Page 21059



Page 21060



Page 21061



Page 21062



Page 21063



Page 21064



Page 21065



Page 21066



Page 21067



Page 21068



Page 21069



Page 21070



Page 21071



Page 21072



Page 21073



Page 21074



Page 21075



Page 21076



Page 21077



Page 21078



Page 21079



Page 21080



Page 21081



Page 21082



Page 21083



Page 21084



Page 21085



Page 21086



Page 21087



Page 21088



Page 21089



Page 21090



Page 21091



Page 21092



Page 21093



Page 21094



Page 21095



Page 21096



Page 21097



Page 21098



Page 21099



Page 21100



Page 21101



Page 21102



Page 21103



Page 21104



Page 21105



Page 21106



Page 21107



Page 21108



Page 21109



Page 21110



Page 21111



Page 21112



Page 21113



Page 21114



Page 21115



Page 21116



Page 21117



Page 21118



Page 21119



Page 21120



Page 21121



Page 21122



Page 21123



Page 21124



Page 21125



Page 21126



Page 21127



Page 21128



Page 21129



Page 21130



Page 21131



Page 21132



Page 21133



Page 21134



Page 21135



Page 21136



Page 21137



Page 21138



Page 21139



Page 21140



Page 21141



Page 21142



Page 21143



Page 21144



Page 21145



Page 21146



Page 21147



Page 21148



Page 21149



Page 21150



Page 21151



Page 21152



Page 21153



Page 21154



Page 21155



Page 21156



Page 21157



Page 21158



Page 21159



Page 21160



Page 21161



Page 21162



Page 21163



Page 21164



Page 21165



Page 21166



Page 21167



Page 21168



Page 21169



Page 21170



Page 21171



Page 21172



Page 21173



Page 21174



Page 21175



Page 21176



Page 21177



Page 21178



Page 21179



Page 21180



Page 21181



Page 21182



Page 21183



Page 21184



Page 21185



Page 21186



Page 21187



Page 21188



Page 21189



Page 21190



Page 21191



Page 21192



Page 21193



Page 21194



Page 21195



Page 21196



Page 21197



Page 21198



Page 21199



Page 21200



Page 21201



Page 21202



Page 21203



Page 21204



Page 21205



Page 21206



Page 21207



Page 21208



Page 21209



Page 21210



Page 21211



Page 21212



Page 21213



Page 21214



Page 21215



Page 21216



Page 21217



Page 21218



Page 21219



Page 21220



Page 21221



Page 21222



Page 21223



Page 21224



Page 21225



Page 21226



Page 21227



Page 21228



Page 21229



Page 21230



Page 21231



Page 21232



Page 21233



Page 21234



Page 21235



Page 21236



Page 21237



Page 21238



Page 21239



Page 21240



Page 21241



Page 21242



Page 21243



Page 21244



Page 21245



Page 21246



Page 21247



Page 21248



Page 21249



Page 21250



Page 21251



Page 21252



Page 21253



Page 21254



Page 21255



Page 21256



Page 21257



Page 21258



Page 21259



Page 21260



Page 21261



Page 21262



Page 21263



Page 21264



Page 21265



Page 21266



Page 21267



Page 21268



Page 21269



Page 21270



Page 21271



Page 21272



Page 21273



Page 21274



Page 21275



Page 21276



Page 21277



Page 21278



Page 21279



Page 21280



Page 21281



Page 21282



Page 21283



Page 21284



Page 21285



Page 21286



Page 21287



Page 21288



Page 21289



Page 21290



Page 21291



Page 21292



Page 21293



Page 21294



Page 21295



Page 21296



Page 21297



Page 21298



Page 21299



Page 21300



Page 21301



Page 21302



Page 21303



Page 21304



Page 21305



Page 21306



Page 21307



Page 21308



Page 21309



Page 21310



Page 21311



Page 21312



Page 21313



Page 21314



Page 21315



Page 21316



Page 21317



Page 21318



Page 21319



Page 21320



Page 21321



Page 21322



Page 21323



Page 21324



Page 21325



Page 21326



Page 21327



Page 21328



Page 21329



Page 21330



Page 21331



Page 21332



Page 21333



Page 21334



Page 21335



Page 21336



Page 21337



Page 21338



Page 21339



Page 21340



Page 21341



Page 21342



Page 21343



Page 21344



Page 21345



Page 21346



Page 21347



Page 21348



Page 21349



Page 21350



Page 21351



Page 21352



Page 21353



Page 21354



Page 21355



Page 21356



Page 21357



Page 21358



Page 21359



Page 21360



Page 21361



Page 21362



Page 21363



Page 21364



Page 21365



Page 21366



Page 21367



Page 21368



Page 21369



Page 21370



Page 21371



Page 21372



Page 21373



Page 21374



Page 21375



Page 21376



Page 21377



Page 21378



Page 21379



Page 21380



Page 21381



Page 21382



Page 21383



Page 21384



Page 21385



Page 21386



Page 21387



Page 21388



Page 21389



Page 21390



Page 21391



Page 21392



Page 21393



Page 21394



Page 21395



Page 21396



Page 21397



Page 21398



Page 21399



Page 21400



Page 21401



Page 21402



Page 21403



Page 21404



Page 21405



Page 21406



Page 21407



Page 21408



Page 21409



Page 21410



Page 21411



Page 21412



Page 21413



Page 21414



Page 21415



Page 21416



Page 21417



Page 21418



Page 21419



Page 21420



Page 21421



Page 21422



Page 21423



Page 21424



Page 21425



Page 21426



Page 21427



Page 21428



Page 21429



Page 21430



Page 21431



Page 21432



Page 21433



Page 21434



Page 21435



Page 21436



Page 21437



Page 21438



Page 21439



Page 21440



Page 21441



Page 21442



Page 21443



Page 21444



Page 21445



Page 21446



Page 21447



Page 21448



Page 21449



Page 21450



Page 21451



Page 21452



Page 21453



Page 21454



Page 21455



Page 21456



Page 21457



Page 21458



Page 21459



Page 21460



Page 21461



Page 21462



Page 21463



Page 21464



Page 21465



Page 21466



Page 21467



Page 21468



Page 21469



Page 21470



Page 21471



Page 21472



Page 21473



Page 21474



Page 21475



Page 21476



Page 21477



Page 21478



Page 21479



Page 21480



Page 21481



Page 21482



Page 21483



Page 21484



Page 21485



Page 21486



Page 21487



Page 21488



Page 21489



Page 21490



Page 21491



Page 21492



Page 21493



Page 21494



Page 21495



Page 21496



Page 21497



Page 21498



Page 21499



Page 21500



Page 21501



Page 21502



Page 21503



Page 21504



Page 21505



Page 21506



Page 21507



Page 21508



Page 21509



Page 21510



Page 21511



Page 21512



Page 21513



Page 21514



Page 21515



Page 21516



Page 21517



Page 21518



Page 21519



Page 21520



Page 21521



Page 21522



Page 21523



Page 21524



Page 21525



Page 21526



Page 21527



Page 21528



Page 21529



Page 21530



Page 21531



Page 21532



Page 21533



Page 21534



Page 21535



Page 21536



Page 21537



Page 21538



Page 21539



Page 21540



Page 21541



Page 21542



Page 21543



Page 21544



Page 21545



Page 21546



Page 21547



Page 21548



Page 21549



Page 21550



Page 21551



Page 21552



Page 21553



Page 21554



Page 21555



Page 21556



Page 21557



Page 21558



Page 21559



Page 21560



Page 21561



Page 21562



Page 21563



Page 21564



Page 21565



Page 21566



Page 21567



Page 21568



Page 21569



Page 21570



Page 21571



Page 21572



Page 21573



Page 21574



Page 21575



Page 21576



Page 21577



Page 21578



Page 21579



Page 21580



Page 21581



Page 21582



Page 21583



Page 21584



Page 21585



Page 21586



Page 21587



Page 21588



Page 21589



Page 21590



Page 21591



Page 21592



Page 21593



Page 21594



Page 21595



Page 21596



Page 21597



Page 21598



Page 21599



Page 21600



Page 21601



Page 21602



Page 21603



Page 21604



Page 21605



Page 21606



Page 21607



Page 21608



Page 21609



Page 21610



Page 21611



Page 21612



Page 21613



Page 21614



Page 21615



Page 21616



Page 21617



Page 21618



Page 21619



Page 21620



Page 21621



Page 21622



Page 21623



Page 21624



Page 21625



Page 21626



Page 21627



Page 21628



Page 21629



Page 21630



Page 21631



Page 21632



Page 21633



Page 21634



Page 21635



Page 21636



Page 21637



Page 21638



Page 21639



Page 21640



Page 21641



Page 21642



Page 21643



Page 21644



Page 21645



Page 21646



Page 21647



Page 21648



Page 21649



Page 21650



Page 21651



Page 21652



Page 21653



Page 21654



Page 21655



Page 21656



Page 21657



Page 21658



Page 21659



Page 21660



Page 21661



Page 21662



Page 21663



Page 21664



Page 21665



Page 21666



Page 21667



Page 21668



Page 21669



Page 21670



Page 21671



Page 21672



Page 21673



Page 21674



Page 21675



Page 21676



Page 21677



Page 21678



Page 21679



Page 21680



Page 21681



Page 21682



Page 21683



Page 21684



Page 21685



Page 21686



Page 21687



Page 21688



Page 21689



Page 21690



Page 21691



Page 21692



Page 21693



Page 21694



Page 21695



Page 21696



Page 21697



Page 21698



Page 21699



Page 21700



Page 21701



Page 21702



Page 21703



Page 21704



Page 21705



Page 21706



Page 21707



Page 21708



Page 21709



Page 21710



Page 21711



Page 21712



Page 21713



Page 21714



Page 21715



Page 21716



Page 21717



Page 21718



Page 21719



Page 21720



Page 21721



Page 21722



Page 21723



Page 21724



Page 21725



Page 21726



Page 21727



Page 21728



Page 21729



Page 21730



Page 21731



Page 21732



Page 21733



Page 21734



Page 21735



Page 21736



Page 21737



Page 21738



Page 21739



Page 21740



Page 21741



Page 21742



Page 21743



Page 21744



Page 21745



Page 21746



Page 21747



Page 21748



Page 21749



Page 21750



Page 21751



Page 21752



Page 21753



Page 21754



Page 21755



Page 21756



Page 21757



Page 21758



Page 21759



Page 21760



Page 21761



Page 21762



Page 21763



Page 21764



Page 21765



Page 21766



Page 21767



Page 21768



Page 21769



Page 21770



Page 21771



Page 21772



Page 21773



Page 21774



Page 21775



Page 21776



Page 21777



Page 21778



Page 21779



Page 21780



Page 21781



Page 21782



Page 21783



Page 21784



Page 21785



Page 21786



Page 21787



Page 21788



Page 21789



Page 21790



Page 21791



Page 21792



Page 21793



Page 21794



Page 21795



Page 21796



Page 21797



Page 21798



Page 21799



Page 21800



Page 21801



Page 21802



Page 21803



Page 21804



Page 21805



Page 21806



Page 21807



Page 21808



Page 21809



Page 21810



Page 21811



Page 21812



Page 21813



Page 21814



Page 21815



Page 21816



Page 21817



Page 21818



Page 21819



Page 21820



Page 21821



Page 21822



Page 21823



Page 21824



Page 21825



Page 21826



Page 21827



Page 21828



Page 21829



Page 21830



Page 21831



Page 21832



Page 21833



Page 21834



Page 21835



Page 21836



Page 21837



Page 21838



Page 21839



Page 21840



Page 21841



Page 21842



Page 21843



Page 21844



Page 21845



Page 21846



Page 21847



Page 21848



Page 21849



Page 21850



Page 21851



Page 21852



Page 21853



Page 21854



Page 21855



Page 21856



Page 21857



Page 21858



Page 21859



Page 21860



Page 21861



Page 21862



Page 21863



Page 21864



Page 21865



Page 21866



Page 21867



Page 21868



Page 21869



Page 21870



Page 21871



Page 21872



Page 21873



Page 21874



Page 21875



Page 21876



Page 21877



Page 21878



Page 21879



Page 21880



Page 21881



Page 21882



Page 21883



Page 21884



Page 21885



Page 21886



Page 21887



Page 21888



Page 21889



Page 21890



Page 21891



Page 21892



Page 21893



Page 21894



Page 21895



Page 21896



Page 21897



Page 21898



Page 21899



Page 21900



Page 21901



Page 21902



Page 21903



Page 21904



Page 21905



Page 21906



Page 21907



Page 21908



Page 21909



Page 21910



Page 21911



Page 21912



Page 21913



Page 21914



Page 21915



Page 21916



Page 21917



Page 21918



Page 21919



Page 21920



Page 21921



Page 21922



Page 21923



Page 21924



Page 21925



Page 21926



Page 21927



Page 21928



Page 21929



Page 21930



Page 21931



Page 21932



Page 21933



Page 21934



Page 21935



Page 21936



Page 21937



Page 21938



Page 21939



Page 21940



Page 21941



Page 21942



Page 21943



Page 21944



Page 21945



Page 21946



Page 21947



Page 21948



Page 21949



Page 21950



Page 21951



Page 21952



Page 21953



Page 21954



Page 21955



Page 21956



Page 21957



Page 21958



Page 21959



Page 21960



Page 21961



Page 21962



Page 21963



Page 21964



Page 21965



Page 21966



Page 21967



Page 21968



Page 21969



Page 21970



Page 21971



Page 21972



Page 21973



Page 21974



Page 21975



Page 21976



Page 21977



Page 21978



Page 21979



Page 21980



Page 21981



Page 21982



Page 21983



Page 21984



Page 21985



Page 21986



Page 21987



Page 21988



Page 21989



Page 21990



Page 21991



Page 21992



Page 21993



Page 21994



Page 21995



Page 21996



Page 21997



Page 21998



Page 21999



Page 22000



Page 22001



Page 22002



Page 22003



Page 22004



Page 22005



Page 22006



Page 22007



Page 22008



Page 22009



Page 22010



Page 22011



Page 22012



Page 22013



Page 22014



Page 22015



Page 22016



Page 22017



Page 22018



Page 22019



Page 22020



Page 22021



Page 22022



Page 22023



Page 22024



Page 22025



Page 22026



Page 22027



Page 22028



Page 22029



Page 22030



Page 22031



Page 22032



Page 22033



Page 22034



Page 22035



Page 22036



Page 22037



Page 22038



Page 22039



Page 22040



Page 22041



Page 22042



Page 22043



Page 22044



Page 22045



Page 22046



Page 22047



Page 22048



Page 22049



Page 22050



Page 22051



Page 22052



Page 22053



Page 22054



Page 22055



Page 22056



Page 22057



Page 22058



Page 22059



Page 22060



Page 22061



Page 22062



Page 22063



Page 22064



Page 22065



Page 22066



Page 22067



Page 22068



Page 22069



Page 22070



Page 22071



Page 22072



Page 22073



Page 22074



Page 22075



Page 22076



Page 22077



Page 22078



Page 22079



Page 22080



Page 22081



Page 22082



Page 22083



Page 22084



Page 22085



Page 22086



Page 22087



Page 22088



Page 22089



Page 22090



Page 22091



Page 22092



Page 22093



Page 22094



Page 22095



Page 22096



Page 22097



Page 22098



Page 22099



Page 22100



Page 22101



Page 22102



Page 22103



Page 22104



Page 22105



Page 22106



Page 22107



Page 22108



Page 22109



Page 22110



Page 22111



Page 22112



Page 22113



Page 22114



Page 22115



Page 22116



Page 22117



Page 22118



Page 22119



Page 22120



Page 22121



Page 22122



Page 22123



Page 22124



Page 22125



Page 22126



Page 22127



Page 22128



Page 22129



Page 22130



Page 22131



Page 22132



Page 22133



Page 22134



Page 22135



Page 22136



Page 22137



Page 22138



Page 22139



Page 22140



Page 22141



Page 22142



Page 22143



Page 22144



Page 22145



Page 22146



Page 22147



Page 22148



Page 22149



Page 22150



Page 22151



Page 22152



Page 22153



Page 22154



Page 22155



Page 22156



Page 22157



Page 22158



Page 22159



Page 22160



Page 22161



Page 22162



Page 22163



Page 22164



Page 22165



Page 22166



Page 22167



Page 22168



Page 22169



Page 22170



Page 22171



Page 22172



Page 22173



Page 22174



Page 22175



Page 22176



Page 22177



Page 22178



Page 22179



Page 22180



Page 22181



Page 22182



Page 22183



Page 22184



Page 22185



Page 22186



Page 22187



Page 22188



Page 22189



Page 22190



Page 22191



Page 22192



Page 22193



Page 22194



Page 22195



Page 22196



Page 22197



Page 22198



Page 22199



Page 22200



Page 22201



Page 22202



Page 22203



Page 22204



Page 22205



Page 22206



Page 22207



Page 22208



Page 22209



Page 22210



Page 22211



Page 22212



Page 22213



Page 22214



Page 22215



Page 22216



Page 22217



Page 22218



Page 22219



Page 22220



Page 22221



Page 22222



Page 22223



Page 22224



Page 22225



Page 22226



Page 22227



Page 22228



Page 22229



Page 22230



Page 22231



Page 22232



Page 22233



Page 22234



Page 22235



Page 22236



Page 22237



Page 22238



Page 22239



Page 22240



Page 22241



Page 22242



Page 22243



Page 22244



Page 22245



Page 22246



Page 22247



Page 22248



Page 22249



Page 22250



Page 22251



Page 22252



Page 22253



Page 22254



Page 22255



Page 22256



Page 22257



Page 22258



Page 22259



Page 22260



Page 22261



Page 22262



Page 22263



Page 22264



Page 22265



Page 22266



Page 22267



Page 22268



Page 22269



Page 22270



Page 22271



Page 22272



Page 22273



Page 22274



Page 22275



Page 22276



Page 22277



Page 22278



Page 22279



Page 22280



Page 22281



Page 22282



Page 22283



Page 22284



Page 22285



Page 22286



Page 22287



Page 22288



Page 22289



Page 22290



Page 22291



Page 22292



Page 22293



Page 22294



Page 22295



Page 22296



Page 22297



Page 22298



Page 22299



Page 22300



Page 22301



Page 22302



Page 22303



Page 22304



Page 22305



Page 22306



Page 22307



Page 22308



Page 22309



Page 22310



Page 22311



Page 22312



Page 22313



Page 22314



Page 22315



Page 22316



Page 22317



Page 22318



Page 22319



Page 22320



Page 22321



Page 22322



Page 22323



Page 22324



Page 22325



Page 22326



Page 22327



Page 22328



Page 22329



Page 22330



Page 22331



Page 22332



Page 22333



Page 22334



Page 22335



Page 22336



Page 22337



Page 22338



Page 22339



Page 22340



Page 22341



Page 22342



Page 22343



Page 22344



Page 22345



Page 22346



Page 22347



Page 22348



Page 22349



Page 22350



Page 22351



Page 22352



Page 22353



Page 22354



Page 22355



Page 22356



Page 22357



Page 22358



Page 22359



Page 22360



Page 22361



Page 22362



Page 22363



Page 22364



Page 22365



Page 22366



Page 22367



Page 22368



Page 22369



Page 22370



Page 22371



Page 22372



Page 22373



Page 22374



Page 22375



Page 22376



Page 22377



Page 22378



Page 22379



Page 22380



Page 22381



Page 22382



Page 22383



Page 22384



Page 22385



Page 22386



Page 22387



Page 22388



Page 22389



Page 22390



Page 22391



Page 22392



Page 22393



Page 22394



Page 22395



Page 22396



Page 22397



Page 22398



Page 22399



Page 22400



Page 22401



Page 22402



Page 22403



Page 22404



Page 22405



Page 22406



Page 22407



Page 22408



Page 22409



Page 22410



Page 22411



Page 22412



Page 22413



Page 22414



Page 22415



Page 22416



Page 22417



Page 22418



Page 22419



Page 22420



Page 22421



Page 22422



Page 22423



Page 22424



Page 22425



Page 22426



Page 22427



Page 22428



Page 22429



Page 22430



Page 22431



Page 22432



Page 22433



Page 22434



Page 22435



Page 22436



Page 22437



Page 22438



Page 22439



Page 22440



Page 22441



Page 22442



Page 22443



Page 22444



Page 22445



Page 22446



Page 22447



Page 22448



Page 22449



Page 22450



Page 22451



Page 22452



Page 22453



Page 22454



Page 22455



Page 22456



Page 22457



Page 22458



Page 22459



Page 22460



Page 22461



Page 22462



Page 22463



Page 22464



Page 22465



Page 22466



Page 22467



Page 22468



Page 22469



Page 22470



Page 22471



Page 22472



Page 22473



Page 22474



Page 22475



Page 22476



Page 22477



Page 22478



Page 22479



Page 22480



Page 22481



Page 22482



Page 22483



Page 22484



Page 22485



Page 22486



Page 22487



Page 22488



Page 22489



Page 22490



Page 22491



Page 22492



Page 22493



Page 22494



Page 22495



Page 22496



Page 22497



Page 22498



Page 22499



Page 22500



Page 22501



Page 22502



Page 22503



Page 22504



Page 22505



Page 22506



Page 22507



Page 22508



Page 22509



Page 22510



Page 22511



Page 22512



Page 22513



Page 22514



Page 22515



Page 22516



Page 22517



Page 22518



Page 22519



Page 22520



Page 22521



Page 22522



Page 22523



Page 22524



Page 22525



Page 22526



Page 22527



Page 22528



Page 22529



Page 22530



Page 22531



Page 22532



Page 22533



Page 22534



Page 22535



Page 22536



Page 22537



Page 22538



Page 22539



Page 22540



Page 22541



Page 22542



Page 22543



Page 22544



Page 22545



Page 22546



Page 22547



Page 22548



Page 22549



Page 22550



Page 22551



Page 22552



Page 22553



Page 22554



Page 22555



Page 22556



Page 22557



Page 22558



Page 22559



Page 22560



Page 22561



Page 22562



Page 22563



Page 22564



Page 22565



Page 22566



Page 22567



Page 22568



Page 22569



Page 22570



Page 22571



Page 22572



Page 22573



Page 22574



Page 22575



Page 22576



Page 22577



Page 22578



Page 22579



Page 22580



Page 22581



Page 22582



Page 22583



Page 22584



Page 22585



Page 22586



Page 22587



Page 22588



Page 22589



Page 22590



Page 22591



Page 22592



Page 22593



Page 22594



Page 22595



Page 22596



Page 22597



Page 22598



Page 22599



Page 22600



Page 22601



Page 22602



Page 22603



Page 22604



Page 22605



Page 22606



Page 22607



Page 22608



Page 22609



Page 22610



Page 22611



Page 22612



Page 22613



Page 22614



Page 22615



Page 22616



Page 22617



Page 22618



Page 22619



Page 22620



Page 22621



Page 22622



Page 22623



Page 22624



Page 22625



Page 22626



Page 22627



Page 22628



Page 22629



Page 22630



Page 22631



Page 22632



Page 22633



Page 22634



Page 22635



Page 22636



Page 22637



Page 22638



Page 22639



Page 22640



Page 22641



Page 22642



Page 22643



Page 22644



Page 22645



Page 22646



Page 22647



Page 22648



Page 22649



Page 22650



Page 22651



Page 22652



Page 22653



Page 22654



Page 22655



Page 22656



Page 22657



Page 22658



Page 22659



Page 22660



Page 22661



Page 22662



Page 22663



Page 22664



Page 22665



Page 22666



Page 22667



Page 22668



Page 22669



Page 22670



Page 22671



Page 22672



Page 22673



Page 22674



Page 22675



Page 22676



Page 22677



Page 22678



Page 22679



Page 22680



Page 22681



Page 22682



Page 22683



Page 22684



Page 22685



Page 22686



Page 22687



Page 22688



Page 22689



Page 22690



Page 22691



Page 22692



Page 22693



Page 22694



Page 22695



Page 22696



Page 22697



Page 22698



Page 22699



Page 22700



Page 22701



Page 22702



Page 22703



Page 22704



Page 22705



Page 22706



Page 22707



Page 22708



Page 22709



Page 22710



Page 22711



Page 22712



Page 22713



Page 22714



Page 22715



Page 22716



Page 22717



Page 22718



Page 22719



Page 22720



Page 22721



Page 22722



Page 22723



Page 22724



Page 22725



Page 22726



Page 22727



Page 22728



Page 22729



Page 22730



Page 22731



Page 22732



Page 22733



Page 22734



Page 22735



Page 22736



Page 22737



Page 22738



Page 22739



Page 22740



Page 22741



Page 22742



Page 22743



Page 22744



Page 22745



Page 22746



Page 22747



Page 22748



Page 22749



Page 22750



Page 22751



Page 22752



Page 22753



Page 22754



Page 22755



Page 22756



Page 22757



Page 22758



Page 22759



Page 22760



Page 22761



Page 22762



Page 22763



Page 22764



Page 22765



Page 22766



Page 22767



Page 22768



Page 22769



Page 22770



Page 22771



Page 22772



Page 22773



Page 22774



Page 22775



Page 22776



Page 22777



Page 22778



Page 22779



Page 22780



Page 22781



Page 22782



Page 22783



Page 22784



Page 22785



Page 22786



Page 22787



Page 22788



Page 22789



Page 22790



Page 22791



Page 22792



Page 22793



Page 22794



Page 22795



Page 22796



Page 22797



Page 22798



Page 22799



Page 22800



Page 22801



Page 22802



Page 22803



Page 22804



Page 22805



Page 22806



Page 22807



Page 22808



Page 22809



Page 22810



Page 22811



Page 22812



Page 22813



Page 22814



Page 22815



Page 22816



Page 22817



Page 22818



Page 22819



Page 22820



Page 22821



Page 22822



Page 22823



Page 22824



Page 22825



Page 22826



Page 22827



Page 22828



Page 22829



Page 22830



Page 22831



Page 22832



Page 22833



Page 22834



Page 22835



Page 22836



Page 22837



Page 22838



Page 22839



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22840


	Agenda
	1 City & Hackney ICB Agenda - 14 May 2020
	0. ICB-2020-05-14 Agenda draft v0.2
	2. ICB Register of Interests March 2020
	4. ICB Minutes - 12 March 2020 v0.2
	5a. ICB TOR Cover Sheet
	5b.ICB ToR May 2020
	7. ICB Paper COVID DISCHARGE SERVICE S75 draft
	8a. ICB Cover Sheet Template - Service Changes
	8b. 01.05.2020 _ CH Service change Narrative (ICB)
	9. ICB Paper Contracting Position 5-May-2020
	11a. ICB Meeting Paper COVERSHEET
	11b. Neighbourhoods Year 3 Business Case for ICB
	11c. Neighbourhoods Operating Model February 2020 ICB
	11d. Neighbourhoods Delivery Plan v2.9 27.02.2020
	zz. Integrated Commissioning Glossary 3
	Appendix 1 - (Item 7) Hospital Discharge Patient Leaflet
	Appendix 2 - (Item 7) Local Authority spend reimbursement template
	Appendix 3 - (Item 7) Deed of Variation (CoL) Discharge
	Appendix 4 - (Item 7) Deed of Variation (LBH) Discharge
	Appendix 5 - (Item 8) City & Hackney Service Changes (Full Version)




